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NARRATIVE REPORT

Introduction

This Statement of Accounts presents the overall financial position of the Council for the
year ended 31 March 2024. It has been produced in compliance with the Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting (the Code), based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and
the Update to the Code and Specifications for Future Codes for Infrastructure Assets -
November 2022 (the Update). IFRS are made up of a combination of many individual
accounting standards.

This document also includes information relating to the Derbyshire Pension Fund, which
the Council administers on behalf of its own staff, local authorities and other admitted
bodies.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation

When preparing the accounts, an authority should have regard to whether the information
is material to the “true and fair” view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the authority and to the understanding of users.

Information is material if omitting it, or misstating it, could influence decisions that users
make on the basis of financial information about a specific authority.

The Accounting Policies of the Council have been prepared in accordance with IFRS, as
adopted by the Code and the Update. Where there is no specific guidance in the Code or
the Update, the Council has developed its own Accounting Policies, which are aimed at
creating information which is relevant to the decision-making needs of users and reliable,
in that the financial statements:

o represent fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the entity;

¢ reflect the economic substance of transactions, other events and conditions and
not merely the legal form;

e are neutral i.e. free from bias;

e are prudent; and

e are complete in all material respects.

The Council’'s Accounting Policies outline how the Council should account for all income,
expenditure, assets and liabilities held and incurred during the 2023-24 financial year.

The Accounting Policies of the Council are updated annually to reflect any changes in
IFRS, including changes in International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS),
HM Treasury guidance, CIPFA guidance or any other change in statute, guidance or
framework impacting on the Council’s accounts. The Accounting Policies of the Council,
as far as possible, have been developed to ensure that the accounts of the Council are
understandable, relevant, free from material error or misstatement, reliable and
comparable.
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Explanation of the Accounting Statements which follow

e Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) — This shows the cost
of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices.

e Balance Sheet (BS) — This shows the value of all assets and liabilities. Reserves
are matched against net assets and liabilities.

e Cash Flow Statement (CFS) — This statement shows the changes in cash and cash
equivalents of the Council.

e Movement in Reserves (MiRS) — This shows the movement on the different
reserves held, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (i.e. those that can be applied to fund
expenditure) and ‘unusable’ reserves.

o Notes to the Accounts — Not a statement, however they provide supplementary
information.

Performance

Local authorities may present their breakdown of services within the CIES based on how
they are organised and funded. The Council therefore presents its CIES on the basis of
how it reports its management accounts during the financial year, with eight operating and
reporting segments, primarily based on Cabinet Member Portfolios. The Council has nine
Cabinet Member Portfolios, structured into four departments. These portfolios are Adult
Care, Children’s Services and Safeguarding, Clean Growth and Regeneration, Corporate
Services and Budget, Education, Health and Communities, Highways Assets and
Transport, Infrastructure and Environment, and Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism
and Climate Change. However, for operational and reporting purposes the Children’s
Services and Safeguarding and Education portfolios are combined.

Revenue Expenditure
Overall Council Expenditure

The Council set its net budget requirement for 2023-24 on 15 February 2023 and originally
planned to spend £678.195m, with funding coming in the form of Government non-ring-
fenced grants of £248.094m, Council Tax of £387.011m, business rates collected locally
of £19.383m and the use of Earmarked Reserves of £23.707m.

In 2023-24 the Council has spent £740.060m, against a final net budget of £718.378m.
The increase in net budget is because of additional general grant income of £23m, of
which £11.466m relates to Bus Services Improvement Plan Grant and £5.904m to
Business Rates Relief Grant, and £3m more business rates income than expected, plus
additional net transfers from Earmarked and General Reserves of £14m.
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The table below summarises the Council’s revenue outturn for 2023-24, compared to
controllable budget, highlighting the Cabinet Member Portfolio net overspend and the
Corporate net underspend. This has resulted in an overall Council overspend of
£21.682m for 2023-24. However, this was after substantial one-off support from the use
of £37.108m of the Council’s Earmarked reserves. The 2023-24 Budget approved by
Council in February 2023 included the planned use of £23.707m from the Budget
Management Earmarked Reserve for planned service pressures. An additional £13.401m
of Earmarked Reserves has been drawn down from departmental reserves to support the
Adult Care (£7.091m), Children’s Services Safeguarding and Education (£1.544m),
Corporate Services and Budget (£1.621m), Highways Assets and Transport (£2.407m)
and Infrastructure and Environment (£0.738m) portfolio outturn positions.

The overspend in 2023-24 follows the outturn position for 2022-23, which resulted in the
Council utilising £55m of its reserves in order to manage its budget to meet inflationary,
demand and pay award cost pressures. The Council continues to face significant
inflationary cost pressures across all services, combined with continued growth in demand
for Adults Services, Children’s Social Care and Education, and increasing reactive and
planned maintenance requirements on the Highways Infrastructure. At the time of setting
the budget in February 2023, substantial investment was made in all service areas to
support anticipated inflationary and demand pressures. However, despite this investment,
inflation has continued to result in cost pressures in excess of budget across all service
areas. In addition, the Local Government pay award for 2023-24 was higher than
estimated.
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Final
Net
Budget Actual Outturn
£m £m £m
Controllable:
Adult Care 308.322 317.618 9.296
Children's Services and Safeguarding and Education 162.450 183.204 20.754
Clean Growth and Regeneration 1.984 1.797 (0.187)
Corporate Services and Budget 76.948 74.263 (2.685)
Health and Communities 12.576 10.883 (1.693)
Highways Assets and Transport 50.603 51.024 0.421
Infrastructure and Environment 48.994 48.644 (0.350)
Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate
Change 11.069 10.501 (0.568)
Portfolio Outturn 672.946 697.934 24.988
Risk Management 6.084 0.000 (6.084)
Debt Charges 39.829 49.822 9.993
Interest and Dividends Receivable (5.422) (15.776) (10.354)
Levies and Precepts 0.373 0.373 0.000
Corporate Adjustments 4.568 7.707 3.139
Total Outturn Position 718.378 740.060 21.682
Transfers to / from reserves:
RCCO - Capital Funded from Revenue 0.000 0.000 0.000
Transfer to Earmarked Reserves 59.336 59.336 0.000
Transfer from Earmarked Reserves (126.542) (126.542) 0.000
Use of General Reserves (5.789) (5.789) 0.000
Contribution into General Reserve 34.937 13.255 (21.682)
680.320 680.320 0.000
Financed By:
Council Tax (387.011) (387.011) 0.000
Revenue Support Grant (15.714) (15.714) 0.000
Business Rates (22.708) (22.708) 0.000
Business Rates Top-up (97.774) (97.774) 0.000
Business Rates Relief Grant (25.851) (25.851) 0.000
New Homes Bonus (1.106) (1.106) 0.000
Other General Revenue Grants (119.652)| (119.652) 0.000
PFI Grant (10.504) (10.504) 0.000
(680.320) (680.320) 0.000
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2023-24 Overspend Change from Q1 Forecast to Q4 Outturn

The 2023-24 forecast at Q1 (30 June 2023) was for an overspend of £46.376m, which if
left unmitigated would have considerably depleted the Council’s reserves. Whilst the
outturn of £21.682m overspend is an improved position from earlier in the financial year,
this level of overspend has still resulted in a significant additional use of reserves. During
the year, the Council took a number of actions to mitigate the overspend. These included:

¢ Finding alternative in year savings proposals.

¢ Looking at high-cost placements to find more suitable and cost effective options.

e Stopping or delaying projects until the next financial year to reduce planned
expenditure in year.

¢ Implementing a temporary recruitment pause to reduce in year expenditure.

¢ Limiting expenditure on agency staffing to cover essential roles only.

¢ Introducing expenditure controls across non staffing budgets.

The overspend has reduced considerably since the Q1 2023-24 forecast at 30 June 2023.
The reasons for the improvement are summarised in the table below:

Budget
Performance
Elmprovement
£m|l miDeterioration
Overspend forecast at Q1 46.376
Material reductions in expenditure (14.291) |
Material increases in expenditure 29.665 ]
Additional Use of Reserves (15.912) [+
Additional Grant Income (12.467) ||
Additional unbudgeted income (8.363) |+ ]
Other identified material changes (3.231) [+
Other unidentified changes (0.095) [+]
Outturn budget overspend 21.682

It is noteworthy that, of the £24.694m overall improvement from the Q1 forecast to actual
Q4 2023-24 Outturn, certain areas of expenditure were less than forecast by £14.291m,
whilst other areas of expenditure increased by £29.665m. The Council had planned
reserve use of £23.707m in the 2023-24 approved budget and used an additional
£15.912m of departmental reserves to support the departmental position than was
additionally included in the forecast at Q1. The Council received an additional £20.830m
of income.

The Council continues to work with partners, such as the Local Government Association
and the Society of County Treasurers, to lobby Government for additional funding to
support vital services and to highlight the continued financial pressures facing the Council.
Cost pressures and demand for services are expected to remain high in 2024-25.
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Spending on schools is funded by the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). The Council
received £391.677m in 2023-24. Note 36 sets out the DSG grant in more detail. The
Council also has responsibility for Public Health funding. A total of £46.952m was
received in 2023-24, in the form of ring-fenced grants from Government, comprising the
main Public Health Grant of £45.232m and other grants of £1.720m, to pay for Public
Health services. There was an overspend against the balance of the grants of £0.258m.
The outturn table shows the positions net of the impact of these grants, other ring-fenced
grants and income from other third parties and their associated spend.

Of the overall £21.682m overspend in 2023-24, the significant variances (summarised in
the earlier table) are set out below.

Portfolio Expenditure

Adult Care

The £9.296m overspend on the Adult Care portfolio relates mainly to Purchased Services
costs (£17.9m overspend) and allocated savings targets which haven’t been achieved in
2023-24. There has been an increase in demand in relation to hospital discharges and
because there is an insufficient supply of home care and reablement services, this has
driven increased short-term placements into residential homes whilst people await the
availability of care at home. As a result, expenditure on independent sector placements
has increased further in excess of budget. Pressures on residential care and reablement
services budgets are being partially mitigated by underspends in other areas, including
Direct Care (home care) staffing vacancies and reduced usage of Day Centres. The
underspend on Direct Care is £6.1m. The outturn for this portfolio includes the draw-down
of £7.091m of departmental Earmarked reserves.

Children’s Services

The £20.754m overspend on the Children’s Services and Safeguarding and Education
portfolios is mainly due to continued high demand for placements for children who are in
care or unable to remain at home (£17.335m overspend) and demand for safeguarding
services (£1.269m overspend). There are also significant pressures on Education
budgets relating to Home to School Transport (£2.490m overspend) and School and
Learning Services (£3.036m overspend). One-off factors such as non-recurrent grant
income and drawdowns from Earmarked reserves have been used to reduce the portfolio
overspend.

Expenditure on placements for children in care or alternatives to care has continued to
rise, primarily due to an increase in the cost of placements. Inflationary pressures have
led to higher average costs, whilst a shortage of foster care places has exacerbated the
position by requiring the need to make more higher cost placements with independent
providers. The number of children requiring support has also grown and there are a
greater number of children in arrangements which are alternatives to care, such as Special
Guardianship Orders, many of which require long-term financial support. To demonstrate
the financial pressures the service faced in 2023-24, the number of looked after children
in care increased from 994 at 1 April 2023, to 1,056 at 31 March 2024. With the best
interests of the child at the heart of decision-making, on-going work is being undertaken
to maximise the capacity of places and care packages available. This choice should
7
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ensure children are given the most appropriate placement and mitigate some of the rising
cost pressures.

Demand for Children’s Social Care services are high, which has resulted in a £1.269m
overspend primarily on support for children and families. A 32% increase in contacts to
the service this year has led to a 4% increase in child protection plans, a 6% increase in
children in care and a 2% increase in children in need. Overall, the service works with
around 5,000 children. To respond to the high level of demand, an appropriate level of
skilled workforce is required, which has necessitated the use of agency workers to cover
vacancies and has contributed £0.580m to the overspend.

The SEND and Educational Psychology (EP) Services have seen an unprecedented rise
in demand, resulting in significant increases in assessments and Education Health Care
Plans (EHCPs), as shown below.

Calendar Calendar Percentage

Year* Year* Increase
EHCPs 2022 2023 %
Assessment Requests 1,528 2,034 33%
EHCPs 4,997 6,325 27%

*In line with Special Educational Needs SEN2 return.

The rise in demand has resulted in an overspend for EP assessments and SEND officers
to administer the statutory assessment process. The growth in EHCPs issued has also
resulted in an increase in staffing for the Annual Review Teams. Schools and Learning
budgets have overspent by £3.036m, which includes an overspend on SEND and EP
Services of £2.428m and a £0.926m overspend on catering (after contribution to corporate
overheads). This is offset by underspends on the Education Welfare Service (£0.229m),
Development (£0.092m) and other school-related budget net underspends making up the
balance. Transport demand is directly impacted by SEND and EP demand. As such the
demand on SEND Home to School transport is high, resulting in an overspend of £1.828m.

The outturn for this portfolio includes the draw down £1.544m of departmental Earmarked
reserves.

Corporate Services and Budget

The £2.685m underspend on the Corporate Services and Budget portfolio is a net position,
reflecting both under and overspends across different service areas. Underspending
areas included:

e Capitalisation of Azure Cloud costs as part of the SAP HANA project £1.6m,
offset by £0.7m of unachieved efficiency savings originally anticipated from the
introduction of the SAP HANA system.

e Additional £0.5m of controllable recharges achieved by Finance for additional
work undertaken.

¢ Underspends on training budgets (£0.3m in Human Resources and £0.2m in
Transformation and Strategy).
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¢ Underspends on salaries resulting from vacancies in multiple services areas,
including Finance (£0.1m), Human Resources (£0.4m), Legal Services and
Transformation and Strategy (over £1.2m).

These underspends were partially offset by an overspend of £1.3m on County Property
due to a £2.1m deficit on the Building Maintenance Service, offset by an underspend of
£0.6m on the repairs and maintenance budget. Overspends of £0.4m on the Asset
Optimisation budget and £0.3m on the Industrial Development budget were offset by
£0.9m of unspent service pressure funding. A separate analysis of the Property Budget
has been conducted, which identified a structural imbalance in the costs of running
property assets and the budgets allocated to Property as the Corporate Landlord. This
imbalance will be addressed during 2024-25. A further analysis of the costs incurred by
the Building Maintenance Service is ongoing, following the Council’s decision restructure
the service.

The forecast outturn for this portfolio includes the drawdown of £1.621m of departmental
Earmarked reserves.

Health and Communities

The underspend of £1.693m on this portfolio is a consequence of additional funding, from
the Contain Outbreak Management Fund and Public Health ringfenced grant and
recharges made to Household Support Fund, applied to the Prevention budget (£1.4m).
Also, because of vacancies in the Trading Standards service (£0.2m) and not undertaking
one-off Community Safety projects (£0.2m).

Highways, Assets and Transport
The £0.421m overspend on the Highways Assets and Transport portfolio reflects a
number of areas of pressure, including:
e The cost of agency staff covering key posts in the Network Planning team (£0.7m
overspend).
e The cost of the Accelerated Capital Delivery Team (£0.6m overspend).
¢ Winter maintenance costs in excess of the allocated budget (£0.5m overspend
after £0.3m from the Winter Maintenance Earmarked reserve has been utilised).
e Prior year savings targets not achievable (£2.8m overspend).

However, overspends in Highways services are partially offset by underspends in Public
and Community Transport (£2.031m) due to the receipt of additional grant funding, Council
Fleet Services (£0.6m) due to higher than budgeted income from the Police Contract and
the Highways Administration/Hub (£0.4m) due to the recovery of aged debt previously
provided to be written off.

The outturn for this portfolio includes the draw down £2.407m of departmental Earmarked
reserves, including the Winter Maintenance reserve.

The overspends on the Adult Care, Children’s Services and Safeguarding and Education
and Highways Assets and Transport portfolios have been funded from the Council’s
General Reserve in 2023-24.
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Corporate Expenditure

There was an underspend of £3.306m on corporate budgets in 2023-24, the corporate
budgets being:
¢ Risk Management
Debt Charges
Interest and Dividend Income
Levies and Precepts
Corporate Adjustments

There was an underspend of £6.084m on the Risk Management budget. Budgets
allocated to departments for the Local Government Pay award and other pay related
pressures exceeded the budgeted contingency by £5.7m and budget allocated to
Children’s Services for inflation was £3.9m in excess of the budgeted contingency. This
was offset by £1.5m of specific contingency and £3.6m of general contingency not
allocated and £8.0m of additional non-ringfenced grant income received.

The Debt Charges budget was overspent by £9.993m in 2023-24, of which £6.0m related
to interest payable on short-term loans and £3.8m to the Minimum Revenue Provision
(MRP) for the repayment of debt principal as a result of additional borrowing.

Interest payable on short-term loans increased due to rising interest rates and the
increased need to borrow to maintain working capital after the payment of the Derby and
Derbyshire Waste Treatment Centre legal settlement in July 2023 (£2.3m of interest costs
relating to the increased need to borrow because of the legal settlement). MRP increased
as the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) has risen following the trend of
switching capital financing from Revenue Contributions to borrowing in recent years as
part of its risk management strategy.

There was a favourable variance of £10.354m on the Interest and Dividends budget. The
Council utilised a range of investments to maximise its income on cash balances. As
interest rates have risen, income from short-term lending increased, but this income was
offset by an increase in the interest the Council paid to meet its temporary borrowing
needs. The Council held £30.799m for and on behalf of the East Midlands Combined
County Authority (EMCCA) at 31 March 2024; whilst the Council earned interest income
on funds held for EMCCA in 2023-24, this interest income has been offset by interest
which will be payable to EMCCA on release of these funds, recognised in the Debt
Charges budget.

There was a forecast overspend of £3.139m on Corporate Adjustments in 2023-24. This
was due to an expected credit loss in respect of interest receivable on a loan advanced to
an organisation which is now in doubt due to economic conditions (£0.9m), reserve
movements attributable to the ring-fenced Dedicated Schools Grant (£2.4m) which relate
to interest paid on school balances (offset by additional interest income), amortisation of
premiums and interest on restructured loans (£0.3m), less £0.5m in respect of interest
receivable on schools’ balances.

10
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Council Reserves and Commitments

The Council's General Reserve was £40.182m at 31 March 2024. This is after the
Council's 2023-24 overspend of £21.682m and is also after the agreed release of
£31.803m from Earmarked Reserve balances to the General Reserve, which was reported
to Cabinet on 1 February 2024. The budget report for 2024-25 approved by Council in
February 2024 commented the general reserve balance cannot fall below £25m.

Portfolio ring-fenced commitments of £0.506m were proposed against this balance in the
Council’s Performance Monitoring and Revenue Outturn 2023-24 Report.

The balance on the General Reserve, before commitments, is 5.6% of the Council’s Net
Budget Requirement for 2024-25. The minimum level of General Reserve for an
organisation the size of the Council is around 3% of a council’s net spending. If there was
a similar level of overspend in 2024-25 as in 2023-24, this would see the General Reserve
fall below the minimum level.

In addition to the portfolio ring-fenced commitments, the Council's Performance
Monitoring and Revenue Outturn 2023-24 Report proposed to approve contributions to
Earmarked Reserves of £0.542m from the underspends on several specific grants, to fund
future expenditure consistent with the purpose of each respective grant. A contribution to
an Earmarked Reserve of £0.678m, from the Public Transport budget, was also proposed,
to fund additional capacity within the SEND Passenger Transport service. These
contributions were already allowed for in the reported outturn and reserves positions.

Considering the current challenges of the Council's overall financial position, it was not
proposed to allocate portfolio underspends to departmental Earmarked reserves for 2023-
24, beyond these ring-fenced commitments. Any decisions on the use of departmental
Earmarked reserves containing underspends will continue to be subject to appropriate
approvals by the relevant Cabinet Member in consultation with the Director of Finance.

Reviews of Earmarked Reserves will continue, and any available balances will be returned
to the General Reserve, and, if appropriate, reallocated to other Earmarked Reserves.
This enables the Council to refocus the balances it is holding, based on its latest
assessment of the most significant and immediate financial risks. The next review of
Earmarked reserve levels is scheduled to be reported in January/February 2025.

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement shows a deficit on provision of
services of £74.359m. This is different to the outturn position shown above as it includes
both cash transactions and non-cash items, such as depreciation. Loss on disposal of
non-current assets, which includes asset values in respect of eight schools converting to
academies during the year, comprises £64.828m of the deficit.

Cost of Living Support

The Council has responded to the impact of the rising cost of living being experienced by
Derbyshire residents.

11
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For 2023-24, the Council was again awarded a Household Support Fund grant by the UK
Government, to support local households facing financial hardship in relation to rising
food, energy and essential living costs. The Council continued to take a blended approach
to distributing the grant, working cross-Council, with District and Borough council partners
and the voluntary sector, to help ensure the funding reached those who needed it most.
By 31 March 2024, the Council and partners had successfully distributed £10.760m (2022-
23: £10.808m) of Household Support Grant funding to households in need.

During 2023-24, £2.305m (2022-23: £2.439m) of the grant was distributed via one-off
grocery vouchers to those eligible for benefit-related free school meals, care leavers and
children in receipt of additional early years childcare funding because of a low household
income. A further £3.096m (2022-23: £3.722m) was distributed to pensioners and Adult
Social Care clients in low income households, and District and Borough councils used
£1.873m (2022-23: £1.800m) of the grant to address homelessness prevention, welfare
and other associated emergency housing needs locally. Cash grants were awarded to
low-income families and care leavers by children’s professionals, and unpaid carers and
vulnerable pensioners were supported to access crisis help by partner agencies. £2.276m
(2022-23: £2.137m) of the additional grant funding allowed the Council to respond to
increased demand on the Derbyshire Discretionary Fund (DDF). The DDF made 25,146
(2022-23: 32,756) Emergency Cash Payment awards to residents, to help with food and
heating during the year, and supported an additional 913 (2022-23: 658) households with
Exceptional Pressure Grants (for instance, for re-settlement when facing domestic abuse,
or to ease exceptional pressure on a family).

The Council’s communications team continued to give a significant profile to the cost of
living support available to residents, both locally and nationally, including promoting take
up of free school meals, and in-house Welfare Rights Service support. In 2023-24, the
take up of free school meals across the county increased to 77.1% (2022-23: 73.7%),
beginning to reverse the decline that took place during the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Welfare Rights Service supported 25,383 residents with income maximisation advice
during 2023-24 — leading to 9,496 benefit claims or appeals being made.

Homes for Ukraine Response

Following the invasion of Ukraine in February 2022, the UK Government implemented the
Homes for Ukraine (H4U) scheme to provide homes for families fleeing the conflict.

To date, just over 1,500 H4U guests have arrived in Derbyshire, with 307 of those arriving
in 2023-24 — the highest guest population in the region and one of the highest, per head
of population, in the UK. Under H4U, local authorities initially received core funding of
£10,500 to support each guest, dropping to £5,900 for guests arriving in 2023-24. In
addition, funding is also received to provide monthly thank-you payments to host
households. In the last twelve months, the Council has claimed £1.811m of core funding
and £1.858m for the provision of thank-you payments.

12
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The H4U funding has allowed the Council to set up the infrastructure to deliver the
scheme, including the processing of DBS (Disclosure and Barring Service) checks,
environmental inspections of host properties, safeguarding screening, the delivery of safe
and well checks and rematching, where host placements have broken down. In 2023-24,
emergency payments of £0.061m have been made to guests to support them when they
initially arrive and payments of £2.467m have been made to support hosts, which includes
a payment uplift for all hosts, to £500 per month, and additional cost of living funding to
support them with increased expenses over the winter months. This has supported hosts
to maintain placements, and there has only been a reduction of fifteen hosts within the
H4U scheme throughout the year. The ongoing priority of the scheme is to respond to the
longer-term support needs of guests, for example, obtaining independent accommodation
and employment.

Capital Expenditure

In 2023-24 the Council’s capital expenditure increased by £65.236m compared to the
previous year. The Council had planned to spend £229.150m, as set out in the Council’s
Estimate of Capital Expenditure in the Council’s Capital Strategy reported to full Council
but actual expenditure was only £165.544m, albeit an increase on the previous year’s
spend.

The increase in planned expenditure compared to previous years was mainly due to spend
on the Derby and Derbyshire Waste Treatment Centre, however there was still slippage
on various schemes, along with some major projects completing in previous years and
new projects still at the feasibility stage, which meant that actual expenditure was much
less than expected.

2022-23 2023-24
Em Em
Capital Expenditure 100.308 165.544
Funded by:
Grants and Contributions 54,273 71665
Loans 44 414 81,286
Revenue Contnbutions 0.073 0,000
Capital Receipis 1.548 2553
Total 100,308 165,544

Previously, the Council funded some capital projects using revenue contributions but due
to service pressures on revenue funds, and to enable the Council to provide flexibility in
managing its budget savings, the Council has changed its approach regarding allocating
funding to capital projects. To replace the revenue contributions no longer being used,
the Council has had to use other methods of funding, namely internal borrowing/short-
term borrowing and available capital receipts.

13
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Assets and Liabilities

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment Assets (PPE) has increased by £71.433m,
partly due to the Council’'s Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) assets being rebased
in 2023-24, in line with the Council’s valuation policy, using BCIS (Building Cost
Information Service) rates to update build costs. This rebase, along with an increase in
the indices used to revalue assets, which are carried at current value, has contributed to
the increase.

Current and Non-Current Investments have decreased by £199.050m and Cash and Cash
Equivalents have increased by £8.430m from the previous year.

Current and Non-Current Debtors have increased by £35.205m.
Creditors and Current and Non-Current Provisions have increased by £22.348m.

Current and Non-Current Borrowing have decreased by £82.360m. The Council has not
entered into any long-term debt since September 2010. The Council had one Lender
Option Borrower Option (LOBO) loan, with a nominal value of £5.000m, remaining at the
start of the year, but repaid it in October 2023.

The Council’s pensions’ position has changed from a total net pensions asset of £29.323m
at 31 March 2023, to a total net pensions liability of £65.001m at 31 March 2024. At
31 March 2024, there was a total net Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) surplus
reported by the Actuary of £282.049m (31 March 2023: £85.811m surplus). The increase
in LGPS surplus at 31 March 2024 has arisen mainly because of gains arising from
changes to the financial assumptions used to measure LGPS scheme liabilities in the
actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2022 and the return on LGPS scheme assets in 2023-
24. However, Accounting Standards impose a limit on the maximum amount of surplus
which can be recognised in the Balance Sheet, known as an asset ceiling restriction. The
Actuary calculated an LGPS scheme asset ceiling restriction of £305.259m (31 March
2023: £12.432m restriction). After this adjustment, there is a total net pensions liability in
the accounts, including Teachers Pensions, of £65.001m (31 March 2023: £29.323m total
net pensions asset).

This asset ceiling restriction has contributed to an overall decrease in the Council’s
Unusable Reserves.

Cashflow

The Council’s cashflow in 2023-24 highlights a large increase in payments related to the
provision of services, which is reflective of continued price and wage inflation experienced
throughout the economy and high demand for Council services. The Council has
continued to rely on utilising reserves to meet shortfalls in funding for operating costs,
which is reflected in the trend for the Council to raise cash to maintain adequate working
capital by redeeming investments. Shifts in the risk profile in the local authority lending
market have reduced the availability of cash from this market, which is reflected in a trend
for the Council to repay its short term borrowing from other local authorities.
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The cash outflow from Operating Activities increased by £33.147m in 2023-24. There
were increases in Other Operating Payments (non-employee) of £85.985m and Payments
to and on behalf of employees of £38.933m. These increases in net cash outflows were
partly offset by an increase in cash inflows from Council Tax of £17.197m, Business Rates
of £2.500m, and Revenue Grants and Other Income of £67.184m. Interest payments
increased by £4.467m and Interest and Dividends Received increased by £7.793m in
2023-24.

A net cash outflow from Investing Activities of £4.804m in 2022-23 changed to a cash
inflow of £156.483m in 2023-24; a movement of £161.287m. Purchases of investments
reduced by £121.922m and investments redeemed increased by £59.324m in 2023-24.
Capital Grants received increased by £37.612m and Proceeds from the Sale of Non-
Current Assets increased by £2.951m. These increases in net cash inflows were partly
offset by an increase in the Purchase of Non-Current Assets of £60.592m.

A net cash inflow from Financing Activities of £76.670m in 2022-23 changed to a cash
outflow of £66.700m in 2023-24; a movement of £143.370m. Repayment of borrowing
increased by £147.609m and inflows from new short-term loans reduced by £16.480m.
These increases in net cash outflows were partly offset by an increase in net receipts on
behalf of the Shadow Combined County Authority of £21.037m in 2023-24 (which became
the new East Midlands County Combined Authority (EMCCA) in late February 2024).

Council Funding

Core Spending Power measures the core revenue funding available for local authority
services, including Council Tax and locally retained business rates.

For 2023-24 the Government set out public spending allocations for one year only, with
an average 9.4% increase in core spending power, and a further £1.5bn increase in the
Social Care Grant for adult and children’s social care services. For key grants there were
some indicative indications of total funding for 2024-25. For 2024-25, the Government set
out public spending allocations again for one year only, with an average increase of 7.5%
in core spending power including £1.8bn of additional grants previously announced and
£0.6bn of further additional grants announced in January 2024, mainly for social care.

There is a risk that the Government’s investment in the Covid-19 pandemic and in
increasing social care funding in recent years may result in further austerity measures in
future years, during the period of the FYFP, when savings will be required to repay the
debt incurred by Government. However, the FYFP assumes that there is no reduction in
the Council’s general grant funding other than that its allocation of additional 2024-25
Social Care Grant, announced on 24 January 2024, will not continue into 2025-26 and
beyond and that its allocation of Services Grant ends in 2024-25.

For 2023-24, the Council increased Council Tax by 3.75% (an ASC Precept increase of
1.25% and a basic Council Tax increase of 2.50%), which is lower than the maximum
4.99% allowed without holding a referendum. For 2024-25, the Council increased Council
Tax by 4.99% (an ASC Precept increase of 2.00% and a basic Council Tax increase of
2.99%), which is equal to the maximum 4.99% allowed without holding a referendum.
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The 2024-25 Council Tax increase of 4.99% is in recognition of Adult Social Care
pressures and the substantial increase in general budget pressures the Council is
experiencing. Increasing Council Tax by 4.99% will raise around an additional £19.502m
in Council Tax income in 2024-25 and future years to support the Council’s vital
services. A 2% Council Tax increase is forecast in the Council’s in each subsequent
year from 2025-26 to 2028-29. The Council will always attempt to keep Council Tax rises
as low as possible. However, pressures will continue to emerge over the medium term,
in particular additional costs around pay, and inflationary pressures, were largely absent
over the last ten years or so prior to 2022-23. The need to manage these, and other
pressures, will be challenging and as a result future Council Tax increases cannot be
easily forecast with a high degree of certainty, and it is possible that predictions expressed
in the initial FYFP will prove inadequate and may need to be revised upwards.

Better Care Fund (BCF) allocations and additional allocations of improved BCF will also
continue to contribute to supporting Adult Care services.

In the event that more schools convert to academy status, there will be a loss of funding
through the Dedicated Schools Grant matched by a reduction in expenditure on schools,
however it could result in a potential loss of income from services the Council trades with
schools.

Borrowing

Given the continued uncertainty of future local government funding, the Council's
borrowing strategy continues to address the key issue of affordability, without
compromising the longer-term stability of the debt portfolio. The underlying need to borrow
for capital purposes is measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). Usable
reserves and working capital are the underlying resources available for investment. The
Council’s recent strategy is to maintain borrowing and investments below their underlying
levels, sometimes known as internal borrowing. The Council therefore has an increasing
CFR due to the capital programme but minimal investments. The Council will require
additional borrowing of up to £318m by March 2027 according to its CFR forecasts at
February 2024.

CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities recommends that the
Council’s total debt should be lower than its highest forecast CFR over the next three
years. The Council expects to comply with this recommendation for the three years 2024-
25 to 2026-27.

Short-term interest rates are currently high but are expected to fall in the coming years
and it is therefore likely to be more cost effective over the medium-term to either use
internal resources, or to borrow short-term loans instead. By doing so, the Council should
be able to reduce net borrowing costs (despite foregone investment income) and to reduce
overall treasury risk. The benefits of internal and short-term borrowing are monitored
regularly against the potential for incurring additional costs, by deferring borrowing into
future years. The Council’'s Treasury Management advisors assist the Council with this
‘cost of carry’ and breakeven analysis and its output may determine whether the Council
borrows additional sums at long-term fixed rates in either 2024-25 or 2025-26.
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The Council has previously raised the majority of its long-term borrowing from the Public
Works Loan Board (PWLB) but will consider long term loans from other sources including
banks, pensions and local authorities, and will investigate the possibility of issuing bonds
and similar instruments, in order to lower interest costs and reduce over-reliance on one
source of funding, in line with the CIPFA Treasury Management Code. PWLB loans are
no longer available to local authorities planning to buy investment assets primarily for
yield; the Council intends to avoid this activity in order to retain its access to HM Treasury’s
PWLB lending facility.

Alternatively, the Council may arrange forward starting loans during 2024-25 or 2025-26,
where the interest rate is fixed in advance, but the cash is received in later years. This
would enable certainty of cost to be achieved without suffering a cost of carry in the
intervening period. In addition, the Council may borrow further short-term loans to cover
unplanned cash flow shortages.

Provisions and Contingencies

Movements in provisions and contingencies are disclosed in the Notes to the Accounts.
There have been no material changes to policy or to amounts during the year.

Reserves

The Council’'s Usable Reserves, which include General and Earmarked Revenue
Reserves, have decreased by £14.102m, to £385.854m.

The General Reserve balance has increased by £7.467m from 31 March 2023, to
£40.182m at 31 March 2024. The adequacy of the Council’'s General Reserve balance is
considered earlier in the Narrative Report.

During 2023-24, the Earmarked Reserves balance has decreased by £67.205m, to
£205.168m at 31 March 2024. Earmarked Reserves are held for specific purposes and
are regularly reviewed by Cabinet as part of the budget monitoring cycle. A more detailed
analysis is available in Note 27 to the Accounts.

The Unapplied Capital Grants Reserve has increased by £41.346m, to £123.757m at
31 March 2024. This reserve holds the grants and contributions received towards capital
projects, but which have yet to be applied to meet capital expenditure. The majority of the
increase in the Unapplied Capital Grants Reserve in 2023-24 is due to grants being
received but not yet allocated to projects, for example contributions from developers,
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) grants and grants for the Local Electric
Vehicle Infrastructure and Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP).
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The Capital Receipts Reserve has increased by £4.291m, to £16.747m at 31 March
2024. This is money set aside to meet capital expenditure and has been used mainly to
fund Markham Vale, the Chesterfield Staveley Regeneration Route and the Ashbourne
Airfield Link Road. The reserve has increased in 2023-24, primarily due to sales of assets
surplus to the Council’s requirements, as the Council is reviewing its approach to property
and asset management, by way of rationalisation and modern ways of working. This is
providing the potential to increase capital receipts by selling properties, including some
Homes for Older People (HOPS), depots, and various pieces of land, to assist with the
future funding of the Capital Programme.

After adjusting for non-cash items, the Council’s General and Earmarked Reserves remain
above the minimum levels for an organisation the size of the Council. These levels are
key to the delivery of the Council’s objectives over the medium term as a means of helping
to manage significant potential liabilities and the general reduction in resources. All such
risks are regularly reviewed and appear alongside mitigating actions, on the Council’s
Strategic and Departmental Risk Registers. The Council formally reviews its reserves at
least annually, as set out in the Council’s Reserves Policy. The last review was reported
to Council in February 2024.

Pensions

Liability
Under International Accounting Standard 19 (IAS19), the Council is required to show the
total future costs of pension liabilities for the Local Government Pension Scheme. This is
a notional figure, as the Council’s budget is constructed on the basis of actual contributions
payable.

The IAS19 notional cost of the LGPS scheme for 2023-24 is £58.285m and for Teachers
Pensions is £1.993m. The actual contributions made for the year were £65.782m and
£4.244m respectively, resulting in a net adjustment to the revenue position of £9.748m. In
addition, there were actuarial gains on both schemes, amounting to £201.173m and
£0.014m respectively. Overall, this would have resulted in an improvement of £210.935m
in the Council’'s Balance Sheet position, from a total net pensions asset of £29.323m at
31 March 2023, to a total net pensions asset of £240.258m at 31 March 2024. However,
Accounting Standards impose a limit on the maximum amount of surplus which can be
recognised in the Balance Sheet, known as an asset ceiling restriction. The limit depends
on factors unique to each employer and the Actuary has reflected this by carrying out
additional calculations. The Actuary calculated an LGPS scheme asset ceiling restriction
of £305.259m (31 March 2023: £12.432m restriction). After this adjustment, there is an
total net pensions liability in the accounts, including Teachers Pensions, of £65.001m.

There were gains arising from changes to the demographic and financial assumptions
used to measure LGPS scheme liabilities in the actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2022,
in addition to the return on LGPS scheme assets in 2023-24.
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The overall net pensions position is offset by a matching notional reserve, ensuring there
is no impact on the level of Council Tax. The credit balance on the pensions reserve
shows a surplus between the benefits earned by past and current employees and the
resources that the Council has set aside to meet them. The Funding Strategy adopted by
the Pension Fund will ensure that an appropriate level of funding will have been set aside
by the time the benefits come to be paid.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

There were no significant events between the balance sheet date and the approval of
these financial statements which would require further disclosure or adjustment of the
statements. Events After the Balance Sheet Date relating to the Derby and Derbyshire
Waste Treatment Centre (DDWTC) are disclosed in Note 2 to the accounts.

Organisation and Governance

The Council is composed of 64 Elected Members who are democratically accountable to
the residents of their electoral division. Members follow a Code of Conduct, to ensure
high standards in the way they undertake their duties. The Cabinet consists of the Leader
of the Council and eight Members. The Cabinet is responsible for guiding the Council in
the formulation of the corporate plan of objectives and key priorities, which is referred to
in more detail, under Strategy and Resource Allocation, below. Within the policy
framework, budgets and major plans are approved by the full Council and the Cabinet has
executive responsibility for the implementation of the Council’s key goals and objectives.

The Governance, Ethics and Standards Committee promotes and maintains high
standards, assists Members in observing the Code of Conduct and advises the Council
on matters related to the Code of Conduct. The Council also operated five Improvement
and Scrutiny Committees during 2023-24, which support the work of the Cabinet and the
Council as a whole.

All Members meet together as the Council. Meetings are generally open for the public to
attend, except where confidential matters are being discussed.

More information on the Council’'s Governance Framework is included in the Council’s
Annual Governance Statement, which is included at the end of these accounts.

East Midlands County Combined Authority (EMCCA)

The Levelling Up White Paper was published in February 2022. The paper sets out how
Government will spread opportunity more equally across the UK. Levelling up is a long-
term endeavour. It is a programme of change that requires a fundamental shift in how
central and local government, the private sector and civil society operate. The
Government will embark on a process of sustained and systematic engagement and
consultation with a wide range of stakeholders, including devolved administrations, on the
White Paper. Further detail on a number of these policy commitments will be set out in
future publications. In addition, legislation will be introduced to Parliament to underpin in
statute the changes fundamental to levelling up, alongside wider planning measures.
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The East Midlands Devolution Deal, which covers Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire, Derby
and Nottingham, was signed in August 2022. The new East Midlands County Combined
Authority (EMCCA) became a legal entity in late February 2024 and held its inaugural
meeting in March 2024. The Council is one of the constituent councils which form part of
EMCCA. Elections took place on 2 May 2024 and an East Midlands Mayor was
elected. Devolution will result in the East Midlands receiving £1.14 billion more funding
over 30 years, to invest in the region.

During 2023-24, the Council continued to act as the Accountable Body for both the
remaining capital programme and revenue capacity funding. During the financial year
2023-24, EMCCA received £32.972m in grant income and spent £7.030m in expenditure.
This income and expenditure is accounted and administered independently from the
Council’s accounts and therefore, does not form part of the main statements which appear
later in this Statement of Accounts. This is in accordance with the principles set out in the
Local Authority Accounting Code of Practice, where the Council is acting as an
intermediary and is therefore following the agent principle as set out in Section 2.6.2.1 of
the Code. More details are included in Note 34, Trust Funds and Other Funds.

Local Enterprise Partnership

D2N2 is the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) for Derby, Derbyshire, Nottingham and
Nottinghamshire. It plays a central role in deciding local economic priorities and
undertaking activities to drive economic growth and create local jobs. lItis a locally owned
partnership between the public and private sectors and in April 2019 became incorporated
in line with new Government guidelines. It is managed by a Board made up of the
constituent councils, including Derbyshire County Council and private sector
representatives.

From April 2019 the Council became the single accountable body for all D2N2 LEP funds.
As Accountable Body, the Council is responsible for overseeing the proper administration
of financial affairs within the LEP with regard to public funds.

Over the six years up to 2020-21, the D2N2 LEP received over £250 million in Government
funding, from the Local Growth Fund. Local Growth Fund grants were allocated to
projects in the Derbyshire/Nottinghamshire region, following approval of successful grant
bids by the Investment Board. A further £44 million was allocated in July 2020, from the
Getting Building Fund. During 2021-22, Getting Building Fund grants were allocated to
three projects, after successful grant bids were received and approved by the Investment
Board. During 2022-23, £0.253m of Getting Building Fund was allocated to the remaining
project, following a successful grant bid approved by the Investment Board. During 2023-
24, a further £0.700m (2022-23: £3.428m) was allocated from the Low Carbon Growth
Fund, which was created from the remaining balance of the Growing Places Fund.
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In February 2022, the Government published its Levelling Up White Paper. The White
Paper sets in motion some changes to the roles and functions of LEPs. For areas seeking
a Devolution Deal, LEPs should integrate into the Combined Authority. The D2N2 LEP is
currently working alongside the four upper tier authorities in the D2N2 area as part of the
integration process into EMCCA. Once this process is completed, with all assets and
liabilities transferred to EMCCA, the company that is the D2N2 LEP will liquidate, and the
Council will no longer be required to be its accountable body.

The D2N2 LEP’s income and expenditure is accounted and administered independently
from the Council’'s accounts and therefore, does not form part of the main statements
which appear later in this Statement of Accounts.

Vertas (Derbyshire) Limited, Concertus (Derbyshire) Limited and PSP (Derbyshire)
LLP

Vertas (Derbyshire) Limited (VDL) and Concertus (Derbyshire) Limited (CDL) are private
limited companies in which the Council has a 49% stake, with the aim of providing cleaning
and caretaking services and property design and consultancy, respectively. VDL and
CDL are run as Joint Venture companies with the other shareholders being part of Suffolk
Group Holdings Limited, whose ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Suffolk
County Council. During 2023-24, income of £0.065m was receivable from VDL (2022-23:
£0.073m), of which £0.005m was outstanding at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
£0.017m). During 2023-24, CDL income receivable was £0.027m (2022-23: £0.052m), of
which £0.003m was outstanding at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £0.013m). During
2023-24, expenditure of £11.609m was payable to VDL and Vertas (Derbyshire) Traded
Limited, its wholly owned subsidiary (2022-23: £10.491m), of which no amount was
outstanding at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £0.002m). During 2023-24, expenditure
of £6.024m was payable to CDL and Concertus Derbyshire Traded Limited, its wholly
owned subsidiary (2022-23: £5.568m), of which £0.035m was outstanding at 31 March
2024 (31 March 2023: £nil).

PSP (Derbyshire) LLP (PSPD) is a limited liability partnership (LLP) formed between the
Council and PSP Facilitating Limited (PSPF), under the provisions of the Limited Liability
Partnership Act 2000. The purpose of PSPD is to help the Council unlock value from its
land and property. There were no transactions with the company during 2023-24 (2022-
23: £nil).

Strategy and Resource Allocation

The Council Plan 2023-24 set out the direction of the Council and the outcomes that the
Council is seeking to achieve.
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Outcomes

¢ Resilient and thriving and green communities which share responsibility for
improving their areas and supporting each other.

¢ Happy, safe and healthy people, with solid networks of support, who feel in control
of their personal circumstances and aspirations.

e A strong, diverse and clean economy which makes the most of Derbyshire’s rich
assets and provides meaningful opportunities for local people to achieve their full
potential.

¢ Great places to live, work and visit with high performing schools, diverse cultural
opportunities, transport connections that keep things moving, and a healthy and
sustainable environment for all.

¢ High quality public services that work together alongside communities to deliver
services that meet people’s needs.

Performance Overview
The Council Plan 2023-24 identified four focused priorities to direct effort and resource:

Resilient, healthy and safe communities.

High performing, value for money and resident focused services.
Effective early help for individuals and communities.

A prosperous and green Derbyshire.

For each priority, “deliverables” were identified, setting out what the Council aimed to
achieve over the year, supported by key measures, which enabled the Council to monitor
the progress made.

To ensure effective monitoring, and to facilitate appropriate actions, performance was
reported in context, with accompanying financial information, on a quarterly basis. The
reports were delivered by portfolio, to individual Cabinet members, and combined, to
Cabinet. Performance reports are made available publicly on the Council’s website
following submission to Cabinet.

Deliverables

A graphical representation of the Council’s performance for 2023-24 against its priorities
(inner wheel) and deliverables (outer wheel) is below. The colours in each segment show
the progress the Council has made during 2023-24. All of the priorities show overall good
performance. However, there were some specific deliverables where progress or
outcomes were not as expected. At the year end, there were seven assessed as
“‘Requiring Review” and just one as “Requiring Action”. Each of these deliverables were
flagged in the report with details of the issues and the actions to be taken.
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Strong — performing strongly

Good = performing well

Review — will be kept under review to ensure performance is brought back on track
Action — additional acticn will befis being laken to bring performance back on rack
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Review of Performance

The Council successfully delivered a wide range of services throughout the year, with the
following being a selection of key achievements during 2023-24:

25,146 Emergency Cash Payment awards made from the Council’s Derbyshire
Discretionary Fund.

The Council’'s Welfare Rights Service supported 25,383 people in maximising their
benefits.

Over 10,000 individuals have completed the Council’s Health and Wellbeing MOT.
East Midlands Combined County Authority is now formally established.

Vision Derbyshire has been successfully developed to create the Strategic Leadership
Board.

5% of available Council employee hours were lost to sickness, below the target set at
5.1% and an improvement from the 2022-23 figure of 5.5%.

£6.3 million was raised during the year from Council property sales, against a target of
£4m. In addition to the revenue generated, this also brings long term savings in running
costs and any outstanding maintenance for the buildings sold.

Faster rate of improvement than seen nationally for both the Council’s primary and
secondary pupils attending good or better schools.

New Portfolio Management approach implemented at the Council and improved the
self-assessment of the maturity of project management within the Council.

Supported 1,084 people with access to Assistive Technology, against a target of 600.
Mental health training sessions attended by over 290 organisations with over 1,000
attendees.

Health and Wellbeing Team supported 264 clients with advice and coaching to help
prevent, reduce or delay the need for adult social care services.

Good progress towards net zero target of 2032, or sooner, with latest confirmed figures
showing a 71% reduction in Council emissions since 2009-10.

Percentage of pupils reaching the required standard in phonics shows an improvement
in national ranking and a narrowing of the gap between disadvantaged and non-
disadvantaged pupils.

Proportion of pupils achieving a standard pass at GCSE (grades 4-9) significantly
better than national figures.

Percentage of 16 to 17 year olds in education, employment or training remains higher
than national figures and the average across East Midlands.

Good progress towards the Local Nature Reserve Strategy (LNRS) for Derbyshire.

There are some areas where progress has not been as expected but appropriate actions
to address these have been identified:

A refresh of the Council’s Library Strategy, which is focused on achieving required
budget savings whilst helping protect the sustainability of all existing libraries, is being
developed.

Home to School transport remains a complex area but the Council has made progress
in 2023-24. The next twelve months incorporate a range of workstreams, with a focus

24



NARRATIVE REPORT

on brokerage, compliance and contract management, while identifying innovative
approaches to support better transport for vulnerable learners.

e Whilst not meeting the stretch target for 2023-24, the Council continues to work
effectively to ensure people with a learning disability and/or who are autistic are able
to move into available, appropriate accommodation.

e Following an inspection of Derbyshire Police and resultant changes to risk assessment,
more cases are rated as being high risk, putting increased pressure on the Council’s
Independent Domestic Advisor service. However, additional capacity has been
provided into the commissioned service which supports high risk victims.

e The lack of available home care continues to impact on the Council’s Adult Social Care
offer for older people. However, a re-designed Short Term Service (reablement) has
been introduced and a new homecare framework has resulted in an increased number
of providers delivering support to people at home, which will enable improved flow
through the Short Term Service.

e A series of adverse and unpredictable weather conditions have been experienced this
year and this has impacted on the Council’s ability to repair road defects within target
time frames, as the demand for repair far outweighs the resources available. However,
a Priority Pothole Response has been initiated to focus activity. Work has been
reprogrammed to keep the Council on track to complete the delivery of the three year
Highways Capital Programme.

o The impacts of Storm Babet and other adverse weather episodes have also had a
continued impact on the Council’s ability to reduce the level of flood risk. However,
work has been initiated to deliver the pre-install surveys required to support 450
applications received for the Property Flood Resilience Grant.

e Progress on the Chesterfield to Staveley Regeneration Route is paused pending
approval by Government of the business case.

e The Council’s support for businesses has been lower than expected because of the
influence of various external factors such as economic climate, business lifecycle and
other economic factors, all of which are outside of the direct control of the Council.

Outlook and Risks
Funding

In a sixth continuous single-year settlement the Local Government Finance Settlement for
2024-25 set out allocations for one year only at a local authority level. Single-year
settlements constrict the flexibility of local authorities to balance budgets across the
medium term. A multi-year settlement provides local authorities with some certainty,
supporting medium-term financial planning and financial sustainability. The local
government sector has implored Government for a multi-year settlement. The Council
will continue to lobby Government by responding to appropriate consultations in support
of both a fair funding and multi-year settlement for the Council.

The Council’'s FYFP is reviewed and updated at least annually. It was last formally
updated during the annual budget setting process for 2024-25, earlier in 2024. A number
of risks regarding the assumptions made in developing the FYFP were highlighted in the
Revenue Budget Report, these being:
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Achievement of Savings — there is a reliance on the achievement of a programme
of budget savings. If the planned savings are not delivered alternative savings will
need to be delivered.

Service Pressures — there is a commitment to support budget growth where
necessary, and in particular within adult’s and children’s social care. However, if
current trends continue regarding placements and NHS discharges, and there is
inadequate funding to support this, there will be further pressures on budgets in
later years. Analysis is underway to consider how to mitigate these demand
pressures, which has the potential to help control some of these financial pressures.
Demographic growth continues to affect Adult Social Care costs. Predictions show
that the Council will experience further annual growth, with significant additional
annual costs estimated over the period of the FYFP. Management of Demand for
services will be required in order to protect the financial standing of the Council.
Pay - the FYFP for 2024-25 assumes a £1,925 flat increase in 2024-25, fixed at
3.85% for Grades 14 to 16 and fixed at 3.5% for Grade 17 and above. This is equal
to an average 6.3% increase on the Council’s pay budget overall. The increase in
2025-26 in the last formally approved FYFP is assumed to be 5% and from 2026-
27 onwards increases are assumed to be 2%, based on the current expectation that
inflation may have peaked and will have begun to reduce by then. The Council has
requested that Government gives support to local authorities to address the serious
issue of substantial and increasing pay award pressures. The Council has no
choice but to fund nationally agreed pay awards. It was estimated in that FYFP that
the pay award will cost the Council £17m in 2024-25. This is a significant cost and
the Council will have little choice other than to introduce savings measures which
will impact on service delivery to pay for the pay award.

Economic Climate — annual UK headline CPI inflation reduced during 2023. From
its very high 2023 peak of 10.4% in February 2023, CPI inflation either stayed the
same or decreased each month through to November 2023, the latest month for
which data was available at budget setting, by which time it had fallen to 3.9%.
However, inflation remains relatively high and means there is the potential for
reductions in the Council’s income for discretionary services.

Spending Reviews — The Local Government Finance Settlement provides
allocations for one year. The Settlement failed to announce a multi-year settlement,
constricting the flexibility of local authorities to balance budgets across the medium
term. The local government sector has implored Government for a multi-year
settlement. 2024-25 was the sixth continuous single-year settlement at local
authority funding levels. A multi-year settlement provides local authorities with
some certainty, supporting medium-term financial and service planning, and
financial sustainability. There is also a risk that the Government’s investment in the
Covid-19 pandemic and in increasing social care funding in recent years may result
in further austerity measures in future years, during the period of the FYFP, when
savings will be required to repay the debt incurred by Government. However, the
last formally approved FYFP assumes that there is no reduction in the Council’s
general grant funding other than that its allocation of additional 2024-25 Social Care
Grant, announced on 24 January 2024, will not continue into 2025-26 and beyond
and that its allocation of Services Grant ends in 2024-25.
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¢ Fair Funding and Business Rates Reviews — the reviews have been delayed for
a number of years and the planned implementation was again postponed. A
transparent, fair funding system is required, which reflects need and ability to fund
services locally. The Council has requested that Government urgently reviews the
local government funding system. This is to ensure that the system reflects the
needs of local councils. This includes the significant cost pressures relating to social
care which are due to increased demand and increases in cost. The funding system
should also reflect the increase in cost across the sector that are a result of inflation
and nationally agreed pay awards. The review of the funding system is also needed
to ensure that historic resource equalisation flaws in the current funding
methodology are addressed. The FYFP is predicated on the basis that mainstream
funding continues as it is now.

¢ Public Health Grant — the Council’s allocation for 2024-25 was published alongside
the Final Settlement. At some point it is expected that the funding for Public Health
will form part of revised funding mechanisms for local authorities following funding
reviews.

o Devolution and the East Midlands Mayoral Combined County Authority — the
Levelling Up White Paper was published in February 2022. The paper sets out how
Government will spread opportunity more equally across the UK. Levelling up is a
long-term endeavour. It is a programme of change that requires a fundamental shift
in how central and local government, the private sector and civil society operate.
The Government will embark on a process of sustained and systematic engagement
and consultation with a wide range of stakeholders, including devolved
administrations, on the White Paper. Further detail on a number of these policy
commitments will be set out in future publications. In addition, legislation will be
introduced to Parliament to underpin in statute the changes fundamental to levelling
up, alongside wider planning measures. The East Midlands Devolution Deal, which
covers Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire, Derby and Nottingham, was signed in August
2022 and is referred to earlier in this Narrative Report.

Expenditure

Target ongoing savings by the end of 2028-29 are estimated to be £66.612m. Significant
budget preparation work took place in 2023 and again in 2024. The Council has reviewed
all of its savings initiatives and has developed a programme of savings proposals to
address the estimated funding gap over the medium term. This has helped in identifying
substantial additional savings proposals. In headline terms the Council has now identified
measures which should help achieve the budget gap over the period of the last formally
approved FYFP.

This is an improved relative position than was reported in the Revenue Budget Report
2023-24, when measures had been identified to meet 81% of the budget gap. This
improved position has resulted from an increase in identified annual budget savings
across the period of that FYFP and from planned service pressure mitigations. However,
to maintain the financial standing of the Council it is vital that these savings proposals, if
approved, are delivered. If the savings proposals are not approved and delivered,
alternative savings will be required in 2024-25 and future years.
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There is also uncertainty around the variables used as part of the budget-setting process
for 2024-25. Planning has been based on what is known at this time. Without a multi-
year Settlement the medium to longer-term outlook remains unclear. All local authorities
in the UK are faced with another period of substantial uncertainty. The Government’s
Local Government Department Expenditure Limit (DEL) is unprotected. The Autumn
Statement signaled that the DEL for unprotected budgets in the next Spending Review
period is expected to fall by between 2.3% and 4.1% in real terms, which suggests real-
terms reductions in funding from 2025-26. Without knowing what the individual funding
allocations are likely to be beyond 2024-25, there is uncertainty as to what this means for
the need for further austerity measures from 2025-26. In developing the FYFP and
estimating the funding gap and required savings, the Council has assumed that there is
no significant change to its Government funding from 2025-26 across the period of the
Five Year Financial Plan. Further measures will be necessary if the Government
implements austerity measures over the period of the FYFP.

Significant consultation and planning timeframes are required to achieve many of these
savings. Delays in agreeing proposals could result in overspends by departments, which
would then deplete the level of General Reserve held by the Council, decreasing its ability
to meet short term, unforeseeable expenditure. The Council cannot afford to be in this
position and compensating savings will be required to be found if the proposed savings
are not delivered.

In many cases the proposals will be subject to consultation and equality analysis
processes. In including potential cost savings against the target savings total, no
assumptions have been made as to the outcome of those consultations or the outcome of
final decisions which have yet to be made. With regard to the savings proposals which
have not yet been considered by Cabinet for approval to consult, the necessary
consultation exercises will be undertaken, and any equality implications will be assessed
before final decisions are made. Throughout the process it will be essential to ensure that
the Council continues to meet its statutory and contractual obligations.

Over the course of the FYFP, where Departmental ongoing savings required to meet the
budget gap are subsequently determined to be unachievable, or are determined to be
unachievable up to the full extent of the departmental allocation each year, mitigations
and alternative savings delivery must be brought forward by that Department in that same
year, to ensure that each Department fulfills its commitment and obligation to deliver
savings to the targeted values and profile.

The 2023-24 Council overspend was after substantial one-off support from the use of
around £37m of the Council’'s Earmarked Reserves and the 2023-24 overspend of £22m
was another call on the General Reserve. The overspend in 2023-24 follows the outturn
position for 2022-23, which resulted in the Council utilising £55m of its reserves in order
to manage its budget to meet inflationary, demand and pay award cost pressures. The
2024-25 budget includes the planned use of just under £11m of reserves. These figures
mean that over the three-year period from 2022 to 2025, the Council will have utilised
around £125m of reserves to support the revenue budget.
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Whilst the Council maintains an adequate level of General Reserve, further in-year budget
overspends and failure to achieve the level of budget savings required in order to balance
the budget would see the balance of the General Reserve substantially depleted and lead
to issues around financial sustainability that would require urgent, radical savings rather
than the planned process that minimises the impacts of reductions as far as possible. The
level of the General Reserve is forecast to be around £25m over the period of the FYFP.

The Council’s significant budget pressures are considered further below:
Children’s Social Care

As an upper tier authority, the Council is responsible for providing children’s social care
services. These services include child protection and safeguarding, care for looked after
children and aftercare, support for vulnerable children and their families.

Nationally the number of children in care has risen significantly over the past decade,
creating unprecedented demand pressures on children’s services. The national picture is
being reflected in Derbyshire. As at 30 November 2023, there were 1,070 children in the
care of the Council, a 37% increase on the number five years ago.

The costs of caring for looked after children have also been rising. Average placement
costs for children in the Council’s care have risen 61% over the last five years.

Residential care is the most expensive form of care. Locally and nationally, the proportion
of children in residential care has increased, largely due to councils struggling to source
suitable alternatives such as foster care.

These pressures, exacerbated by the impact of high inflation and cost of living increases
on placement costs, are expected to continue to grow for the foreseeable future. The
Council, along with many other local authorities in the country, continue to express
concern regarding substantial increases in the cost of children’s social care, urging
Government to provide additional funding for the service.

Schools and Learning

Whilst expenditure on school-related activity would normally be expected to be met from
within the allocated Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), there are some school based
pressures which could fall to the Council’s General Reserve to fund.

The Council has a net cumulative deficit on the DSG of £16.945m at 31 March 2024. The
DSG income and expenditure does not form part of the Council’s general fund revenue
budget, but any surplus or deficit on the DSG funding held by the Council forms part of
the Council’s reserves. Whilst previously any deficit on these balances was funded by the
Council, temporary regulations introduced in 2020 require that these balances are held
separately. These regulations expire in 2026, at which point any deficit on the DSG
balances will need to be funded by the Council.
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The main pressures for the Council, as with most local authorities, continues to be in
respect of High Needs Block budgets. The December 2023 DSG announcement provides
for an increase in High Needs funding of £5.186m (4.7%), however it is likely that further
demand and inflation pressures will still result in spend exceeding income in 2024-25. The
funding announcement also included a significant increase in the Early Years Block
budgets of £22.283m (49%). These budgets primarily relate to funding for Early Years and
Childcare providers and the increase reflects the Government's expansion of free
childcare to include over twos (April 2024) and over nine months (September 2024).

Deficit balances that exist at the point a school becomes an academy may be left with the
Council to fund. This is the case for ‘sponsored’ academies. Sponsored academies are
those where conversion is a result of intervention, or where the school is not considered
to be strong enough without the aid of a sponsor.

There are some statutory duties relating to education which are funded from the Council’s
revenue funding. These include home to school transport (HST). Transport cost
increases and growing numbers of pupils eligible for Council-funded transport have led to
significant increases in spend on HST, in particular HST provided for children with special
educational needs and disabilities (SEND). Net costs have risen by 60% in the last four
years and these budgets continue to be under pressure.

Adult Social Care

Demographic growth continues to affect Adult Social Care costs. Growth predictions show
that the Council is subject to approximate annual increases of up to £4m in relation to
older people demography, with a further £2m for working age adults including children
transitioning to adulthood. These additional costs of up to £6m each year are predicted
to continue for at least the next five years.

During the last few years, the National Living Wage has increased annually by between
2% and 10%. For 2023-24, the increase will is 9.7%. This directly impacts on the contract
fees the Council pays to care providers. If this level of increase is to continue it will cost
the Council up to an additional £20-£25m each year over the medium term.

There are growing pressures around hospital discharge from the NHS, with an increase
in demand, and because there is an insufficient supply of home care and reablement
services, this has driven increased placements into residential homes rather than into care
at home, with the risk of associated long term cost implications for the likely significant
number of individuals who are not able to regain their independence and return home.

Waste Disposal

The volume of waste managed by the Council has a significant financial implication. This
is monitored throughout the year to inform future year volumes. Waste Landfill tax, landfill
site gate fees and contractual payments for the operation of Household Waste Recycling
Sites and Waste Transfer Stations are subject to price rises in line with a basket of
indexation factors set out in the contracts. There are also statutory increases of 3% in the
cost per tonne of recycling credits.
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The Council and Derby City Council remain engaged in a project to develop the Derby
and Derbyshire Waste Treatment Centre (DDWTC) in Sinfin, Derby, to deal with waste
that residents in Derby and Derbyshire do not recycle. The facility, which was due to open
in 2017, was built on the councils’ behalf by Resource Recovery Solutions (Derbyshire)
Ltd (RRS), which was a partnership between national construction firm Interserve and
waste management company Renewi plc. The contract with RRS was terminated on
2 August 2019, following the issuing of a legal notice by the banks funding the
project. Alternative contractual arrangements for the management and disposal of the
County’s waste were put in place following termination.

Following termination, the councils commissioned a significant amount of work under a
Continuity Services Contract (CSC), to assess the condition of the DDWTC through
detailed and comprehensive condition surveys and documentation gap analyses. These
condition surveys helped the councils to understand the facility, what the potential
rectification works may be, and their potential cost. In October 2021, the information
available from the surveys was used as part of a formal Option Appraisal process, which
identified two viable options for further evaluation. The councils continued to preserve the
DDWTC, to prevent deterioration of the facility pending completion of a Full Business Case
(FBC) and subsequent decisions regarding its future use.

The FBC was completed in January 2023, and demonstrated a clear strategic, economic
and financial advantage to undertaking works to rectify defects in the facility and bring into
use. This recommendation was approved by both councils on 2 February 2023. Following
approval of the FBC, work commenced in preparation for the procurement of a suitably
experienced contractor(s) for the rectification and operation of the DDWTC. During 2023-
24 this work has continued, including the completion of a rigorous market testing exercise
and the development of procurement documentation. Preservation of the facility has been
maintained throughout and is ongoing at the time of writing.

Agreement on the terms of a new Inter Authority Agreement have been reached in full,
which means both organisations can move forward in partnership with the confidence and
certainty required to successfully complete the project. Both councils remain committed
to the original decision, made in February 2023, to progress option one: fix and operate
the existing plant with positive engagement from the waste industry which confirmed there
was capability, capacity and appetite in the market to deliver the project. The councils will
now move forward with the procurement exercise to rectify defects at the facility and bring
it into use.

Climate Change

Climate Change is an issue that carries a high risk of financial uncertainty over the long
term and will require coordinated effort by all public bodies, especially the Government.

The Council’s Climate Change Strategy: Achieving Net Zero (2021-2025) was approved
and published by the Council in October 2021. Net zero means reducing the Council’s
carbon emissions right down to the lowest possible level and off-setting those that cannot
be cut through measures such as planting more trees and other forms of habitat creation
to absorb excess carbon from the atmosphere, making the overall net emissions zero.
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This Strategy establishes the Council’s target to be an organisation that has net zero
carbon emissions by 2032, or sooner. To date, a 71% reduction in Council emissions has
been achieved since the 2009-10 baseline year. The Strategy also identifies the Council’s
enabler and facilitator role in ensuring the county is net zero by 2050 through collaboration
across Derbyshire’s public, private, and community sectors.

The pressures detailed above are in common with other local authorities. During 2024-
25 and beyond it is vital that the Council manages its service and financial pressures to
maintain the organisation’s financial standing.

Mark Kenyon BA(Hons) FCPFA
Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer)
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Council’s Responsibilities
The Council is required to:

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to
ensure that one of its Officers has the responsibility for the administration of those
affairs. In this Council, that Officer is the Director of Finance, as Section 151 Officer;
manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets;

approve the Statement of Accounts.

The Section 151 Officer’s Responsibilities

The Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of
Accounts, in accordance with the appropriate CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) and the Update to the Code and
Specifications for Future Codes for Infrastructure Assets - November 2022 (the Update).
In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Section 151 Officer has:

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

made judgments and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

complied with the Code, the Update and the Regulations;

kept proper accounting records which were up-to-date;

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities;

ensured that events after the balance sheet date have been considered;

assessed the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern;

used the going concern basis of accounting on the assumption that the functions of
the Council will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future; and
maintained such internal control as determined necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUTHORISATION OF ACCOUNTS FOR ISSUE

Certificate of Section 151 Officer
| certify that the accounts give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council
at 31 March 2024 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

Mark Kenyon BA(Hons) FCPFA
Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer)
28 February 2025

The Statement of Accounts were approved by the Audit Committee on 28 February

2025.

Councillor Gary Musson
Chair of the Audit Committee
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

2022-23 2023-24

o | Gross Exp| Gross Inc Net Exp| Gross Exp| Gross Inc Net Exp

é £m £m £m £m £m £m
Adult Care 493.448| (153.976) 339.472 546.899| (193.382) 353.517
Children's Services
and Safeguarding and
Education 746.695| (491.514) 255.181 766.607| (511.429) 255.178
Clean Growth and
Regeneration 4,523 (3.429) 1.094 3.877 (2.258) 1.619
Corporate Services
and Budget 48.925 (24.966) 23.959 59.182 (26.308) 32.874
Health and
Communities 77.278 (58.357) 18.921 73.504 (62.589) 10.915
Highways Assets and
Transport 74.305 (17.434) 56.871 90.645 (16.399) 74.246
Infrastructure and
Environment 79.709 (7.950) 71.759 65.091 (9.638) 55.453
Strategic Leadership,
Culture, Tourism and
Climate Change 14.913 (0.826) 14.087 12.270 (1.134) 11.136
Net Cost of Services 1,639.796| (758.452) 781.344| 1,618.075| (823.137) 794.938
Other Operating
Expenditure 5 52.622 64.488
Financing and
Investment Income
and Expenditure 6 47.406 9.259
Taxation and Non-
Specific Grants 7 (717.160) (794.326)
Deficit on Provision 3
of Services 164.212 74.359




COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

Items that will not be
Reclassified to
Deficit on Provision

of Services

Gain on Revaluation of

Non-Current Assets 12 (273.118) (123.678)
Loss on Revaluation of

Non-Current Assets 12 52.288 75.089

Remeasurement of Net
Pension Liability/
(Asset) 46 (926.950) 104.072

Other
Comprehensive
Expenditure/
(Income) (1,147.780) 55.483

Total Comprehensive
Expenditure/
(Income) (983.568) 129.842

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

35



BALANCE SHEET

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Em Em
1,884,324 Property Plant & Equipment 12 1,955,757
B0.011| Herilage Assels 13 38.126
0400 Intangible Assets 18 0.190

g4 668 MNon-Current Invesiments 19 75,109
3379 Mon-Current Met Pension Assat o] 0.000
0.437] Non-Current Deblors | 18 1.332
2,103.219| Total Non-Current Assets _ 2,070.514
238328  Current Investments 19 49 837
2540 Assals Held for Sale 17 7165
1.549] Inventories 0 2.158
85,866 Curment Deblors 21 130176
69.889) Cash and Cash Equivalents | &2 783119
409.172| Total Current Assels [ 267 655
(233.8T4) Curment Loans and Bormowing | 18 (147 B2T)
(162.713)| Current Creditors k] (195.143)
(5.079) Current Provisions | 4 {1.686)
(409.666)| Total Current Liabilities (344.656)
(232597 Mon-Current Borrowing 19 (236 284)
(7.378) MNon-Current Provisions 24 {8.680)
(44 056) MNon-Current Met Pension Liability 5 (65001}
(49.998)| _Other Nan-Current Liabilites (35| (44.689)
(334.029)| Total Nen-Current Liabilities [354.663)
1,768,696/ NET ASSETS ' | 1,638.850
A58 956 U=able Hesenes [ 11 385 854
1,368,740 Unusable Reserves i) 1,252 996
1,768.696| TOTAL RESERVES 1,638,850

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

| certify that the Balance Sheet position gives a true and fair view of the financial position
of Derbyshire County Council as at 31 March 2024.

Mark Kenyon BA(Hons) FCPFA
Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer)

28 February 2025
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m

Net Surplus or (Deficit) on the Provision
(164.214)|of Services (74.359)

125.836|Adjustments for non cash movements 41 22.524
(9.829)|Adjustments for investing activities 41 (29.518)

Net cashflow from:
(48.207)| Operating Activities 40 (81.353)
(4.804)| Investing Activities 38 156.483
76.670[ Financing Activities 39 (66.700)
23.659(Movement in Cash & Cash Equivalents 8.430
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the start of the 29

46.230|year 69.889
Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the

69.889|year 22 78.319

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

E g E g w % i ]
= R i _ =
T E EE a5y Fo: 3D u ig 325
ﬁ c n En 8§ QU ey 2w n§m
ox bl S00 O == S Sy -
£m £m £m £m £m £m £
2023-24
Balance at 31 March 2023 (32.716) [272.3T1) (82.411) [12.456) (399.950) (1.268.740) (1,76B.689)
Movement In reserves during 2023-24
Tatal Comprehensive Income and Expenditure CIES 74.353 0.000 0.000 0.0:00 74,353 55,483 129,842
Adjustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations 1 (14.623) 0000 (41.346) (4.291) (G 260 60, 260 .00
Mel Transfer to Reserves (67,204} 67 204 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000 0,000
{Increase)Decrease in 2023-24 (7.468) 67 204 (d1.348)  (4.281) 14 085 115.743 1259 842
Balance at 31 March 2024 carried foreard (40.184) [205.16T) (123.757) [16.74T) {383.851) (1,252.99T) (1,638.847)
2022-23
Balanée at 31 March 2022 (60.305) (283.333) (38.682) [9.715) (412.233) (372.831) (TE5.123))
Movement in reserves during 2022-23
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure ClES 164,212 0.000 0.000 0.0:00 164,294  [1,147.780) (SE3.586)|
Adustments between accounting basis and
funding basis under regulations LR (125.481) 0000 (23.728)  [2.741) {151.831) 151.931 0,000
Met Transfer to Reserves (10.962) 10.962 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
(Increasa)Decrease in 2022-23 27789 10062 (23,7280  (2.741) 12.283 (BE5. 840) (SB3 566)
Balanee at 31 March 2023 carried forward (32.716) [272.3T1) (82.411) [12.456) {399.950) (1,368.740) (1,768.689)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The values held within the proceeding Notes to the Accounts may vary slightly when
compared to the main Statements or other notes. This is due to amounts being rounded.
It is not expected that a difference would be in excess of £10,000 in any single case.

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Accounting Policies for the Council have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting (the Code) and the Update to the Code and Specifications for Future Codes
for Infrastructure Assets - November 2022 (the Update). Where there is no specific
guidance in the Code or the Update, the Council has developed its own Accounting Policy
which is aimed at creating information which is:

e relevant to the decision making needs of users; and
¢ reliable, in that the financial statements:
o represent fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the entity;
o reflect the economic substance of transactions, other events and conditions and
not merely the legal form;
o are neutral i.e. free from bias;
o are prudent; and
o are complete in all material respects.

The Policies outline how the Council will account for all income, expenditure, assets and
liabilities held and incurred during the 2023-24 financial year.

The Accounting Policies of the Council are updated annually to reflect any changes in
IFRS, including changes in International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS),
HM Treasury guidance, CIPFA guidance or any other change in statute, guidance or
framework impacting on the Council’s accounts.

The Accounting Policies of the Council, as far as possible, have been developed to ensure
that the accounts of the Council are understandable, relevant, free from material error or
misstatement, reliable and comparable.

2. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS WHEN APPLYING THE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

Derby & Derbyshire Waste Treatment Centre (DDWTC)

The Council and Derby City Council remain engaged in a project to develop the Derby
and Derbyshire Waste Treatment Centre (DDWTC) in Sinfin, Derby, to deal with waste
that residents in Derby and Derbyshire do not recycle. The facility, which was due to open
in 2017, was built on the councils’ behalf by Resource Recovery Solutions (Derbyshire)
Ltd (RRS), which was a partnership between national construction firm Interserve and
waste management company Renewi plc. The contract with RRS was terminated on
2 August 2019, following the issuing of a legal notice by the banks funding the
project. Alternative contractual arrangements for the management and disposal of the
County’s waste were put in place following termination.
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Following termination, the councils commissioned a significant amount of work under a
Continuity Services Contract (CSC), to assess the condition of the DDWTC through
detailed and comprehensive condition surveys and documentation gap analyses. These
condition surveys helped the councils to understand the facility, what the potential
rectification works may be, and their potential cost. In October 2021, the information
available from the surveys was used as part of a formal Option Appraisal process, which
identified two viable options for further evaluation. The councils continued to preserve the
DDWTC, to prevent deterioration of the facility pending completion of a Full Business Case
(FBC) and subsequent decisions regarding its future use.

The FBC was completed in January 2023, and demonstrated a clear strategic, economic
and financial advantage to undertaking works to rectify defects in the facility and bring into
use. This recommendation was approved by both councils on 2 February 2023. Following
approval of the FBC, work commenced in preparation for the procurement of a suitably
experienced contractor(s) for the rectification and operation of the DDWTC. During 2023-
24 this work has continued, including the completion of a rigorous market testing exercise
and the development of procurement documentation. Preservation of the facility has been
maintained throughout and is ongoing at the time of writing.

The Council has considered the accounting treatment for the DDWTC and it has been
determined that it will continue to be recognised on the balance sheet at 31 March 2024
as an Asset under Construction in Property Plant and Equipment (Note 12) due to the
asset not yet having been brought into service. The Council has incurred capital
expenditure of £4.458m during 2023-24 (£6.573m during 2022-23) securing, managing
and preserving the site.

The Inter Authority Agreement 2 between the Council and Derby City Council, relating to
the Service Agreement for the Provision of Waste Management Services, stipulated that
the councils shall agree the terms on which the County shall be permitted to continue to
deliver residual waste to the DDWTC at Sinfin. The agreement provided that in the event
the parties failed to reach such agreement and/or the Council was prevented from
continuing to use the facility, Derby City Council would reimburse the Council for its share
of any investment in the facility. In January 2024, following a failure to agree such terms,
the Council raised an invoice to Derby City Council for £93.940m plus VAT, for repayment
of its investment in the DDWTC.

Following the issuance of the invoice, the councils entered into dialogue to seek resolution.
Notwithstanding the Council’s invoice to Derby City Council, rectification and operation of
the facility remained the Council’s preferred option. Considering this and given the value
of the invoice relative to the resources available to Derby City Council, it was considered
more likely than not that a non-financial settlement would be reached to enable the
rectification project to progress and the invoice to be cancelled. Efforts to pursue such an
outcome through dialogue, including application of the contractual dispute resolution
procedure and ultimately facilitated mediation, were ongoing from February 2024 through
August 2024. The probability of settlement of the invoice is not assessed as meeting the
criteria required by IFRS 15 and therefore the income and corresponding debtor
(excluding VAT) have not been recognised in the Council's financial statements at
31 March 2024.
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On 21 August 2024, the invoice was cancelled. Following a period of constructive
dialogue, the councils successfully addressed the key issues that led to the dispute.
Agreement on the terms of a new Inter Authority Agreement have been reached in full,
which means both organisations can move forward in partnership with the confidence and
certainty required to successfully complete the project. Both councils remain committed
to the original decision, made in February 2023, to progress option one: fix and operate
the existing plant with positive engagement from the waste industry which confirmed there
was capability, capacity and appetite in the market to deliver the project. The councils will
now move forward with the procurement exercise to rectify defects at the facility and bring
it into use.

Cancellation of the invoice following the year end has no impact on the net financial
performance or position reported in the Council’s primary financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024. In the Balance Sheet it would reduce Current Debtors by
£18.788m (VAT in Note 21) but this would be offset by an increase in Cash and Cash
Equivalents (Note 22) of £18.788m (VAT paid to HMRC).

At the previous balance sheet date of 31 March 2023, the Council and Derby City Council
were in negotiations to pay an ‘Estimated Fair Value’ (EFV) for the plant, taking into
account all of the costs of rectifying ongoing issues at the plant and the costs of providing
the services to meet the agreed contract standards. If an agreed EFV could not be
reached through negotiation, it would need to be resolved through formal dispute
resolution processes. This had commenced at 31 March 2022 and continued at the 2022-
23 Balance Sheet date (31 March 2023) but it was not possible, based on the information
and advice available, to accurately estimate the likely payments required by the councils
or RRS to settle the dispute. This matter was therefore reported as a 2022-23 Contingent
Liability. The councils agreed the EFV with RRS in July 2023, with the Council paying
£56.930m as part of its share of the £93.500m sum paid to RRS’s administrators. The
payment made to RRS’s administrators in 2023-24 was in full and final settlement of the
matter and therefore there is no contingent liability in relation to the EFV for the financial
year 2023-24.

School Non-Current Assets

The Council has applied judgement regarding the extent of control exercised over the
following schools, run under various arrangements, to determine whether associated non-
current assets are included on the Council’'s Balance Sheet.

Where non-current school assets are either interpreted as controlled directly by the
Council (Community Schools) or indirectly, via the school’s governing body (Foundation
Schools), then these assets are included on the Council’'s Balance Sheet. However, non-
current school assets in respect of Voluntary Aided and Voluntary Controlled schools are
only included on the Council's Balance Sheet where the Council owns or retains
substantive rights over the assets and the future economic benefits/service potential of
school assets flows to the Council.

3. ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ISSUED AND NOT YET APPLIED

At the balance sheet date, the following interpretations, new standards and amendments
to existing standards have been published but not yet adopted by the Code:
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o |IFRS 16 Leases issued in January 2016.

The CIPFA/LASAAC Board confirmed in a statement that mandatory implementation of
IFRS 16 Leases will go ahead as planned, and the standard will be implemented in the
Code for 2024-25.

IFRS 16 was issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in 2016. Its
main impact is to remove (for lessees) the traditional distinction between finance leases
and operating leases. Finance leases have effectively been accounted for as acquisitions
(with the asset on the Balance Sheet, together with a liability to pay for the asset acquired).
In contrast, operating leases have been treated as ‘pay as you go’ arrangements, with
rentals expensed in the year they are paid. IFRS 16 requires all substantial leases to be
accounted for using the acquisition approach, recognising the rights acquired to use an
asset in what is known as a Right-of-Use Asset, with a corresponding Lease Liability, on
the Balance Sheet, at 1 April 2024. Leases for items of low value and leases that expire
on or before 31 March 2025 are exempt from the new arrangements.

One of the areas of focus for local authorities is the adaptation for the definition of a lease.
For the UK public sector this includes leases with nil consideration or peppercorn rents,
which will widen the definition of a lease.

IFRS 16 will be applied retrospectively, but with the cumulative effect recognised
at 1 April 2024. This means that Right-of-Use Assets and lease liabilities will be calculated
as if IFRS 16 has always applied but that this will be recognised in 2024-25 and not by
adjusting prior year figures. However, some practical expedients are expected to be
applied as required or permitted by the Code:

e Lease Liabilities will be measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments
at 1 April 2024 discounted by the Council’s incremental borrowing rate.

e With the exception of leases with peppercorn or nominal payments (i.e. substantially
below market lease payments), or where payments are nil, decisions about whether
contracts are or contain a lease made before 1 April 2024 will not be revisited.

The incremental borrowing rate will be determined with reference to the Public Works Loan
Board annuity rate of interest, prevailing at the commencement date, and for a period
consistent with the unexpired term of the lease, adjusted for the type of underlying asset
and whether it is a commercial or non-commercial lessor.

Recognition of Right-of-Use Assets on 1 April 2024 at fair value may result in a gain or
loss on transition when compared to the lease liability. This gain or loss will be recognised
as an adjustment to unusable reserves.

Where the Council retains the use of an asset after the contractual period (i.e. is holding

over), it is considered that the lease is no longer enforceable; therefore Right-of-Use
Assets and Lease Liabilities will not be recognised in these instances.
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The Council estimates that the transition to IFRS 16 will result in the following additions to
the Council’s Balance Sheet:

£74.141m - Property Plant & Equipment (Land and Buildings - Right-of-Use Assets).
£7.953m - Other Non-Current Liabilities (Lease Liabilities).

£0.829m - Current Creditors (Lease Liabilities).

£65.389m - Unusable Reserves (Gain on Transition).

The newly recognised Lease Liabilities of £8.782m compares to operating lease
commitments of £11.761m at 31 March 2024 disclosed in the notes to the 2023-24
financial statements. When discounted to their present value of £8.162m, using an
average incremental borrowing rate of 6% at 1 April 2024, there is a difference of £0.620m.
This difference is not material and is explained by the fact that it has not previously been
the Council’s policy to update the reported minimum lease payments for rents contingent
on events taking place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following
rent reviews.

IFRS 16 will also apply to the measurement of the Council’s lease liability for Private
Finance Initiative (PFI) and similar contracts. The impact of this change is being assessed
and accounting entries required on transition and going forward will be determined and
reflected in the Council's accounts from 2024-25 onwards.

o Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) issued
in January 2020. The amendments:

o specify that an entity’s right to defer settlement must exist at the end of the
reporting period;

o clarify that classification is unaffected by management’s intentions or
expectations about whether the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement;

o clarify how lending conditions affect classification; and

o clarify requirements for classifying liabilities an entity will or may settle by
issuing its own equity instruments.

e Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16) issued in
September 2022. The amendments to IFRS 16 add subsequent measurement
requirements for sale and leaseback transactions.

o Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1) issued in October
2022. The amendments improved the information an entity provides when its right
to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months is subject to compliance
with covenants.

The Council has concluded that, although these amendments will provide clarification or

lead to improved reporting, they will not have a significant impact on the Council's
accounts in the year in which they are adopted.
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¢ International Tax Reform: Pillar Two Model Rules (Amendments to IAS 12) issued
in May 2023. Pillar Two applies to multinational groups with a minimum level of
turnover. The amendments introduced:

o a temporary exception to the requirements to recognise and disclose
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two
income taxes; and

o targeted disclosure requirements for affected entities.

These amendments are only applicable to local authorities with group accounts and,
therefore, they will not impact on the Council's accounts in the year in which they are
adopted.

e Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7) issued in May
2023. The amendments require an entity to provide additional disclosures about its
supplier finance arrangements. The IASB developed the new requirements to
provide users of financial statements with information to enable them to:

o assess how supplier finance arrangements affect an entity’s liabilities and
cash flows; and

o understand the effect of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
exposure to liquidity risk and how the entity might be affected if the
arrangements were no longer available to it.

The Council has concluded that this amendment has a limited application and will not
impact on the Council's accounts in the year in which it is adopted.

4. ASSUMPTIONS MADE AND OTHER ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Property Plant and Equipment Valuation

The gross book value of Property, Plant and Equipment assets, excluding infrastructure
assets, at 31 March 2024 is £1,581.814m (2023, £1,534.850m), as disclosed in Note 12.
When determining current value for the measurement and disclosure requirements in
relation to the Council’'s Property, Plant and Equipment assets, the Council makes
assumptions and estimations. Where direct observable market data is unavailable,
judgement is required in order to determine a fair value and the Council uses relevant
experts to ensure that appropriate valuation techniques are used. Typically, judgements
include considerations such as uncertainty and risk where there is volatility in the property
and construction industry following macro-economic influences such as the pandemic,
supply and demand imbalances and inflation increases.

The method of valuation of the Council’s portfolio of schools is the Depreciated
Replacement Cost method, using a Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA). Where the build
requirement is greater than the actual asset, the valuation is restricted to the actual size
of the current asset.
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Land and Buildings assets measured at current value are revalued on a five-year rolling
basis by the Council’s internal team of valuers. Each property is assessed on its own
merits and the valuation is determined with due regard to any change or uncertainties
which may affect the specific property. It is estimated that a theoretical 1% market drop
applied across all properties valued in 2023-24 would equate to a valuation decrease of
£12.930m, of which £0.379m would be expensed through the surplus/deficit on the
provision of services, whilst a 1% increase would equate to a rise in valuations of
£12.930m to the revaluation reserve.

The Council has continued to review its 20% rolling programme asset base at 31 March
2024, instead of 1 April 2023, updating land values and gross replacement costs. Again,
schools MEA adjustments have also been reviewed in the same manner, with material
changes being valued as at the date of change, but again reviewed at 31 March 2024.
The remaining assets measured at current value, which had not been revalued in this way,
were then reviewed, and a further top twenty assets by value were the subject of a desktop
exercise, to provide assurances that the remaining assets were not materiality misstated
due to these factors.

Pension Scheme Liabilities

The Gross Pension Liability at 31 March 2024 is £2,402.630m (2023, £2,406.523m), as
disclosed in Note 25. Estimation of the liability to pay pensions depends on several
complex judgements relating to: the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are
projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected returns
on Pension Fund investments. The Council has engaged Hymans Robertson LLP as its
Consulting Actuary to provide expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

The effect of changes in these estimates on the pension liability impacting on the net
asset/liability of the Council are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Variations in the key
assumptions will have the following impact on the liability:
e A 0.1% decrease in the real discount rate will increase the pension liability by
£43.687m (2% increase in liability).
e A one year increase in Fund Member life expectancy will increase the pension
liability by £96.105m (4% increase in liability).
e A 0.1% increase in the assumed level of salary increases will increase the pension
liability by £2.109m (0% (rounded) increase in liability).
e A 0.1% increase in the assumed level of pension increases will increase the pension
liability by £42.369m (2% increase in liability).

Financial Instruments Fair Value Estimates

The Council’s Financial Instruments are disclosed in Note 19. The fair value of the
Council’s other long-term loans (former Lender Option Borrower Option (LOBO) loans) of
£9.703m (£10.000m nominal) at 31 March 2024 has been determined incorporating option
pricing from Bloomberg. The fair value of all short-term investments (under one year) has
been assumed to be their nominal value.

The impact of a 1% interest rate rise on the fair value of the Council’s borrowing and
investments at 31 March 2024 is a reduction of £21.429m in the net financial liability.
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5. OTHER OPERATING EXPENDITURE

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(0.875)| Trading Operations (0.715)
0.363|Levies and Precepts 0.373
53.131|Loss on Disposal of Non-Current Assets 64.828
0.003|Other Income and Expenditure 0.002
52.622 64.488

The surplus for the year from commercial trading operations was achieved with a gross
expenditure of £1.061m (2022-23: £0.958m) offset against income of £1.776m (2022-23:
£1.833m).

Loss on disposal of non-current assets has increased in 2023-24, the main reason for this
being an increase in the asset value of schools that converted to academies during the

year.

Movements on non-current assets, including disposals, are shown in Note 12.

6. FINANCING AND INVESTMENT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

2022-23 2023-24
Em Em
18.868|Interest Payable 26.178
(4.280)| Interast Haecarvabla {(11.712)
[3.386) Dividends Receivable (4.064)
T.588|Financial Asset Fair Value Losses/[Gains) (0.489)

o, 87| Financial Asset Impairment Losses|Gams) 0,805
0.000(Brokerage Fees 0.160
22 749 Met Pension Costs (1.619)
47 406 9.259

Movements in the fair value of the Council’s investments in pooled investment funds were
included in Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure (FIIE) in 2018-19 for the
first time. These funds have been recognised and measured at Fair Value through Profit
or Loss (FVPL) in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. However, any gains or
losses have been reversed out to the Pooled Investments Adjustment Account as required
by the statutory temporary override that DLUHC has issued. The override was originally
effective for financial years 2018-19 to 2022-23 and has since been extended for a further
two years to 2024-25.

Gains and losses relating to the impairment of financial assets were included in 2018-19
for the first time. CIPFA guidance considers that conceptually debtors are a credit facility.
Therefore, impairment losses relating to debtors and investments held at amortised cost
are a loss of principal and recognition in FIIE is therefore the default treatment.
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Brokerage fees before 2023-24 were categorised as professional fees within supplies and
services (Note 9). In 2022-23, brokerage fees were £0.144m.

Interest payable has been itemised in the table below.

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
13.323|Interest Payable on Capital Borrowing 13.176
2.755|Interest Payable on PFI 2.520
0.488|Interest Payable on Finance Leases 0.453
2.302|Interest Payable on Other Items 10.029
18.868 26.178
Interest receivable has been itemised in the table below.
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(4.244)|Interest Receivable on Investments (11.525)
(0.004)|Interest Receivable on Transferred Debt (0.004)
(0.023)(Interest Receivable on Finance Leases (0.074)
(0.017)|Interest Receivable on Cash & Bank Balances (0.102)
(0.002)(Interest Receivable on Other Items (0.007)
(4.290) (11.712)
7. TAXATION AND NON-SPECIFIC GRANT INCOME
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(368.567)|Council Tax (387.349)
(14.249)|Revenue Support Grant (15.714)
(21.654)|Business Rates (23.365)
(94.892)|Business Rates Top-up (97.774)
(18.797)|Business Rates Relief Grant (25.851)
(10.504)|Private Finance Initiative Grant (10.504)
(1.868)|New Homes Bonus (1.106)
(108.626)[Other General Revenue Grants (119.652)
(78.003)|Capital Grants (113.011)
(717.160) (794.326)

8. EXPENDITURE AND FUNDING ANALYSIS
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2022-23 2023-24
Expenditurel| Adjustments Expendituref| Adjustments
(Income) between (Income) between
chargeable funding chargeable funding
to General and Net to General amd Met
Reserve| Accounting] Expenditure Reserve| Accounting Expendifure
Balance Basis| inthe CIES Balance Basis| inthe CIES
Em Em £m Em £m Em|
313,916 (25.556) 339.472|Adult Care 341,542 {11.975) 35357
Children's Services and Safequarding and
185.108 (T0.073) 255 181|Education 231.830 (23 348) 255178
0.474 (0.620) 1.084|Clean Growth and Regeneration 1.432 {0.187) 1.618]
3.199 (20.760) 23,958 Corporate Services and Budge! 29 487 (3,387 32874
15.103 {3.818) 18.521|Health and Communities 11.369 0454 10.8915
33653 (23.218) 56.871|Highways Assets and Transport 56.788 (17.458) 74,246
68. 141 {3.618) 11,759 Infrastructure and Environment od 866 (0.587) 55,453
10.523 (3.564) 14.087| Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and 10.127 (1.009) 11.136
Climate Changa B
630.117|  (151.227))  781.344|Net Cost of Services 737.441)  (57.497)  794.938)
10.508) (53,131 52 622 Other operating expenditure 10,339} (64 827) 64 488
Financing and mvesimeni
46.154 (1.252) 47 406|income and expenditure 14 848 5 588 5.2559|
Taxation and non-specific
(647 973) 649187 (717.160)|grant income and expenditure (7 39.416) 34.910 {794 32G)
27.789 (136.423) 164.212| Deficit!{Surplus) on Provision of Services (7 .466) (81.825) 74.359
Opening General Reserve
B0.505 Balance at 1 April 3216
Addliless) Surplus/iDeficit) on General
(27,789} Resenve 7466
Closing General Reserve
32716 Balance at 31 March 40.182
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Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

2022-23 2023-24
Net Change Net Change
Adjustments for the Adjustments for the
for capital Pensions Other for capital Pensions Other
purposes|Adjustments| Differences Total purposes|Adjustments| Differences Total
(Note a) (Note b) (Note c)| Adjustments (Note a) (Note b) (Note c)| Adjustments
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
(6.625) (18.931) 0.000 (25.556)[Adult Care (14.113) 2.138 0.000 (11.975)
(26.843) (43.230) 0.000 (70.073)[Children's Services and Safeguarding and Education (29.445) 6.097 0.000 (23.348)
(0.367) (0.253) 0.000 (0.620)|Clean Growth and Regeneration (0.218) 0.031 0.000 (0.187)
(8.313) (12.447) 0.000 (20.760)[Corporate Services and Budget (4.982) 1.595 0.000 (3.387)
(0.082) (3.736) 0.000 (3.818)|Health and Communities (0.003) 0.457 0.000 0.454
(18.303) (4.915) 0.000 (23.218)[Highways Assets and Transport (18.066) 0.608 0.000 (17.458)
(2.650) (0.968) 0.000 (3.618)]Infrastructure and Environment (0.696) 0.109 0.000 (0.587)
(1.334) (2.230) 0.000 (3.564)|Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate (1.321) 0.312 0.000 (1.009)
Change
(64.517) (86.710) 0.000 (151.227)|Net Cost of Services (68.844) 11.347 0.000 (57.497)
(53.131) 0.000 0.000 (53.131)|Other Operating Expenditure (64.827) 0.000 0.000 (64.827)
6.474 0.000 (7.726) (1.252)|Financing and investment income and expenditure 4.820 0.000 0.769 5.589
Taxation and non-specific grant income and
78.003 0.000 (8.816) 69.187|expenditure 113.011 0.000 (78.101) 34.910
(33.171) (86.710) (16.542) (136.423)|Deficit/(Surplus) on Provision of Services (15.840) 11.347 (77.332) (81.825)
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A — Adjustments for Capital Funding and Expenditure Purposes

Adjustment to General Reserve Balance to meet the requirements of generally accepted
accounting practices, this column adds in depreciation and impairment and revaluation
gains and losses in the service lines and for:

e Other Operating Expenditure — adjusts for capital disposals with a transfer of income
on disposal of assets and the amounts written off for those assets.

e Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure — the statutory charges for
capital financing i.e. Minimum Revenue Provision and other revenue contributions
are deducted from financing and investment income and expenditure as these are
not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.

o Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure — Capital grants are
adjusted for income not chargeable under generally accepted accounting practices.
Revenue grants are adjusted from those receivable in the year to those receivable
without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied throughout the year. The
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line is credited with
capital grants in the year without conditions or for which conditions were satisfied in
the year.

B — Net Change for the Removal of Pension Contributions and the Addition of
Pension IAS19 Related Expenditure and Income

Net change for the removal of pension contributions and the addition of IAS19 Employee
Benefits Pension Related Expenditure and Income:

e For services this represents the removal of the employer pension contributions
made by the authority as permitted by statute and the replacement with current
service costs and past service costs.

e For Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure the net interest on the
defined benefit liability is charged to the CIES.

C - Other Differences

Other differences between amounts debited/credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the amounts payable/receivable to be recognised under
statute:

e For Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure the other differences
column recognises adjustments to General Reserve for the timing differences for
premiums and discounts and gains/losses on pooled funds measured at FVPL.

e The charge under Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure
represents the difference between what is chargeable under statutory regulations
for Council Tax and Business Rates that was projected to be received at the start
of the year and the income recognised under generally accepted accounting
practices in the Code. This is a timing difference as any difference will be brought
forward in future surpluses or deficits on the district/borough council Collection
Funds. It also represents the movement in the Earmarked Reserve balances.
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9. EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE

2022-23 2023-24
Em Em

Expenditure
Emplovee expenses 649,518 991.285
Premises 42289 44 561
Transport 35,798 20045
Supplies and services 732,635 B&5. 665
Capital depreciatvon, amortisation, impairment 739,558 gr.507
Interest payments, brokerage fees, loan
madification, financial asset impairment and fair
value changes 55.082 25036
Precepts and levies 0.363 0.373
Trading operations (0.875) (0.715)]
Loss on disposal of assals 53,131 Bd. 828
Total Expenditure 1,647,500 1,707.599]
Income
Fees, charges and ofher service income (218.651) (254 811}
Interest and investment incame (T.6TE) (15.T78)
Income from Council Tax, business rates (485,113) (208 488)|
Business rales relief grant (18.797) (25,851}
Gowvernment grants and contributions (733.081) (B28.314)
Total Income (1,483.288)| (1,633.240)
Deficit on the Provision of Services {164.212) (74.359)

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Council is required to disclose material transactions with related parties — bodies or
individuals that have the potential to control or influence the Council or to be controlled or
influenced by the Council.

County Council Controlled Companies

MEGZ Limited is a private company limited by 9,751 ordinary shares, all of which are held
by the Council. There are three directors of the company who are Members of the Council;
all have been appointed by the Council. There were no transactions with the company
during the financial year (2022-23: £nil).

Joint Venture Companies and Partnerships

Scape Group Limited is a private limited company. The Council holds 75,000 of its £1
ordinary shares (17% share). The Council has one director on the company board who is
an elected Member of the Council and was appointed by the Council. During 2023-24 the
Council received dividends of £0.500m from Scape Group Limited (2022-23: £0.350m).
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Vertas (Derbyshire) Limited (VDL) and Concertus (Derbyshire) Limited (CDL) are private
limited companies in which the Council has a 49% stake, with the aim of providing cleaning
and caretaking services and property design and consultancy, respectively. VDL and
CDL are run as Joint Venture companies with the other shareholders being part of Suffolk
Group Holdings Limited, whose ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Suffolk
County Council. The Council has Board representation at VDL and CDL with one director
on the board of each company. Vertas Group Limited (Vertas) and Concertus Design
and Property Consultants Limited (Concertus), subsidiary undertakings of Suffolk Group
Holdings Limited, have day to day financial control of VDL and CDL, respectively.
Financial Governance is maintained via the production of monthly Management Accounts
information, which is supplied to Board members and to Finance Officers of the
Council. VDL and CDL are assessable to Corporation Tax and VAT in accordance with
current legislation. All taxation related matters of VDL and CDL, including Corporation
Tax, VAT and Income Tax are managed by Vertas and Concertus. During 2023-24,
income of £0.065m was receivable from VDL (2022-23: £0.073m), of which £0.005m was
outstanding at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £0.017m). During 2023-24, CDL income
receivable was £0.027m (2022-23: £0.052m), of which £0.003m was outstanding at
31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £0.013m). During 2023-24, expenditure of £11.609m
was payable to VDL and Vertas (Derbyshire) Traded Limited, its wholly owned subsidiary
(2022-23: £10.491m), of which no amount was outstanding at 31 March 2024 (31 March
2023: £0.002m). During 2023-24, expenditure of £6.024m was payable to CDL and
Concertus Derbyshire Traded Limited, its wholly owned subsidiary (2022-23: £5.568m),
of which £0.035m was outstanding at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £nil).

PSP (Derbyshire) LLP (PSPD) is a limited liability partnership (LLP) formed between the
Council and PSP Facilitating Limited (PSPF), under the provisions of the Limited Liability
Partnership Act 2000. The purpose of PSPD is to help the Council unlock value from its
land and property. Decision making, ownership and profit share are 50/50 between the
Council and PSPF. Financial Governance is maintained via a Members Agreement and
a Procedure Agreement. All financial activities of PSPD are conducted by PSPF, including
statutory compliance, audit, bank account management, VAT and other taxation matters,
and all liaison with HMRC and other Government bodies. There were no transactions with
the company during 2023-24 (2022-23: £nil).

Derbyco Project SPV Limited is a dormant private limited company with an issued share
capital of 100 £0.01 ordinary shares, which was formed in respect of the treatment and
disposal of non-hazardous waste. The shareholding is split 50/50 between the Council
and Derby City Council. The Council has one director on the company board. There were
no transactions with the company during the financial year (2022-23: £nil).

Other Companies

The Derbyshire Environmental Trust Limited is a company limited by guarantee with no
share capital. One of the directors of the Trust is a Member who was appointed by the
Council. Income transactions with this organisation in the year totalled £0.087m (2022-
23: £0.081m). There were no expenditure transactions during the year (2022-23: £nil).
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The Creswell Heritage Trust is a company limited by guarantee with no share capital. One
of the directors of the Trust is a Member who was appointed by the Council. There were
no income transactions with this organisation in the year (2022-23: £0.002m) and
expenditure transactions totalled £0.007m (2022-23: £0.033m).

Derbyshire Learning and Community Partnerships Ltd is a private company limited by
16,000 ordinary shares. The Council has a 10% shareholding, with the other shareholders
being Building Schools for the Future LLP (10%) and Equitix Derbyshire Limited (80%).
The Council had one director on the board, who left the Council in 2022-23. The Council
received payments of £0.005m from the company in respect of its shareholding and stake
in a subordinated loan from the Council to the company during 2023-24 (2022-23: £nil).

Central Government has significant influence over the general operations of the Council
— it is responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Council operates,
provides the majority of its funding in the form of grants and prescribes the terms of many
of the transactions that the Council has with other organisations. Grants received from
Government departments are set out in the subjective analysis in Note 9. Grant receipts
are also disclosed in Note 7 and Note 37.

Typical transactions with Central Government bodies include, but are not restricted to,
investments, Pay As You Earn and National Insurance contributions paid and pension
contributions paid. During 2023-24, income transactions excluding grants totalled
£19.152m (2022-23: £16.099m), of these, £18.749m were with academy schools (2022-
23: £15.853m). During 2023-24, expenditure transactions totalled £253.369m (2022-23:
£212.953m) and included the following significant transactions:

Inland Revenue £108.186m (2022-23: £108.347m)
Debt Management Office £35.000m (2022-23: £nil)
Teachers’ Pensions £42.346m (2022-23: £42.754m)
Public Works Loan Board £17.276m (2022-23: £18.823m)

Other Local Authorities — typical transactions include, but are not restricted to,
investments, borrowing, repayment of transferred debt, re-imbursement of joint project
costs and supplies of goods and services. During 2023-24, income transactions totalled
£53.462m (2022-23: £35.593m) and included significant transactions with Derby City
Council totalling £38.588m (2022-23: £22.120m). During 2023-24, expenditure
transactions totalled £45.635m, excluding short term lending and repayment of borrowing
with other local authorities (2022-23: £42.681m).

Health Bodies — typical transactions include, but are not restricted to, re-imbursement of
joint project costs and supplies of goods and services. During 2023-24, income
transactions with health bodies in the year totalled £89.967m (2022-23: £80.408m) and
included significant transactions with NHS Derby and Derbyshire ICB of £88.201m (2022-
23: £78.111m). Expenditure transactions totalled £40.882m (2022-23: £37.275m) and
included transactions with Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Foundation Trust
of £22.060m (2022-23: £22.112m).
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Members and Senior Officers — Council Members and Senior Officers have direct control
over the Council’s financial and operating policies. The total of Members’ allowances paid
in 2023-24 is shown in Note 30. During 2023-24, income transactions in which Members
and/or Senior Officers had an interest totalled £91.773m (2022-23: £81.860m), of which
£88.201m is in respect of NHS Derby and Derbyshire ICB (2022-23: £78.111m), which
has the Council’s Director of Public Health on its Governing Body as a local authority
representative. During 2023-24, works and services to the value of £28.261m (2022-23:
£23.633m), of which £11.609m is in respect of VDL and Vertas (Derbyshire) Traded
Limited (2022-23: £10.491m) and £6.024m is in respect of CDL and Concertus Derbyshire
Traded Limited (2022-23: £5.568m), were commissioned from companies in which
Members and/or Senior Officers had an interest on behalf of the Council. There was
£0.035m outstanding at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £nil). Contracts were entered
into in full compliance with the Council’'s Standing Orders.

From May 2021 a Member was elected and served as Derbyshire’s Police and Crime
Commissioner, until May 2024. A Member was elected and served as Derbyshire’s
Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner from April 2023. During 2023-24, twelve
Members (2022-23: twelve Members) served as Council-appointed members of the
Derbyshire Combined Fire Authority, and from May 2021 one of these members served
as Chair. During 2022-23 and 2023-24, four Members served as Council-appointed
members of the Peak District National Park Authority and one Member served as a
Director on the D2N2 LEP, which is a company limited by guarantee. During 2023-24,
two Members served as the Council’s representative to Belper Leisure Centre Limited
(2022-23: two Members), a charitable company limited by guarantee.

Derbyshire Pension Fund — the Council is the administering authority for the Derbyshire
Pension Fund (the Fund) under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations
2013.

Included in management expenses in 2023-24 are charges from the Council of £3.360m
(2022-23: £3.071m), for expenses incurred in respect of oversight and governance of the
Fund, for Fund administration and for the management of the Fund’s in-house
investments. At 31 March 2024 the Fund owed the Council £3.555m (31 March 2023:
£2.110m).

It has not been possible to apportion, on a reasonable basis, the costs and benefits of key
management personnel between the Council and the Fund. However, Members’
Allowances and Officers’ Remuneration are disclosed in Notes 30 and 31.

LGPS Central Limited — LGPS Central Limited (LGPSC) has been established to
manage investment assets on behalf of eight LGPS funds across the Midlands. It is jointly
owned in equal shares by the eight administering authorities participating in the LGPSC
Pool. The Fund is one of the shareholders.

54



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Council’'s Section 151 Officer, or their nominee, represents the Council on the LGPS
Central Shareholders’ Forum, with delegated authority to make decisions on any matters
which require a decision by the shareholders of LGPS Central Limited. All decisions made
by the Section 151 Officer or their nominee, using delegated powers, are reported to the
Pensions and Investments Committee.

The Fund had £1.315m invested in share capital and £0.685m in a loan to LGPSC at
31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £1.315m and £0.685m, respectively) and was owed
interest of £0.065m on the loan to LGPSC on the same date (2022-23: £0.047m).

The Fund incurred costs of £0.200m associated with LGPSC Investment Management
and Monitoring Costs in respect of an Active Global Sustainable Equity Broad Strategy
sub-fund, an Active Global Sustainable Equity Targeted Strategy sub-fund, an Active
Emerging Markets Equities Multi Manager sub-fund, an index-tracking All World Equity
Climate Multi Factor sub-fund, an Active Global Investment Grade Corporate Bond sub-
fund and a Credit Partnership Limited Partnership sub-fund (Private Debt) in 2023-24
(2022-23: £0.164m), of which £0.036m was payable to LGPSC at 31 March 2024
(31 March 2023: £0.041m). The charge excludes fees paid to the underlying investment
managers of £1.903m in 2023-24 (2022-23: £1.265m), with the increase between 2022-
23 and 2023-24 reflecting an increase in the level of investment assets managed through
LGPSC products.

The Fund incurred £1.211m in respect of Governance, Operator Running and Product
Development costs in connection with LGPSC in 2023-24 (2022-23: £1.065m), of which
£0.329m was payable to LGPSC at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £0.332m).

The Fund incurred Partner Fund Support Office costs of £0.029m in 2023-24 (2022-23:
nil). These costs were incurred by West Midlands Pension Fund (one of the LGPS
pension funds comprising the LGPSC Pool) and were recharged to the Fund, of which
£0.018m was payable to West Midlands Pension Fund at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
nil).

LGPSC leased office space from the Council. The lease commenced on 14 June 2018
and was for a duration of five years, with a break clause at 30 June 2021. In 2023-24,
LGPSC notified the Council that it was not renewing the lease on expiry in June 2023.
The rental income received by the Council from LGPSC in 2023-24 amounted to £0.003m
(2022-23: £0.015m). There was no amount due at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
£0.015m).
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From 29 March 2023, an amended guarantee was put in place to enable LGPSC to
recognise an offsetting asset to the IAS19 liability on its balance sheet. The new
agreement extends the definition of ‘Outstanding Liabilities’ to include the total IAS 19
defined benefit obligation. As the IAS 19 figure was previously used as a proxy to estimate
the possible cost of cessation, this does not change the amount estimated under the
guarantee. LGPSC is responsible for employer and employee contributions and pays
these when due. The LGPSC IAS19 pension asset at 31 March 2024 (calculated annually
at the vyear-end) amounted to £0.047m (31 March 2023: pension liability
£0.665m). Derbyshire Pension Fund’'s share of this LGPSC IAS19 pension asset at
31 March 2024 was £0.006m (31 March 2023: pension liability £0.083m). The partners
are jointly and severally liable.

D2N2 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) — The Council is the Accountable Body for
the D2N2 LEP. During 2023-24, the Council received £0.115m from the D2N2 LEP, which
was all non-grant income (2022-23: total of £0.107m, all of which was non-grant income).
At 31 March 2024, no amounts were outstanding (31 March 2023: £0.107m). During
2023-24, the Council did not commission any Works and Services from the D2N2 LEP
(2022-23: nil) and contributions of £0.021m were made (2022-23: £0.050m). No amounts
were outstanding at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £0.050m).

Using the freedom and flexibilities given to LEP Accountable Bodies, during 2020-21 the
Council utilised Getting Building Fund underspends of £16.241m to fund its capital
programme. In 2022-23 the Council repaid the remaining £0.253m of this funding to the
LEP. No amount was outstanding at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £0.253m).

East Midlands County Combined Authority (EMCCA) — During 2023-24, the Council
acted as the Accountable Body for the EMCCA. During 2023-24, £0.028m of grant income
was receivable (2022-23: nil) from the EMCCA, which was all outstanding at 31 March
2024 (31 March 2023: £nil).

11. ADJUSTMENTS BETWEEN ACCOUNTING BASIS AND FUNDING BASIS

This note details the adjustments that are made to the total comprehensive income and
expenditure recognised by the Council in the year, in accordance with proper accounting
practice, to align with the resources that are specified by statutory provisions as being
available to the Council to meet future capital and revenue expenditure.
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Usable reserves
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£m £m £m £m £m £m
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2023 (32.714)| (272.371)  (82.411) | (12.456)| (1,368.737)| (1,768.689)
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 74.359 0.000 0.000 0.000 55.483 129.842
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis
12

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets 16| (48.571) 0.000 0.000 0.000 48.571 0.000
Revaluation Losses and Impairment of Non-Current
Assets 12| (20.273) 0.000 0.000 0.000 20.273 0.000
Application of Capital Grants credited to the CIES 371 113.011 0.000 | (113.011) 0.000 0.000 0.000
Disposal of Non-Current Assets 12| (64.828) 0.000 0.000 (6.854) 71.682 0.000
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (18.663) 0.000 0.000 0.000 18.663 0.000
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
CIES on an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements 1.600 0.000 0.000 0.000 (1.600) 0.000
Amount by which Council Tax and Business Rates
income credited to the CIES is different from Council Tax
and Business Rates income calculated for the year in
accordance with statutory requirements 0:996 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.996) 0.000
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Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited

or eradited to the CIES 46| (60.278) 0.000 0.000 0.000 &60.278 0000
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investmeant 23475 0.000 0.000 0.000 (23.4735) 0.000
Principal repayments of transferred debt 0.0028 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.008) 0.000
Capital expenditure charged in the year to the General

Resere 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (.000 0000
Reversal of gains/losses on pooled investment funds

measured at FYPL charged to the CIES 19 0.489 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.489) 0000
Amount by which finance costs (proportion of previous

years' premiums and interest rates) charged to the CIES

are different from finance costs chargeable in the year in

accordance with stalutory requirements 0.280 0.000 0.000 0.000 {0.280) 0.000
Amount by which finance costs (capital loan impairments)

charged to the CIES are different from finance costs

chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory

reguirements 19 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (.000 0000
Employer's pension confributions and direct payments to

pensioners pavable in the year 46 70.026 0,000 0.000 0.000 (T0.026) 0.000
Deferred Capital Receipls becoming usable 0.000 0,000 0.000 (0.0289)] 0.029 0.000
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit movement 36| (11.895) 0.000 0.000 0.000 11.885 0000
Financing of capital expenditure 15 0.000 0,000 71.665 2592 (74.257) 0000
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding

basis (14.623) 0.000 (41.346)  (4.291)| 60.260 0.000
Reserves movements

Transfer to Earmarked Reserves 27 58.336 (59.336) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Transfer from Earmarked Reserves 27| (126.540) 126.540 0.000 0.000 0.000 0000
Total movements (81.827) 67.204 (41.346) (4.291) 60.260 0.000
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2024 (40.182) (205.167) [(123.757) | ‘IE.H?li {1,252.994)| (1,638.847T)
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Usable reserves
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BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2022 (60.505) (283.333) (58.682) (9.715) (372.888) (785.123)
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 164.214 0.000 0.000 0.000 | (1,147.780) (983.566)
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding
basis
12

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets 16| (43.902) 0.000 0.000 0.000 43.902 0.000
Revaluation Losses and Impairment of Non-Current
Assets 12| (20.614) 0.000 0.000 0.000 20.614 0.000
Application of Capital Grants credited to the CIES 37 78.003 0.000 (78.003) 0.000 0.000 0.000
Disposal of Non-Current Assets 12| (53.131) 0.000 0.000 (4.278) 57.409 0.000
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (15.043) 0.000 0.000 0.000 15.043 0.000
Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the
CIES on an accruals basis is different from remuneration
chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory
requirements (0.965) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.965 0.000
Amount by which Council Tax and Business Rates
income credited to the CIES is different from Council Tax
and Business Rates income calculated for the year in
accordance with statutory requirements 2.145 0.000 0.000 0.000 (2.145) 0.000
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Reversal of items relating to retirement benefits debited

or credited to the CIES 46| (150.348) 0.000 0.000 0.000 150.348 0.000
Statutory provision for the financing of capital investment 21.437 0.000 0.000 0.000 (21.437) 0.000
Principal repayments of transferred debt 0.007 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.007) 0.000
Capital expenditure charged in the year to the General

Reserve 0.073 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.073) 0.000
Reversal of gains/losses on pooled investment funds

measured at FVPL charged to the CIES 19 (7.588) 0.000 0.000 0.000 7.588 0.000
Amount by which finance costs (proportion of previous

years' premiums and interest rates) charged to the CIES

are different from finance costs chargeable in the year in

accordance with statutory requirements (0.139) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.139 0.000
Amount by which finance costs (capital loan impairments)

charged to the CIES are different from finance costs

chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory

requirements 19 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to

pensioners payable in the year 46 64.604 0.000 0.000 0.000 (64.604) 0.000
Deferred Capital Receipts becoming usable 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.010) 0.010 0.000
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit movement 36 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Financing of capital expenditure 15 0.000 0.000 54.274 1.547 (55.821) 0.000
Adjustments between accounting basis and funding

basis (125.461) 0.000 (23.729) (2.741) 151.931 0.000
Reserves movements

Transfer to Earmarked Reserves 27| 126.327 (126.327) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Transfer from Earmarked Reserves 27| (137.289) 137.289 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Total movements (136.423) 10.962 (23.729) (2.741) 151.931 0.000
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2023 (32.714)  (272.371) (82.411) (12.456)| (1,368.737)| (1,768.689)
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The value of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) assets in the Balance Sheet are shown
at their carrying valuation, less accumulated depreciation charges. The table below shows
the movement in PPE assets during the year:
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COS5T OR VALUATION
At 1 April 2023 1,391,846 64 883 o 4658 21,014 50.443 | |
Addetions 23 E92 3679 37534 0442 0,000 80 983 146,530
Dhspasals (6B.3E5)  (4.289) 000D (008E) (1.355) 0000 (T4.1248)
Chsposals derecogniticn {1.673) 0,000 0000 (oLoaT) 0.000 0.000 {1.740)
Revaluation Gains io RR* |oes B86.143 0,000 0.000 0017 329 0.600 89457
Revaluation Losses bo RR |0 (40 281) 0.000 0000 Q000 | (11.51%) Q.000 | (51.800)
Ravalsalion Losses o
CIES (17.1868)  0.000 0.000 0000 (3078) 0000| (20.264)
Translers within PFE [5.-!13‘-5} 070 1,050 (0081 1471 (10 315] 0000
Transfers from Heritage 4631 0000 0000 0000 0.000 0.000 4.631
Transfers o Hald far Sala (5 984) 0000 0000 (0020 (0. 134) 0.000 {7.134)
At 31 March 2024 1,366,534 54,333 4850 24990 1M1.147
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2023 [5.8E8) [52.650) (D045)  [1.714) 0,000
Charge for year (ZB.7BS)  (3.533) (16.03%) (0004)  [D00O7) 0000 [48.361)
Revaluations 1o RR CIES 27857 0,000 0000 000 0 .564 0.000 #8.551
Impairment io CIES {0.008) 0000 0000 0.000 0.000 0.000 {0.009)
Disposals 1.153 4,285 0000 0000 0.143 0.000 5691
Dhapasals derecognition 0,112 0,000 0000 0,000 0,000 0.000 112
Transfers within FRE 0.582 0030 0000 L0 (D352} 0.000 0.000
Transfers from Haritage 0.000 0000 0000 0000 0000 0.000 0L000
Tranalers o Held far Sale 0,001 0000 {000 .00 .00 0.0040 0,004
At 31 March 2024 (4.848) [51.888) (0.0459) (1.576) 0,000
QPENING VALLUE 1,385 977 12233 406752 4613 21.300 50.445 | 1684 324
CLOSING VALUE 1,361.676 12445 432304 4,801 23414 1M.117 | 1955757
HATURE OF ASSET HOLDING
Purchasesd | Bunit 1,303,502 12445 437 304 4 801 Fid414 121117 | 1,917.583
Finance Lease T.004 0000 0000 0,000 0.000 0.600 T.00%
Donated 5.820 0000 0000 0,000 0.000 0.000 5820
Privaie Finance initative 25,345 0,030 0000 0000 0,000 0,000 25,345
1,361,676 12445 432304 4801 23 4494 121,147 | 1,955,757

*RR — Revaluation Reserve

The fair value measurement of the Council’s Surplus Assets is analysed below, with net
book value being categorised as fair value Level 1, Level 2 or Level 3. Refer to Accounting
Policy 1.14 for more information about these Levels.
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Net Book Value (NBV)
Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£m £m £m £m
Land 0.000 0.040 20.509 20.549
Buildings 0.000 0.000 2.865 2.865
0.000 0.040 23.374 23.414
The 2022-23 position was:
E - e ‘3 - - E -
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é % £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
COST OR VALUATION
At 1 April 2022 1,235.600 65.061 6.116 17.920 54.288
Additions 26.613 2.467 36.701 0.120 0.000 19.156 85.057
Disposals (48.806) (2.804) 0.000 0.000 (1.550) 0.000 | (53.160)
Disposals derecognition (3.902) 0.000 0.000 (0.001) 0.000 0.000 (3.903)
Revaluation Gains to RR* |cIEs 238.013 0.000 0.000 0.013 7.630 0.000 | 245.656
Revaluation Losses to RR |ciEs (50.017) 0.000 0.000 (1.180) (1.091) 0.000 | (52.288)
Revaluation Losses to
CIES (17.262) 0.000 0.000 (2.512) (0.390) 0.000 | (20.164)
Transfer within PPE 10.573 0.159 8.513 2.102 1.648 | (22.995) 0.000
Transfer to Held for Sale 1.010 0.000 0.000 0.000 (1.153) 0.000 (0.143)
At 31 March 2023 1,391.846 64.883 4.658 23.014 50.449
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2022 (8.924)| (52.224) (0.041) (1.803) 0.000
Charge for year (24.164) (3.145)| (16.257) (0.004) (0.019) 0.000 | (43.589)
Revaluations to RR CIES 26.278 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.184 0.000 26.462
Impairment to CIES (0.168) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.168)
Disposals 0.787 2.717 0.000 0.000 0.104 0.000 3.608
Disposals derecognition 0.144 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.144
Transfer within PPE 0.178 0.002 0.000 0.000 (0.180) 0.000 0.000
At 31 March 2023 (5.869)| (52.650) (0.045) (1.714) 0.000
OPENING VALUE 1,226.676 12.837 | 380.795 6.075 16.117 54.288 |1,696.788
CLOSING VALUE 1,385.977 12.233 | 409.752 4.613 21.300 50.449 |1,884.324
NATURE OF ASSET HOLDING
Purchased / Built 1,347.195 12.233 | 409.752 4.613 21.300 50.450 |1,845.543
Finance Lease 9.671 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.001) 9.670
Donated 5.820 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.820
Private Finance Initiative 23.291 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 23.291
1,385.977 12.233 | 409.752 4.613 21.300 50.449 |1,884.324

*RR — Revaluation Reserve
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In accordance with the temporary relief offered by the Update to the Code on Infrastructure
Assets, this note does not include disclosure of gross cost and accumulated depreciation
for Infrastructure Assets because historical reporting practices and resultant information
deficits mean that this would not faithfully represent the asset position to the users of the
financial statements. The Council has chosen not to disclose this information as the
previously reported practices and resultant information deficits mean that gross cost and
accumulated depreciation are not measured accurately and would not provide the basis
for the users of the financial statements to take economic or other decisions relating to
Infrastructure Assets.

The Council has determined in accordance with Regulation 30M of the Local Authorities
(Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2022 that the
carrying amounts to be derecognised for Infrastructure Assets when there is replacement
expenditure is nil.

Under IFRS13, the Council is required to provide a summary of the fair value
measurement for Surplus Assets. The 2022-23 position was:

Net Book Value (NBV)
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total

£m £m £m £m
Land 0.000 0.160 20.572 20.732
Buildings 0.000 0.217 0.351 0.568

0.000 0.377 20.923 21.300

A summary of the Council’'s Property, Plant and Equipment is included below, giving
information as to the proportion of the closing value at 31 March 2024 which relates to
assets held at historic cost and the proportion which relates to assets which have been
revalued, and if so, the year of that revaluation under the Council’s five year rolling
programme of physical revaluation. In addition to this physical formal revaluation
programme, school assets are revalued each year based on a desk top review. The value
of schools revalued in this way at 31 March 2024 is £643.504m (31 March 2023:
£685.678m).
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VALUATION
At 31 March 2024 | 1,243.377 0.000 0.000 0.000 23.414 0.000 | 1,266.791
At 31 March 2023 51.052 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 51.052
At 31 March 2022 32.201 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 32.201
At 31 March 2021 21.079 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 21.079
At 31 March 2020 11.594 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 11.594
1,359.303 0.000 0.000 0.000 23.414 0.000 | 1,382.717
HISTORIC COST 2.373 12.445 | 432.304 4.801 0.000  121.117| 573.040
CLOSING VALUE
At 31 March 2024 | 1,361.676 12.445 | 432.304 4.801 23.414 | 121.117 | 1,955.757

At 31 March 2024, the Council had Capital Commitments of £10.882m.
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13. NATURE AND SCALE OF HERITAGE ASSETS

The table below shows the movement in Heritage Assets during the year:
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COST OR VALUATION
At 1 April 2023 50.539 0,033 5,000 4,434 60,011
Additions 0.378 0.0 (0. 0e00 000 0.376
Disposals 0000 0. 000 0,000 0. 000 0.000
Impairment Losses/{Reversals) through I&E 0000 0. (e} 0.0 0D 0,000
Revaluation Gaing le Revalualion Resere 6.671 0.000 0,000 0.0 5671
Fevaluation Losses to Revaluation Resere {23 268) 0. (e 0. (0 00000 | (23.288)
Transfers tod|from) Harmage Asseds {4.631) 0. o0 0.0 0.0y (4.631)
Derecogniion {0.012) 0,000 (01000 (.00 (0.012)
At 31 March 2024 28,654 0.033 &.000 4439 38126
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2023 a.000 0.000 00040 0,000 Q.000
Dapraciation Charge Q.00 0. 000 0.0 0ok 0.000
Disposals 000 0.000 (0.0 Q0o Q.000
At 31 March 2024 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
QPEMNIMG VALLUIE 50.53%9 0.033 5000 4,435 60.011
CLOSING VALUE L 28,854 0.033 5.000 4.439 48,126
HATURE OF CLOSING VALUE
Cost (00D 0, 00 10, 0000 000 0000
‘falualion 28,654 0.033 5000 2 439 38.126
28,654 0.033 S.000 4439 J8.126
HATURE OF ASSET HOLDING
Purchased / Built 28,364 0.033 5,000 3773 3r.A70
Donated 0.290 0.0 00040 LS 0.556
28.654 0.033 .00 4,439 J8.126

The Council’s Heritage Assets are categorised as follows:

Monuments, Statues and Historic Buildings — the Council owns various historic
buildings. The most significant is Elvaston Castle, which is held at a valuation of £35.989m
at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £48.414m). Of this valuation at 31 March 2024,
£26.347m is categorised within Heritage Assets and £9.642m is categorised within
Property Plant and Equipment, as it relates to operational buildings. The castle was
previously valued on an insurance valuation basis but in the latest revaluation it has been
valued on a Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) basis as this has been deemed to be
more accurate. The castle was designed by James Wyatt, in the gothic revival style, in
the early 1800s. The castle is situated in approximately 321 acres of open parkland,
woodland and historical gardens. The Council has a Masterplan in place and has
continued to dedicate capital expenditure to improve access and provide a sustainable
future for the castle and its country park.
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County Buildings — various heritage assets are held at County Buildings. These include
pieces of silverware from the former Judges’ lodgings and railway nameplates.

Archives and Local Studies Collection — this collection is proportioned approximately
80% archives and 20% local studies. A large photographic collection is held at the
Derbyshire Records Office. Also held are records of the magistrates’ court, county court,
coroner’s court, hospitals and NHS Trust. This is Derbyshire’s only place of deposit.

Museum Collection and Artefacts — the Buxton Museum has core collections covering
Peak District archaeology, geology, art and local history. The museum has structural
issues which have led to options being considered to temporarily re-home collections in
the interim period. A decision has been made to sell the building. The collections include
a recreated study of the work of archaeologist Sir William Boyd Dawkins, together with a
fine art collection of mostly 19th and 20th century works in watercolours, oils and prints,
including works by Brangwyn, Chagall, Chahine and their contemporaries. Also held at
the museum is a mineral collection including Blue John, local specimens and cave
deposits. There is also a collection of Ice Age material and finds from Creswell Crags on
the Derbyshire border. A number of Hans Coper vases are also held.

The 2022-23 position was:
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- o 3 2
‘2 g o 7] 8 '§ < g ®
Egef 22 £83% E£3| B
23835 ES £ER52 %9% S0
cE8S 35 28% 3%t & @
=nIn o m <10 =0 <
£m £m £m £m £m
COST OR VALUATION
At 1 April 2022 53.816 0.032 4.000 5.575 63.423
Additions 0.214 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.214
Disposals 0.000 0.000 0.000 (1.136) (1.136)
Impairment losses/(reversals) through I&E (0.281) 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.281)
Revaluations 0.000 0.001 1.000 0.000 1.001
Transfers to/(from) Heritage Assets (0.024) 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.024)
Derecognition (3.186) 0.000 0.000 0.000 (3.186)
At 31 March 2023 50.539 0.033 5.000 4.439 60.011
DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2022 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Depreciation Charge 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Disposals 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
At 31 March 2023 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
OPENING VALUE 53.816 0.032 4.000 5.575 63.423
CLOSING VALUE 50.539 0.033 5.000 4.439 60.011
NATURE OF CLOSING VALUE
Cost 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Valuation 50.539 0.033 5.000 4.439 60.011
50.539 0.033 5.000 4.439 60.011
NATURE OF ASSET HOLDING
Purchased / Built 50.539 0.033 5.000 3.773 59.345
Donated 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.666 0.666
50.539 0.033 5.000 4.439 60.011

14. HERITAGE ASSETS NOT REPORTABLE IN THE BALANCE SHEET

Where the Council is unable to place a reliable fair value on Heritage Assets because of
their nature, it is required to disclose them in accordance with the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting. Details of these Heritage Assets are set out below:
o Colliery Bridge, Shipley Country Park
e Paul’'s Arm Bridge, Shipley Country Park
e Leawood River Aqueduct
Northern Retaining Walls and Loading Bay, Cromford Wharf
Side Walls and Curbs to Canal Basin, Cromford Wharf
Railway Embankment and Road Bridge, Steeple Grange, Wirksworth
Grindlow Tower, Solomon’s Temple, Poole’s Cavern Country Park, Buxton
Workshops, Offices and Terminus at Cromford and High Peak Junction
Brittain Colliery Headstocks, Ripley
Brittain Colliery Engine House, Ripley
¢ Archive Collections at Derbyshire Record Office
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15. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND CAPITAL FINANCING

2022-23 2023-24
Em £m
85.265) Capital Additions o 146.881
15.043] Revenue Expendilure Funded from Capital Under Statute 18.663
100.208| Capital Expenditure 165.544
44414 Loans B 91.286
0.07 3| Revenue Contribufions 0.000
1.548| Capital Receipts 2.593
54273 Grants and Contributions 71.685
100,308 Capital Financing 165.544
2022-23 2023-24
Em £m
571.297|Opening Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 594,275
_____|Capital Investment —_
85,265|Property, Plant and Equipment 146 881
15.043]Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 18.663|
Sources of Finance .
(1.548)|Capital Receipts (2.593)
{34.273)1Government Grants and other Contnibutions {r1.663)
(0.073)| Direct Revenue Contributions 0.000
{21.436)| Statutory Minimum Revenue Frovision (23.474)
___594.275|Closing Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) |  662.087
22978 |Movement in Year 67.812
Increasel{Decrease) in Underlying Need to Borrow
{Unsupported by Government Financial Assistance)
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16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets relate to the purchase of software licences:

2022-23| 2023-24
£m £m
COST OR VALUATION
At 1st April 8.947 8.947
At 31st March 8.947 8.947
DEPRECIATION
At 1st April (8.233) (8.547)
Charge for year (0.314) (0.210)
At 31st March (8.547) (8.757)
OPENING VALUE 0.714 0.400
CLOSING VALUE 0.400 0.190
17. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
2022-23 2023-24
Carrying| Revaluation Carrying| Revaluation
Value Reserve Value Reserve
£m £m £m £m
2.396 1.434|At 1 April 2.539 1.973
0.000 0.000|Sales (2.511) (1.874)
0.143 0.539| Transfers 7.137 6.154
2.539 1.973| At 31 March 7.165 6.253

Assets must meet stringent criteria to be classified as Held for Sale rather than Surplus.

18. NON-CURRENT DEBTORS

31 Mar 2023 o | 31 Mar 2024
£m 3 £m
0.034(Non-Current Transferred Debt 19 0.032
0.403(Other Non-Current Debtors 19 1.300
0.437|Total Non-Current Debtors 1.332

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Assets comprise loans to other bodies, cash and short-term deposits,
investments in equity funds and receivables.
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Current Financial Assets

___Carrying Value | FairValue
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024 | 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
£m Em Em Em|
Curran Investimeants 238 328 48 Bay7 238 328 49 837
Cash and Cash Equivalents 69,80 78,319 59,889 78.319
Trade Debtors 25417 42 B0& 25417 42 806
Current Financial Assets 334.634 170,962 334.634 170.962
Non-Current Financial Assets
Fair Carrying Value Fair Value
E Value) 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024 | 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Lovel £m £m Em Em
Fooled Irvesiment Fumnds 1 63 966 6 458 63 453 64 458
Lamn 1o Buxtan Crgscent Lid 3 10,251 10251 13,053 13,008
Loan (o Chestarfield FC Community 3 0.448 0.400 0.500 0445
Cither Mon-Currend Invesiments 2 10,000 0000 4885 0.000
Hon-Current Invesiments B4.668 75108 87.186 T6.900
Mon-Current Translerresd Daedd 18 2 0,034 0032 0034 0,033
Ctiar Mon-Current Debtors ig| * 0.402 1300 0402 1.300
Hon-Current Financial Assats 85,104 76441 BT E22 80232

* Fair value disclosure not required

The Non-Current Investments balance includes the Council’s holdings in pooled
investment funds.

Financial Assets by Measurement Classification

| CamyingValue |  FairValue

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024 | 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Em Em Em Em

Amortised Costs 355770 182.945 358.288 186.736
Fair Value through Profit or Loss B3, 968 B4, 458 63,968 B4.458
Total Financial Assets 419.738 247403 422256 251.194

At 31 March 2024 there was one non-current investment in the balance sheet with a
carrying value in excess of £15.000m:
o CCLA Mutual Investment Trust Property Fund, with a carrying value equal to fair
value at 31 March 2024 of £21.773m (original investment £25.000m). This
investment is open ended but can be realised with 90 days’ notice.

Non-Current Transferred Debt and Other Non-Current Debtors are not quoted on active

markets meaning that fair value cannot be accurately calculated. As such they have been
reported at carrying value.
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The fair values of the Council’s deposits and the loans it has made are determined with
reference to the principal, term, rate and timing of the interest and the borrower’s credit
rating.

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL)

The following financial assets are pooled investment funds which the Council has
measured at FVPL. The Council’s pooled investment funds are traded on active markets,
for which the Council can access the measurement data. The fair values of these funds
are determined by the closing bid prices at 31 March 2024. It is the Council’s intention to
hold these assets for the medium to long term to earn investment income and for capital
appreciation.

Carrying Value ] Fair Value

Financial Azsets measured at FYPL | 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024 | 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Em Em Em £Em

Aegon - Diversified Income Fund 8,856 8.335 B.B56 8.335
CCLA = LA Property Fund 22 65T 21.773 22 65T 21.773
CCLA - Beller World Cautious Fund® 4. 674 45904 4 674 4. 904
M&G - Oplimal Income Fund 4,436 4673 4 436 4673
MEG - Global Dividend Fund B.414 65,842 G414 6842
Minety One Diversified Income Fund 8825 B.783 B.B25 8783
Sehroder - Incame Madmiser Fund 8 108 B.148 B.108 g.148
Total 63. 968 64.458 G3.968 64,458

* Previously CCLA Diversified Income Fund

The Council holds 75,000 £1 ordinary shares (17% share) in the Local Authority controlled
Scape Group (Ltd). The value of this holding is small and there are conditions on the
shares that prevent them from being traded on the open market. The Council does not
consider the value to be material and therefore no value is carried on the Council’s
Balance Sheet.

There have been no financial assets measured at FVPL which have been derecognised
in the year ended 31 March 2024.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from the Council's investments in equity instruments and pooled
investment funds has been recognised as follows:
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2022-23 2023-24

Em Em
Mone 0.000 0,000
From Investments Derecognised 0.000 0.000
Aegon - Diversified Income Fund 0516 0624
CCLA - LA Property Fund 0.982 1.128
CCLA - Batter Waorld Cautious Fund® 0. 141 0. 164
ME&G - Global Dividend Fund 0.272 0.223
ME&G - Optimal Income Fund 0.142 0.239
Minety One Diversified Income Fund 0.373 0.408
Schroder - Income Maximiser Fund 0.610 0574
Scape Group Limited shares 0.350 0.500
| Vertas (Derbyshire) Limited shares 0.000 0,203
|From Investments Held at Year End 3,306 4,064
Total Dividends Received 3.386 4.064

* Previously CCLA Diversified Income Fund

Financial Instrument Liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, PFI liabilities, finance
lease liabilities and other liabilities at contract amounts.

Current Financial Liabilities

Carrying Value Fair Value
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024 | 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024

Em Em Em Em
Transferred Dabt {0.008) (0.008) {0.008) {0.008)
Public Works Loan Board {6.401) {2.745) (6.401) (2.745)
Temporary Loans (224 500) [ 138.500) (224.500) {138 .500)
Accrued Interest _(2965)  (6574)  (2965)  (B.574)
Current Loans and E-nrruwing {233.674) (147.827) 1233 B74)  [147.827)
Trade Creditors (102.873)  (146.981) (102.873)  (148.981)
FFI liability (4.623) {4.872) (B.TTT) (6.795)
Finance laase lability {0.423) {0.377) (0.423) (0.377)
Current Financlal Liabilities {341.793)  (300.057) (343.947)  (301.980)|
Non-Current Financial Liabilities

Fair Carrying Value Fair Value
= |Value| 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024 | 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
= |Level Em £m £m Em

Transferred Debt 2 (0.134) (0.125) (01345 (0.125)
Public Works Loan Board z (216.931) (215639 (220.506)  (229.808)
Other Long Teqm Loans a 2 {15.532) (205208 (14.857)  (8.703)
Hon-Current Borrowing (232.597)  (236.284)]  (244.887)  (239.636)
PF1 liability 25 3 {(46.576) (4170} (43 GIBE) {39.882)
Financdy kease linbility 28] * {3.422) {2 885} (3422 (2. 985)
Hon-Current Financial Liabilities (282.595)  (280.973)] (291,777}  (2B2.503)

* Fair value disclosure not required
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Financial Liabilities by Measurement Classification

Carrying Value Fair Valua
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024 | 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Em Em| £m Em
Amortised Costs (G624.368) (581.183)  (B35.724) {584.642)
Fair Value through Profit or Loss 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Total Financial Liabilities (624.368) (581.189) (635.724) [584.642)

The Council has 46 loans with the Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) at 31 March 2024.
The start date of the earliest of these PWLB loans was May 1998, with a maturity date of
7 May 2024 (a period of 26 years). The most recent start date was November 2007, for a
period of 30 years. During the year, one loan with the PWLB was repaid. The average
loan rate across the loans is 4.37%. The average discount rate is 4.93%.

At 31 March 2024 the Council held two other long-term loans, in respect of which Barclays
waived their LOBO options in June 2016:

e £5.000m Barclays loan commencing in October 2003, for 40 years, with an
introductory rate of 3.2% for four years, then 4.875% thereafter. The carrying value
of the loan at 31 March 2024 is £5.323m (31 March 2023: £5.330m) and the fair
value is £5.024m (31 March 2023: £4.971m), using a discount rate of 5.034%
(31 March 2023: 5.112%).

e £5.000m Barclays loan, commencing in February 2005, for 40 years, with an
introductory interest rate of 3.7% for four years, then 4.5% thereafter. A discount of
£0.103m applied at the commencement of the loan. The carrying value of the loan
at 31 March 2024 is £5.196m (31 March 2023: £5.202m) and the fair value is
£4.679m (31 March 2023: £4.630m), using a discount rate of 5.033% (31 March
2023: 5.096%).

The Council’'s £5.000m Dexia LOBO loan, which commenced in August 2004, for 35
years, at a fixed rate of 4.5%, was repaid in October 2023. In August 2023, the Council
received notification from Dexia that they were to exercise their option under the LOBO to
increase the prevailing interest rate from 4.50% to 5.15%, with effect from October 2024.
This notice gave the Council the option to either accept the increase or to repay the loan
at its nominal value. The Council decided to take the repayment option.

PFI and Finance Lease Liabilities are not quoted on active markets. The discounted cash
flow method has been used to calculate the fair value of PFI liabilities. Refer to Note 44
for further details. The average interest rate across the Council’'s 13 finance leases is
12.21%. Refer to Note 43 for further details.

Interest Income and Expenditure

The following income and expenditure have been recognised in the CIES in relation to
interest on financial instruments:
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Incomel(Expense)
2022-23 2023-24
Em Em
Interest Income 4.290 11.712
Interest Expense {1B.868) (26.178)
Met Interest Incomel{Expense) {14.578) {14.466)

Financial Instrument Gains/Losses

The following gains and losses have been recognised in the CIES in relation to the
carrying value of the Council’s financial assets:

Net (Losses)/Gains

Financial Assets 2022-23 2023-24
£m Em

Amortised Cosls (5.87T) {0.805)

Fair Value through Profit or Loss (7.588) 0,489

FYWOCI - Gains/Losses Recognised in

Other Comprehansive Income 0.000 0,000

FVOCI - Accumulated Gains/Lossas
Reclassified to Surplus Deficit on

Provision of Service 0.000 0.000
Total (Losses)/Gains (13.465) {0.3186)

Losses arising from financial assets measured at amortised cost relate to impairment of
these assets, including write-off of irrecoverable trade debt and movement in the
allowances for loss due to default on these assets.

The loan advances to Buxton Crescent Ltd (formerly Buxton Crescent Hotel and Thermal
Spa Company Ltd) meet the definition of capital expenditure under statutory provisions,
therefore the movement in the loss allowance for default provided for these advances has
been reversed out to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Gains from financial assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL) relate
to movements in the fair value of the Council’s investments in pooled investment funds.
These gains have been reversed out to the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account as
required by the statutory temporary override DLUHC has issued. The override was
originally effective for financial years 2018-19 to 2022-23 and was extended for a further
two years to 2024-25.

There were no gains or losses from financial assets measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) in 2023-24 (2022-23: nil).
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Other than the write-off of irrecoverable trade debt, no gains or losses arose on
derecognition from Financial Assets measured at amortised cost in 2023-24 and 2022-23.

There have been no gains or losses recognised in the CIES in relation to the carrying
value of the Council’s financial liabilities in 2023-24 (2022-23: nil).

There have been no gains or losses recognised in the CIES in relation to the carrying
value of the Council’s financial liabilities.

Fee Income and Expenses

Income/({Expense)
2022-23 2023-24
Em Em
Feaes From Instruments not at FYPL (0.144) {0.161)
Fees From Investing Activities on Behalf
of Cther Parties 0.032 0.033
MNet Fee Incomel/{Expense) (0.112) {0.128)

The Council incurred £0.161m in brokerage fees to execute transactions relating to new
loans the Council took out. All of these loans had a term of one year or less. £0.033m of
income was earned from banking and treasury management services provided to the
Derbyshire Pension Fund and Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) for Derby, Derbyshire,
Nottingham and Nottinghamshire.

Financial Instruments — Fair Values

Financial assets which do not give rise to cash flows which are solely payments of principal
and interest, or where it is not the Council’s intention to hold those assets to collect the
contractual cash flows, are carried in the Balance Sheet at fair value. For most assets,
including bonds, treasury bills and shares in money market funds and other pooled funds,
the fair value is taken from the market price. The fair values of other instruments have
been estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash
flows at 31 March 2024, using the following methods and assumptions:
e Certificates of deposit and forward loan contracts have been discounted at market
interest rates for instruments of similar credit quality and remaining term to maturity.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables and all non-derivative financial
liabilities are carried in the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. Their fair values have been
estimated by calculating the net present value of the remaining contractual cash flows at
31 March 2024, using the following methods and assumptions:
e Loans borrowed by the Council have been valued by discounting the contractual
cash flows over the whole life of the instrument at the appropriate market rate for
local authority loans.
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The value of the LOBO loan has been increased by the value of the embedded
options, where a value exists. The lender’s options to propose an increase to the
interest rate on the loan have been valued according to a proprietary model for
Bermudan cancellable swaps. The Council’s contingent options to accept the
increased rate or repay the loan have been valued at zero, on the assumption that
the lender will only exercise their option when market rates have risen above the
contractual loan rate.

The fair values of other long-term loans and investments have been discounted at
the market rates for similar instruments with similar remaining terms to maturity on
31 March.

The fair values of finance lease liabilities and of PFl scheme liabilities have been
calculated by discounting the contractual cash flows (excluding service charge
elements) at the appropriate AA-rated corporate bond yield.

The fair value of short-term instruments, including trade payables and receivables,
is assumed to approximate to the carrying amount.

Fair values are split by their level in the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 — fair value is only derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities, e.g. bond prices

Level 2 — fair value is calculated from inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, e.g. interest rates or yields for similar
instruments

Level 3 — fair value is determined using unobservable inputs, e.g. non-market data
such as cash flow forecasts or estimated creditworthiness.

20. INVENTORIES

- 2022-23 2023-24
g 5
e = - =
g § 3 g 32 3
T o = T & -
£m £m Em Em £m £Em
1 April 0.309 | 1.149 1.458 033 | 1215 1.549
Purchase of new siogk 1.060 1.922 2.582 1.02T 2064 | 3.9
Stock issued (1.030) (1.841)] (2876) (0.946) (2.429) (3.375)
Stock written off 0.000 | (0.015) (0.015)  0.000 | {0.007) (0.007)
41 March 0334 1.£15 1.949 0.416 1.742 2158

21. CURRENT DEBTORS

The current debtor balance can be analysed into the following categories:
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31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Em Em
15.544| From Other Local Authorities 37.568
3.587| From MHS Bodies 3.180
16.570] From Government Departments 20,076
2110} From Derbyshire Pension Fund 3.568
55.930] From Other Sundry Debtors 62,764
83.741| Amounts Owed to the Council 127.156
0.012| To Other Local Authorities 0.342
0.000f To NHS Bodies 0212
0.531] To Government Deparimenis 0.022
7522| ToOther SundryDebtors 7.222
8.065|Expenditure Paid in Advance by the Council 7.798
101.806| Total Current Debtors 134,954
(2940} Less Allowance for Expected Credit Losses (4.778)
95.866| Carrying Value of Current Debtors 130,176
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
£m £m
31.586|County Fund Bank Account Balance 43.300
31.586|Cash Book for County Fund Account 43.300
0.321|Schools Cash Income Account Balance 0.243
0.321|Cash Book for Schools Cash Account 0.243
31.907|Total Cash Book Balance 43.543
2.444| Amounts held by Bank Account Schools 2.664
0.472| Amounts held in Petty Cash Accounts 0.452
0.422| Amounts held in Imprest Bank Accounts 0.350
(0.004)[ Amounts held in Other Bank Accounts 0.002
35.241|Total Cash Balance 47.011
1.058| Bank Instant-Access Deposit Accounts 1.099
0.000{ Money Market Funds 30.224
33.620( Short-Term Deposits 0.000
(0.030)] Cash Investment Loss Allowance (0.015)
69.889|Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 78.319

23. CREDITORS

The creditor balance can be analysed into the following categories:
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31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Em Em
(9.843) To Other Local Authorities {38.6835)
(2.495)] To NHS Bodies {4.T68)
(14.585) To Government Departments (14 966)
{110.466)| To Other Sundry Creditors (120.134)
(137.389) Amounts Owed by the Council {179.563)
(0.731)] From Other Local Authorities (0.261)
(9.461)] From NHS Bodies (0.335)
(15.701) From Governmeant Departments (8.033)
(54311 From Other Sundry Creditors (6.851)
{32.324)|Income Received in Advance by the Council {15.580)
(169.713) | Carrying Value of Creditors (195.143)
24. PROVISIONS
Total Provisions
2
{1
F :
2 (% - -
2 = § =
£ i =
Em Em £m Em
1 Apnl 2022 8.362) 2,243 2902, 14.507
Mew Provisions 8.457 2,345 3785 14588
Litilisation of Provision (2.441)  (1.043)  (1.169) (11.653)
Feversal of Provision (.000 (1.248) (2.737) (3.983)
1 April 2023 7.378 2,294 3.785  13.457)
Mew Provisions 2926 1.035| 0.772 4.733
Utifisation of Provision (1.615) (2.415) (3774) (7.804
Raversal of Provision 0.000 0.000| (0.011) (0.0 1}11|
31 March 2024 8.689 0.914 0.772) 10.375|
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Maturity Profile of Provisions

E

& g

8 E

= ]

F (o} = =

5 = -

E & 5 2

£m| £m| £m| Erm

Current Provisions _ I},CII:IIIII 7 EEM: 3 ?E{". 6.079
Mon-Current Provisions T.375 0.000 0.000 7.378
31 March 2023 7.378 2.294 3.785| 13.457
Current Provisions | o I'_'IIIICII EI.EIME D.772| 1,686
Mon-Current Prowisions 2,689 0,000 0,000 B.BRG
31 March 2024 8.689 0.914 0772 10375

Provision for Exit Packages

Estimated costs associated with future voluntary redundancies include an element for
schools. The provision has been created on a global estimation of the cuts required to
achieve the savings targets. There is uncertainty around which employees will leave the
Council and at what time, which will determine the true cost.

Cash outflows are expected to be £0.964m in 2024-25. There are expected to be no cash
outflows in 2025-26 and 2026-27.

Insurance Fund Provision

The Insurance Fund meets the estimated ‘excess’ of the Council’s insurance policies, with
amounts held in either the insurance provision or the insurance reserve. The total
Insurance Fund balance is £21.850m (31 March 2023: £23.420m). The provision of
£8.689m (31 March 2023: £7.378m) represents obligations as at 31 March as a result of
past claims. The reserve balance of £13.161m (31 March 2023: £16.042m) represents
the Council’s self-insurance risk premium.

Cash outflows are expected to average just over £2.000m each year for the next three to
four years.

Other Provisions

At 31 March 2024 the other provisions balance of £0.772m (31 March 2023: £3.785m) is
comprised of £0.670m expected to be payable for outstanding post-16 payments to
colleges. The timing and amount of payments in respect of these provisions are not yet
known. A further £0.102m is expected to be payable for the clawback of grant funding
from Derbyshire’s Adult Community Education Service, which will be determined at the
end of the academic year.

The timing of the cash outflows is not expected to be later than one year from
31 March 2024.
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25. NON-CURRENT TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY/ASSET AND OTHER NON-
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Non-Current Total Pension (Liability)/Asset

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
£m £m
73.379(Net Pension Asset/(Liability) - LGPS (23.210)
(44.056)|Net Pension (Liability) - Teachers (41.791)
29.323 [Total Net Pension Asset/(Liability) (65.001)
Other Non-Current Liabilities
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
£m £m
(10.199)|PFI Phase 1 (8.455)
(15.387)|PFI Phase 2 (13.822)
(20.990)|PFI - BSF (19.427)
(2.660)|Finance Lease - Joint Service Centre (2.561)
(0.762)|Finance Lease - Other Leases (0.424)
(49.998) (44.689)

Further information about the leases, PFI scheme and net pension liability/asset can be
found in Notes 43 to 46.

26. USABLE RESERVES

Usable reserves relate to cash backed reserves that are available to finance future
services or capital expenditure. Below are details of the Council’s usable reserves and
their purpose:

¢ General Reserve — revenue reserves available for future service delivery.

¢ Revenue Earmarked Reserves — revenue reserves available for future service
delivery, however future spending pressures have been identified for which they will
be used.

e Usable Capital Receipts — proceeds from the sale of Property, Plant and
Equipment assets which are available to finance future capital developments.

e Capital Grants Unapplied — unused grant receipts for capital developments.

Details of the Council’'s usable reserves can be found in the Movement in Reserves
Statement and Notes 11 and 27.
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27. TRANSFERS TO / FROM EARMARKED RESERVES
1 Apr Transfers M Mar Tramsfers 31 Mar
2022 In Quat 2023 In Qut 2024

Em Em Em Emi Em Em Em
AdutCare S . . 1 : P T LA
Cider People’s Howsing Strategy | (16.103) 0.0 2337 | (12766) 0001} 10512 2. 254)
Priof Yaar Underspends (0EOTH {2569 0000 (34TE)  {0.507) 3583 0,000
Other resarves (o019} ¢oo0o)  oo00| (0028 0000 0000 | (0028
Sub Tolal {1 !.Bﬂﬁ}l i{2.678) 3337 | (18.270)  (D.508) 14496 [2.282)
Clean Growth and Regeneration
Regeneration Kick-Stan
Faasibility Fund (1382 (40007  2A27| (2535 (0sDO) 16| (1.119)
Skills Training (oomey| (O7TE) 0020 (0ESS) 000D 0 OME| (0BOT)
Markham Envircnment Cenire (1dy  0.000 0000 |  (0i1d)] 0000 0114 0.000
Crbir resarves (0304 .00 0000 (0.3049) .00} 0305 .00
Sub Total (1.584)| (4.776) 2847 (3.513)  (0.500) 2587 {1.726)]
Corporate Services and Budget ) o )
Revanue Contributsons bo Capital | (50834) (22.568) 13645 | (58783 (11.861) B350 | (653.204)
Loan Medification Gains {24 230) 0.0 116 | 23114) .00 1304 | 2.910)
Inswrance and Risk Management | (18.007)  (0.506) 0500 | (16043  {0.012) 2894 | (13.1€1)
Budget Managemaent {(16.634)) (27.308) S0T74R | [12.284) (16.038) 23707 {2.633)
Cyber Security 0000| (4000) ©o000| (4000) 0000 2 0000| (4.000)
Properly Insurance Manbenante
Paoal (2.7EEN  {1.858) 1583 (o) {171} 1473 3258
Invesimant Losses Contingancy (2.500)  0.000 0000 | (2500)  0.00) 0000 | {2.500)
PFl Rasares (1822 {0.559) L8 T (2.084)f (0.718)  DUBEZ {2.140)
Planned Budding Mainbenance (5627 (0245 2e03| (3mady| (ooDd) 1620 (1.648)
Demalition of Bulldings (oaam|  {1.141) 0385|1093y (05500 20 06TE|  (0.565)
Compuler Purchasing (32700 {0.025) o848 (2.447)  {0.704) 2357 {0 5hd)
Exchequer Traded Services Risks| (1.068)) (00400 o050 (1088 (0220 0387 | (0882
Feasibility Assessment 0000 | (2810) 1085 | (1415  (0Sm0) 1384 (0.F21)
Prigr Year Underspends (2562 {1.319) LIE T (3010 0.5TH 3325 {0 24
Business Development and
Economic Recovery Fund {11.082) 0.00d 4277 iE.7T85) .00} £.785 0.0404
Busmess Rates Risks D000 | ¢3408) 1838 | (65em) 0000 2 G568 0,000
Cowvid Emargency and SFC
Losses Grants {15.370) 0.00d B963 (6407 {0015 6423 0.0
irflaticn Risks 0000 | (90.000) 8773 (1.227) Q.00 1227 00040
Business Rates Pool (B 24840 .00 T7.354 {1.000) i 1.000 0.040)
Posi-Covid Funding Risks {14.000) .00 14.000 0.000 Q.00 LLEL I 0.00d
Oiher resarves (4390 (oopE) 1954 | (3mezy| (2089 2437 | (3024
Sub Total (179.688) [(B1.58) 100.734 | (160.485)) (35139) 72280 H‘."-!.wlil
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1 Apr Transfers 31 Mar Transfers 31 Mar
2022 in Qut 2023 in Cut 2024
Em £m Em £m Emi Em Em

Childrens Services and Sateguarding and Education
Schools Balances (38344) ({3.042) Boar (5747 8.000 | {31.088)
Education Levelling Lip 0000 {1.00d) 0103 ] 0263 (0.634)
Tackling Troubled Families 4.066)  (2.238) 1239 (2827)  7.227 (0.4 15)
Easfy Years Gran 0000 .00 0000 (0.324) 0000 (0.524)
Primary Teachar Poaled
Preminrmes [0267)  (D.318) 0287 (03245 0327 (0.313)
Virual School Gramnts 0000 0.000 0000 (0Z18) 0. OO (0.219)
Prier Year Underspends [0.166) (0.857)  0.0G0 (0025  1.148 0,000
Dedicaled Schools Grant (DSG) 0000 (1.177) 0502 {0.445) 0760 0.044a
Ciher resanvas (1.311) (0.4T1) 0714 (0.0T5) 1.063 (0.075)
Sub Total (44154} (9.204) 11.367 [9.B7TE) 18.7BB | (33.076)
Highways Assels and Transport
Bus Senaces Improvement Plan
Grant 0000 18,357 0000 {5,357 (B F58) 0.000 | {12615)
Frior Year Underspends (10.328) {0.905) 1174 {4.059 (0482) 3411 (1.130)
Derby and Derbyshine Road
Safety Partnership Reserve (0533 0.0 iLiel] {0611 (0212) 0.024 (0.794)
Higiway Development Contral
Interface {1.500) 0.004 0000 0000 1.500 0000
Wintar Mainienance (1.235) 0.000) 0555 0000 0280 0000
Commubted Highways
Maintenancn {1710y (0.232) 1832 0,000 0.000 0.000
Oither resenves {1370y (0909) 0451 (DE29) 1708 | (D849
Sub Tolal (16.676)| (8.495) 10.53& (r.781) 6.923 | (15493}
Health and Communities
Homas for Likraina Grant 0000 | [10.495) 0000 (1.312) 1115 | {(10.608)
Pubdic Healh Grand {B.09) 0.00d 034 0000 0.258 (7.453)
Comestic Abuse Contract Support]  (1.104)  (0.752) 0520 0000 0.018 {1.358)
Grant Funding Prospactus 0000 {1.650) DEd R 0.842 (0.167)
Cammunity Safety (0043 (1.218) 0.000 D000 1.261 0.000
Covid Tesl and Trace Grani (3.225) 0.004 3225 D000 0.000 0.000
Caowvid Prachical Suppart Funding {1314} 0.00d 1314 0,000 0.000 0.0040
Other resarves {0.743)| (0DBA) 0081 (1.128) 0484 (1412
Sub tatal (14.521)] [14.143) E.102 (2.438) 3962 | (21.038)
Infrastructure and Environment : i : 4
Degital Growth (23400  (D.372) 0ar2 (1.770) 1.508 i 2.702)
Wiasie Recyching Initiatives {0UBSE) .00 0125 RV 0005 (0.588)
Ehastan Mainlenancs (0.271) (0.029) 0,000 (0,047 0.143 (0.204)
Ash Diehack Achon Plan 0000 | (D080)  0.0M (0104) 0000 (D.193)
Oiher resarnves (0358 (0,960) 0141 (0023 0148 |  (0.253)
Sulby Tolal [3.668)  {0.651) 0.539 (1944} 1.804 i 3.520)
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1 Apr Transfers 3 Mar Transfers 31 Mar
2022 in St 2023 In sk 2024
Em Em Em Em| Emi Em Emi

Strateglc Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate Change
Chmata Change 0000 (4.171) 0000 [ERERN 0000 293 (1.234)
Grean Entreprensurs [9.904) 0,004 (242 {1.862} {100 {900 (0. 782)
Culturad Recovery Fund 0000 0,000 0000 0.00d i|1.000) 0,500 i0.500)
Library Resirusiune (D420 0,000 0000 {0,470 0,00 0, 160 (0. 268)
Comrrunily Managed Libranas (D4 {0.110) 0111 {0741} 000 0,500 (0.241)
Caunty Recands {0287} 0.000 0,003 {0264} 0030 .045 (0.234)
‘Wision Derbyshire Economic
Davelopment Filot [0.8ET) 0.000 0376 {0.511) R 0303 (0.208)
Darwant Vallay Mills World
Haritage Site {0227y  (0.01T) 0000 (0244  (D011) 0.062 (0.18a)
Comrmunity Managed Libraries 0,000 (0.4B3) 0312 {0,171} 0,000 L) (0.171)
Policy and Reseanch [DGED) 0.000 0328 {0.331) 0,000 0. 188 (0.133)
Cither resanves (oaTey  (Dof1) 0394 | (o28EY  (oad0)  oose |  (D.33IN
Sub Total [(5815)] (4792) 1767 | (a.B4my| (1.451) Ss5702| (4288
Owerall Totals (283.335)) (126.327) 437.289 | (272.373) (55.337) 126.542 | (205,168

Some prior year Earmarked Reserves balances have been recategorised to align with the
portfolio which has contributed most to the balance at 31 March 2024.

The Council’s detailed Reserves Policy for 2024 explains the nature and purpose of these

reserves.

28.

UNUSABLE RESERVES

The balance of unusable reserves is made up of a number of adjustment accounts, none
of which are available to finance future spending. The reserves that make up the balance

are detailed below.

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Em Em

958 319|Revaluation Resarve 941.996
402 506|Capital Adjustment Account 405,024

(4. 700} Financial Instruments Adjustrment Account |:4.421]||
(6,032} Pooled Investmants Adjustment Account (5.542)
0,790 Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve 1.706

20 .323|Pensions Reserve 165.001)
2.069|Collection Fund Adjustment Account 3.066

{5050} DSG Adjustment Account HE.E-!E:}'

(& 485} Accumulated Absences Account (6.887)
1,388,740 |Balance at 31 March 1,252.996
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The movements in unusable reserves in 2023-24 are detailed below.

Unusable reserves
z i |5 | ] -
o g E 'E E £ g = = g !
- = 3 £
TR R ggg I
[ .

Marrative i E£ Eg EE; EE?E EEZS 24 O34 Eg Ei EE

£m Ermi Em Em Em Erm Em £Em Em E£m
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2023 [0.790)  (958.319)  (402.507) 8031 AT 8488 (2.088) 5050 (29323 (1,368.737)
Comprehengive Income & Expanditung Ll 1y [£8.58%) Q.00 0000 0000 00,00y 0000 Q.000 104,072 55,483
Adjustments between accounting basis
and funding basis

12

Dapreciation of Non-Curment Assats 6 0000 17417 31,154 0060 0060 0, Col) 0000 0000 0064 4B5M
Rewaluabon Losses and Impairment af Mon-
Curran! Assets 12 0,000 Q000 20273 0.000 0.000 0 CoH 0000 0000 0,000 a02TA
Application of Capital Grants crodied to tha
CIES 7 0,000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0000 0000 0000 0,000 0000
Dispasal of Mor-Cument Assets 12 {0,545 47495 29132 (L] 0000 LI (ELL L] 0000 (] T1.682
Revenss Expanditure Funded from Capital
Lindesr Slabite 000 0.000 18,663 00 QL0 0.0 QU000 0000 0000 16663
Amncunt by whiach officer remuneration
charged o the CIES on an accruals basis is
differenl from remunaration changeabds in the|
year i accordance with statutary
requiremeis L] 0,000 0,000 0000 Q000 {1600} L Ed] 0,000 000 [ 1604
Arncunt by whach Council Tax and Business
Rabas income credited to the CIES &
different from Councl Tax ard Business
Rates ineamme caloulabed fof e year @
accordance with statubory reguirements .00 .00 (.00 .00 0000 1. Q) (0.596] 0000 0.0 [0.596]
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Reversal of #ems relating o retiremaent

banslits debited or credbed io the CIES L] Qpoa .00} Q00D rE ) 0000 .00 [.o0a Qe 60278 60278

Statusory prestsaon for the financing of capital

inesIrmen 0000 0,000 {23.475) 0000 0000 00 CeDM 0000 0000 0L (F3.475)
Frincipal regagyrients of ransferred dedi 0000 0.000 (0.008} 0,000 0000 0. 0D 0L000 Q000 000D {0.008]
Capilal expenditure charged in the year lo

tha Ganeral Resena 0004 0,000 0,000 0,004 0000 0,000 0000 00040 .00 0.00d

Reversal of ganglosses on poced

invasimant funds maeasuned af FVPL

charged o the CIES 18 0000 1,000 1,000 {10 4815) 01000 0,000 oM 0000 i 00 {10, 48
Amount by whach finance costs {proportion of|

pravious yaars' premedms and inferest rales)

changed bo the CIES are diffarent from

fimanee costs chargeable in the pear n

accardance wiEh stalubary requinements 0 00 1,000 0,000 0000 {0,780 0 00 0O 0000 0,060 {10 280
Amount by whech finance costs (capstal loan

impairments} charged io the CIES ang

chiffereni frcem Tinance cosls chargaable in tha

yRAT i accordance with statubory

requiremenis 18 iKi k] 0,000 0,000 0000 0000 10, Calid 0000 0,000 0000 0000

Employar's pension contributions and direct

paymants in pensioners payable inthe year |46  0.000 0,000 0,000 0000 0000 0.000 0000 0000 (TO.0REY  (T0.026)
Diaferned Capial Recaipis beooming usabbs nozFa 0,000 0000 000 0000 0. 00D 0000 0000 L] noza

Diedlicabed Sehools Grant (D3G) dehici

mwemsnt 36 L] 0000 0000 0000 0000 0. Dol 0000 11885 0,000 11865

Financing of capital expendiure 15| 0,000 0.000  (T4.257) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0000 0000 0000|  (T4.257)|
Adjustments betweon accounting basis

and funding basls [0.916) E4.912 (2.518] [0.489) [0.220) (1.600) 10.996) 11.895 [9.748) 60260

Resorves movements

Trarsfer o Earrarked Resenes 27 0L00a 0.000 0,000 0000 0000 0. DD 0000 0,000 CL00D 0000

Trarsder iroem Earmarked Besaras 27 0000 1,000 0,000 0000 0000 ), De0d 0000 01000 0,000 L]

Total movements (0.916) E4.912 [2.518) [0.489) (0.2809 (1.600) 10.996) 11.855 {5.?‘44)1 60260

BALANCE AT 3 MARCH 2024 [1.706)  (941.996) (405025 5543 4.4 6880 [1.064) 16945 65.001 | (1,252.934)|
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The movements in unusable reserves in 2022-23 are detailed below.

Unusable reserves

g 2 & 2
% c - ﬂ .- [ g I.E - § g
g‘,, 'g 5._. %S“ 3‘55“ Eg‘_ 55“ _3”_, n 2o
®2 S gEE gEEE SEFE  EeE gEE  FE s S8
gl &8 S¢ 238 5828 §&38 388 238 o3 22 g3
. <] [ ] ] CTT O 02T O £ NWTO o2 0 0 T O »n o ¢ Q O o
Narrative z o X o O oECC L ECK I < [SR-a -4 o< oo Ll 2
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2022 (0.579)  (787.970) (411.877) (1.557) 4.562 7.523 0.077 5.050 811.883 (372.888)
Comprehensive Income & Expenditure 0.000 (220.830) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (926.950)| (1,147.780)
Adjustments between accounting basis
and funding basis
12
Depreciation of Non-Current Assets 16 0.000 14.408 29.494 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 43.902
Revaluation Losses and Impairment of Non-
Current Assets 12 0.000 0.000 20.614 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 20.614
Application of Capital Grants credited to the
CIES 37 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Disposal of Non-Current Assets 12| (0.221) 36.073 21.557 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 57.409
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital
Under Statute 0.000 0.000 15.043 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 15.043
Amount by which officer remuneration
charged to the CIES on an accruals basis is
different from remuneration chargeable in the
year in accordance with statutory
requirements 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.965 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.965
Amount by which Council Tax and Business
Rates income credited to the CIES is
different from Council Tax and Business
Rates income calculated for the year in
accordance with statutory requirements 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (2.145)  0.000 0.000 (2.145)
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Reversal of items relating to retirement

benefits debited or credited to the CIES 46 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 150.348 150.348
Statutory provision for the financing of capital

investment 0.000 0.000 (21.437) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (21.437)
Principal repayments of transferred debt 0.000 0.000 (0.007) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.007)
Capital expenditure charged in the year to

the General Reserve 0.000 0.000 (0.073) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (0.073)
Reversal of gains/losses on pooled

investment funds measured at FVPL

charged to the CIES 19 0.000 0.000 0.000 7.588 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 7.588
Amount by which finance costs (proportion of

previous years' premiums and interest rates)

charged to the CIES are different from

finance costs chargeable in the year in

accordance with statutory requirements 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.139 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.139

Amount by which finance costs (capital loan

impairments) charged to the CIES are

different from finance costs chargeable in the

year in accordance with statutory

requirements 19 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Employer's pension contributions and direct

payments to pensioners payable in the year | 46 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (64.604) (64.604)
Deferred Capital Receipts becoming usable 0.010 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.010

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) deficit

movement 36 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Financing of capital expenditure 15 0.000 0.000 (55.821) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 (55.821)
Adjustments between accounting basis

and funding basis (0.211) 50.481 9.370 7.588 0.139 0.965 (2.145)  0.000 85.744 151.931

Reserves movements

Transfer to Earmarked Reserves 27 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Transfer from Earmarked Reserves 27 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total movements (0.211) 50.481 9.370 7.588 0.139 0.965 (2.145)  0.000 85.744 151.931

BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2023 (0.790)  (958.319) (402.507) 6.031 4.701 8.488 (2.068)  5.050 (29.323)| (1,368.737)
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Revaluation Reserve

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2007, this being
the date that the reserve was created. Accumulated gains arising before that date are
consolidated into the balance in the Capital Adjustment Account.

S

ER
S
g 2 o
z £m

31 March 2024
Property, Plant and Equipment 12| 902.226
Heritage Assets 13 33.517
Assets Held for Sale 17 6.253
941.996

31 March 2023
Property, Plant and Equipment 12| 900.575
Heritage Assets 13 55.770
Assets Held for Sale 17 1.973
958.318

Capital Adjustment Account

This reserve includes timing differences arising between the financing of purchasing new,
or enhancing, Council assets and the utilising of those assets in the Council’s accounts
(known as depreciation). It is not available for future spending.

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

The Financial Instruments Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from
the different arrangements for accounting for income and expenses relating to certain
financial instruments and for bearing losses or benefitting from gains per statutory
provisions. The Council uses the account to manage premiums paid and discounts
received on early redemption of loans. Premiums are debited and discounts are credited
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when they are incurred, but
reversed out of General Reserve to the account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.
Over time, the expense is posted back to General Reserve in accordance with statutory
arrangements for spreading the burden on Council Tax. In the Council’s case, the balance
on the Account at 31 March will be charged to the General Reserves over the next 40
years.
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Pooled Investments Adjustment Account

The Pooled Investments Adjustment Account contains the cumulative gains and losses
relating to the valuation of financial assets held at Fair Value through Profit or Loss in
accordance with the temporary statutory override MHCLG has issued. The override was
originally effective for financial years 2018-19 to 2022-23 and has since been extended
for a further two years to 2024-25.

Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve

The Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve holds the gains recognised on the disposal of non-
current assets but for which cash settlement has yet to take place. Under statutory
arrangements, the Council does not treat these gains as usable for financing new capital
expenditure until they are backed by cash receipts. When the deferred cash settlement
eventually takes place, amounts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the timing differences from the different arrangements for
accounting for post-employment benefits and funding benefits in accordance with statute.
The Council accounts for post-employment benefits in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as benefits are earned by employees, updating the liabilities to
reflect inflation, changing assumptions and investment returns on any resources set aside
to meet the costs. However, statutory arrangements require a benefit earned to be
financed as the Council makes employer’s contributions or pays any pensions for which it
is directly responsible. The credit balance on the Pensions Reserve at 31 March 2024
shows a surplus between the benefits earned by past and current employees and the
resources that the Council has set aside to meet them. The Funding Strategy adopted by
the Pension Fund will ensure that an appropriate level of funding will have been set aside
by the time the benefits come to be paid.

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

The Collection Fund Adjustment Account manages the differences arising from the
recognition of Council Tax and Business Rates income in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as they fall due from Council Tax and Business Rates payers,
compared with the statutory arrangements for paying across amounts to the General
Reserve from the Collection Funds.

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Adjustment Account

The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) Adjustment Account separates schools’ budget
deficits from the General Reserve Balance for a period of six financial years from 2020-
21. Deficits arise where schools’ budget expenditure exceeds that of available funding
provided through the DSG. Where a local authority has a closing deficit balance on its
schools’ budget at 31 March for the financial years 2020-21 to 2025-26, it must not charge
the amount of that deficit to a revenue account. The local authority must record any such
deficit in a separate account established solely for the purpose of recording deficits relating
to its schools’ budget. The DSG Adjustment Account carries forward the deficit to be
funded from future DSG income.
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Accumulated Absences Account
The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise
on the General Reserve Balance from accruing for compensated absences earned but
not taken in the year, e.g. annual leave entitiement carried forward at 31 March. Statutory
arrangements require that the impact on the General Reserve Balance is neutralised by
transfers to or from the account.

29. EXTERNAL AUDIT COSTS

Revised
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
0.149|External Audit Fees 0.324
0.005|Other Fees Payable to the External Auditor 0.008
0.154 0.332

30. MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES

Payments made to the Council’s elected Members during the year were:

The 2022-23 External Audit Fee has been revised to reflect the scale fee including final
2022-23 fee variations. Additional fee variations for 2021-22 have been removed.

The 2023-24 External Audit Fee is the scale fee. This is subject to fee variations which
are determined at a later date.

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
1.170|Allowances 1.334
0.016|Expenses 0.019
1.186 1.353

31. OFFICERS’ REMUNERATION

The definition of a Senior Officer is:

An officer whose salary is £150,000 or more.

A statutory chief officer as per section 2(6) of the Local Government and Housing

Act 1989.

A non-statutory chief officer as per section 2(7) of the Local Government and

Housing Act 1989.
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Members’ allowances payments for 2023-24 includes £0.056m in respect of the 2022-23
pay award for elected Members, which was approved at the full Council meeting on
22 March 2023, backdated to 1 April 2022 and paid following the 2022-23 year-end, in
April 2023. This amount was accrued at 31 March 2023.
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e An officer reporting to the Head of Paid Service.

The following notes and changes in respect of the Council’'s Senior Officers which
occurred during 2022-23 and 2023-24 are relevant to the table of remuneration paid to the
Council’s Senior Officers below:

e 'The Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health left the Council on 12 March
2023.

e 2The Interim Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health was appointed on
13 March 2023, returned to their substantive post on 2 April 2023, was re-appointed
on 17 June 2023 and was appointed to the role of Executive Director of Adult Social
Care and Health on 26 July 2023.

e 3The Interim Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Health was appointed on
3 April 2023 and left the Council on 16 June 2023.

e “The Managing Director is Emma Alexander.

e SThe Director of Finance & ICT became the Interim Executive Director of Corporate
Services & Transformation (Section 151 Officer) on 10 January 2022, returned to
their substantive post on 4 July 2022, and left the Council on 2 January 2023.

e 5The current Director of Finance & ICT was appointed on 3 April 2023.

e ‘The Interim Director of Finance & ICT was appointed on 3 January 2023 and
returned to their substantive post on 2 April 2023.

¢ 8The Executive Director of Corporate Services & Transformation was appointed on
4 July 2022.

¢ °The Director of Public Health left the Council on 31 August 2022.

e '9The new Director of Public Health commenced this employment on 1 September
2022.
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2022.23 Restabed 2023-24
| & z 5 | B
g Bg g Bg| B
O w E % O ¢ 5 -?5 g
T h B E - TE
| 23 = -4 £
o o B i ] o 23 Es
5 EE| 53 238 3| EE| 58 E
Wl WG G 8 2 o W 5 ] | E
El E £ E E £ E| E
I Exaculma: Direcior of Adult |
112,671) 17 464 0| 130,136 Social Caro and Haslth' 0 1 ol o)
Inigrem Exgculpa Dirgcicr
of Adull Social Care and
5,368 gz 0 200 Hesth®| 13053 2000 0] 16,858
| Intesrem Exacutre Direcior |
of Adul Social Care and
0 0 0 9 Heatth’| 35,150 0 o] 35,150
I Exacutve Direcior of Asult ,
0| 1] 1] 0| Socisl Care and Health®|  B3.977| 17 467 0] 101444
: Executve Diractor of
131,491 20,381 0| 151,873 Chidrer's Sarvees! 138 108 28,745 0 166,043
166,008 25871 0| 102,779 Managing Direcier®| 177872 38 997 0] 214869
: Exsgudive Directar af |
133,5795) 20,696 0| 164,221 Plsce| 130198 28,745 0, 166,943
| Direclor of Finance and 1
52,400, 8122 60,523 icT* 0 o ol 0
| Direcior of Finance and |
] i} 0 1] ICT®| 108 1668] 22400 0] 130,667
| Irdanm Dwactor of |
23,287 3600 0| 26896 _ Financeand ICT'| 54| 114 o, 663
| Executive Dwnactor of |
Corporate Seraces &
99 067 15,355 0| 114 422 Transfosmation”| 138 198 28 745 uf 166,043
Inierem Execulree Direcion
of Corporate Servces &
Transiodrnalsim
31,235 4 B4 0 38076 (Saction 151 Odfces)” (1] 1] 0 ]|
42 987 9371 0| 52368| Direclor of Public Hoaih® 0 0 ]} |
55,813 12171 0| 68,004 Director of Public Hoath'®| 100478 20,779 l'.'lI 121,268
| Director of Legal and |
08503 15314 0 114,118 Democratic Seraces| 104880 21 775 0 136464

Employer's Pension Contributions in the Council’s Senior Officers’ Remuneration table
only include the future service cost, which is the primary employer’s pension contribution
rate multiplied by the Senior Officer’s pensionable pay.

The Council’'s employees earning above £50,000 during the year have been paid the

following amounts:
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2072-23 Restated 2023-24
Mo of Em 8 Mo af Employess
School Saniar School Sanior
Staff, Officers| Other Total |[Remuneration Between: Staff| Officers| Other Total
139] [} 112 251 E50,000 and £54 9% 173 0 225 388
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41| 0 1 52 £70,000 and £74, 900 & 0 25 B3
12} 1 X 16 E75,000 and £70 995 32 0 4 36
|"_ 1 3 11 FA0 00 and £84 000 11 1 12
2| 0 1 | £85 00 and £69, 9090 i 0 4 10
1_ 1 3 ] 90 D00 arvd £94 005 5 n} 1 [
3 F | B £95 000 and £50 000 1] 0 3 3
1 1 0 2] E100 000 and £104 995 1 2 4 T
1 [} 1 2] E105 000 and £109, 99% 1] 1 2 3
1 i 0 21 EN0000 and £114 9590 i} 0 0
0| 0 1 1] 115000 and £119 950 2 0 2
i 0 0 1] £120,000 and £124 9% i} 0 1 1
0| (1] i 1] £125 000 and £129 994 i} 0 o
EI_ 2 i 2] E130000 and £134 959 1 0 1
EI_ (1] 0o 0] E135 D00 and £130 900 i ] 3 3
I:I_ ] 0 1  E165 000 and £169 909 i ] 0 0 (1]
o (1] i 0] E175 000 and £1.9 909 1] 1 |
466 10 3B Ta0 B33 B 478 1,019

Where the total annual salary received by employees that have held Senior Officers’ roles
at any point during the year exceeds £50,000, they have also been included in the table
above, in addition to the Senior Officers’ Remuneration table.

Remuneration includes gross income and compensation for loss of employment.

The 2022-23 amounts in the above Officer Remuneration tables have been restated so
that they include the value of Shared Cost Additional Voluntary Contributions which had
been omitted in error.

32. TERMINATION BENEFITS

The Council has terminated the contracts of a number of employees in 2023-24, incurring
liabilities of £2.558m (2022-23: £1.411m, updated from the disclosure in the 2022-23

accounts of £1.255m for additional pension strain payments of £0.156m, subsequently
paid in 2023-24). The termination benefits are split by banding below:

93



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Total number

MHumber of Numiber of of exit Total cost of
compulsory | other agreed | packages by | exit packages
redundancies departures cost band in each band

2022-23{2023-24|2022-23|2023-24/2022-23| 2023-24/2022-23| 2023-24|
| E:Eﬂli'll_ actual av:.tuali actual actual_ actual Elttl.li'll_ actual

. . _ Em £m
EQ-£20k 50 40 24 47 79 B7| 0.427| 0673
E20k-£40K L B 4 | 13 17] 0.351| 0.492
E40k-£60K . 4 & 4 & g 11] 0422 0565
EGlk-ER0k . 3 4 1] 2 3 gl 0.211] 0422
£ &0 - £1UDH§ Q 3 L Q 0 3| 0.000] 0288
E1E~E|k-E1E{II-c: i 1 0 0 0 1] 0000} 0,118

’ 'Eﬁi 62 ar 63 103 125 1.411] 2.558

33. POOLED BUDGETS

The Council has two pooled budget arrangements, details of which are set out below.
Better Care Fund

On 1 April 2015 the Derbyshire Better Care Fund (BCF) became operational. The Council
was a partner to the fund along with the NHS Northern Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning
Group, NHS Southern Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group, NHS Hardwick Clinical
Commissioning Group, NHS Erewash Clinical Commissioning Group and NHS Tameside
and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Group. There have been a number of changes to
the structure of the Council’'s NHS partners in the BCF since then.

In 2019-20 the NHS Northern Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group, NHS Southern
Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group, NHS Hardwick Clinical Commissioning Group
and NHS Erewash Clinical Commissioning Group combined to become the NHS Derby
and Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group. The NHS Tameside and Glossop Clinical
Commissioning Group remained separate. On 1 July 2022 the NHS Derby and Derbyshire
Integrated Care Board (ICB) was established and includes all the Clinical Commissioning
Groups with which the Council is a partner in the BCF.

The operation of the pool is ultimately managed by the Derbyshire Health and Wellbeing
Board represented by members from each of the partners. The Fund operates as a
Section 75 pooled budget and total agreed contributions to the pool are £125.751m (2022-
23, £119.702m). Derbyshire County Council’s contribution towards the pool is £50.793m,
which represents 40.39% of the total contributions (2022-23, £48.912m, 40.86%).

The BCF aims to improve the provision of health and social care. All partners contribute
to a pooled fund and the overarching objective of the fund is to support the integration of
health and social care and align commissioning as agreed between the partners.

Under the agreement, the BCF Plan for Derbyshire is split into two areas:
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Contributions to a pooled fund by all partners and commissioned by Derbyshire
County Council who are host and lead commissioner
Commissioning of existing funded schemes directly by each partner.

2022-23 | Pool Share 2023-24 | Pool Share
Em % |Income Em Yo
48.912 40.86 |Derbyshire County Council 20.793 40.39
T0.238 58,68 |NHS Derby and Derbyshire ICB ¥4 .958 a5.61
0.551 0,48 |[MHS Tameside and Glossop CCG - -
119.702 gL 125.751 100.00
2022-23 2023-24
__Em |Expenditure 000 _Em
28.259 |ICB schemes for community health services 29 502
7.808 [Disabled Facilities Grant B.587
6.712 |Equipment 7T.448
10.418 |Reablement 28871
0,393 |Joint working 3834
0.456 (Administration 0179
2.435 |Care Bill 2573
2332 (Carers 2.464
1.133 |Mental health 1.197
21.063 |Suppord for people to remam oul of hospital 0,353
35,733 [Improved Better Care Fund 35,733
3.023 [Local Authorty DlEnhargE Grani 5.010
119.856 | Total Expenditure 125.751
(0.154)| Net position for Pool 0.000

Children with Complex Needs pooled budget arrangement

The Children with Complex Needs pooled budget arrangement is jointly operated with the
NHS Derby and Derbyshire ICB. The NHS Derby and Derbyshire ICB contributes 33%
and the remainder is funded by the Council. Any surplus or deficit carries forward to offset
the following year’s contributions, as required by the partnership agreement. Any unspent
amounts are transferred to an Earmarked Reserve set up for this purpose.
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31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024

£m Em
Funding provided to the pooled budget:

(4, 788)| Derbyshire County Council (6,278)

(2.353)] NHS Derby and Derbyshire ICB (3.091)

Expenditure met by the pooled budget:

7.141 | Derbyshire County Cauncil 5367

0,000 | NHS Derby and Derbyshire ICB 0,000

0,000 |Net Position of the Pool (Surplus)Deficit 0.000

0.000 | The Council's Share of the (Surplus ¥Deficit 0.000

34. TRUST FUNDS AND OTHER FUNDS

Trust Funds are made up of donations or bequests made to the Council. Other Funds
held, at 31 March 2024, include £4.618m held for residents in the Council’s residential
care homes (31 March 2023: £4.684m) and £30.799m on behalf of the East Midlands
County Combined Authority (EMCCA) (31 March 2023: £3.801m). These Trust Funds
and Other Funds are not part of the Council’'s Accounts.

2022-23 2023-24
Trust,  Other Trust  Other
Funds Funds Total Funds  Funds Total
£m £m £m £m Em £m
0215 TR 6205 |Opening Balance 0217 2,485 g.702
0012 | 13.166| 13.178 |Add Income 0.112 37 488 | 37580
(0.010)| (10.671) (10.681)|Less Expenditure _ (0.009)| (10.536)| (10.545)|
0217 6485 B6.702 |Closing Balance 0.320 | 35417 | 35.737
The funds are represented
! by !
0023 0000] 0.023 |Investments 0023 0000| 0023
0.193| B485| 8678 |Cash8temporaryloans | 0297 | 35417| 35714
0,297 | B485] 8&.702 |Total Assets 0,320 | 35417 | 35737
9 14 23 |Mo of Funds (actual not £m) 10 B 18

Cabinet approved the transfer of 47 educational charitable Trust Funds, for which the
Council is the sole Trustee, to Foundation Derbyshire on 23 April 2020. 44 of these funds
were completely transferred in 2020-21. The value of the funds transferred in 2020-21
was £0.295m, with £1.004m transferred in 2021-22. At 31 March 2024 the total value of
the remaining funds to be transferred was £0.068m (31 March 2023: £0.071m).
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35. INCOME FROM CONTRACTS WITH SERVICE RECIPIENTS

A service recipient is a party that has contracted with the Council to obtain goods or
services which are the output of the Council’s normal operating activities. Such a contract
may be in writing, be made orally or be in accordance with customary business practice.

The table below identifies income amounts in the CIES arising from contracts with service
recipients.

Inconme

2022-23 2023-24
Type of Goods/Service £m Em
Adult Care
Residential Care Homes 30480 37883
Mursing Homes 11.055 12.065
Co-funding Charge BE28 10.593
Shared Lives 0.580 0.585)
Direct Care Trading 0.243 0.289
Other 0178 0.148
Sub Total 51.164 61.667
Childrens Services and Safeguarding and Education
Cataring 10.355 12.4T8
Sechool Food and Meals 4.752 4.933
Extended School Services 1.874 2.312
Sport!Cutdoor Education 1.650 1.503
Adult Communily Education 0.207 0.237
Oiher 2714 3.034
Sub Total 21.552 24.487
Corporate Services and Budget
PFI Sarvices o Academias 5916 7164
Pension Fund Administration 3013 3.299)
Registrar Services 1.968 1.867
Legal Services 0,600 0.605
Proparly Repairs, Mainlenanca, Claaning
and Facilibes Management 1.084 0.471
Human Resource Senvices 444 0.di5d
Recruitment and Payroll Services 0,438 0417
Financial Management 0432 0387
Ohher 0,787 0.574
Sub Total 14.702 15.248
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Income

2022-23 2023-24
Type of Goods/Service £m £m
Clean Growth and Regeneration
Facilities Charge 0.200 0.207
Oher 0147 0.189]
Sub Total 0.347 0.396
Health and Communities
Other 0.087 0.096
Sub Total 0.097 0.086
Highways and Transport
Vehicle Maintenance 1.836 2.337
Fay and Display Parking 1.115 1.027
MNew Roads and Street Works Act Fees 08958 1.001
Licence Fees (a.g. skip/scaffold permits) 0.729 0656
Cross Boundary Bus Services 0.769 0.233
Devebtoper Income 0.184 0.222
Bus Passes and Tickets 0.235 0.045]
Oiher 0626 0.314
Sub Total 6.452 5.849)
Infrastructure and Environment
Commercial Waste Disposal 2.069 2.342
inspaction Fees (S38/52T8 Highways Act) 1.877 1.826
Countryside Shop Merchandisa 0.948 1.022
Land Searches 0.245 0.323
Oiher 0. 166 0.147
Sub Total 3,305 5.660)
Strategic Leadership, Culture, Tourism and Climate Change
Oher 0187 0142
Sub Total 0,197 0.142
Overall Total 99.816 113.555

Amounts included in the Balance Sheet for contracts with service recipients:

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Em| Em

5.902| Receivables 15.580

0.480| Contract Assats 0.488
{1.306) Contract Liabilities (0.703)
2.076| Total Included in Net Assets 15,485

Receivables and Contract Assets are included within Amounts Owed to the Council in the
Debtors analysis (Note 21).
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Contract Liabilities are included within Income in Advance to the Council in the Creditors
analysis (Note 23).

Changes in the Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities balances during the year are as
follows:

2023223 2023-24
Contract] Contract Contract| Contract
Asspts| Liabilities Asspets| Liabilities
Em £m £Em Em
0O (1.308) | Cash rechived balfore obbigations fullilbgd 0,000 (0, 703)
Cibligations relaling fo contract liabilities at the stari of
0 G 1,624 |the year fulfilled 0.000 1.306
D 4B 0.000| Dbligatons fulfilled before paymant is due 0. 4BE 0.000
Transhers from Conbract Assaels 1o Recalvables as
(0647} 0.000{payment became due {0, 4800 0.004
{0.167] 0.318| Movement in Contract Assets and Liabilities 0.008 0.603
0647 (1.624)|Contract Assats and Liabdities at the siart of the year 0,450 {1.306)
Contract Assets and Liabilities at the end of the
0480 (1. 306} year 0456 (0. 703)

The value of the Contract Liabilities presented at the end of the year represents the value
of income that is expected to be recognised in the future, relating to obligations that are
unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) at the end of the year. All amounts are expected to
be realised no later than one year from the year ended 31 March 2024.

The Council only recognises income at an amount that corresponds directly with the value
to the service recipients of the Council’s performance to the end of the year.

Performance obligations are deemed to be satisfied over time, as opposed to at a pointin
time, in respect of the following significant income streams:

Residential Care, Nursing Home and Co-funding charges
PFI Services to Academies

Pension Fund Administration

Vehicle Maintenance — fixed priced annual contracts

This is a faithful depiction as these services are delivered to and the benefits consumed
by the service recipients simultaneously. The Council has a right to receive fixed
payments from service users for each day of service provided, therefore it recognises
income to the amount that it has the right to invoice according to the duration of the service
provision.

Performance obligations are also deemed to be satisfied over time, as opposed to at a
point in time, in respect of the following significant income streams:

e Property Repairs, Maintenance, Cleaning and Facilities Management
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This is a faithful depiction as the Council has an enforceable right to receive income for
performance completed to date. The Council recognises income based on the costs
incurred to satisfy the performance obligations.

Performance obligations are also deemed to be satisfied over time, as opposed to at a
point in time, in respect of the following significant income stream:

e Commercial Waste Disposal

This is a faithful depiction as the Council has an enforceable right to receive income for
performance completed to date. The Council recognises income based on the volume of
waste processed which fulfils the terms of these contracts.

Performance obligations are deemed to be satisfied at a point in time, in respect of the
following significant income streams:

Inspections under Section 38 and 278 of the Highways Act
Catering and School Food and Meals

Extended School Services

Sport/Outdoor Education

Registrar Services

Vehicle Maintenance — specific jobs

Pay and Display Parking

Countryside Shop Merchandise

In respect of these services, income is only recognised when the contracted work has
been completed.

36. DEDICATED SCHOOLS GRANT (DSG)

The Council’'s expenditure on schools is funded primarily by grant monies provided by the
Department for Education, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). The grant is ring-fenced
and can only be applied to meet expenditure properly included in the Schools’ Budget as
defined in The School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2020.

The Schools’ Budget includes elements for a range of educational services provided on
an authority-wide basis and for the Individual Schools’ Budget (ISB), which is divided into
a budget share for each local authority school. An in-year adjustment has been made
comprising a reduction to the 2023-24 grant receipts for Early Years provision which is
due to be received in 2024-25, following final calculation of the amount due from the
Department for Education.

Actual central expenditure includes commitments that remain unspent as at the end of the
financial year. These commitments have been transferred to an earmarked reserve and
form part of the DSG balance. Details of the deployment of the DSG receivable for 2023-
24 are as follows:
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2023-24
Individual
Central Schools
Expenditure Budget Total
Em Em Em
Final DSG for 2023-24 before
Academy and High Needs TiT.226
Recoupment
Academy and High Meeds
Recoupement for 202324 ] F20247)
Total DEG after Academy and High 191 979
Needs Recoupment for 2023-24 I
Pilus: Brought Forward from 0978

2022-23
Agreed initial budgeted
distribution in 2023-24

101.584 290.671 392.255

In-year adjustments 0.000 (0,302} (0,302}
Final budgeted distribution for

2023.24 101.584 290,369 391.953
Less: Actual Central Expenditure {114.463) [Hd.dﬁ&}l
Less; Actual ISE Deploved to Schools {289.385) (2889.385)
In-year Carry Forward to 2024-25 {12.8789) i0.584 (11.895)
DSG Unusable Resarve

at 1 April 2023 {5.050)
Addition 1o DSG Unusable Resarve al |
3iMarch2024 S
Total DSG Unusable Resarve at

31 March 2024" (16.945)
Met DSG Position at 31 March 2024 (16.945)]

*The School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2020 and Regulation 30L of The Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) require that the Council’s closing deficit balance of DSG
Reserves at 31 March 2024 is held within a statutorily ring-fenced unusable reserve — the DSG Adjustment
Account. For further details refer to Note 28.

DSG grant income of £391.677m in Note 37 below is the sum of the £391.979m ‘Total
DSG after Academy and High Needs Recoupment for 2023-24 less the £0.302m ‘In-year
adjustments’ in the table above.
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2022-23
Individual
Central Schools
Expenditure Budget Total
£m £m £m
Final DSG for 2022-23 before
Academy and High Needs 672.551

Recoupment
Academy and High Needs

Recoupement for 2022-23
Total DSG after Academy and High

Needs Recoupment for 2022-23

Agreed initial budgeted
distribution in 2022-23

(287.162)

385.389

92.730 292.659 385.389

In-year adjustments 0.000 0.297 0.297
Final budgeted distribution for

2022-23 92.730 292.956 385.686
Less: Actual Central Expenditure (93.907) (93.907)
Less: Actual ISB Deployed to Schools (291.504) (291.504)
In-year Carry Forward to 2023-24 (1.177) 1.452 0.275
Plus: Carry Forward to 2023-24 0.000

agreed in advance
Total Carry Forward to 2023-24 0.275
Addition to DSG Unusable Reserve at

31 March 2023 0.000
DSG Unusable Reserve at
1 April 2022 (5.050)
Total DSG Unusable Reserve at

(5.050)

31 March 2023*

Net DSG Position at 31 March 2023 (4.775)

*The School and Early Years Finance (England) Regulations 2020 and Regulation 30L of The Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) require that the Council's closing deficit balance of DSG
Reserves at 31 March 2023 is held within a statutorily ring-fenced unusable reserve — the DSG Adjustment
Account. For further details refer to Note 28.

2022-23 DSG grant income of £385.686m in Note 37 below is the sum of the £385.389m
‘Total DSG after Academy and High Needs Recoupment for 2022-23 and the £0.297m
‘In-year adjustment’ in the table above.
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37. GRANT INCOME

Income
Revenue Grants 2022-23 2023-24

Em Em
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) ESFA 385 BaG 391 67T
Public Health Grant DHSC 43,803 45,232
Fupil Premium Grant ESFA 20,458 20,159
Househald Suppart Fund DWP 10,8048 10,808
Market Sustainability & Improvemant Fund DLUHC 2 448 B.454
Workforce Recruitment & Rentention DHSC 0.000 5516
Supplemental Substance Misuse Treatment and
Recovery Grant CHID 0.803 1.576
Disabled Facilities Grani DLUHG 7.558 8.5ar
School Supplementary Grant ESFA 7.347 2314
Public Health Contain Cutbreak Management Fund DHSC B.495 6.938
EFA Post 16 ESFA 5.383 4.217
Universal Free School Meals for Infant Pupils ESFA 5128 5.201
DACES AEB ESFA 4,643 4. 79T
PE and Sport Premium Grant ESFA 4 444 4,360
Asylum Seeker Grant HO 3,224 2.968
Recovery Premium DfE 3.045 2,306
Discharge Grant DLUHC 3023 2.010
Heliday activities and food programme Gramnt DfE 2828 2.780
Supporting Families DLUHC 2.238 2 82T
School-led tutoring Grant DfE 1.763 0.000
L& Maintained Schools Additional Grant ESFA 0.000 B.236
Community Ranewal Fund DLUHC 1.525 0.000
Music Education Hub Arts Council 1.420 1.554
Covid 19 Bus Recovery Grant T 1.235 1.548
Homeas for Ukraine Education and Chitdcare ESFA 1.0840 0,004
Homes for Ukraine -Thank You Payment Grant DLUHC 1374 1.707
Muttiply ESFA 1.063 1.373
Teachers Pay Grant ESFA 0.000 2.995
Other Grants WVarious 10.338 12.156
Total Departmental Income 239,800 968,327
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Income
Revenue Grants 2022-23 2023-24
£m Em
Adult Social Care Grant DLUHC 37 827 61.318
Improved Better Care Fund DLUHG 35732 35.732
Business Rates Reliel Grant DLUHC 18.797 25,851
Revenue Support Grant DLUHC 14249 15.714
Homes for Ukraine -Tanff DLUHC 13477 1.214
Private Finance Inibatve ESFA 10.504 10,504
service Gramt DLUHC .81 4 2685
Bus Sarvice Improvement Plan DT 6,200 11,466
Indepandent Living Fund DLUHC 2.534 0,000
Mew Homes Bonus DLUHC 1.868 1.108
iher Grants Various 4 876 & 385
Total Corporate Income 154.045 172,826
Total Grants B93.845 741.153
*  Other Departmental Revenue Grants in 2023-24 include the following amounts which are required to be
separately disclosed under specific grant conditions in the respective grant agreements:
e £0.891m Youth Justice Grant from the Youth Justice Board, to fund activities which improve the
outcomes of children in the youth justice system (2022-23: £0.844m).
e £0.133m Commissioner's Community Safety Grant, to assist in the funding of the work of the
Derbyshire Youth Offending Service (2022-23: £0.133m).
e £0.239m Turnaround Grant from the Ministry of Justice for a Turnaround Programme, which is a
voluntary youth early intervention programme (2022-23: £0.078m).
Income
Capital Grants 2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
Pothole Action Fund DfT 15.108 10.171
Highways Maintenance Incentive Fund DfT 10.533 13.166
Additional Highways Maintenance DfT 0.000 3.014
School Condition Allowance EFA 10.306 9.445
Special Provision Capital Fund DfE 10.180 13.243
Devolved Formula Capital DfE 5.226 1.313
Bus Service Improvement Plan DfT 4.452 14.499
Integrated Transport DfT 3.672 3.672
Active Travel ATE 3.005 0.337
Local Electric Vehicle Infrastructure Grant DFT 0.000 6.444
Basic Need EFA 0.000 16.756
Levelling Up Fund- South Derbyshire Growth Zone |DLUHC 0.000 3.794
Highways Capital Maintenance DfT 2.633 0.000
Public Sector Decarbonisation Grant** BEIS (0.108) 0.000
Getting Building Fund* DLUHC (0.253) 0.000
Other Capital Grants Various 13.249 17.157
78.003 113.011
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*%

38. CASH FLOW - INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Using the freedom and flexibilities given to LEP Accountable Bodies, during 2020-21 the Council utilised Getting
Building Fund underspends of £16.241m to fund its capital programme.
remaining £0.253m of this funding to the LEP.

There was no underspent Public Sector Decarbonisation Grant in respect of projects not completed by 31 March
2024 (2022-23: £0.108m not completed by 31 March 2023, repayable to the Department for Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)).

In 2022-23 the Council repaid the

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(100.035)|Purchase of Non-Current Assets (160.626)
(526.641)|Purchase of New Investments (404.649)
4.276|Proceeds from Sale of Non-Current Assets 7.227
72.956|Capital Grants Received 110.568
544.639|Investments Redeemed 603.963
(4.804) 156.483
39. CASH FLOW - FINANCING ACTIVITIES
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(153.826)|Repay Amounts Borrowed (301.435)
(4.786)|Principal Repayment on PFl and Leases (5.104)
230.500|New Short Term Loans 214.020
Net (Payments)/Income on behalf of
4.782 Shadow Combined County Authority 25.819
76.670 (66.700)
40. CASH FLOW — OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
(563.792)|Payments to and on behalf of employees (602.725)
(821.312)|Other Operating Payments (907.296)
369.811[Council Tax 387.009
16.884(Business Rates 19.384
14.249(Revenue Support Grant 15.714
650.879|Other Revenue Grants 687.200
294.993|Other Income 325.856
(38.287)|Operating Costs of Providing Services (74.858)
(13.236)|External Interest Paid (17.974)
(3.243)|Interest on PFI and Finance Leases (2.973)
3.194|Interest Received 10.409
3.365|Dividends Received 4.043
(48.207) (81.353)
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41. RECONCILIATION OF NET SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ON THE CIES TO THE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES NET CASH FLOW
2022-23 2023-24
Em Em
Surplus/{Deficit) on the Provision
[164.214)|of Services (Td.359)
Mon Cash Transactions:
d.3.902 | Depreciation 48.2:M1
20614 |Impairment 200273
85. 744 | Movermnent in Pension Liakility (0.748)
(2.145 )| Adjustment for Collection Fund (0.996)
T 588 Investments Fair Value Movemenis (0.488)
{12,963 Movement in Revenue Debtors (589,191}
2419 Movemeant in Lass Allowances (0247}
121.181})|{Movement in Revenue Creditors 28.042
{0.091 ) {Movement in Inventories (0.609)
(1.051)|Movement in Provisions (3.082)
125.836 Total Non Cash Transactions 22,524
Items Classified Elsewhere
Met charge for Disposal of
53.131|Non-Current Assets 64,830
Revenue Expenditure Funded from
15.043| Capital Under Statute 18.663
(78.003)| Capital Grants {113.011)
(48.207) (81.353)

42. RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS AND LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Non-Cash
31 Mar 2023| Cash Flows Changes| 31 Mar 2024
£m £m £m £m
Current Borrowing 233.874 (88.803) 2.756 147.827
Non Current Borrowing 232.597 1.391 2.296 236.284
PFl and Finance Lease Liabilities 49.998 (5.104) (0.205) 44.689
516.469 (92.516) 4.847 428.800

Non-cash changes to the Council’s liabilities include an increase of £2.757m in the
carrying value of current borrowing and an equal decrease in the carrying value of non-
current borrowing to recognise amounts falling due within twelve months of the balance
sheet date. Interest of £5.053m was accrued in the year which increased the carrying
value of liabilities. The remaining non-cash transactions represent a reduction in carrying
value of £0.206m because of a movement between these liabilities and short-term
creditors and debtors.
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Non-Cash
31 Mar 2022| Cash Flows Changes| 31 Mar 2023
£m £m £m £m
Current Borrowing 136.868 77.598 19.408 233.874
Non Current Borrowing 250.645 (0.925) (17.123) 232.597
PFIl and Finance Lease Liabilities 55.045 (4.786) (0.261) 49.998
442.558 71.887 2.024 516.469

43. LEASE TYPE ARRANGEMENTS

FINANCE LEASES - COUNCIL AS LESSEE

The Council has a number of property assets that were acquired under finance leases.
All assets are carried as Property, Plant and Equipment on the Balance Sheet. Note 12
shows the net value of assets held under Finance Leases.

The Minimum Lease Payments (MLP) are made up of the following:

2022-23 2023-24
~_ Em ~_Em
L= =)
3 £ 3 £
g E o g 2 =i
&= | - = | =
0.457 0423 0.880(Within 1 year 0.417 0377 0.794
1526| 1078 2.605|1to 5 years 1413 0814 2327
2093 2343  4.436|More than 5 years 1.338| 2071 3409
3619 3.422|  7.041|Total Non-Current 2.751 2985 5.736
4076 3845 7921 3.168| 3.362] 6.530

The MLP does not contain rents that are contingent on events taking place after the lease
was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.

OPERATING LEASES - COUNCIL AS LESSEE
The Council has a number of property assets (within PPE) under operating leases for:
e Delivery of local education.
e Youth information and clubs.
e Community and environmental purposes.
e Miscellaneous use, including office accommodation.

The Council does not have any vehicles, plant or equipment under operating leases (2022-
23: nil).

The MLP due under non-cancellable leases in future years in respect of these properties
and vehicles will be payable over the following periods:
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2022-23 2023-24
Em Em
PPE PPE
0.836) Within 1 year 1.254
279001 to 5 years 3.954
3.832|More than 5 years B.552
7.458 11.760

There was no significant sub-letting of properties in 2023-24 (2022-23: no significant sub-
letting).

FINANCE LEASES — COUNCIL AS LESSOR

The Council has seven properties that have been leased out upon receipt of a premium.
With respect to these leases, there is no further lease income to be received and therefore
there is no debtor held in the accounts. Details of the properties currently leased out are:

Grassmoor Golf Centre to Grassmoor Golf Ltd on a 1,000-year lease, which
commenced in 2002 for a one-off payment of £0.230m.

Unit C1 Holmewood Business Park to SBK Property Limited on a 99-year lease,
which commenced in 2015 for a one-off payment of £0.300m.

Land at Welbeck Road to Old Bolsover Town Council on a 99-year lease, which
commenced in 2020 for a one-off payment of £0.010m.

‘The Gardens’, Shipley Country Park to a private individual on a 999-year lease,
which commenced in 2022 for a one-off payment of £0.344m.

Land at The Dales, Askew Grove, Repton to Trent and Dove Housing on a 999-
year lease, which commenced in 2023 for a one-off payment of £0.675m.

Land at High Street, Clay Cross to Robinson & Day Properties Limited on a 999-
year lease, which commenced in 2023 for a one-off payment of £0.010m

Land at Cross London Street, Chesterfield to private individuals on a 999-year
lease, which commenced in 2023 for a one-off payment of £0.045m.

The Council also leases out:

First-floor offices of Ripley Library to Derbyshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust
on a 15-year lease, which commenced in 2014 for £0.014m each year.

Nursery School on Windermere Road, Newbold to Kidz Planet Limited on a 10-year
lease, which commenced in 2021 for £0.012m each year.

Belper Community Hall to Belper Community Hall Steering Group on a 25-year
lease, which commenced in 2020 for £0.001m each year.

Unit 5 Cobnar Wood Industrial Estate, Chesterfield to Serrations Limited on a 15-
year lease, which commenced in 2022 for £0.010m each year.

The Donut Creative Arts Studio, Chesterfield to Fairplay on an 86-year lease, which
commenced in 2022 for £0.015m each year.

Units 1 & 2 Stonebroom Industrial Estate, Alfreton to MNS Mouldings Limited on a
15-year lease, which commenced in 2023 for £0.060m each year.
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The rental income and the unguaranteed residual value of the asset, which relates to the
estimated value of the property at the end of the lease (i.e. an estimated sale value), will
be received over the following periods:

202223 A0E3=-24
Em Em

- B 2 5 5 2
L = . g 8 = - g
g2 (§2 5 £ 8 §3 F £
£5 35 k| t% Ss E3g E | g%
EE gEang 3= EE ;EEEEE 55
= = =
7522528 & EF 582528 5¢
0.043| 0000| 0.043 0.021 [Within 1 year 0.103| 0.000] 0.103| 0072
0.472| 0.000| 0172 0.115 |1to5 years 0412 | 0062 0.474 | 0272
0825| 0207| 1132| 0.787 |More than 5 years 1422 0.738| 2458 1.060
1.140 0207 1.347 0533 1.937 0.798 2.Ti5 1.404

The Council has no provisions for unrealised finance lease investments. The minimum
lease payments do not contain rents that are contingent on events taking place after the
lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.

OPERATING LEASE — COUNCIL AS LESSOR
The Council leases out a number of property assets (PPE) under operating leases,
including leases for:

e Economic development to provide suitable affordable accommodation for local

businesses.

e Youth information and clubs.

¢ Community and environmental purposes.

e Siting electricity substations.

The minimum lease payments receivable under leases in future years are:

2022-23 2023-24
£Em __Em

8 of g g
Q| mg r 2 w32 =

& | =] E = E =
$| 53| ¢ § 33| ¢
0000 1,181 1.181|Within 1 year 0.000 1.463 1.468
0,000 3.754 3.754]1 to 5 years 0.000| 4583 4.583
0000 4.767 4767 |More than 5 years 0.000| 5227 5227
0.000 9,702 8,702 0.000 11.278] 11.278

The minimum lease payments do not contain rents that are contingent on events taking
place after the lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.
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44. PRIVATE FINANCE INITIATIVE (PFI) AND SIMILAR CONTRACTS

There are three PFl schemes in which private sector providers build and maintain
accommodation for use by the Council:

e Phase 1 — in 2001 the Council signed a contract for two secondary schools at
Tupton and Chapel-en-le Frith. They were completed and occupied in April 2003
under a 26-year contract. Tupton Hall School became an Academy on 1 October
2019.

e Phase 2 — during 2004-05 the Council signed a contract for two further secondary
schools at Newbold and Long Eaton which became operational in February 2006
under a 26-year contract. Long Eaton School became an Academy on 1 April 2011.
Newbold School became an Academy, known as Outwood Academy Newbold, on
1 January 2015.

e Phase 3 — Schools provided under the Building Schools for the Future (BSF)
programme opened in November 2010 at Bolsover and Springwell (Staveley).
These were designed and built as PFI schools and will be operated on a 25-year
contract. Bolsover School became an Academy on 1 October 2012. Springwell
Community School became an Academy on 1 March 2020.

Payments
The Council makes an agreed payment each year (the unitary charge) which is increased
by inflation and can be reduced if the contractor fails to meet availability and performance
standards.

Although the payments that are made to the contractor are described as unitary payments,
they have been calculated to compensate the contractor for the fair value of the services
they provide, the capital expenditure incurred and interest payable whilst the capital
expenditure remains to be reimbursed.

During 2017-18, the Council undertook a refinancing exercise of the BSF PFI debt, which
reduced the interest charge on the long-term debt. This resulted in a one-off financial
benefit of approximately £2.100m for the Council. The term of the loan and service level
elements of the agreement all remain the same.

The liability outstanding to pay the contractor for capital expenditure incurred is shown
below.

110



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2022-23 2023-24
Ph 4 Ph 2 | BSF | Ph1 \ Ph 2 ‘ BSF

Em Em £m)| £m £m £m

Unitary Charge Paid
Delivery of services 2687 3104 4318] 3349 3539 4388
Interest Payment 0920 1164 0862] 0823 1076 0621
Reduction to Liability 1.525 1.38% 1 .-ﬂ-ﬂf.'l[ 1.631 1.471 1.821
Unitary Charge Paid 5141 5651 6.460] 5803 6.086 6.530
Loan Liability B Fwd | (13.355) (18.242) (23.988)| (11.830) (16.859) (22 508)
Reducton 1o Leability 1.525 1.383 1.480 1631 1.471 1.521

Loan Liability C Fwd

(11.830) (16.659) {H.EM]I (10.199) (15.388) (20.987)

Liability in Credifors
Man Current Liabilises

(1.631) (1.471) :1.521:| (1.744) (1.565) (1.562)
(10.199) (15.387) (20.988)| (8.455) (13.823) (19.425)

Loan Liability C Fwd

(11.830) (16.859) (22.508)| (10.199) (15.388) (20.987)

Payments remaining to be made under the PFI contract at 31 March are as follows:

2022-23 2023-24
Ph1 Ph2 | BSF Ph1 } Ph2 BSF
£m £m £m| £m £m £m
Within one year:
Service charge 2437 2233 337 2437 2233 AM7
Interest elemeant 0823 1076 0621 0709 08582 0579
Repayment of liability 1,631 1.471 1.521 1.744 1,565  1.562
Two to five years:
Service charge 9747 8930 13.2668] 9747 8930 13266
Interest element 2073 3302 208} 1537 2863 1874
Repayment of liability 7740 GBBE 6513 B27T9 T.328 6693
Six to ten years:
Service charge 2635 8665 16583 0198 6433 16583
Interest elemant 0172 1352 1503] 0001 0B10 1249
Repayment of liability 2450 8500 9205 0176 6495 9460
Eleven to fifteen years:
Service charge: 0000 QOO0 8591 0000 0000 5274
Interest elemant 0000 0000 0255 0000 0000 Q110
Repayment of liability 0000 0000 5268 0000 0000 23272
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All of the PFI schools will be handed back to the Council (or the Governors of the School
for Academies) when the relevant contract expires. In the case of the Phase 1 schools
this will be on 28 April 2029, for the Phase 2 schools it will be 12 February 2032 and for
the BSF schools on 31 October 2035.

Under the terms of the agreements, the Council is able to terminate the agreements at
any time. If this were due to a contractor default the Council is entitled to re-tender the
contract, otherwise the contractors would be entitled to compensation. The Council has
step in rights, if action needs to be taken in connection with the services provided by any
of the contractors because of a serious risk to the health or safety of persons or to
discharge a statutory duty; and/or because an emergency has arisen.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The schools are recognised on the Council’s Balance Sheet, except those which are
Academies. Movements in their value over the year are detailed in the analysis of the
movement on the Property, Plant and Equipment balance in Note 12.

45. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PENSION SCHEMES

Teachers’ Pension Scheme

Teachers employed by the Council are members of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme,
administered by the Department for Education. The Scheme provides teachers with
specified benefits upon their retirement, and the Council contributes towards the costs by
making contributions based on a percentage of members’ pensionable salaries.

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme which is unfunded and the Department for
Education uses a notional fund as the basis for calculating the employers’ contribution
rate paid by local authorities. The Council is not able to identify its share of the underlying
financial position and performance of the Scheme with sufficient reliability for accounting
purposes. For the purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is therefore accounted for on
the same basis as a defined contribution scheme.

In 2023-24 the Council paid £42.350m to Teachers’ Pensions (2022-23: £42.779m) in
respect of teachers’ retirement benefits. During 2023-24 the Employer’s Contribution rate
for the Teachers’ Pension Scheme was 23.68% (2022-23: 23.68%). For 2024-25 the
Employer’s Contribution rate for the Teachers’ Pension Scheme will increase to 28.68%.

It is expected that the Council will pay £49m to the Teachers’ Pensions Scheme in the
year to 31 March 2025, of which employer contributions are estimated to be around £37m.

NHS Pension Scheme

Former NHS employees working in the Surestart and Public Health fields that moved to
the Council in 2008 and 2013, respectively, and some Public Health staff employed since
then, are members of the NHS Pension Scheme, administered by the Department of
Health and Social Care. The Scheme provides these employees with specified benefits
upon their retirement, and the Council contributes towards the costs by making
contributions based on a percentage of members’ pensionable salaries.
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The Scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit scheme which is unfunded, and the
Department of Health and Social Care uses a notional fund as the basis for calculating
the employers’ contribution rate paid by local authorities. The Council is not able to identify
its share of the underlying financial position and performance of the Scheme with sufficient
reliability for accounting purposes. For the purposes of this Statement of Accounts, it is
therefore accounted for on the same basis as a defined contribution scheme, which is
consistent with the NHS method of accounting.

In 2023-24 the Council paid £0.644m to the NHS Pension Scheme (2022-23: £0.559m) in
respect of the retirement benefits of these Council employees. The Employer’s
Contribution rate during 2023-24 for the NHS Pension Scheme was 20.68%, with 14.38%
continuing to be collected through the Council’s payroll, an additional 2.5% collected from
the Council through invoicing and the remaining 3.8% being funded by the Department of
Health and Social Care (2022-23: 20.68%, with 14.38% continuing to be collected through
the Council’s payroll, an additional 2.5% collected from the Council through invoicing and
the remaining 3.8% being funded by the Department of Health and Social Care). No
further disclosures are required because of the immateriality of the information.

46. DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

The Council makes contributions towards the cost of post-employment benefits. Although
these benefits will not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a
commitment to make the payments that needs to be disclosed at the time that employees
earn their future entitlement.

The Council participates in two post-employment schemes:

e The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), administered by Derbyshire
County Council — this is a funded defined benefit final salary scheme, meaning the
Council and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at a level intended
to balance the pension liabilities with investment assets.

o Arrangements for the award of discretionary post-retirement benefits upon early
retirement — this is an unfunded defined benefit arrangement, under which liabilities
are recognised when awards are made. However, there are no investment assets
built up to meet these pension liabilities, and cash has to be generated to meet
actual pension payments as they eventually fall due.

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of services
when they are earned by employees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as
pensions. However, the charge the Council is required to make against Council Tax is
based on the cash payable in the year, so the real cost of post-employment/retirement
benefits is reversed out of the General Reserve via the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Defined Benefit Transactions
The following defined benefit scheme transactions have occurred during the year:
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3 5 LGPS Teachers
§ E, 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24
& £m £m £m £m
Current service cost 131.285 63.886 0.000 0.000
Net interest cost 6 21.382 (3.612) 1.367 1.993
Past service costs & curtailments 0.649 1.341 0.000 0.000
Settlements (4.335) (3.330) 0.000 0.000
Benefits charged to the CIES 148.981 58.285 1.367 1.993
Remeasurement (gain)/loss (921.038) 104.086 (5.912) (0.014)
Total (Gain)/Loss (772.057) 162.371 (4.545) 1.979
Movements in Reserves Statement:
Reversal of charges made 28 (148.981) (58.285) (1.367) (1.993)
Contributions - unfunded benefits 28 2.235 2.302 0.000 0.000
Employer's contributions payable 28 58.317 63.480 4.052 4.244

Assets and Liabilities in Relation to Post-Employment Benefits
Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit plan liabilities (the defined benefit
obligation) of the Council, from the start to the end of the year:

Funded liabilities: Unfunded liabilities:
LGPS Discretionary Benefits
2022-23 2023-24 2022-23 2023-24
£m £m £m £m
Opening balance at 1 April 3,320.908 | 2,394.091 52.653 44.056
Current service cost 131.285 63.886 0.000 0.000
Interest cost 90.382 112.942 1.367 1.993
Contributions by participants 17.488 18.153 0.000 0.000
Remeasurement (gains)/losses* (1,076.012) (76.316) (5.912) (0.014)
Benefits paid (80.320) (98.869) 0.000 0.000
Unfunded benefits paid (2.235) (2.302) (4.052) (4.244)
Effect of settlements (8.054) (10.296) 0.000 0.000
Past service costs 0.649 1.341 0.000 0.000
Closing balance at 31 March 2,394.091 2,402.630 44.056 41.791

*2022-23 LGPS Remeasurement gains in the table above have been adjusted to remove the 31 March 2023 LGPS
asset ceiling restriction of £12.432m (2022-23 LGPS Remeasurement gains were previously £1,063.580m). This
asset ceiling restriction has instead been applied to the total net LGPS surplus position at that date and is reflected
in the table showing the present value of asset and liabilities, the overall (surplus)/deficit in the scheme and the asset
ceiling restriction, further below. The overall 31 March 2023 total pension net asset of £29.323m is unchanged.

The expected return on assets is determined by considering the expected returns
available on the assets underlying the current investment policy. Expected yields on fixed
interest investments are based on gross redemption yields as at the Balance Sheet date.

Reconciliation of the fair value of defined benefit plan Fund assets of the Council, from the

start to the end of the year:
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LGPS
2022-23 2023-24
E£m £m
Opening balance at 1 April (2,561.678) (2,479,902
Interest income (65,000 (117.144)
Cher remeasurement loss/{gain) 142 BA 2 (111.835)
Employer contributions (58.317) (63,4800
Contnbulions by participanis (17.488) (18.153)
Benefits paid 80.320 93.265
Effect of setttements 3.719 6.966
Closing balance at 31 March (2.479.902) (2,664.679)

Scheme History

Prior to 2022-23, net pension liabilities have had a substantial impact on the net worth of
the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, shown in the table below. These net
liabilities are an estimate of the ultimate cost to the Council of the post-employment
(retirement) plan benefits that employees have earned, having allowed for the value of
scheme assets. Statutory arrangements for funding any deficit mean that the financial
position of the Council remains healthy:

o the deficit on the LGPS will be made good by increased contributions over the
remaining working life of employees (i.e. before payments fall due), as assessed by
the Fund Actuary;

o finance is only required to be raised to cover discretionary benefits when the
pensions are actually paid.

However, at 31 March 2024, there was a total net Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) surplus reported by the Actuary of £282.049m (31 March 2023: £85.811m
surplus). The increase in LGPS surplus at 31 March 2024 has arisen mainly because of
gains arising from changes to the financial assumptions used to measure LGPS scheme
liabilities in the actuarial valuation as at 31 March 2023 and the return on LGPS scheme
assets in 2023-24.

Accounting Standard IAS19 imposes a limit on the net surplus which can be recognised
in the Balance Sheet, known as an asset ceiling restriction. The limit depends on factors
unique to each employer and the Actuary has reflected this by carrying out additional
calculations.

The Actuary calculated an LGPS scheme asset ceiling restriction of £305.259m (31 March
2023: £12.432m restriction), as shown in the table below. After this adjustment, the LGPS
net liability in the accounts is £23.210m (31 March 2023: £73.379m LGPS net asset) and
there is a total net pensions liability, including Teachers Pensions, of £65.001m (31 March
2023: £29.323m total net pensions asset).
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Present Asset
Present value of value of (Surplus)/deficit in ceiling Liability/
liabilities: assets: the Scheme: restriction: | (asset):
5 5
S o Sy
— 0O m — — 0O m — =
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
2019-20 2,600.059 55.041( (1,998.118) 601.941 55.041 0.000 656.982
2020-21 3,360.078 57.592| (2,393.147) 966.931 57.592 0.000| 1,024.523
2021-22 3,320.908 52.653| (2,561.678) 759.230 52.653 0.000 811.883
2022-23* 2,394.091 44.056( (2,479.902) (85.811) 44.056 12.432 (29.323)
2023-24 2,402.630 41.791| (2,684.679)| (282.049) 41.791 305.259 65.001

*2022-23 LGPS Present value of liabilities in the table above has been adjusted to remove the 31 March 2023 LGPS
asset ceiling restriction of £12.432m (2022-23 LGPS Present value of liabilities was previously £2,406.523m). This
asset ceiling restriction has instead been applied to the total net LGPS surplus position at that date and is reflected

in a separate column in the table above.

unchanged.
Reconciliation of Asset
Ceiling:
LGPS
2022-23 2023-24
£m| £m
Opening impact at 1 April 0.000 12.432
Interest on asset ceiling 0.000 0.590
Actuarial losses/(gains) 12.432 292.237
Closing balance at 31 March 12.432 305.259

The overall 31 March 2023 total pension net asset of £29.323m is

The total contributions expected to be made to the LGPS by the Council in the year to
31 March 2025 is £62.102m.

Basis for Estimating Assets and Liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit
method, and an estimate of the pensions that will be payable in future years, dependant
on assumptions including mortality rates and salary levels. Both the LGPS and
Discretionary Benefits liabilities have been assessed by the Fund Actuary, with estimates

for the Council’s share of the Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme
as at 31 March 2022.

The principal assumptions used by the Fund Actuary have been:
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Mortahty Assumplions.
Langevity al 6% {current pensioners),
-Man
-Warmnen
Langevity at 6% (fufure pensichers);
-Mean
-Wamen

Inflation Hates:
Increase in salaries (LGPS anly)
Increase in pensions (CR1)
Discounting scheme liabilities

2022-23)  2023-24
21.0| 20.8
24.0| 238
21.8| 216
25.5| 25.3

3.95%)| 3,75%
2.95%| 2,75%
4.75%| 4.85%

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme
liabilities are set out below, showing the impact of a change:

At 31 March 2024:

Local Government
Approximate

increase to| Approximate
employer liability monetary amount
Yo Em
0.1% decrease in real discount rate 2| 43 6BT
1 year increase in Member |ife expectancy 4| 96.105
0.1% increase in salary increase rate 0| 2. 109
0.1% increase in pension increase rate (CPI) 2 42.369'

At 31 March 2023:

Local Government
Approximate

increase to Approximate
employer liability | monetary amount
% £m
0.1% decrease in real discount rate 2 41.352
1 year increase in Member life expectancy 4 95.764
0.1% increase in salary increase rate 0 4.698
0.1% increase in pension increase rate (CPI) 2 37.246

The Fund Actuary has noted that in order to quantify the impact of a change in the financial
assumptions used, the value of the scheme liabilities at 31 March 2024 has been
calculated and compared on varying bases. The approach taken is consistent with that
adopted to derive the IAS19 figures provided by the Fund Actuary for the accounts.
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To quantify the uncertainty around life expectancy, the Fund Actuary has calculated the
difference in cost to the Council, as a Fund employer, of a one-year increase in life
expectancy. For sensitivity purposes, this is assumed to be an increase in the cost of
benefits of around 3-5%. In practice the actual cost of a one-year increase in life
expectancy will depend on the structure of the revised assumption (i.e. if improvements to
survival rates predominantly apply at younger or older ages).

These figures have been derived based on the membership profile of the Council, as a
Fund Employer, as at the date of the most recent actuarial valuation.

The return on the Fund in market value terms for the period to 31 March 2024 is based on
actual Fund returns as provided by the Administering Authority. The actual total return for
the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 is a gain of 9.3% (2022-23: 2.9% actual
loss).

The Discretionary Benefits arrangements have no assets to cover its liabilities. The Local
Government Pension Scheme’s assets consist of the following categories, by proportion
of the total assets held:

2022-23 2023-24

Yo Yo

Equity investmeants 61.7| B0.9
Debt instrurmeants.

Govermnmment bonds 81 B3

Dther bonds 14.5| 145

FProperty e 6.9

Cash and cash equivalenis 28 3.8

Cher assels 4.9 5.0

Total 100.0 100.0

History of Experience Gains and Losses

The actuarial gains identified as movements on the Pension Reserve can be analysed
into the following categories, measured as a percentage of assets or liabilities at the
balance sheet date:
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LGPS Teachers
g8l =8 |g¢
sié 85 | 8]
BsE EE3| ECE
528 §s22 3555
288 5888|582
2013-20 (B.88%) (20.04%) (12.25%)
2020-21 15.43% 20.84% 8.73%
2021-22 5.22% (5.10%) (3.67%)
2022-23 (5.75%) (44 205%) (13.42%)
2023-24 4.17% [3.T2%) (0.03%)
Forecast for next year
At 31 March 2024 for 2024-25:
Local Government
Pension Scheme Teachers Pensions
Em £m Em Em
Projected service cost | |
Estimated pay: 295768 0.000|
Service cost (% of pay) 19.3% | nia|
Implied service cost next year: 55,185 0,000
Meat interast (income oost (13.861) 1.873
Adminisiration expenses 1.775 0.000
Tetal pension cost recognised 43,099 1.879
Projected amployer contributions _ _
Mormal contributions (62.102) (4.528)
Total employer contributions next (62.102) (4.528)
year
Current {surplus Vdeficit (282 049) 41.791
Projected {surplusiideficit next year {301.052) 39,142

At 31 March 2023 for 2023-24:
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Local Government
Pension Scheme Teachers Pensions
£m £m £m £m

Projected service cost

Estimated pay: 282.942 0.000

Service cost (% of pay) 21.6% n/a

Implied service cost next year: 59.465 0.000

Net interest (income)/cost (4.094) 1.988

Administration expenses 1.698 0.000
Total pension cost recognised 57.069 1.988
Projected employer contributions

Normal contributions (59.434) (4.462)
Total employer contributions next (59.434) (4.462)
year
Current (surplus)/deficit (73.379) 44.056
Projected (surplus)/deficit next year (75.744) 41.582

47. NATURE AND EXTENT OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Overall Procedures for Managing Risk

The Council’'s overall risk management procedures focus on the unpredictability of
financial markets and are structured to implement suitable controls to minimise these risks.
The annual Treasury Management Strategy outlines the detailed approach to managing
risk in relation to the Council’s financial instrument exposure. Actual performance is also
reported annually to Members.

Detailed information can be found in the annual Capital Programme Approvals, Treasury
Management and Capital Strategies for 2024-25 which is available on the Council’s
Derbyshire Democracy website under the Council meeting on 14 February 2024

Capital Programme Approvals, Treasury Management and Capital Strategies for 2024-25

Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential for the Council to suffer loss due to another party defaulting on
its financial obligations.

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk is deemed to be the gross carrying amount
of the financial assets held.

The Council defines default as a customer or borrower’s failure to pay amounts owed to
it. A counterparty is likely to be considered in default if:

e ltis in administration, insolvency or winding up proceedings.

¢ It has entered into a scheme of arrangement with its creditors.

e ltis in default on similar financial assets.

This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that
deposits are not made with financial institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit
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criteria. The financial institutions’ credit ratings are monitored throughout the year and
significant changes are reported to Cabinet. The Annual Investment Strategy also
imposes a maximum sum to be invested and a maximum duration of each loan for
counterparties.

It is the Council’s policy to write-off any debt where all reasonable measures have been
taken to recover the debt or after the Chief Financial Officer and the Director of Legal
Services have established that the debt is irrecoverable due to bankruptcy or insolvency.

The Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its cash deposits, investments
in banks and building societies and money market funds is £207.070m (31 March 2023:
£396.790m), all of which is deposited in the UK, except for £34.537m (31 March 2023:
£33.205m) in global pooled funds. A risk of non-recovery applies to all of the Council’s
deposits, but there was no evidence at 31 March 2024 that this was likely to crystallise
(31 March 2023: no evidence).

The Council’s potential maximum exposure to credit risk on other financial assets, based
on experience of default, adjusted to reflect current market conditions is £142.856m
(31 March 2023: £31.793m). These financial assets include trade debtors (£47.065m,
31 March 2023: £30.865m), transferred debt (£0.032m, 31 March 2023: £0.034m),
contract assets (£0.488m, 31 March 2023: £0.480m) and lease receivables (£1.331m,
31 March 2023: £0.415m). The Council recognised an allowance for credit losses which
reduced the carrying amount of these financial assets by £4.778m (31 March 2023:
£5.940m). Customers for goods and services are vetted, taking into account their financial
position, past experience and other factors. The Council does not generally allow credit
for its trade debtors.

To determine whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk of an
investment, cash or cash equivalent the Council considers a range of factors, including
whether its credit rating has fallen below investment grade (BBB-), declining financial
performance, a fall in the value of collateral or the quality of guarantees given and any
adverse business or economic conditions impacting on the investment.

The profile of these assets by credit rating (AAA is the strongest credit rating) is as follows:

Trade|
Debders amd
AAA ar AA or Aorl  Rated Mot Transtered|
equivalent  equivalent| equivalent Strong Mot Rated Debt| Total
£m £m E!'n. Em £m Em| £m
Cash and cash 0,000 0,000 T8.315 0,000 000 0,000 a3
Bl '\-.a!EI'!"E |
Imvestmants 010K 45 878 0,000 0,000 517 0.000] 124 986
T Dusblors and 5 |
Trarsterad Dot QLD 0,000 0.000 0,004 R ] a4, 138 138
VOt Pt Cwrying 2,000 49828 78348 0,000 75447 sd138]  247.403
Aumou it |

At 31 March 2023 the position was:
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Trade
Debtors
and
AAA or AA or Aor| Rated Not Transferred
equivalent| equivalent| equivalent Strong| Not Rated Debt Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash 0.000 23.529 46.360 0.000 0.000 0.000 69.889
equivalents
Investments 0.000 219.036 30.277 0.000 74.682 0.000 323.995
Trade Debtors and 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 25.853 25.853
Transferred Debt
Total Net Carrying 0.000|  242.565 76.637 0.000 74.682 25.853|  419.737
Amount
Trade
Deblors ard
LY AA or fice  Mabed Mot Transieired
equivabem  equiwalent  equivales Stroeg Mot Rabed Dz Tatal
im tm Em Em Em tm Em
Lesi Allgwance i maaiuied &l 11-manth expecied dadit ises Bachuig:
Therd hars Teisen e shgraficand Poraass
ot i ki bl on 0000 0 000 T2 AN 0000 0000 0000 TE M
Loas Allowance & measured ol lifetime expected credil losses because:
LPACER TN TS ramant Sy 00 i 000 1 [} 0000 454 0000 BLAE
finc ksl fecogretion
e e g ki 000 f.000 000 0000 3 568 0847 14.843
L]
i Lriiie B gl iaoed SEpacach P,
in. Touchs Dot 0000 0000 00 0000 0000 3.3 .35
Mo Loss Allowance & relevan siafutony provisions present delault
Coaniarnarty o Carbnl Govarmamist o .
i - 00e0 40 820 100G 0000 O 000 15746 BE545
Wi Lioss Adlowanios, Orihisr:
Frrancial Ssats Miasaned ol Far Vale 0000 0 000 000 0000 B4 452 0000 B4.458
Tukal Geoas Carrying Amown 0080 AnE28 TEIM Tnmon TESOE 48316 255087
Loas Allowanoes 0000 0.000 (0085 0000 ERA-L) 4 TTE) [B.584)
Tokal Mat Carrying Amoung 0,034 ELE i TE. 319 o606 TENT 44,138 247803

At 31 March 2023 the position was:
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Trade
Debtors
and
AAA or AA or Aor| Rated Not Transferred
equivalent| equivalent| equivalent Strong| Not Rated Debt Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Loss Allowance is measured at 12-month expected credit losses because:
There has been no
significant increase in 0.000 23.384 76.689 0.000 0.000 0.000]  100.073
credit risk since initial
recognition
Loss Allowance is measured at lifetime expected credit losses because:
Credit risk has
increased significantly 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 13.568 0.000 13.568
since initial recognition
Financial assets have 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
become credit impaired
Allowed under the
simplified approach, i.e. 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 25.250 25.250
Trade Debtors
No Loss Allowance as relevant statutory provisions prevent default:
Counterparty is Central
Government or another 0.000 219.181 0.000 0.000 0.000 6.543 225.724
local authority
No Loss Allowance, Other:
Financial assets 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 63.968 0.000 63.968
measured at Fair Value
Total Gross Carrying 0.000 242.565 76.689 0.000 77.536 31.793 428.583
Loss Allowances 0.000 0.000 (0.052) 0.000 (2.854) (5.940) (8.846)
Total Net Carrying 0.000| 242565  76.637 0.000  74.682|  25.853|  419.737
Amount
The past due amount for trade debtors can be analysed by age as follows:
3 Mar 2023 | 31 Mar 2024
Em Em
Less than three months 15.522 34 908
Threa to six months 3308 2351
S months o one year 3274 3.121
More than one year 8.762 6.505
Total 30.865 47.065

The gross value of trade debtors, excluding other local authorities and central government
departments and agencies, is analysed as follows:
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Gross Value

of Trade

Debtors

31 Mar 2024

£m

Finance Lease Recawvables 1.331

Contract Assals {488

0 - 30 Days 14.7 1M1

Over 30 Days 15.763]

Debtors Excluding Other Local 92353

Authorities and Government
At 31 March 2023 the position was:

Gross Value

of Trade

Debtors

31 Mar 2023

£m

Finance Lease Receivables 0.414

Contract Assets 0.480

0 - 30 Days 7.776

Over 30 Days 16.580

Debtors Excluding Other Local 25,250
Authorities and Government )

A loss allowance for these financial assets is recognised based on the gross value of trade
debtors which are more than 30 days past due and which have been or are expected to
be referred for review by the Council’s Legal Services department or under the Care Act
(2014). A non-recovery rate based on the historical success rate of recovering such debt,
once referred, along with a factor to reflect the prevailing economic conditions, is applied
to the gross value of referred debt to determine the amount of the loss allowance. The
factor for current market conditions was derived by comparing the expected default rate
for 2024 with the historic default rate based on information collated by rating agency
Moody’s. Macroeconomic conditions are forecast to improve in 2024 compared to 2023.
The expected default rate for 2024 is lower than the historic default rate, therefore the
adjustment for current market conditions has resulted in a lower allowance for losses
compared to the raw calculation based on the profile of debt, as at 31 March 2024, and
the historical rate of debt recovery alone.
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Spacific Bpeesific
Lo Loss
Facior Tor dllowance: Allcwarcs
Trada Bipacied S uran Hian- Local Local
Dugaririanl | Call Coageans Delsbars  Rafesied  Wen- Eranmsie General  Aifherily?  Authoritg
Cevar B Dt Rpcavery Cosditions Loss Government Saverrmest  Tolal Lok
ays 4 Bt = Blloramangg =211 Dartd  Adf v el
e : Emi __ bm % T Em| i - .-
ekl Carw - Sacired Chver Prosaesy 1507 [1la ] 1%, By [+ 0] [ R0 [l 1]
Al Care Ofhes - Dwer T Fiar ] 1380 2% % 17/ DR (1] 1.7
S e LN - 1 Yl of LUinSe 4 400 EE =]} 4% SN LR i) e [1 8] 1
Ctbet = el Q801 ds | S 4133 DEr Q8dT] 1A
Tekal 1.4 T AE2 | 1331 IJL-I!I'I- |!E-ll.l‘ 4T

* Referred debt has been, oris expecaj.to be, re?e_rred to Legal Services or revie_wed under the Care Act (2014)
** The adjustment for economic conditions is restricted in order that the loss allowance does not exceed 100% of the

value of the debt

At 31 March 2023 the position was:

Factor for
Trade Expected Current
Department / Debt Debtors Referred Non- Economic General Specific
Category Over 30 Debt| Recovery | Conditions Loss Loss| Total Loss
Days * Rate ** Allowance| Allowance| Allowance
£m £m % % £m £m £m
Adult Care - Secured 5.572 0.000[ 0% 112% 0.000 0.000 0.000
Over Property
?%’;;fare Other - Over 3.613 3613  61% 112% 2.484 0.000 2.484
Adult Care Other - 1 4.609 4609  32% 112% 1.640 0.000 1.640
Year or Under
Other 2.786 0.331 32% 112% 0.118 1.697 1.815
Total 16.580 8.553 4.242 1.697 5.939

* Referred debt has been, or is expected to be, referred to Legal Services or reviewed under the Care Act (2014)
** The adjustment for economic conditions is restricted in order that the loss allowance does not exceed 100% of the
value of the debt

Whilst expected credit losses relating to trade debtors are measured on a collective basis,
those relating to other financial assets are determined on a case-by-case basis.

Reconciliation of Credit Loss Allowances
A reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of the allowances recognised for

potential credit losses on the Council’s financial assets for the year ended 31 March 2024
is provided as follows:
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Change due
I rease b
duglc  Dwcreaws modificatio Dun 1o
recogRdtion  dustode:  noleaah  eBangs in Do b
of new recognition flows of the Aerege  Change in
| Balsnce st Financisd of Finascial  Financisl Default pignificance, Balancs ol
| wkani® &l yoar Aagets Asiats Adawla Ratid of credil ikak  end af you
] om tm Em iEm Em iEm Em
Measuresd ak 12-month expecied cradi losses whare;
Thaes hes beun o sigrificasl incrssse 0,653 0004 {0830 0 000 [0.012) 0,200 .01}
1 Credl Fisk SnoE ol ReoogniBon
Measured at Wlelims expected credit beridas ehane:
Conchil rigk Bai inc i Sigrrbcantly ’ e o
sirecas irvbiad roengretion 2 0286 R LRt aliEE] (A1) 2,000
Firancil sttt hires Batsime crsdil
sair 0,634 01600 G D (1560 aliiin] imn 3,18
Al wiier s simplind spprch 5,840 0000 [0:225) 0000 (0037 0000 &TTE
iLa. Deblomns
Tokal Loss Allowanos 8847 D250 {0255 0200 [0.258) 0.0 £.584
At 31 March 2023 the position was:
Change due
Increase to
due to Decrease | modification Due to Due to
recognition| due to de- of cash| changein| changein
of new| recognition| flows of the Average | significance
Balance at Financial| of Financial Financial Default of credit| Balance at
start of year Assets Assets Assets Rates risk| end of year
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Measured at 12-month expected credit losses where:
There has been no
significant increase in 0.028 0.011 (0.019) 0.000 0.033 0.000 0.053
credit risk since initial
recognition
Measured at lifetime expected credit losses where:
Credit risk has
increased significantly 1.306 0.109 0.000 0.000 1.439 0.000 2.854
since initial recognition
Financial assets have 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
become credit impaired
Allowed under the
simplified approach 2.073 0.000 (0.530) 0.000 4.397 0.000 5.940
i.e. Debtors
Total Loss Allowance 3.407 0.120 (0.549) 0.000 5.869 0.000 8.847
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In March 2023, the Council received correspondence from one of the joint controlling
interests of Buxton Crescent Limited, which indicated that the company may not meet the
loan covenant tests or be able to commence loan payments, at the expected maturity date
due to the hotel's weaker than anticipated revenues and high cost of energy. Loan
payments were due to commence in October 2023, but as of 31 March 2024, no payments
had been received. As this was a default according to the terms of the loan, the Council
considers that the loan is now a credit-impaired financial asset. The allowance for
expected credit losses (ECLs) on the loan continues to be recognised at all of the
accumulated interest on the loan, in addition to 10% of the original loan advanced. This
gives a lifetime allowance for ECLs of £3.745m which falls in the range of probable
outcomes in the options analysis undertaken by the Council’s financial advisors. The
Council is in dialogue with Buxton Crescent Limited to explore the options to best protect
the value of its investment, as well as support the viability of the hotel.

There were no modifications to the cash flows of the Council’s financial assets during the
year (2022-23: no modifications).

12-month expected credit losses are based on the following inputs and assumptions:

e The value of the principal on maturity.

e The coupon interest rate of the loan receivable.

o The average probability of default in the next 12 months for that grade of investment,
as determined by the major ratings agencies. This has been adjusted for current
market conditions based on the ratio of the expected default rate for 2024 compared
to the historic rate of default collated by rating agency Moody'’s.

e The expected loss, given default, is assumed to be 62% (Moody’s unsecured).

¢ In the event of default, the recoverable amount is expected to be received two years
later than the due date.

Lifetime expected credit losses are based on the following inputs and assumptions:
o The gross carrying amount.
e The probability of default for that grade of investment, and the expected loss given
default.

Forward-looking information is incorporated into the determination of expected credit
losses:

e For specific investments — by reference to the investment grade provided by the
rating agency Moody’s and by considering the forecast default rates for the year
compared to historical rates of default.

e For trade debtors — by considering the value of additional debt that is likely to be
referred in addition to that which has already been referred for review and by
considering the forecast default rates for the year compared to historical rates of
default.

The Council does not hold any collateral as security or any other credit enhancements
against the loans it has issued.
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Liquidity risk

The Council manages a comprehensive cash flow management system. This seeks to
ensure that cash is available when it is needed. There is no significant risk that it will be

unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.

The contractual maturity for short term and long-term borrowing is as follows:

At 31 March 2023 the position was:

Interest rate risk

Within the Annual Treasury Management Strategy maximum limits are set for fixed and
variable interest rate exposure. The interest rate profile of financial assets and liabilities,

31 Mar 2024

£m

Less than one year (141.253)
Between ona and two years (3,000}
Between two and five years (37.988)
Between five and ten years (44.585)
More than len years {148.713)
(3TT.537)

31 Mar 2023

£m

Less than one year (230.909)
Between one and two years (2.745)
Between two and five years (15.025)
Between five and ten years (44.910)
More than ten years (169.917)
(463.506)

excluding finance lease debtors and creditors and PFI creditors, is as follows:

Fixdid rate
Man- Variable or Weighted Weighted
interest Fixed <1 Fived > 1 | average int  average
Tatal braring yaar year rate pariod
Em Em Em Em (years)
Financial assels 203,297 | 4711 198 586 0.0 481 4
Fimancial lakilities {3T7.53T) 0,000 {141 353} {236,284 453 13

At 31 March 2023 the position was:

128




NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fixed rate
Non- Variable or Weighted | Weighted
interest Fixed <1 Fixed >1 | average int | average
Total bearing year year rate period
£m £m £m £m (%) (years)
Financial assets 393.919 1.000 382.919 10.000 2.52 1
Financial liabilities (463.506) 0.000 (230.909) (232.597) 3.46 9

A 1% change in interest rates would have the following impact:

Impact on
provision of Impact on
services net worth

: ! £m £m
Increase by 1% (100 basis points) 0.780 21.429|
Decrease by 1% (100 basis points) (0.780) (21.429)
At 31 March 2023 the position was:
Impact on

provision of| Impact on
services| net worth

£m £m
Increase by 1% (100 basis points) 0.569 22.496
Decrease by 1% (100 basis points) (0.569) (22.496)

48. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no significant events between the balance sheet date and the approval of
these financial statements which would require further disclosure or adjustment of the
statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
INTRODUCTION

The Accounting Policies for Derbyshire County Council (the Council) have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code for Local Authority
Accounting (the Code) and the Update to the Code and Specifications for Future Codes
for Infrastructure Assets - November 2022 (the Update). Where there is no specific
guidance in the Code or the Update, the Council has developed its own accounting policy
which is aimed at creating information which is:

» Relevant to the decision-making needs of users; and
> Reliable, in that the financial statements:
o Represent fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the entity;
o Reflect the economic substance of transactions, other events and
conditions and not merely the legal form;
o Are neutral i.e. free from bias;
o Are prudent; and
o Are complete in all material respects.

This document outlines how the Council will account for all income, expenditure, assets
and liabilities held and incurred during the financial year.

The accounting policies of the Council are updated annually to reflect any changes in
IFRS, including changes in International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS),
HM Treasury guidance, CIPFA guidance or any other change in statute, guidance or
framework impacting on the authority’s accounts.

The Accounting Policies of the Council as far as possible have been developed to ensure
that the accounts of the Council are understandable, relevant, free from material error or
misstatement, reliable and comparable. A Glossary of Terms can be found at the end of
this document.

The document has been divided into four distinct categories which are Accounting

Principles, Capital Accounting, Revenue Accounting and Treasury Management, with
each policy being assigned a policy number.
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ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

1.1. Going Concern

The Council prepares its accounts on the basis that it remains a going concern; that is
that there is the assumption that the functions of the Council will continue in operational
existence. In the case of a pending local government reorganisation, where assets
and liabilities are due to be redistributed, the Council would still account on the basis
of going concern as the provision of services would continue in another Council.

1.2. Accruals Concept

The Council accounts for income and expenditure in the period in which the provision
of goods or service has taken place, rather than when cash payments are received or
made.

Where income and expenditure has been recognised but cash has not been received
or paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet.
Equally, where cash has been received or paid which is not yet recognised as income
or expenditure, a creditor (income in advance) or debtor (payment in advance) is
recorded in the Balance Sheet.

1.3. Cost of Services

Internal support service costs (e.g. Human Resources) are apportioned across the core
service areas to represent the total cost of delivering that service to the public, in

accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of
Practice (SerCOP).

Where possible the full cost of support services are shared between users in proportion

to the benefits received, with the exception of:

» Corporate and Democratic Core — costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-
functional, democratic organisation.

» Non-Distributed Costs — the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees
retiring early and any depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-
operational properties, or any other operational cost that cannot be reasonably
attributed to a specific service.

1.4. Value Added Tax

Income and expenditure treated as either capital or revenue, excludes any amounts
related to VAT. All VAT collected is payable to HM Revenue & Customs and all VAT
paid is recoverable from the same. Any amounts outstanding (payment or receipt) at
the year-end date is held as a creditor or debtor after netting off the amounts either due
or owed.

1.5. Changes in Accounting Policy

Where there is a known future change in accounting policy required by the CIPFA Code
or the Update, the Council will disclose the following in the notes to the accounts:
» The nature of the change in accounting policy;
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» The reasons why applying the new accounting policy provides reliable and more
relevant information;

» For both the current reporting period, and the previous year comparatives reported,
the extent to which the change in accounting policy would have impacted on the
financial statements if it had been adopted in that year;

» The amount of adjustment relating to years previous to those reported in the set of
financial statements, had the proposed policy been adopted retrospectively;

> If retrospective application is impracticable for a particular period, the circumstances
that led to the existence of that condition and a description of how and from when
the change in accounting policy has been applied.

The Council will also disclose information relating to an accounting standard which has
been issued but not yet adopted.

1.6. Prior Year Adjustments

These typically arise from omissions and misstatements in the Council’s financial
statements for one or more prior periods. For the error to be a prior year adjustment,
it would need to have arisen from a failure to use or misuse, reliable information that:
a) Was available when financial statements for those periods were authorised for
issue; and
b) Could reasonably be expected to have been obtained and taken into account
in the preparation and presentation of those financial statements.

Such errors include the effects of mathematical mistakes, misunderstanding in
applying accounting policies, oversights or misinterpretations of facts, and fraud.

They may also arise for reasons such as changes in Accounting Standards, which are
required to be applied retrospectively.

Where required changes are thought to be significant, an adjustment will be entered
into the financial statement’s comparative year balances, and the columns headed
‘restated’. In addition, full disclosure as to the nature, circumstance and value of the
adjustment will be disclosed in the notes to the accounts.

Errors which are found and are not significant will not result in a prior year adjustment
and will be corrected as a current year entry. In addition, errors as a result of
information which was not known to the Council or could not have reasonably been
obtained by the Council when the accounts were authorised for issue will also be
treated as an in year adjustment.

1.7. Unidentified Income

All unidentified income received is initially coded to an income suspense account.
Individual amounts below £10 are written off due to immateriality. Weekly updates of
the content of the suspense accounts are circulated to finance departments, to ensure
the balances are cleared quickly. Any items of income below £10,000 which remain
unidentified for six months will be written off. Items above £10,000 will be written off
after 12 months.
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1.8. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Where there is a material post balance sheet event before the date the accounts are
authorised for issue, a disclosure in the notes to the accounts will be included. If this
event provides additional evidence of conditions that existed at the Balance Sheet date,
and materially affects the amounts to be included in the accounts; adjusting items will
be shown in the accounts.

1.9. Exceptional ltems

Exceptional items will have been disclosed separately on the face of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and details will be disclosed in the
notes to the accounts.

1.10. Contingent Assets and Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
otherwise of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.
Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be
made but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required, or the
amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. They are not recognised in the
Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a
possible asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise
of uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to
the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or
service potential.

CAPITAL ACCOUNTING

1.11. Recognition of Capital Expenditure (de-minimis Policy)

In accordance with International Accounting Standard 16 (IAS 16), the Council

recognises non-current assets as:

> Assets where it is expected that future economic benefit or service potential will
flow to the Council.

»  Assets where the cost can be measured reliably.

and defines them as:-

» Assets held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, rental to
others, or for administrative purposes.

>  Assets expected to be used for more than one financial period.

The initial measurement of an asset is recognised to be:

» Purchase price, construction cost, minimum lease payments or equivalent
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade
discounts and rebates.
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»  Costs associated with bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

» Initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring
the site on which it is located, the obligation for which the Council incurred either
when the asset was acquired or as a consequence of having used the asset during
a particular period for purposes other than producing inventories during that
period.

Subsequent expenditure are costs incurred to add to, replace part of, or service the

asset, but do not include day-to-day repairs and maintenance and are treated as capital

when

» The expenditure will substantially increase the market value of the asset.

»  The expenditure will substantially increase the extent to which the Council can use
the asset for the purpose, or in conjunction with the functions of the Council.

Where a component is replaced, the carrying amount of the old component shall be
derecognised to avoid double counting and the new component reflected in the
carrying amount, subject to the recognition principles as set out above.

The Council has determined in accordance with Regulation 30M of the Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) (Amendment) Regulations
2022 that the carrying amounts to be derecognised for Infrastructure Assets when there
is replacement expenditure is nil.

The Council has two levels of de-minimis for recognition of capital expenditure, £10,000

and £500,000:

»  £10,000 and below — all expenditure at this level is deemed to be non-enhancing
unless funded by a Capital grant, and therefore is charged to revenue as it is
incurred. This includes initial recognition of assets and subsequent asset
expenditure.

» Above £500,000 - expenditure meeting the definitions above will be treated as
capital expenditure, either as initial recognition or as an enhancement. However,
in order to ensure that the subsequent asset expenditure is enhancing the value
of the asset, the Council will instruct a valuation of the asset by a Royal Institute
of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) qualified valuer, and any impairment or additional
enhancement recognised as necessary.

» Any expenditure above £10,000 and below £500,000 will be treated as capital
expenditure as the amount is significant enough to increase the useful life of an
asset, however is not material enough to warrant individual impairment review,
until the time the asset would normally be valued.

Capital Assets are held on the balance sheet as non-current assets, unless otherwise
stated.
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The Council has assessed whether Voluntary Aided, Voluntary Controlled and
Foundation Schools should be included within the balance sheet, based upon an
assessment of ownership and control of the assets. Maintained schools are already
held on the balance sheet as the Council controls these entities and therefore all
transactions relating to maintained schools are recognised in these accounts. Other
types of schools such as Voluntary Aided, Voluntary Controlled and Foundation
schools are subject to a test of ownership. The Council recognises a school’s assets
on its balance sheet where it directly owns them and/or the Council retains substantive
rights over the assets and the future economic benefits/service potential of school
assets flow to the Council or rights to use the assets have been transferred from
another entity.

1.12. Donated Assets

These are acquired at less than fair value or transferred for nil consideration. When
the Council receives a donated non-current asset, the initial recognition of the asset
will be at fair value.

Once any condition attached to the donation has been satisfied, the credit which is the
difference between any cash payment and fair value will be treated as income in the
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement. To ensure there is no impact on Council Tax this
will then be reversed in the Movement in Reserves Statement and credited to the
Capital Adjustment Account.

Until the condition has been satisfied the credit will be recognised in the Donated
Assets account. If there is no condition, the recognition of the credit in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement will occur upon acquisition of the
asset.

The fair value of an asset will be assessed upon acquisition; this will be provided by a
RICS qualified valuer for property assets and another relevant valuation specialist for
other types of asset. After initial recognition, donated assets are treated in the same
way as similar owned assets.

1.13. Non-Current Asset Classification
The Council manages its assets in the following categories:

> Intangible Assets
In line with International Accounting Standard 38 (IAS 38), the Council recognises
intangible assets as non-monetary assets without physical substance, where that
asset meets the capital expenditure criteria set out in Accounting Policy 1.11.

> Property, Plant and Equipment Assets
Property Plant and Equipment Assets are subcategorised into Operational
Assets: Land & Buildings, Community Assets, Vehicles Plant Furniture &
Equipment, Infrastructure Assets, and Non-Operational Assets, these being
Surplus Assets and Assets under Construction.
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Land and/or Buildings Assets.

These assets are recorded, valued and accounted for based on their

significant components in line with IAS 16. The Council recognises a

significant asset to be 25% of the total asset base within an asset class. A

component would be recognised if its expenditure in a given financial year

exceeds 25% of the total value of the significant asset and has a substantially

different life to the overall asset:

= Combined Group containing Flat Roof & Mechanical Engineering (Internal

Works i.e. boiler system)

= Land

= Temporary Buildings (sheds / portacabins)

= Combined group containing permanent structure, external works (i.e. car
park), pitched roof and components of less than 25% of the overall
structure value

Other unique features (e.g. a swimming pool)

Community Assets

These are assets that the Authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no
determinable useful life and which may, in addition, have restrictions on their
disposal. There is little prospect for sale or change of use.

If the asset is used for a specific operational purpose, it does not qualify as a
community asset and should be valued accordingly.

Infrastructure Assets

These include all tangible (physical) assets required within the Council’s road
networks. There is no prospect for sale or alternative use of infrastructure
assets; expenditure is only recoverable through continued use of the asset.

Vehicles, Plant Furniture and Equipment Assets
These assets are also classified as Property Plant and Equipment.

Non-Operational Assets:

Surplus Assets

These are assets that are not being used to deliver services, and do not meet
the criteria to be classified as either investment properties or held for sale. All
surplus assets under IFRS13 which came into effect and were adopted by the
Council from 1 April 2015 are to be valued at Fair Value and depreciated
accordingly.

Assets Under Construction

These are assets which are in the process of being constructed and are not
yet operational.
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>

Investment Property Assets
These are items of land and / or buildings held by the Council solely for the purpose
of rental income generation or capital appreciation or both.

As such where there is a service of the Council being delivered from the property,
this is not classified as Investment Property Assets. This includes where the
intention of the asset is to generate economic growth to an area such as below
market value rental.

Investment property that subsequently meets the criteria within the Code to be
classified as held for sale shall continue to be accounted for as an investment
property but may be reported separately as investment property held for sale.

Some Assets Under Construction may also be classified as Investment Properties
where the intended eventual use is rental income generation or capital
appreciation.

Heritage Assets

Assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations because of
their cultural, environmental or historical associations are classified as Heritage
Assets.

Assets Held for Sale
The Council will classify Non-Current Assets as Held for Sale where all of the
following criteria have been met:

o The asset must be available for immediate sale in its present condition.
However, if a sale is dependent on planning permission being obtained,
reclassification is suspended until that permission has been given.

o The asset’s sale is highly probable.

The asset must be actively marketed for sale.
o The completion of the sale is expected within 12 months from the date of
classification.

O

In situations where it is not necessary to carry out active marketing, for example
the Council is able to identify prospective purchases willing to pay a reasonable
price without marketing or because the buyer initiates the transaction (such as a
right-to-buy-sale) the actively marketed test is treated as ‘not applicable’, rather
than failed.

Assets which become non-operational which do not meet all of the criteria set out
as assets Held for Sale will be classified as surplus. If at a later point in time the
asset no longer meets the criteria of Held for Sale, it is restored to its previous
classification and all transactions which would have occurred shall be
retrospectively applied as though the asset had never been held for sale.
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Assets meeting the criteria as Held for Sale are held as current assets on the
balance sheet as income is expected within 12 months. It is possible that assets
meeting the criteria to be Held for Sale; may undergo a change in circumstance
beyond the control of the Council resulting in the sale being delayed beyond 12
months. In these instances, the Council follows the policies outlined for assets
held for sale; however disclosure of the value for these assets is within non-current
assets. Due to the circumstances around the definition, it is expected that this will
occur very rarely.

1.14. Non-Current Asset Valuation Methodology

The various classifications of assets as outlined in Accounting Policy 1.13 are valued
on a differing base. Where not explicitly stated otherwise, property revaluations are
completed by a RICS qualified valuer (who is internal to the Council), over a ‘short
period’, interpreted to mean on a five year rolling programme for each class of asset
i.e. 20% of the Council’s assets are revalued at 31 March for the financial year.

Where there is an upward revaluation, the carrying value is increased and the
associated credit charged directly to the Revaluation Reserve. This is then reflected
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as a revaluation gain.
Where there is a downward revaluation, the carrying amount of the asset is written
down against any balance of previous revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation
Reserve (up to the amount of the accumulated gains). Any further decrease is charged
to revenue. This is then reversed through the Movement in Reserves Statement and
charged to the Capital Adjustment Account.

The Council, as per the reporting standard, values its assets and liabilities in
accordance with section 2.10 of the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom to reflect the adoption of IFRS13 Fair Value Measurement at each
reporting date except where adaptations to fit the public sector are detailed in the Code.
However, Section 4.1 of the Code adapts IAS 16 to require that items of Property, Plant
and Equipment that are operational and therefore providing a service potential for the
authority are measured for their service potential at existing use value, existing use
value — social housing, (depreciated) historic cost or depreciated replacement cost and
not at fair value. Surplus assets are measured at fair value. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants and the measurement date. The fair value measurement
assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

Fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market

participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the Council takes into account
a market participants ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Code requires Infrastructure Assets and Assets Under Construction (excluding
Investment Property, see Section 4.4 of the Code) to be measured at historic cost.
Community assets may either be valued in accordance with Section 4.10 of the Code,
where the valuation option has been adopted, or measured at historic cost. The
Council measures Community Assets at historic cost.

Heritage Assets will be valued in accordance with Section 4.10 of the Code.

The Code requires all other assets to be measured at Current Value and the basis of
valuation will be determined using the following criteria:

Depreciated replacement cost — specialised assets
Existing use value — non-specialised assets
Existing use value — social housing
Fair value for the following assets:

o Investment assets

o Surplus assets

o Assets Held for Sale (less costs to sell)

The Council uses valuation techniques, as required by the Code, which maximise the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs and
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available.

Observable inputs are inputs that are developed using market data, such as publicly
available information about actual events or transactions, and that reflect the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability.

Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data is not available and that are
developed using the best information available about the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability.

The Council follows the fair value hierarchy which categorises inputs to the valuation
techniques in respect of assets and liabilities into three levels for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the Council’s financial statements, these include:

o Level 1 inputs — unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

e Level 2 inputs — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

e Level 3 inputs — unobservable inputs for the asset or liability
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Highest priority is given to Level 1 inputs (unadjusted) in active markets and lowest
priority to Level 3.

Upon the revaluation of a Surplus Asset at the 315t March of the financial year, based
on the inputs available at the date of valuation the valuer will establish the Code
Valuation Input Level for the valuation and will compare this with the Code Valuation
Input Level for the previous valuation. Where the Input Level is different from that of
the previous valuation this will be specifically reported with the valuation together with
a narrative description of the reasons and differing circumstances that have resulted in
the change.

Valuations are completed under the Code as follows:

>

Intangible Assets — the Council recognises Intangible Assets at cost. The
Council will only revalue intangible assets annually where there is a determinable
market value for the asset.

Property Plant and Equipment (PPE) — Property Assets are held at current value
which is the amount that would be paid for the asset in its existing use. This
requirement is met by providing a valuation on the basis of Existing Use Value
(EUV) in accordance with United Kingdom Practice Statement (UKPS) 1.3 of the
RICS Valuation Standards. Where no other valuation method can be used
because of the specialist nature of the asset, current value is estimated using a
Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) approach. Vehicles, Plant, Furniture and
Equipment, IT Hardware, and Assets Under Construction within PPE are held at
historic cost (not valued).

Infrastructure Assets — the Council recognises Infrastructure Assets at
Depreciated Historical Cost.

Investment Property Assets — Investment Properties are annually revalued at
fair value which is interpreted as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its
highest and best use, i.e. market value. An investment property under
construction is measured at cost until such time as its fair value can be determined
reliably or its construction us complete, whichever comes first. The fair value of
Investment Property held under a lease is the lease interest.

Community Assets — the Council recognises Community Assets at historic cost.

Heritage Assets — where it is possible to determine a valuation for Heritage
Assets, then the Council will recognise the asset in the Balance Sheet at that
valuation. Where a valuation has been applied to this class of assets, other than
a historic valuation, a range of valuation bases have been used which include
external valuations, curatorial valuations and a limited number of cases of
insurance valuations. Where a curatorial valuation has been applied the valuation
is dependent upon the experience and knowledge of the Derbyshire Museums
Manager. However, where it is not practicable to obtain a valuation the asset will
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be carried at historic cost. Where information on cost or value is not available all
Heritage Assets will be disclosed in the notes to the accounts, even where they
are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Where there is evidence of impairment
to Heritage Assets e.g. where an item has suffered a physical deterioration or
breakage or new doubts arise as to its authenticity, any impairment is recognised
and measured in accordance with the Council’s general policies on impairment.

> Assets Held for Sale — Non-Current Assets Held for Sale are, at initial
classification and at the end of each reporting year, valued at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell and depreciation on these assets should
cease.

»  Surplus Assets - Surplus assets are valued at Fair Value in accordance with the
Code.

1.15. Impairment of Non-Current Assets

This accounting policy has been created in accordance with IAS 36.
Impairment is the amount to which the carrying value of an asset exceeds the
recoverable amount.

At the end of each reporting period the Council assesses whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired.

The Council recognises impairment as:

» A significant decline (i.e. more than expected as a result of the passage of time or
normal use) in an asset’s carrying amount during the period that is specific to the
asset;

Evidence of obsolescence or physical damage of an asset;

A commitment by the Council to undertake a significant reorganisation; and

A significant adverse change in the statutory or other regulatory environment in
which the Council operates.

Y V V

Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve,
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount
of the accumulated gains). Any further impairment or if there has been no previous
revaluation, the impairment is charged to revenue. This is then reversed through the
Movement in Reserves Statement and charged to the Capital Adjustment Account.

1.16. Disposal of Non-Current Assets

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the Balance
Sheet is written off to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part
of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals are credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on
disposal. Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the
Capital Adjustment Account.
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Sale proceeds in excess of £10,000 are categorised as Capital Receipts. Receipts are
credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve, and can then only be used for new capital
investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the Capital
Financing Requirement). Receipts are transferred to the Reserve from the movement
in reserves statement. The value of the asset is transferred to the Capital Adjustment
Account via the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Sale proceeds of £10,000 and below are credited straight to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

1.17. Depreciation / Amortisation Methodology

In order to recognise the total cost of using fixed assets, the Council has a policy to
depreciate assets on a straight line basis over their useful economic life, reducing the
value of the asset, and charging the relevant revenue service expenditure. However,
under statute, depreciation is not chargeable to the taxpayer, the Council removes this
charge through the Movement in Reserves Statement and charges it to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

The Council charges depreciation on a pro-rata basis during the year i.e. from the
month of acquisition to the month of disposal.

The economic lives of assets are:
» Intangible Assets — 5 years.

> Property Plant and Equipment
o  Combined Group for Flat Roof and Mechanical Engineering — 20 years
Land — not depreciated
Temporary Buildings — 15 years
Modular Buildings — 25 years
Combined group for structure, external works, pitched roof and
components of less than 25% of the overall structure value — 40 years
Other unique features (i.e. a swimming pool) — as required
Fixtures and Fittings — 10 years
IT Hardware — 5 years
Vehicles — 3 to 10 years

O O O O

O O O O

> Infrastructure Assets

Carriageways — 40 years

Footways and cycle tracks — 40 years
Structures — 120 years

Lighting — 40 years

Traffic management — 30 years
Street furniture — 40 years

0O O O O O O

» Investment Property Assets — not depreciated
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>

>

Community Assets — Community Assets are assets that an authority intends to
hold to perpetuity which have no determinable useful lives and as such are not
depreciated.

Assets Held for Sale — are not depreciated

Assets Under Construction — are not depreciated

Heritage Assets (with indefinite lives) — are not depreciated

1.18. Leases

In line with IAS 17, the Council recognises a lease to be any agreement which transfers
the right to use an asset for an agreed period in exchange for payment, or a series of
payments.

This includes leases, hire purchase, rental, contracts of service, service level
agreements and any other arrangement where the ability to use an asset is conveyed.

1.19. Defining a Finance Lease

A finance lease is where substantially all of the risks and rewards relating to ownership
transfer to the lessee.

Tests to give an indication of the transfer of risk and reward are:

>

>

>

If the lessee will gain ownership of the asset at the end of the lease term (e.g. hire
purchase)
If the lessee has an option to purchase the asset at a sufficiently favourable price
that it is reasonably certain, at the inception of the lease, that it will be exercised
If the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of the asset even if the
title is not transferred. Measures to identify this are:
= The economic life of the asset is deemed to be that which is
consistent with the class of asset in the depreciation policy.
= The Council recognises ‘major part’ to be 75% of the life of the asset,
unless on an individual case basis this would not give a true
representation of the substance of the transaction.
At the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments
amounts to at least substantially all of the fair value of the leased asset. Measures
to identify this are:
= Fair value of the leased asset is assessed by a RICS qualified valuer.
= The present value of the minimum lease payments is calculated by
discounting at the rate inherent in the lease.
= |f this rate cannot be determined the incremental borrowing rate
applicable for that year is used.
= The Council recognises ‘substantially all’ to be 75% of the value of
the asset, unless on an individual case basis this would not give a
true representation of the substance of the transaction.
The leased assets are of such a specialised nature that only the lessee can use
them without major modifications.
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» If the lessee cancels the lease, the losses of the lessor, associated with the
cancellation are borne by the lessee.

» Gains or losses from the fluctuation in the fair value of the residual accrue to the
lessee (e.g. in the form of a rent rebate equalling most of the sales proceeds at
the end of the lease).

» The lessee has the ability to continue the lease for a secondary period at a rent
that is substantially lower than market rent.

A suitably experienced accountant, with assistance from qualified valuers, will make a

judgement based on the level of risk and reward held by the Council as to whether a

lease is operating or finance.

1.20. Defining an Operating Lease
The Council recognises an operating lease to be a lease which is not a finance lease.

1.21. Lessee Accounting for a Finance Lease

Where the Council is tenant in a property, or is, by definition of IFRIC 4, leasing an
asset which is deemed under IAS 17 to be a finance lease the Council will recognise
that asset within the asset register, and account for that asset as though it were an
owned asset.

The initial recognition of the asset is at the fair value of the property, or if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments. A liability is also recognised at this
value, which is reduced as lease payments are made.

1.22. Lessor Accounting for a Finance Lease

Where the Council is the lessor for a finance lease, the asset is not recognised in the
asset register; however, a long term debtor at the present value of minimum lease
payments is recognised. Income received is split between capital - credited against
the debtor, and finance income — credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement as interest receivable.

1.23. Lessor Accounting for an Operating Lease

Where the Council is the lessor for an operating lease, it will retain the property as
either an item of Property Plant and Equipment or as an Investment Property on the
Balance Sheet. Any rental income is credited to the relevant service income.

1.24. Service Concession Agreements (Private Finance Initiative (PFI) and other
similar contracts)

These are agreements or contracts where the contractor uses a fixed asset to provide
a public service on behalf of the Council for a specified period of time and the contractor
receives payments from the Council for the period of the arrangement. The asset may
be provided, constructed or enhanced by either the contractor or Council.
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The arrangement is assessed against control tests to determine whether the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the asset lie with the Council. Where the control
tests are met, the Council recognises a capital asset in the Balance Sheet. Once
recognised this asset is treated in line with all capital assets. A corresponding long-
term liability is also recognised at the construction value.

The total unitary payments made during the life of the contract are separated into the
service charge, finance costs and capital costs. Determining the split of payments is
calculated at the inception of the contract and is based on the inherent interest rate
within the original agreement.

The service element, which compensates the contractor for the public services it is
providing, is chargeable to the relevant revenue service expenditure as incurred.
Finance costs are chargeable to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as Interest payable. Capital Costs reduce the level of liability in the Balance
Sheet. Pre-payments or Dowry payments reduce the level of liability at the start of the
contract.

PFI Credits are treated as general revenue Government grants.

1.25. Capital Grants and Contributions

The Council recognises capital grants and contributions as being related to capital
assets and uses them to fund capital expenditure on those assets. Grants,
contributions and donations are recognised as income at the date that the Council has
satisfied the conditions of entitlement, and there is reasonable assurance that the
monies will be received.

Any grant received before these recognition criteria were satisfied would be held as a
creditor. Any grant which had met the recognition criteria but had not been received
would be shown as a debtor. This is in line with the Accruals Concept Policy.

Once the recognition criteria above have been satisfied, capital grants are recognised
as income in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

In order to not impact on the level of Council Tax, the Council removes the credit from
the General Reserves through the Movement in Reserves Statement and makes a
credit to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve.

Once expenditure has been incurred on the related asset, the credit is removed from
the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve and credited to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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1.26. Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)

Expenditure incurred that either may be capitalised under statutory provisions or is
capital in nature but does not result in the creation of a fixed asset that is owned by the
Council. REFCUS is charged as expenditure to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year, however, is financed from existing capital resources
or by borrowing. A transfer between the Capital Adjustment Account and the Movement
in Reserves Statement then reverses out the impact on the general fund balance.

1.27. Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

The Council is not required to raise Council Tax to cover depreciation, impairment
losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from
revenue to contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement.

The Council will provide for 2.5% of debt outstanding on all debt as at 31 March 2008.
On any new debt since this date the Council will provide 2.5% of the balance on all
borrowing, unless any unsupported borrowing relates to any significant assets with a
life of less than 20 years. In this case an annual amount based on the expected useful
life of the individual assets is used and where those assets are vehicles then an
average life of five years is used.

The Council has adopted the policy of charging MRP for PFl and Leased Assets at the
value of the associated loan liability repayment each year, thus mitigating the impact
to the General Reserve.

1.28. Capital Reserves

The Council holds Capital Reserves for the purpose of financing capital expenditure.
Reserves will be disclosed as either usable (available to fund capital expenditure) or
unusable (reserves held as a result of timing differences associated with recognition of
capital expenditure and related financing).

Movements in capital reserves are accounted through the Movement in Reserves
Statement.
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REVENUE ACCOUNTING

1.29. Recognition of Revenue Expenditure
The Council recognises revenue expenditure as expenditure which is not capital.

1.30. Employee Costs

In accordance with IAS 19, the Council accounts for the total benefit earned by
employees during the financial year.

Employee Costs are split into 3 categories; short term benefits, termination benefits
and pensions costs.

Short Term Employee Benefits

>

Salaries and Wages — The total salary and wages earned by employees during
the financial year are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. Where the amount accrued exceeds the amount paid at the 31 March,
a creditor will be reflected in the accounts.

Leave Owed, Accumulating Absences — The Council allows employees to earn
time off in one period with the resulting cost to the Council in a later period when
that time is either taken off or paid to the employee. Examples of this accumulating
leave are annual leave, flexi-time and time off in lieu.

If an employee were to leave the Council, cash payment would be made for
entittements such as annual leave; this leave is termed vesting. Where no cash
payment would be due, the leave is termed non-vesting.

In order to correctly reflect the cost of time owed to staff, a charge has been made
to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and a creditor accrual
has been reflected in the Balance Sheet. This charge is reflective of the estimated
time cost value of all accumulating leave owed to employees. Vesting leave will
be charged in full; however non-vesting leave has been adjusted to reflect the
turnover of staff.

Easter Bank Holiday — When Good Friday and/or Easter Monday fall in April, the
preceding financial year only accounts for 6 or 7 bank holidays rather than the
statutory 8. When this occurs, a charge is made to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and a creditor accrual is reflected in the Balance
Sheet.

Non-accumulating Absences — are periods of leave that cannot be carried
forward for use in future periods. Examples include Maternity Leave, Special
Leave, Sick Leave and Jury Service. The Council does not recognise non-
accumulating compensated absences until the time that the absence occurs.
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>

Non-monetary Benefits — Where employees have non-monetary benefits (e.g.
retirement benefits or life insurance), the associated cost of providing that benefit
has been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Termination Benefits

>

Redundancy Costs — The obligation to pay redundancy costs occurs when there
is a formal plan to create redundancies. The plan would include the location,
function and approximate number of employees affected; the termination benefits
offered; and the time of implementation. When these recognition criteria have
been met the Council recognises the costs associated with this in the service
revenue expenditure and creates a creditor in the Balance Sheet. Where the
payable amount is due in more than 12 months from the year end date, the costs
are discounted at the rate determined by reference to market yields. In the case
of an offer to encourage voluntary redundancy, the Council has recognised the
estimated cost based on the expected number of employees taking the offer.

The Council will disclose details of exit packages within the notes to the accounts.

Pensions Costs

>

Teachers’ Pension Scheme - is a defined benefit scheme administered by the
Department for Education. The assets and liabilities of the Teachers' Pension
Scheme are not attributable to the Council, therefore the Council accounts for the
scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. This means that the Children
and Education Services line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement will only include the Council’s contributions payable to the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme — is a defined benefit scheme. The
liabilities of the scheme attributable to the Council are included in the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method —i.e. an assessment
of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned
to date by employees, based on assumptions such as mortality rates and
employee turnover rates, and projections of earnings for current employees.

Pension liabilities are measured using the projected unit method, discounted using
the rate on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent term to the liabilities. The
discount rate is the weighted average of “spot yields” on AA rated corporate
bonds.

The change in the net pension liability is analysed into seven components:

e Current Service Cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service
earned this year — allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement within the relevant service area dependant on staff employed at the
Council. The current service cost includes an allowance for administration
expenses
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e Past Service Cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current year decisions
whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years — debited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non-Distributed
Costs

e Gains/Losses on Settlements and Curtailments — the result of actions to relieve
the Council of liabilities or events that reduce the expected future service or
accrual of benefits of employees — debited to the Net Cost of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed
Costs

¢ Interest Cost — the expected increase in the present value of liabilities during the
year as they move one year closer to being paid — debited to Net Operating
Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

e Interest Income on Plan Assets — the annual investment return on the fund
assets attributable to the Council, based on an average of the expected long-
term return — credited to Net Operating Expenditure in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

e Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the net pensions liability that arise
because events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial
valuation or because the actuaries have updated their assumptions — debited to
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

e Employer Contributions — cash paid by the Council to the Pension Fund.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Reserve
to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the Pension Fund in the
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.
Adjustments are therefore made in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

» Early Retirement, Discretionary Payments — the Council has restricted powers
to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the event of early
retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any
member of staff (including teachers) are accrued in the year of the decision to
make the award and accounted for using the same policies which are applied to
the Local Government Pension Scheme.

1.31. Lessee Accounting for an Operating Lease

Costs associated with operating leased assets where the Council is the lessee are
charged immediately to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement within
the Net Cost of Services on an accruals basis.

1.32. Revenue Grants and Contributions

Grants, contributions and donations (referred to as grants for the purposes of this
policy) are recognised as income at the date that the Council has satisfied the
conditions of entitlement, and there is reasonable assurance that the monies will be
received. Any grant received before these recognition criteria were satisfied would be
held as a creditor (income in advance). Any grant which had met the recognition
criteria but had not been received would be shown as a debtor.
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Revenue grants will either be received to be used only for a specific purpose or can be
used for general purpose. Those for a specific purpose are recognised in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement within the Net Cost of Services.
Those which are for general purpose are shown within Other Operating (Income) and
Expenditure in the Comprehensive Expenditure and Income Statement.

1.33. Income from Service Recipients

Income from service recipients is defined as consideration that a party, which has
contracted with the Council, has given in exchange for goods or services that are the
output of the Council’'s normal operating activities. Such a contract may be in writing,
orally or in accordance with customary business practices. These may include:
e Charges for service provided by the Council.
e Sale of goods provided by the Council.
o Fees and charges for services under statutory requirements where there is an
exchange of assets or services, such as the issuing of a licence or processing
of an application.

In such cases the Council recognises income when it has satisfied the performance
obligation by transferring the promised goods or services to the service recipient. The
point of transfer is when the service recipient takes control of the goods or benefits
from the service.

The Council deems performance obligations to be satisfied over time, rather than at a
point in time if any of the following criteria are met:

e The service recipient simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of a
service.

e The Council’'s performance enhances an asset that the service recipient
controls.

e The Council has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date and that performance does not create an asset for which it has an
alternative use.

Such income is recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
within the Net Cost of Services.

1.34. Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council an
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits, but
where the timing of the transfer is uncertain.

Provisions are charged to the appropriate service revenue account in the year that the
Council recognises an obligation, based on the best estimate of the likely settlement.
When payments are eventually made, it is charged to the provision. Where payment is
not expected for more than 365 days after the balance sheet date, the provision has
been discounted using the rate of a high quality corporate bond.

Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year and adjustments
with the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement are made as required.
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Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be met
by another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income if it
is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is settled.

The Council does not hold any general provisions.

1.35. Revenue Reserves

The Council holds usable revenue reserves for the purpose of funding future
expenditure. The General Reserve represents the balance of reserves to meet short
term, unforeseeable expenditure and to enable significant changes in resources or
expenditure to be properly managed over the period of the Five Year Financial Plan.
Earmarked Reserves represent balances where approval has been received to use the
reserve for a specific purpose.

Unusable revenue reserves represent timing differences such as those associated with
the recognition of retirement benefits, Council tax income and financial instruments.

Movement in reserves are accounted through the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Council publishes a separate Reserves Policy document, which is reviewed by
Cabinet at least annually.

1.36. Research Costs

Research costs should be treated as revenue expenditure at the point in which they
are incurred and charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

1.37. Members’ Allowances

The Council in exercise of the powers and duties conferred by the Local Authorities
(Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003, has established a Members
Allowance Scheme, outlining the allowances payable to Members of the Council.
Members are reminded of the need to keep detailed supporting information, such as a
diary, about every attendance for which they claim. This information should be
available for scrutiny by the Council’s Auditors or other relevant persons as and when
required. The scheme is updated annually, and full details are available on the
Council's website.

The total amount paid in terms of Members Allowances is disclosed in the notes to the
accounts.

1.38. Council Tax and Business Rates Recognition

Council Tax and Business Rates income included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement includes the Council’s share of accrued income recognised by
billing authorities in the production of the Collection Fund Statements.
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The difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the
General Reserve is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and reported in
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

1.39. Inventories and Work in Progress

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Inventory is recorded in terms of average cost, with the exception of fleet parts
where the cost is recorded on a first in, first out basis.

Work in progress is subject to an interim valuation at the year-end and recorded in the
Balance Sheet at cost plus any profit reasonably attributable to the works.

1.40. Loss Allowance for Expected Credit Losses

The Council maintains a loss allowance for any amounts it is due to receive from its
debtors or investments which might become uncollectable.

Creditrisk is assessed based on the expectation of a debtor’s or an investment issuer’s
ability to pay future cash flows due under the contractual terms. This risk is estimated,
where possible, based on historical loss experience, the debtor’s or investment issuer’s
credit rating and other impacting factors including forward-looking information.

The loss allowance for an investment is initially measured at an amount equal to the
portion of the lifetime credit losses which might be expected from a default event within
12 months of the balance sheet date. If the Council considers that the risk of default
on an investment has increased significantly since the investment was initially
recognised it will measure the loss allowance at an amount equal to the total lifetime
credit losses expected from a default event.

At each Balance Sheet date, the Council makes a two-stage assessment of significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition:

o Firstly, whether there is evidence of a significant increase for an individual debtor
or investment that is significant, and

o Secondly, whether there is evidence of a significant increase for groups of similar
debtors or investments.

The Council adopts the simplified approach of measuring the loss allowance for
debtors at an amount equal to the total lifetime credit losses expected from a default
event, from the time a debtor is initially recognised.

No loss allowance is recognised for expected credit losses where the debtor or

investment issuer is central government or another local authority for which relevant
statutory provisions prevent default.
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Loss allowances are offset against the debtor or investment amount shown as an
asset. The movement in the allowance is charged to Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

1.41. Definition of Treasury Management Activities
The Council has adopted the following definition of Treasury Management activities:

The management of the Council’s cash flows, its banking, money market and capital
market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities;
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.

The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to be
the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities will
be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management
activities will focus on their risk implications for the Council.

The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support
towards the achievement of its service objectives. It is therefore committed to the
principles of achieving best value in treasury management, and to employing suitable
performance measurement techniques, within the context of effective risk
management.

1.42. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid
investments that mature in no more than three months or less from the date of
acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant
risk of change in the value.

1.43. Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised cost.

Annual charges to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate
of interest for the instrument. For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this
means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal
repayable plus any interest accrued to 31 March and interest charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year
in the loan agreement.
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Any premiums or discounts, incurred on the early repayment of loan debt, arising from
1 April 2007 are taken immediately to Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year of
repayment. However, the amount is then credited or debited to the General Reserve
and transferred to the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account via the Movement in
Reserves Statement as required by statute.

The regulations allow that the premium or discount is amortised over periods specified
in the statutory guidance. In accordance with the guidance the Council has a policy of
spreading the premium or discount over the remaining term of the original loan, or a
minimum of 10 years in the case of discounts. This amortisation is managed by a
transfer from the Financial Instruments Adjustment Account to the General Reserve via
the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Where a loan has been restructured, by a modification to the terms of the existing loan
or by an exchange of debt instruments with the existing lender, and the terms are
substantially different, the original financial liability is extinguished and a new financial
liability is recognised. The difference between the carrying amount of the new and
extinguished liability and any consideration transferred is recognised in Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Where the terms of a loan debt exchange or the modification to the terms of an existing
loan are not substantial, the carrying amount of the liability is adjusted to the value of
the remaining cash flows required by the new terms, including any premiums or
discounts paid/received, discounted to present value at the original loan’s effective
interest rate. Any gain or loss on modification is credited and debited to Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

A modification of terms is deemed to be substantially different if the present value of
the cash flows under the new terms, including any premiums or discounts paid/received,
is at least 10% different from the present value of the cash flows under the old terms.
In both cases the present value is calculated by reference to original loan’s effective
interest rate.

1.44. Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified into three types according to the Council’s business
model for managing those assets and the characteristics of the cash flows of the asset:

1) Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost — assets where it is the Council’s

intention to hold the asset to collect the contractual cash flows and those cash flows
consist solely of payments of principal and interest which arise on specified dates

154



ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value and carried at their amortised
cost. Annual credits to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has
made, this means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding
principal receivable plus any interest accrued to 31 March and interest credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the
year in the loan agreement. However, the Council could make loans to organisations
at less than market rates (soft loans).

When soft loans are made, a loss is recorded in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement for the present value of the interest that will be foregone over
the life of the instrument, resulting in a lower amortised cost than the outstanding
principal. Interest is credited at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the
rate receivable from the voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to increase
the amortised cost of the loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that
the impact of soft loans on the General Reserves is the interest receivable for the
financial year — the reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the net gain required against
the General Reserves is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial Instruments
Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past
event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down
and a charge made to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any
gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited/debited to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Investments are represented on the balance sheet depending on their remaining life at

the Balance Sheet date:

¢ Investments entered into for 90 days or less - debited to the cash balance as cash
equivalents and represented within the cash flow statement.

¢ Investments entered into for more than 90, with less than 365 days until maturity —
debited to current asset investments

¢ Investments due to expire in more than 365 days — debited to non-current asset
investments

2) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive
Income — assets where it is the Council’s intention to hold the asset both to sell the
asset and to collect the contractual cash flows and those cash flows consist solely
of payments of principal and interest which arise on specified dates, or assets which
are equity instruments which it is the Council’s intention to hold for more than 12
months and which the Council has irrevocably elected to present changes to their
fair value in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
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These assets are initially measured and carried at fair value. Where the asset has
determinable payments of dividends or interest, these are credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Interest receivable is based on
the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. Dividends are recognised when the Council’s right to receive the payment
has been established and the amount can be measured reliably.

Values are based on the following principles:
o instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
o other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted
cash flow analysis

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Financial Instrument Revaluation
Reserve and the gain/loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure and the Movement in Reserves Statement. Impairment of these assets,
due to expected credit losses, is charged to Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and credited to
a loss allowance account which reduces the carrying value of the financial asset. Any
gains and losses that arise on de-recognition of the asset are credited/debited to
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains/losses. Where fair value
cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost (less any impairment
losses).

3) Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss — assets which
are neither measured at amortised cost nor where changes to fair value are
presented in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

These assets are initially measured and carried at fair value. Where the asset has
determinable payments of dividends or interest, these are credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Interest receivable is based on
the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. Dividends are recognised when the Council’s right to receive the payment
has been established and the amount can be measured reliably.

Values are based on the following principles:
o instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
o other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted
cash flow analysis
Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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1.45. Interests in Companies and Other Entities

Where the Council has material interests in companies and other entities that have the
nature of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, it is required to prepare group
accounts. The Council does not currently have any such material interests that require
group accounts to be prepared. In the Council’'s own single-entity accounts, the

interests in companies and other entities are recorded as investments, i.e. at cost, less
any provision for losses.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Derbyshire County Council

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Disclaimer of opinion on the financial statements

We were appointed to audit the financial statements of Derbyshire County Council (“the
Council”) for the year ended 31 March 2024, which comprise the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the Movement
in Reserves Statement, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24.

We do not express an opinion on the financial statements. Because of the significance of
the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have
not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these financial statements.

Basis for disclaimer of opinion

On 30 September 2024, the Accounts and Audit (Amendment) Regulations 2024 (‘The
Amendment Regulations’) came into force. The Amendment Regulations require the
Council to publish its Accountability Statements, which include the financial statements
and auditor’'s opinion for the year ended 31 March 2024, by 28 February 2025 (‘the
backstop date’).

The backstop date introduced by the Amendment Regulations has impeded our ability to
complete the necessary audit procedures in relation to the valuation of buildings which
have been valued based on depreciated replacement cost. There has been insufficient
time to perform all necessary procedures. Consequently, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial
statements.

Responsibilities of the Director of Finance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Director of Finance is
responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial
statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24, and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Director of Finance is also responsible
for such internal control as the Director of Finance determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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The Director of Finance is required to comply with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24 and prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis on the assumption that the functions of the Council
will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Director of Finance
is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for the Council to
prepare its accounts on the going concern basis and disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Council’s financial statements in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) and to issue an auditor’s report.
However, because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements. In reaching this judgement we
have complied with the requirements of the Code of Audit Practice and have had regard
to the Local Audit Reset and Recovery Implementation Guidance published by the
National Audit Office and endorsed by the Financial Reporting Council.
We are independent of the Council in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency, and
effectiveness in its use of resources

Matter on which we are required to report by exception

We are required to report to you if, in our view we are not satisfied that the Council has
made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use
of resources for the year ended 31 March 2024.

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and
Auditor General in November 2024, we have identified the following significant
weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements for the year ended 31 March 2024:
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Significant weakness in arrangements

Recommendation

Financial Sustainability

The Council has relied on reserves to
support its financial position in 2023-24 and
fell significantly short on its aggregated
target savings for 2023-24. In our view the
level of unachieved savings, and the
significant planned and unplanned use of
reserves to fund the resulting budget gap is
evidence of a significant weakness in the
Counci’'s arrangements  for financial
sustainability.

In addition, the 2023-24 service plans were
finalised after the budget had been
approved. We believe the lack of connection
between financial and operational plans is
further evidence of a significant weakness in
the Council’s arrangements for financial
sustainability.

The Council should develop sustainable,
deliverable financial plans to ensure
services can be provided within available
resources.

Governance

The Head of Internal Audit’s report for 2023-
24 gave a limited opinion on the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Council’s framework
of governance, risk management, and
control because of a high proportion of audits
in year that gave limited assurance opinions,
and the lack of clear evidence that previous
audit recommendations raised had been
fully implemented. In our view the Head of
Internal Audit opinion, and the reasons
underpinning it, is evidence of a significant
weakness in the Council's governance
arrangements.

The Council should appropriately respond
to recommendations made by internal audit,
take actions to address those
recommendations, and implement robust
monitoring processes to track progress
made against internal audit
recommendations.

Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and
governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these

arrangements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency, and effectiveness in the use of resources

We are required under Section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to
satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of resources. We are not required to consider, nor
have we considered, whether all aspects of the Council’'s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We have undertaken our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having
regard to the guidance issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2024.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of
Audit Practice

We are required by the Code of Audit Practice to report to you if:

e we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014;

e we make a recommendation under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014; or

e we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under sections 28, 29 or 31 of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. We have nothing to report in these
respects.

We are also required by the Code of Audit Practice, to give an opinion on whether other
information published together with the audited financial statements, is consistent with the
financial statements. Because of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of
Opinion section we do not express an opinion on the financial statements. We also do not
express an opinion on whether other information published together with the audited
financial statements is consistent with the financial statements.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the members of Derbyshire County Council, as a body, in
accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in
paragraph 44 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies
published by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the members of the Council those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than
the members of the Council, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed.
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Certificate

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we have
completed:
o the work necessary to issue our assurance statement in respect of the Council’s
Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack; and
e our work on an objection raised in relation to the Council’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2024.

Daniel Watson, Key Audit Partner For and on behalf of Forvis Mazars LLP
One St Peter's Square

Manchester

M2 3DE

28 February 2025
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Statement of Accounts
Derbyshire Pension Fund
2023-24
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PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS
EXPLANATORY FOREWORD

Derbyshire County Council administers the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS)
for employees, pensioners and dependents of a variety of bodies in Derbyshire, including
Councils; Police and Fire Authorities (for civilian employees); the University of Derby,
Colleges and Academies (non-teaching staff); Charities and some private companies
providing services to local councils.

Derbyshire Pension Fund (the Pension Fund/Fund) has over 350 participating employers
and approaching 110,000 membership records, relating to almost 95,000 members, either
active contributors, pensioners or deferred pensioners who have stopped paying into the
scheme but are not yet receiving a pension.

The benefits payable to members within the Fund are determined by regulations and are
guaranteed. Assets in the Fund meet members’ benefit payments when they fall due and
are accumulated through a combination of contributions from employees and employers
within the Fund and from investment returns (both income and capital). The profile of the
Pension Fund is gradually maturing, benefit payments exceeded contribution payments
during 2023-24 including the impact of transfers, however, the Fund continues to be
cashflow positive including investment income.

In August 2023, the Fund achieved signatory status to the Financial Reporting Council’s
UK Stewardship Code 2020, which sets high standards for those investing on behalf of
savers and pensioners by promoting transparency and accountability.

The Pensions and Investments Committee approved an updated Investment Strategy
Statement in March 2024, which included a further switch in the strategic asset allocation
benchmark from growth to income assets, to come into effect from 1 April 2024, reflecting
the continued improvement in the Pension Fund’s funding level. Committee also approved
an updated Responsible Investment Framework and an updated Climate Strategy which
included increased and expanded climate-related targets following the significant progress
made in reducing the carbon footprint of the Fund’s equity portfolio and increasing the
proportion of Fund assets invested in low carbon and sustainable investments.

At the end of March 2024, the value of the Fund’s investments assets had risen to just
under £6.5bn, returning 9.3% over the year. The Fund underperformed its benchmark on
a relative basis over 1 year but was in line with the benchmark over 3 years and continued
to outperform the benchmark over 5 and 10 years.

Equity markets performed strongly in 2023-24 with the FTSE All World Index returning
21% in Sterling terms. Equity market performance was dominated by a small handful of
US technology stocks, driven by strong earnings growth and growing excitement about
the potential for Artificial Intelligence. Broader market gains were driven by greater than
expected economic resilience and easing inflation increasing the prospect of lower interest
rates.
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In the UK, consumer price inflation had fallen from a peak of 11.1% in October 2022 to
3.2% by March 2024. In the US, consumer price inflation had fallen to 3.5% in March
2024, from a peak of 9.1% in June 2022. The Bank of England continued raising interest
rates until August 2023, with three increases taking rates from 4.25% in March 2023 to
5.25% in August 2023, the highest level since March 2008, with no further rises during the
year. Inthe US, the Federal Reserve continued increasing the target range for the federal
funds rate until July 2023, with two increases taking the target range from 4.75-5% in
March 2023 to 5.25%-5.5% in July 2023, its highest level since early 2001, with interest
rates subsequently on hold.

Returns from the major equity markets were positive during the year, ranging from 26.8%
in North America to 6.2% in Emerging Markets. Government bond returns were generally
poor over the year, as expectations for rate cuts faded as core inflation proved to be
stickier than forecast.

The Fund continued to work closely with its partners in the LGPS Central Pool, overseeing
the continued development of LGPS Central Limited (LGPSC), the company established
to manage investments on behalf of the LGPS Central Pool. LGPSC is currently
managing the Fund’s investment grade bonds allocation and a portion of the Fund’s
emerging market equity and global sustainable equity allocations through pooled
products and a commitment has been made to the company’s private debt, private equity
and indirect property funds. The Fund expects further assets to be transitioned into
LGPSC pooled products in 2024-25.

The final regulations to implement the McCloud remedy in the LGPS were laid on
8 September 2023 and came into force on 1 October 2023. The implementation of the
remedy is a significant administrative undertaking for the Fund, with an estimated 28,000
in-scope cases needing to be investigated. An allowance for the expected benefit change
(subsequently confirmed by the final regulations) was included in the 2022 actuarial
valuation.

Registrations on My Pension Online (MPO), the Fund’s member self-service system, and
employer onboarding to i-Connect, continued to progress, with over 36% of the Pension
Fund’s combined active and deferred members registered on MPO and employers
representing around 94% of the Fund’s membership using i-Connect, the automated data
submission and validation system, by the end of the year.

A separate Annual Report is produced for the Fund which, in addition to the Fund’s
accounts, includes the governance arrangements for the Fund, detailed performance
information and the Fund’s approved policy statements. The Annual Report is available
on Derbyshire Pension Fund’s website:

https://www.derbyshirepensionfund.org.uk/publications/annual-report/annual-report.aspx
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Membership Statistics

The Fund has approaching 110,000 membership records, relating to almost 95,000
members, either active contributors, pensioners, or deferred pensioners:

Actuals
31 Mar 2022 31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Contributors 38,170 38,025 37,503
Pensioners and Dependants 33,699 34,751 36,178
Deferred Pensioners 33,634 34,866 35,797

Employers’ Contributions

Employers pay pension contributions into the Fund. The contribution rates payable by the
County, Unitary and District Councils expressed as a percentage of pensionable payroll
and fixed cash amounts are:

Amber Valley Borough Council
Bolsover District Council

Chesterfield Borough Council
Derbyshire Dales District Council
Erewash Borough Council

High Peak Borough Council

North East Derbyshire District Council

South Derbyshire District Council

Council 2023-24 2024-25
Derbyshire County Council 20.8% plus £0.582m | 20.8% plus £0.582m
Derby City Council 20.3% plus £0.883m | 20.3% plus £0.883m

21.1% plus £0.631m
20.8% plus £0.262m
20.4% plus £0.726m
20.5% plus £0.192m
20.7% plus £0.502m
20.9% plus £1.227m
20.6% plus £0.901m
20.3% plus £0.174m

21.1% plus £0.566m
20.8% plus £0.262m
20.4% plus £0.726m
20.5% plus £0.192m
20.7% plus £0.502m
20.9% plus £1.147m
20.6% plus £0.901m
20.3% plus £0.174m

The percentage rates that were determined by the Actuary in the valuation of the Fund at
31 March 2019, for 2020-21 to 2022-23, and in the valuation of the Fund at 31 March
2022, for 2023-24 to 2025-26, are intended to cover the cost of future service of active
Fund members, with the past service deficit being addressed by an annual fixed cash
amount.

Members’ Contributions
For 2023-24 the contribution rates payable by members into the Fund are determined by
The Local Government Pension Scheme 2013 Regulations. The rates are between 5.5%

and 12.5% of members’ pay, including non-contractual overtime, depending on their pay
banding. There is no change to these rates for 2024-25.
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Investment Policy

During 2023-24, responsibility for policy matters rested with a Pensions and Investments
Committee, which was comprised of eight County Councillors, two Derby City Councillors
and one non-voting Trade Union representative. The Pensions and Investments
Committee received advice from the Council’'s Section 151 Officer and from one
independent external adviser.

Day-to-day management of the Fund is delegated to the Council’s Section 151 Officer and
their in-house staff, operating within a policy framework laid down by the Committee.

Policy is determined by reference to The Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016, which require that advice is
taken at regular intervals and place an onus on administering authorities to determine the
balance of their investments and take account of risk.

The Fund has a central (strategic) benchmark asset allocation which is designed to meet
the performance requirements for the level of risk agreed by the Pensions and
Investments Committee. There were no changes to the Fund's benchmark asset
allocation in 2023-24. The Fund’s benchmark asset allocation was changed on
1 January 2022, following changes to the Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement approved
in November 2020, together with the development of a standalone Responsible
Investment Framework and Climate Strategy. The changes to the asset allocation
benchmark included a 1% switch from Growth Assets to Income Assets, together with
some of the Fund’s regional equity allocations being switched into Global Sustainable
Equities.

Subsequent to 31 March 2024, the Fund has changed its benchmark asset allocation, with
a further 5% switch from Growth Assets to Income Assets, together with some further
switches of the Fund’s regional equity allocations into Global Sustainable Equities. The
Fund expects the changes will be implemented over 2024-25.

The Pensions and Investments Committee has a degree of flexibility around the central
benchmark allocation and decides the specific allocations (weights) for each asset class
at its quarterly meetings. In the table below, the column showing the benchmark return is
what would have been achieved via neutrally weighted index returns, whereas the actual
Fund returns are a function of both active asset allocation and active stock selection
decisions.

Investment Returns
The table below shows the Fund’s returns over 1, 3, 5 and 10 years to 31 March 2024,

compared to those of its strategic benchmark, as well as the impact of inflation on Fund
returns.
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Derbyshire

Pension
Fund Real

Return | Inflation Return

Derbyshire

Periods to Pension _ Versus CPI
31 Mar 2024 Fund Benchmark| CPl|  Inflation
%% pa % pal Yo Yo
1 Year 0.3 10.0| 3.2 6.1
J Years 4.4 d.d:s! a7 [2.-3)
5 Years 56 5.4 4.4 1.1
10 Years 7.0 6.7 2.9 4.1

On a year by year basis, returns tend to fluctuate significantly according to economic and
market conditions. Long-term returns are a more appropriate guide to the performance of
the Fund.

The Fund out-performed the benchmark on a five and ten-year basis and was in line with
benchmark on a three-year basis. The Fund underperformed the benchmark by 70 basis
points in 2023-24, albeit it should be noted that the Fund still returned +9.3% over this
period. It is important to note that the Fund has delivered real returns over the long-term,
with returns ahead of inflation on a five and ten-year basis. Global inflation increased
significantly in 2022-23, with UK inflation peaking at 11.1% in October 2022, reflecting
rising energy costs and tight global supply chains following the Covid-19 pandemic. In
response to rising inflation, the major central banks increased interest rates to slow down
economic activity and reduce inflation. In the UK, the Bank of England raised interest
rates from a record low of 0.10% in March 2020 to 5.25%, a sixteen year high, by March
2024. UK inflation gradually fell in 2023-24, falling to 3.2% by March 2024.

Equity markets reported strong gains in 2023-24, with the FTSE All World reporting a total
return of 21.0% in Sterling terms. Falling inflation, together with growing market
expectations that the major central banks would start to reduce interests, created a
sizeable tailwind for equity investors. In particular, equity market performance was
dominated by the Magnificent Seven; seven mega-cap US technology stocks comprising
Apple, Microsoft, Google parent Alphabet, Amazon, Nvidia, Meta Platforms and Tesla.
These seven stocks now account for around 30% of the US equity market and delivered
an average return in excess of 80% in 2023-24, driven by strong earnings growth and
expectations around the growth potential for Artificial Intelligence, which the market
expects to be a significant growth area from process and task automation and multi-media
content creation.
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By asset class, equity returns to Sterling investors in 2023-24 ranged from 26.8% in North
America to 6.2% in Emerging Markets. UK Equities returned 8.4%. The FTSE All World
returned 21.0% in Sterling terms, rising to 23.6% in US dollar terms, as Sterling
strengthened relative to the US dollar. Government bond returns were generally poor in
2023-24, as bond yields increased in response to central bank interest rate rises. UK Gilts
returned 0.0% and UK Index-Linked bonds retuned —5.0%. UK Investment Grade Bonds
returned 7.1%. Property returns were negative at -1.0% in 2023-24, albeit these were up
from -13.2% in 2022-23.

Actuarial Position of the Fund

Every three years an actuarial valuation of the Fund is undertaken, in accordance with the
provisions of The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013. The purpose of
the valuation is to review the funding strategy and ensure that the Fund has a contribution
plan and investment strategy in place that will enable it to pay members’ benefits as they
fall due. A valuation of the Fund was most recently undertaken as at 31 March 2022 and
set the level of contributions payable by each participating employer for the three years
commencing 1 April 2023.

At 31 March 2022, the Net Assets of the Fund were £6.132bn and the Past Service
Liabilities were £6.131bn. The Fund had a small surplus of £1m at that date. The Fund’s
Funding Strategy Statement is available on the Council's website at:
https://www.derbyshirepensionfund.org.uk/publications/policies-strategies-and-
statements/funding-strategy.aspx

The funding level is the Fund’s ratio of assets to liabilities at the valuation date. The
funding level at the 2022 valuation was 100%, which is an improvement on the funding
level at the 2019 valuation of 97%. This means that the Fund’s assets were sufficient to
meet 100% of its liabilities (the present value of promised retirement benefits) accrued up
to that date. For the purposes of reporting a funding level, an investment return of 3.8%
was assumed.

A market-related approach was taken to valuing the Fund liabilities, for consistency with
the valuation of the Fund assets at their market value. The liabilities were assessed using
an accrued benefits method which takes into account pensionable membership up to the
valuation date; and makes an allowance for expected future salary growth to retirement
or expected earlier date of leaving pensionable membership. An allowance has been at
included at this valuation for the expected benefit change related to the McCloud remedy.

A number of factors, both positive and negative, impacted on the overall funding level in

the 2022 valuation, with an overall improvement in funding of £0.164bn over the three
years to 31 March 2022, an improvement of £0.304bn compared to the expected position.
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The actual investment return on the Fund’s assets for the period 31 March 2019 to
31 March 2022 was better than expected, increasing the market value of the Fund’s
assets, and improving the funding position, by £1.212bn, £0.655bn more than expected.
The accrual of new benefits reduced the funding position by £0.575bn to 31 March 2022,
albeit this reduction was £0.071bn lower than expected.

Other membership experience in the period since the last valuation increased the value
of the Fund'’s liabilities and reduced the funding position by £0.172bn. Changes in future
expectations further reduced the actual funding position at 31 March 2022 by £0.252bn,
with an improvement in investment returns and other demographic assumptions being
more than offset by changes in inflation, salary increases and longevity assumptions, used
to calculate the present value of the Fund’s liabilities.

Assumptions used in the March 2022 actuarial valuation:

Assumption
Benefit Increases (Consumer Price Index (CPI) Inflation) 2.70%
Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) Revaluation (CPI Inflation) 2.70%
CPI Inflation 2.70%
Discount Rate 3.80%
Future Investment Return* 3.80%
Life Expectancy for Current Pensioners - Women Age 65 24.3 years
Life Expectancy for Future Pensioners - Women Age 45 25.8 years
Life Expectancy for Current Pensioners - Men Age 65 21.3 years
Life Expectancy for Future Pensioners - Men Age 45 22.2 years
Salary Increases™* 3.70%

* 77% likelihood that the Fund's assets will return at least 3.8% over the 20 years following the 2022
actuarial valuation date. This is the same methodology used for the 2019 actuarial valuation.
** Plus a promotional salary scale.

The contribution rates required have been determined using a “risk based” approach. The
level of contribution rate to give an appropriate likelihood of meeting an employer’s funding
target, within the agreed timeframe, is determined for each employer. The full rate of an
employer’s contribution provides for the cost of year-by-year accrual of benefits in respect
of current Fund members and the amount required to meet a shortfall in respect of the
assets required for pensions in payment (including those payable to survivors of former
members) and benefits accrued by other members, which will become payable in the
future (known as a past service deficiency).
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Since 31 March 2022, markets have been affected by the ongoing war in Ukraine and
inflationary pressures in 2022 and 2023, impacting on investment returns achieved by the
Fund’s assets. High levels of inflation in the UK (compared to recent experience), have
resulted in a higher than expected LGPS benefit increases of 10.1% in April 2023 and
6.7% in April 2024. However, asset performance has improved towards the end of 2023
and into 2024 and inflation has begun to return towards historical levels and the bank of
England’s target (2% p.a.). There has been a significant shift in the wider economic
environment since 2022, resulting in generally higher than expected future investment
returns and a reduction in the value placed on the Fund’s liabilities. Overall, the funding
position is likely to be stronger than at the previous formal valuation at 31 March 2022.

As an open scheme, with a strong covenant, the Fund takes a long-term view when
considering the funding impact of such events. For employers who have a very short time
horizon, recent volatility may be more immediately impactful, and the Fund has engaged
with these employers as appropriate. No explicit allowance has been made for this
volatility in the valuation results or contribution rates detailed in the Rates & Adjustments
Certificate. The Fund will continue to monitor changes in the financial and demographic
environment as part of its ongoing risk management approach. The next actuarial
valuation will be carried out as at 31 March 2025. The Funding Strategy Statement will
also be reviewed at that time.

Further Information

Derbyshire Pension Fund’s Investment Strategy Statement, Funding Strategy Statement,
Actuarial Valuation Report, Governance Policy and Compliance Statement,
Communications Policy and Annual Report are available on the Derbyshire Pension
Fund’s website at http://www.derbyshirepensionfund.org.uk .

171


http://www.derbyshirepensionfund.org.uk/

PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

FUND ACCOUNT
FUND ACCOUNT
20:22-23 202324
Erm Holw ) |
Dealings with Members, Employers and Others Directly
Invalved in the Fund
202 . 7T68| Contributions &1 236 807
17, 144] Transfers in from Other Pension Funds 1?.4EE|
218.912| 239,270
{195.410)| Benafits 7.2 (224 351)
(15.510) Payments to and on Account of Leavers .t _{27.493)
{210.920) (251.844)
Met (Withdrawals)iAdditlens irom Dealings with Members,

B892 Employers and Others Directly Invelved in the Fund [12.574)]
{33.136)|Management Expenses g {33 209
(24.144) Net (Withdrawals) Including Fund Management Expenses {45 873

Return on Investmeants
T1.587 | investment Incomie 10 B1.047
0,008] Taxes: o0 |mcomsa i 2.101
Praofils and Losses on Disposal of Imesiments and Changes in
(248.868] Value of Investments 12 486 22T
(177.273) Return on Investments E79.378
| Met Increase/|Decrease) in the Met Assets Avallable for Benefits
1201.417) Durlng the Year 533,502
5,132,085 Opening Nel Assets of the Fund 5.930.668)
£,930.668|Closing Net Assets of the Fund 6. 464.170]
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31 Mar 2023 3 Mar 2024
Em Kot Em
£ 829 509 investment Assets 12-83 & 448 033
(1,519)|invesiment Liabilities 12-13 {110
ad 488| Current Assets 15 32 481
(11.810)Current Liabilites 16 (15.145)]

Hét Assels of the Scheme Available o Fund Benefits at the
8,930,668 Peried End 6,464.1T0)

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and deal with the net assets at the
disposal of the Pensions and Investments Committee. They do not take account of
obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the Fund year. The
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is disclosed in Note 20 of these
accounts.
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Derbyshire Pension Fund (“the Fund”) is administered by Derbyshire County Council and
is governed by Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations and associated pension
legislation. The Fund is administered in accordance with the following secondary
legislation:

e The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended).

e The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and
Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as amended).

e The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016.

The Fund is a funded defined benefit scheme, administered locally by the Council on
behalf of its own employees (except teachers, former NHS employees and new
employees working in Public Health, for whom separate pension arrangements apply),
Unitary and District Council employees within Derbyshire and employees of other bodies
who are specifically authorised by the Regulations. On 1 April 2014, the Fund, which had
previously been a final salary scheme, became a Career Average Revalued Earnings
(CARE) scheme.

1.Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis, on the assumption that the
functions of the authority will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future,
in accordance with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2023-24 (“the Code”), which is based upon International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), which require the Fund’s accounts to comply with IAS 26
Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans, subject to the interpretations and
adaptations for the Public Sector detailed in the Code.

The accounts summarise the transactions of the Fund and deal with the net assets at the
disposal of the Pensions and Investments Committee. They do not take account of
obligations to pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end of the Fund year. The
actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is disclosed in Note 20 of these
accounts.

The amount of separately invested Additional Voluntary Contributions (“AVCs”) paid by
members during the year and their value at the net assets statement date are not included
in the Pension Fund financial statements in accordance with Regulation 4 (1)(b) of The
Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations
2016. Members’ AVCs are disclosed in Note 14 of these accounts.
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2. Accounting policies

Contributions

Employee contributions are accounted for when deducted from members’ pay.
Employers’ normal contributions are accounted for in the period to which the
corresponding pay relates. Other employers’ contributions, such as deficit funding
contributions, are accounted for in accordance with the agreement under which they are
paid, or in the absence of an agreement, on a cash basis.

Benefits

Benefits and payments to leavers are accounted for in the period they fall due for payment.
Where a member has a choice about the form of their benefit, the benefit is accounted for
and the liability is recognised when the member notifies the Council of their decision as to
what form of benefit they will take. Where a member has no choice about the form of
benefit, the benefit is accounted for in the period of leaving/retirement/death, being the
period in which the liability to pay the benefit arises.

Transfers

Where past service liabilities do not transfer between schemes until assets/liabilities have
been transferred, transfers are accounted for on a cash basis. Where trustees have
agreed to accept past service liabilities in advance of the transfer of funds, the transfer is
accounted for in accordance with the terms of the agreement.

Management expenses

Management expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis. They are analysed in
accordance with CIPFA Guidance “Accounting for Local Government Pension Scheme
Management Costs (2016)”.

Investment income

Dividends from quoted securities are accounted for when the securities are quoted ex-
dividend. Any amount not received by the end of the reporting period is disclosed in the
net assets statements as an investment asset. Rent is accounted for in accordance with
the terms of the lease. Any lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of
the total rental income, over the term of the lease. Interest on cash and bonds is accrued
on a daily basis. Income arising on the underlying investments of accumulation funds is
accounted for within change in market value of investments. Distributions from pooled
investment vehicles are recognised at the date of issue. Distribution income is accounted
for on an accruals basis and any outstanding amount is included in the Net Asset
Statement as an investment asset.

Taxes on income

The Fund is a registered public service scheme under Section 1(1) of Schedule 36 of The
Finance Act 2004 and as such is exempt from UK income tax on interest received and
from capital gains tax on the proceeds of investments sold. Income from overseas
investments suffers withholding tax in the country of origin, unless exemption is permitted.
Irrecoverable taxation is accounted for as a Fund expense as it arises.
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Foreign currency transactions

Dividends, interest and purchases and sales of investments in foreign currencies are
accounted for at the market exchange rate at the date of transaction. End of year
market exchange rates are used to value overseas assets at the end of the accounting
period.

Exchange gains and losses relating to the translation of investments are accounted for as
part of change in market value included in the Fund Account and those relating to current
assets and liabilities are accounted for within the Fund Account under an appropriate
heading.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand and on-demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that
are subject to minimal risk of changes in value.

Basis of valuation

Financial assets and liabilities are included in the net assets statement on a fair value
basis or at amortised cost as at the reporting date. A financial asset or liability is
recognised in the net assets statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the
contractual acquisition of the asset or liability. From this date any gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the asset or liability are recognised in the fund account.

The values of investments as shown in the net assets statement have been determined
at fair value in accordance with the requirements of the Code and IFRS13 (Note 13). The
basis of valuation of each class of financial investment asset and liability is set out in Note
13.

Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits is assessed on a triennial
basis by the Fund actuary in accordance with the requirements of IAS19 and relevant
actuarial standards, with an actuarial annual roll forward of the value carried out. As
permitted under the Code, the Fund has opted to disclose the actuarial present value of
promised retirement benefits in Note 20 of these accounts.

3. Accounting Standards issued and not yet applied

At the balance sheet date, the following interpretations, new standards and amendments
to existing standards have been published but not yet adopted by the Code:

o IFRS 16 Leases issued in January 2016.
The CIPFA/LASAAC Board confirmed in a statement that mandatory

implementation of IFRS 16 Leases will go ahead as planned, and the standard will
be implemented in the Code for 2024-25.
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IFRS 16 was issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) in
2016. Its main impact is to remove (for lessees) the traditional distinction between
finance leases and operating leases. Finance leases have effectively been
accounted for as acquisitions (with the asset on the Balance Sheet, together with a
liability to pay for the asset acquired). In contrast, operating leases have been
treated as ‘pay as you go’ arrangements, with rentals expensed in the year they are
paid. IFRS 16 requires all substantial leases to be accounted for using the
acquisition approach, recognising the rights acquired to use an asset. IFRS 16 is
therefore an important new standard.

One of the areas of focus for local authorities is the adaptation for the definition of
a lease. For the UK public sector this includes leases with nil consideration or
peppercorn rents, which will widen the definition of a lease. This will require careful
application when identifying a lease and particularly in considering when a contract
includes or is a lease.

It also applies to the measurement of lease liabilities for PFI arrangements.

The Fund does not currently have any identified lease arrangements and has not entered
into any PFl arrangements. The Fund has therefore concluded that this new standard
would not have had a significant impact on the Fund’'s 2023-24 accounts.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) issued
in January 2020. The amendments:

o specify that an entity’s right to defer settlement must exist at the end of the
reporting period;

o clarify that classification is unaffected by management’s intentions or
expectations about whether the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement;

o clarify how lending conditions affect classification; and

o clarify requirements for classifying liabilities an entity will or may settle by
issuing its own equity instruments.

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16) issued in
September 2022. The amendments to IFRS 16 add subsequent measurement
requirements for sale and leaseback transactions.

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1) issued in October
2022. The amendments improved the information an entity provides when its right
to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months is subject to compliance
with covenants.

The Fund has concluded that, although these amendments provide clarification or lead to
improved reporting, they would not have had a significant impact on the Fund’s 2023 -24
accounts.
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¢ International Tax Reform: Pillar Two Model Rules (Amendments to IAS 12) issued
in May 2023. Pillar Two applies to multinational groups with a minimum level of
turnover. The amendments introduced:

o atemporary exception to the requirements to recognise and disclose
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two
income taxes; and

o targeted disclosure requirements for affected entities.

This is only applicable to local authorities with group accounts and, therefore, would not
have impacted on the Fund’s 2023-24 accounts.

e Supplier Finance Arrangements (Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7) issued in May
2023. The amendments require an entity to provide additional disclosures about
its supplier finance arrangements. The IASB developed the new requirements to
provide users of financial statements with information to enable them to:

o assess how supplier finance arrangements affect an entity’s liabilities
and cash flows; and

o understand the effect of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s
exposure to liquidity risk and how the entity might be affected if the
arrangements were no longer available to it.

The Fund has concluded that this amendment has a limited application and would not
have impacted on the Fund’s 2023-24 accounts.

4. Critical judgements made in applying the accounting policies

In applying the accounting policies in Note 2, it has not been necessary to make any critical
judgements.

5. Assumptions made and other estimation uncertainty
Valuation of investment assets

Basis of valuation

The Fund’s basis of valuation for each class of financial investment is set out in greater
detail in Note 13 to these accounts, and there have been no changes to the valuation
techniques used in the year. A significant proportion of the Fund’s financial investments
relate to Level 1 assets, where there is a readily available daily bid market price and Level
2 assets, where the fair value can be determined based on other market data or market
prices, and cash deposits.
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The remainder of the Fund'’s financial investments relate to Level 3 assets, including equity
index tracking funds, unquoted private equity, infrastructure, private debt investments and
indirect property assets. These assets are valued using the most recently reported net
assets statement for that investment, adjusted for drawdowns and distributions to the final
day of the accounting period, if the net assets statement is not produced to that date.

Level 3 assets also include the Fund’s direct property portfolio, which is independe ntly
valued by the Fund’s external property valuer, Savills, at market value on the final day of
the accounting period, determined in accordance with the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors’ Valuation Standards.

The value of the Fund’s Level 3 assets at 31 March 2024 was £3,570.205m, accounting
for 55.4% of total investment assets. The estimated impact of price risk in respect of Level
3 assets is £6.0%, equating to £214.212m at 31 March 2024. Potential price changes
are determined based on the observed historical volatility of asset class returns, for
example, ‘risker’ assets such as equities display greater volatility than bonds. Note 13
provides further details, including a breakdown of the Level 3 assets, the nature of the
assumptions that give rise to uncertainty, and a sensitivity analysis in respect of values at
31 March 2024.

The global economy continues to show growth, albeit this differs by country, and concerns
that the global economy would experience a ‘hard-landing’ following the sharp rise in
inflation following the Covid-19 pandemic have subsided. Whilst global inflation has fallen
over the last twelve months, as the major central banks increased base rates, core inflation
remains persistent. Financial markets remain volatile with market sentiment closely linked
to expectations around the timing of future interest rate reductions. Ongoing geopolitical
uncertainties and tensions are also having an impact on market sentiment, and many
developed market nations have elections across 2024-25, which may also have an impact
on markets.

On 25 July 2024, the Court of Appeal dismissed the appeal in the Virgin Media Limited v

NTL Pension Trustees case. HM Treasury is currently assessing whether there are any
implications from this ruling for public service pension schemes.

179



PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS
NOTES TO THE PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

6. Contributions

2022-23 2023-24
£m £m

Employers
Mormal 121244 168.017
Deficit Funding a4 722 1.852

Members

Normal 46.802 50.938
202.7T68 226.807

Employers’ contributions rates payable in 2022-23 were set as part of the 2019 valuation
which revealed an overall funding level of 97%.

Employers’ contributions rates payable in 2023-24 were set as part of the 2022 valuation
which revealed an overall funding level of 100%.

On 29 April 2022, Derbyshire County Council paid employer contributions of £56.494m to
the Fund, for 2022-23. This advance payment was based on an estimate of pensionable
pay. Derbyshire County Council’s employer contributions payable for 2022-23, based on
actual pensionable pay, are £57.720m, which is £1.226m more than the advance
payment. An additional cash payment of £1.226m was paid to the Fund on 28 April 2023,
in accordance with the Derbyshire County Council 2022-23 Rates and Adjustments
Certificate agreed with the Actuary. Derbyshire County Council did not pay advance
employer contributions to the Fund for 2023-24.

On 1 April 2022, Derby Homes Limited paid employer contributions of £2.484m to the
Fund, for 2022-23. These contributions were accounted for in 2022-23 as £2.385m of
employer normal contributions and £0.099m of employer deficit funding contributions. An
additional cash payment of £0.144m was paid to the Fund on 11 May 2023, in accordance
with the Derby Homes 2022-23 Rates and Adjustments Certificate agreed with the
Actuary. Derby Homes Limited did not pay advance employer contributions to the Fund
for 2023-24.

An analysis of contributions by participating employer type is disclosed in Note 21 of these
accounts.
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7. Benefits
2022-23 2023-24
£m £m
Pensions 155.695 175.977
Commulation of pensions and lump sum retirement benefits 33.284 42 843
Lump sum death benefits 5.431 5.531
195.410 224.351

An analysis of benefits by participating employer type is disclosed in Note 21 of these

accounts.

8. Payments to and on account of leavers

2022-23 2023-24

£Em £m

Refund of contributions to members leaving the Fund 0709 0.784
Group transfers out to other pansion funds 0 3.907
Individual transfars out to other pension funds 14,801 22 802
15.510 27.493

9. Management expenses

Management expenses are analysed in accordance with CIPFA Guidance “Accounting for

Local Government Pension Scheme Management Costs (2016)”.

2022-23 2023-24

Em £m

Invesiment management expenses 2B8.257 28.331
Adminisirative cosis 3.119 3.129
Cwversight and governance cosis 1.760 1.839
33.436 33.200|
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Oversight and governance costs include external audit fees of £0.120m (2022-23:
£0.038m), which are comprised of a scale fee of £0.109m for the 2023-24 audit (2022:23:
£0.026m) and additional audit fees of £0.011m estimated in respect of 2021-22 and 2022-
23 work, including reviewing membership data in the 31 March 2022 actuarial valuation.
The statutory audit fee does not include fees chargeable to the Fund for pension
assurance work, undertaken at the request of employer auditors, which the Fund
recharges to the respective employers. Fees payable for this work in 2023-24 are
estimated to be £0.022m (2022-23: £0.018m).

10. Investmentincome

2022-23 2023-24

£m Em

Income from eguities 10,564 10.301
Income from bonds 10.502 12.155
Met rents from properties 15.229 16.312
Income from pooled investment vehicles 32.143 45 566
Interest on cash deposits 3,149 6.713]
71.587 91.047

Income from equities decreased by £0.263m in 2023-24, to £10.301m (2022-23,
£10.564m), principally reflecting the ongoing transition from direct equity holdings into
accumulation unit pooled investment vehicles, where dividend income is automatically
reinvested and not distributed. Income from pooled investment vehicles increased by
£13.423m in 2023-24, to £45.566m (2022-23, £32.143m), reflecting increased allocations
to income generating asset classes such as infrastructure and private debt which are
managed through pooled investment vehicles, together with a recovery in income levels
following the Covid-19 pandemic. The increase of £1.083m in respect of net rent from
properties, from £15.229m in 2022-23 to £16.312m in 2023-24, principally reflects the fact
that the Fund added six new properties to the direct property portfolio in 2022-23. The
increase in interest on cash deposits principally reflects the impact of increases in the
Bank of England’s UK Bank Rate.

Rents from properties are net of £0.350m of property expense (2022-23, net of £0.795m
of property expense), which includes a £0.247m credit loss allowance income adjustment
for property rent debtors at the year-end (2022-23, £0.101m credit loss expense
allowance). The income or expense each year is the net of property management
expenses recovered by service charges to tenants and irrecoverable property
management expenses, for instance, rates on vacant properties, adjusted for the
movement in credit loss allowance.
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11. Taxes on income

2022-23 2023-24
£m Em
Taxation payable (0.008) {2.101)

From 6 April 2016 there are no notional tax charges for UK dividends. Taxes on income
relate to withholding taxes in respect of overseas investment income, which are
recoverable by the Fund.

12. Investment assets and liabilities

Profits &
losses on
disposal of
investments
| Purchases Sales & & changes
Value at| & hedging hedging invalue of Value at
31 Mar 2023 payments receipts investments 31 Mar 2024
Em Em £m Em Em|
Investment assels |
Equities 2873481 | 2,438 (68.574) 6.555 236,500
Bonds 574,839 168. 4358 (459.574) (24 529) 665 164
Fooled invesiment vehicles 4585156 | 332,438 (383, TH S02.T4a | 5036 668
Propertes 331.275 | 1.104 1] (11.079)| 321200
Currency hedging contracts D585 | 1432880 (1,446 2345) 12485 | 0.0
5,799 639 1.937.288 {1,959.513) 486.227 | 6263647
Cash deposits & short term loany 83917 : 0 147077
Other investment balances 5.963 | ] _ 0| 37.215
5,899.509 ' 4BE22T | 6445.001
Investment liabilities |
COfher imasiment balances (1.319)| 0| (1.159)
i1.519)| 0 {1.198)
5,897.940 | 486.23T | 6446.834
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The total of profits and losses on disposal of investments and changes in value of
investment assets and investment liabilities has increased the Fund's value by
£486.227m during 2023-24 (2022-23, £248.868m decrease). This total includes all
increases and decreases in the market value of investments held at any time during the
year and profits and losses realised on sales of investments during the year. All net gains
and losses on financial instruments relate to financial assets held at fair value through
profit and loss. In 2023-24, net gains on financial assets and financial liabilities measured
at fair value are £497.306m (2022-23, £198.866m net losses). This differs to the total of
profits and losses on disposal of investments and changes in value of investment assets
and investment liabilities in the table as direct property investments are excluded from the
total because they are not financial instruments.

At 31 March 2024 the Fund’s investments accounting for more than 5% of the total value
of the Fund’s net assets available for benefits were:

e LGIM MSCI World Low Carbon Target Index Fund £907.812m, representing 14.0%
(2023, £677.564m, 11.4%).

e LGIM UK Equity Index Fund £703.210m, representing 10.9% (2023, £774.200m,
13.1%).

¢ LGPS Central All World Equity Climate Multi Factor Fund £373.231m, representing
5.8% (2023, £314.073m, 5.3%).

e LGPS Central Global Active Corporate Bond Fund A (Acc) £365.851m,
representing 5.7% (2023, £337.078m, 5.7%).

¢ RBC Global Equity Focus Fund £433.653m, representing 6.7% (2023, £378.812m,
6.4%).

The 2022-23 position was:
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Profits &
losses on
disposal of
investments
| Purchases Sales & & changes in
Value at, & hedging hedging value of Value at
31 Mar 2022 payments receipts investments 31 Mar 2023
£m| Em £Em Em £m
Investment assets |
Equities aT0726 | 49 8665 (B2 218} (37.5993) 287381
Honds 619,498 | B3.008 (18,386) (108.281) 574830
Fooled invesiment vehicles 4622108 | 240 669 (228, 206) (38.415) 4,595 156
Propertes 282200 | Ba.avv i] (50.002) IS
Currency hedging contracts 1 ] 0 ) 0 0988 | 0.888
_ 5 904 532 462 620 (333 510) (233.703)| 5798.638
Cash deposits & short termi loanyg 182.0749 i a 83817
Ciher investment balances 5.401 | 0| 5853
6,092.012 ! (233.703)  5,899.509
Investment liabilities
Currency hedging conracls [I:I.ﬁEIE:u; 1332833 {1, 317.076) (15 165) 0
Ofher myvesiment balances {2.388) 0| (1.51%)
(2.980)| {15.165) {1.519)
6,059.032 : (248 868) 58978580

Currency hedging receipts and payments represent the transactions settled during the
year on currency hedging contracts relating to sovereign fixed income holdings and the
Fund’s Infrastructure, Multi-Asset Credit and Indirect Property investments. The Fund’s
objective is to decrease risk in the portfolio, by entering into forward contracts to match a
proportion of assets that are already held in the portfolio without disturbing the underlying

assets.

At the year end, there were two currency hedging contracts, with less than six months to
expiry, with a gross contract value of £383.516m (2023, two contracts, with less than six
months to expiry, with a gross contract value of £360.439m).

Pooled investment vehicles are further analysed below:
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31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Em £m

Pooled Investment Vehicles
Equities 2,928,704 3.261.249
Bands 806 664 B3 161
Property 135416 124709
Private Equity 201,763 216.143
Infrastructura 522 604 551406
4,595.156 5,036.668

The proportion of the market value of net investment assets managed in-house (including
the selection of pooled products) and by each external manager at the year-end is set out

below.
31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024

£m % Em %
In-house 2 BA7T.344 4891 3.089.190 47 Sl
Colliers Capital Holdings Lid 333.903 a7 323.065 5.0
Legal and General Investrment Management | 1,775.202 30.1| 1,905.869 286
LGPS Cantral Ltd B37.538 1420 1128710 17.5
Wellington Management International Lid 653903 14 (] 0.0
5897.990  100.0| 6446.834 100.0]

13. Basis of valuation

The basis of valuation of each class of financial investment asset and liability is set out
below. There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year. All
investment assets and liabilities held at fair value through profit or loss have been valued

using fair value techniques as follows:

e Market quoted investments, where there is a readily available market price, are
valued at the bid market price on the final day of the accounting period.

¢ Quoted bonds are valued at net market value excluding accrued income.

e Pooled investment vehicles are included at closing bid price for funds with bid/offer
spreads, or if single priced, at the closing price. For unquoted pooled investment
vehicles this is at the price advised by the fund manager.
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Level 3 investments are valued at fair value, at the price or net asset value advised
by the fund manager, or for private equity investments, based on the Fund'’s share
of net assets at the year end, using the latest financial information available from
the respective fund managers, adjusted for drawdowns and distributions to the final
day of the accounting period, if the latest financial information is not produced to
that date.

Fair value for investment property is calculated using the investment method of
valuation, the premise of which is that all current and future income streams are
capitalised at a rate or rates compared against yields achieved in market investment
transactions and adjusted for individual characteristics of the subject property,
based on valuer's opinions, wholly derived from observable prices achieved in
market transactions.

Forward foreign exchange contracts are valued by determining the gain or loss that
would arise from closing out the contract at the reporting date by entering into an
equal and opposite contract on that date.

Property, which is a non-financial asset, is included at market value on the final day of the
accounting period, 31 March 2024, determined in accordance with the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors’ Valuation Standards. The property portfolio was independently
valued by Savills, Property Advisers.

Financial investment assets and liabilities valued using fair value techniques have been
classified into the three levels of what is known as a fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy is
ordered according to the quality and reliability of information used to determine recurring
fair values, with Level 1 being of the highest quality and reliability.

Level 1 — Assets and liabilities assigned to Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy are
those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities. The Fund’'s investments classified as Level 1 are quoted UK and
Overseas Equities and quoted UK and Overseas Bonds issued by governments.
Level 2 — Assets and liabilities assigned to Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy are
those where quoted market prices are not available, for instance in a market that is
not considered to be active, or where observable valuation techniques are used to
determine fair value. The Fund’s investments classified as Level 2 are quoted
Pooled Investment Vehicles, Currency Hedging Contracts and unquoted LGPSC
Bonds and Equities.

Level 3 — Assets and liabilities assigned to Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy are
those where at least one input which could have a significant effect on an
instrument’s valuation is not based on observable market data. The Fund’s
investments classified as Level 3 are unquoted Pooled Investment Vehicles and
Properties (non-financial assets).

The Fund’s fair value hierarchy of investment financial assets and financial liabilities held
at fair value through profit or loss, additionally including investment financial assets held
at amortised cost, to reconcile to total financial assets and financial liabilities, is as follows:
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31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
£m £m
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Level 1
UK quoted equities 231.229 232.937
Overseas quoted equities 64.837 2.247
UK quoted bonds 476.558 570.584
Overseas quoted bonds 97.596 97.895
870.220 903.663
Level 2
Property - quoted pooled investment vehicles 13.980 15.720
Other quoted pooled investment vehicles 1,518.493 1,772.044
UK unquoted equities* 1.315 1.315
UK unquoted bonds 0.685 0.685
Currency hedging contracts 0.988 0.009
1,535.461 1,789.773
Level 3
Property — unquoted pooled investment vehicles 121.436 108.989
Other unquoted pooled investment vehicles 2,941.247 3,139.916
UK freehold properties (non-financial instruments) 279.275 270.450
UK leasehold properties (non-financial instruments) 52.000 50.850
3,393.958 3,570.205
Financial Assets at Amortised Cost
Sterling cash deposits 22.481 27.077
Money market funds 30.000 120.000
Other Sterling short term loans 40.000 0
Foreign currency 1.436 0
Other investment balances 5.953 37.315
99.870 184.392
Other Assets - Current Assets 44,488 32.481
Financial Assets 5,943.997 6,480.514
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31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
£m £m

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
Other investment balances (1.519) (1.199)
(1.519) (1.199)
Other Liabilities - Current Liablities (11.810) (15.145)
Financial Liabilities (13.329) (16.344)
5,930.668 6,464.170

*The Fund had £1.315m invested in share capital and £0.685m in a loan to LGPSC at
31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £1.315m and £0.685m, respectively). This share capital
investment in LGPSC is carried at cost, which approximates to fair value at
31 March 2024 (31 March 2023, carried at cost, which approximates to fair value).
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Additional information in respect of the fair value measurement is provided below.

Valuation Observable and unobservable Key sensitivities affecting the
Description of asset hierarchy Basis of valuation inputs valuation
UK quoled equities Level 1 Bid market price Mot required Mot required
COwverseas quoled equities Level 1 Bid market price Mot required Mot required
UK quoted bonds Level 1 Met market value excluding Mot required Mot required
accrued income
Overseas quoled bonds Level 1 Met market value excluding Mat required Nat required
accrued income
Property quoled poaled  Leval 2 Closing bid price where bid and  MNet Asset Value (NAY) - based Mol required
investmeant vehicles offer prices are published pricing
Other quoted pooled Level 2 Closing bid price where bid and  Evaluated price feeds Mot required
investment vehicles offer prices are published
UK unquoted equities Level 2 Fair value based on price or net  Evaluated price feeds Mot required
asse! value advised by the fund
manager
UK unquoied bonds Level 2 Fair value based on price ornet  Evaluated price feeds Mot required
assef value advised by the fund
mianager
Currency hedging Level 2 Fublished exchange prices at the Exchange rale risk Mot required
conlracts year-end date
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Property unquoted pooled Level 3
investment vehicles

Other unquoted pooled Level 3
investment vehicles
(private equity;

infrastructure; private debt)

UK freehold and leasehold Level 3
properties (non-financial
instruments)

Investment method whereby all
current and future income streams
are capitalised at the rate or rates
compared against yields achieved
in market investment transactions
and adjusted for individual
characteristics of the subject
property, based on valuer's
opinion, wholly derived from
observable prices achieved in
market transactions

At the price or net asset value
advised by the manager using the
latest financial information
available from the respective
manager, adjusted for drawdowns
and distributions to the final date of
the accounting period, if the latest
financial information is not
produced to that date

Determined in accordance with the
RICS Valuation Standards

Net Asset Value (NAV) - based
principal

Private Equity & Infrastructure:
EBITDA; Revenue & EBITDA
multiple; Discount for lack of
marketability; Control premium;
Discounted cash flows

Private Debt: Comparable
valuation of similar assets;
Revenue & EBITDA; Discounted
cash flows; Asset security;
Enterprise value estimation

Existing lease term rentals;
Independent market research;
Covenant strength for existing
tenants; Actual and assumed
vacancy levels; Estimated rental
growth; Discount rate

Valuations could be affected by
material events occurring between
the date of the financial statements
provided and the year-end date, by
changes to expected cash flows,
and by any differences between
audited and unaudited accounts

Valuations could be impacted by
material events occurring between
the date of the financial statements
provided and the year-end date, by
changes to expected cash flows,
and any differences between the
audited and unaudited accounts

Significant changes in rental
growth, vacancy levels or the
discount rate could affect
valuations as could more general
changes in market prices
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Below is a reconciliation of the movement in fair value measurements within Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy from the start to the end of 2023-24:

Vahee at| Transfers Unrealised Realized  Valae at
31 Mar o gains! grakinsl 3 Mar
2023 Level 2 Purchases Sales  (losses)  (lesses) 2024
£Em Em Em Em Em Em Em
Financial Aszets
Level 3
Fooled investmaent
wehicles
Proparty — ungucied 121436 i 1,368 (BGED) (6.930) 1,777 108 586
Cier uncuoted 28541247 (- 15408 160026 (265037 25362 33455 | 3139016
Properties
LK freehold
[non-fnancial inshrumenis) 2THZTS a 1.104 o (8929 a 20450
LIK, laasehokl
{rn-firandeal inshrumants) 52000 [i] a o (4,150} [i] 50,850
3,383.908 |- 19408 162496  (ITT.69T) 275,630 35,236 3.570.208

Unrealised and realised gains and losses are recognised in the profit and losses on
disposal of investments and changes in value of investments line of the fund account.

The 2022-23 position was:

Value at Unrealise Realised
31 Mar d gains/ gains! Value at
2022 Purchases Sales (losses) (losses) 31 Mar 2023
£ Erm Em Erm Em| £m
Financial Azsels
Lewel 3
Pooled investment
viehicles |
Property — unguaoted 167.437 1.662 (36.3048) (17.112) 11.758 | 121436
Ciher ungquated 2 TT33TG 1684.383  (100.135) T0.488 13138 | 2541247
Properiics
UK freehold
(non-financial insiruments) 236650 BE.OFT 0 (46452 0| 29 2Th
LK leasahokd
(nan-financial instrurments 25.550 I:I 1] (3. 2500 1] 22000
3227013 275422 [136.445) 3372 24 896 | 3,393.958
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The impact of current global economic conditions on investment values is considered in
Note 5. Having analysed historical data and current market levels, the Fund has
determined that the Level 3 values at 31 March 2024 above are likely to be accurate to
within the ranges set out in the sensitivity analysis below:

Assessed
Value at| waluation Value Value
31 Mar 2024 rangeon increase on decrease
£Em % £m £m
Level 3 sensitivity
Direct property
[non-financial instruments) 321.300 10.0 353,430 289,170
Diversified multi-asset credit funds 258.452 5.0 2T2.425 248479
Equity index tracking funds 1,906.072 20 1544.193] 1.867.951
Indireck property 1068, 889 15.0 125.337 82 641
Infrastructure 551.407 12.5 B20.333 452 481
Privale debt 206,841 10.0 227 525 1B6.157
Privale equity 216,144 15.0 248 566 183,722
3,570,205 6.0 3, 7E4.417| 3,355983
The position at 31 March 2023 was:
Assessed
Value at valuation Value Value
31 Mar 2023 range|on increase |on decrease
£m % £m £m
Level 3 sensitivity
Direct property
(non-financial instruments) 331.275 10.0 364.402 298.147
Diversified multi-asset credit funds 231.352 5.0 242.920 219.784
Equity index tracking funds 1,775.475 2.0 1,810.985 1,739.966
Short dated investment grade fund 19.409 3.0 19.991 18.827
Indirect property 121.436 15.0 139.651 103.221
Infrastructure 522.604 12.5 587.930 457.279
Private debt 190.644 10.0 209.708 171.580
Private equity 201.763 15.0 232.027 171.499
3,393.958 6.0/ 3,597.595| 3,190.321
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14. Additional Voluntary Contributions

In accordance with Regulation 4(1)(b) of The Local Government Pension Scheme
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016, the Accounts do not include
employees’ Additional Voluntary Contributions (“AVCs”). Members may make AVCs
which are invested separately from the Fund’s assets. These investments are specifically
allocated to the provision of additional benefits for those members. These are money
purchase arrangements where the member uses the invested amount to provide an
additional lump sum or to purchase an annuity or buy additional benefits in the Local
Government Pension Scheme.

The amount of AVC contributions paid by members during 2023-24 was £4.045m (2022-
23: £2.939m).

The total value of funds provided by separately invested AVC contributions at 31 March
2024 was £17.473m (31 March 2023: £14.699m).

15. Current assets

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024

£m £m

Employvers' contributions due 8856 12 543
Emplovees’ contributions due 2487 3.352
Sundry debtors 1.328 1.502
Cash balance 1.777 14,584
44,488 32.481

Employers’ and employees’ contributions due at 31 March 2024 have been received since
the year-end.

As at 31 March 2024, the Fund was owed rent and service charges totalling £0.260m in
respect of 2023-24 (31 March 2023, the Fund was owed rent totalling £0.667m in respect
of 2022-23). Whilst the Fund’s discretionary direct property manager is actively managing
the collection of this rent, the aftermath of the Covid-19 pandemic, together with
inflationary pressures and challenging economic conditions, has had a significant impact
on the trading and cash flows of some of the Fund’s tenants. As a result, the Fund has
provided a credit loss allowance of £0.049m against these rents (2022-23: £0.296m).
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16. Current liabilities

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024

Em £m

Unpaid benefits 3.027 2.905
Sundry creditors 66T B 6BS
Amounts owed to Derbyshire County Council ; 2110 3.999
11.610 15.145

17. Related party transactions

Derbyshire County Council
The Council is the administering authority for the purposes of the Fund under The Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013.

Included in management expenses in 2023-24 are charges from the Council of £3.360m
(2022-23: £3.071m), for expenses incurred in respect of oversight and governance of the
Fund, for Fund administration and for the management of the Fund’s in-house
investments. At 31 March 2024 the Fund owed the Council £3.555m (31 March 2023: the
Fund owed the Council £2.110m).

It has not been possible to apportion, on a reasonable basis, the costs and benefits of key
management personnel between the Council and the Fund. However, Members’
Allowances and Officers’ Remuneration are disclosed in Notes 30 and 31 of the Council’s
Statement of Accounts.

LGPS Central Limited

LGPS Central Limited (LGPSC) has been established to manage investment assets on
behalf of eight LGPS funds across the Midlands. It is jointly owned in equal shares by the
eight administering authorities participating in the LGPSC Pool. The Fund is one of the
shareholders.

The Council’'s Section 151 Officer, or their nominee, represents the Council on the LGPS
Central Shareholders’ Forum, with delegated authority to make decisions on any matters
which require a decision by the shareholders of LGPS Central Limited. All decisions made
by the Section 151 Officer or their nominee, using delegated powers, are reported to the
Pensions and Investments Committee.

The Fund had £1.315m invested in share capital and £0.685m in a loan to LGPSC at

31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £1.315m and £0.685m, respectively) and was owed
interest of £0.065m on the loan to LGPSC on the same date (2022-23: £0.047m).
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The Fund incurred costs of £0.200m associated with LGPSC Investment Management
and Monitoring Costs in respect of an Active Global Sustainable Equity Broad Strategy
sub-fund, an Active Global Sustainable Equity Targeted Strategy sub-fund, an Active
Emerging Markets Equities Multi Manager sub-fund, an index-tracking All World Equity
Climate Multi Factor sub-fund, an Active Global Investment Grade Corporate Bond sub-
fund and a Credit Partnership Limited Partnership sub-fund (Private Debt) in 2023-24
(2022-23: £0.164m), of which £0.036m was payable to LGPSC at 31 March 2024
(31 March 2023: £0.041m). The charge excludes fees paid to the underlying investment
managers of £1.903m in 2023-24 (2022-23: £1.265m), with the increase between 2022-
23 and 2023-24 reflecting an increase in the level of investment assets managed through
LGPSC products.

The Fund incurred £1.211m in respect of Governance, Operator Running and Product
Development costs in connection with LGPSC in 2023-24 (2022-23: £1.065m), of which
£0.329m was payable to LGPSC at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: £0.332m).

The Fund incurred Partner Fund Support Office costs of £0.029m in 2023-24 (2022-23:
nil). These costs were incurred by West Midlands Pension Fund (one of the LGPS
pension funds comprising the LGPSC Pool) and were recharged to the Fund, of which
£0.018m was payable to West Midlands Pension Fund at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
nil).

LGPSC leased office space from the Council. The lease commenced on 14 June 2018
and was for a duration of five years, with a break clause at 30 June 2021. In 2023-24,
LGPSC notified the Council that it was not renewing the lease on expiry in June 2023.
The rental income received by the Council from LGPSC in 2023-24 amounted to £0.003m
(2022-23: £0.015m). There was no amount due at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023:
£0.015m).

From 29 March 2023, an amended guarantee was put in place to enable LGPSC to
recognise an offsetting asset to the IAS19 liability on its balance sheet. The new
agreement extends the definition of ‘Outstanding Liabilities’ to include the total IAS 19
defined benefit obligation. As the IAS 19 figure was previously used as a proxy to estimate
the possible cost of cessation, this does not change the amount estimated under the
guarantee. LGPSC is responsible for employer and employee contributions and pays
these when due. The LGPSC IAS19 pension asset at 31 March 2024 (calculated annually
at the vyear-end) amounted to £0.047m (31 March 2023: pension liability
£0.665m). Derbyshire Pension Fund’'s share of this LGPSC IAS19 pension asset at
31 March 2024 was £0.006m (31 March 2023: pension liability £0.083m). The partners
are jointly and severally liable.

Members of the Pensions and Investments Committee

There is one non-voting Union Representative on the Fund’'s Pensions and Investments
Committee who is an active member of the Fund. In addition, there is one full Member
on the Committee who is a deferred member of the Fund.
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One full Member on the Committee is also a director of one of the employers of the Fund,
Derby Homes Ltd, whose employer contribution rates are determined by the Actuary in
the valuation of the Fund.

18. Investment commitments

At the end of the financial year, investment commitments in respect of future payments
were:

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
£m £m

Unquoted investments 277.517 424.928

Unquoted investments commitments are commitments to invest in Multi-Asset Credit,
Private Equity, Infrastructure and Indirect Property investments, not yet drawn down by
the managers.

19. Financial instruments

Many requirements of the financial instruments standards (IAS 39, IAS 32, IFRS 7 and
IFRS 9), which govern the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of
financial instruments, are not applicable to the Fund’s accounts, since all material financial
instruments are carried in the net assets statement at fair value.

Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

Certain financial risks are a necessary and appropriate component of the investment
strategy of the Fund in order for it to achieve the targeted long-term rate of return assumed
by the Fund Actuary. This rate of return is used in drawing up the Funding Strategy
Statement and setting employer contribution rates.

The overall financial risk for the Fund is that its assets could be insufficient to meet its
liabilities to pay benefits. At the financial instrument level, the Fund’s key risks are:

¢ Credit risk — the risk of the Fund suffering loss due to another party defaulting on
its financial obligations.

e Liquidity risk — the risk that funds might not be available to meet commitments
because the Fund’s assets are not readily marketable or easily turned into cash.

o Market risk — the risk that the Fund’s financial instruments may suffer an adverse
change in value, which is common to an entire class of assets or liabilities.
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Responsibility for Fund investments has been delegated to the Council’s Pensions and
Investments Committee (the Committee). Day to day responsibility for the management
of the Fund is delegated to the Director of Finance; the investments are managed by a
combination of internal and external investment managers and investment advice is
provided by an independent investment advisor. The Fund’s overall risk management
procedures focus on the unpredictability of financial markets and are structured to
implement suitable controls to minimise these risks.

As required by the Fund’'s Investment Strategy Statement, the Fund is invested in
accordance with the Strategic Asset Allocation guidelines, to maximise returns within
appropriate levels of risk, taking into account the Fund’s liabilities and projected cashflows.

These Strategic Asset Allocation guidelines were approved by the Pensions and
Investments Committee.

Economic background, market returns, asset allocation, investment activity, investment
strategy and investment performance are monitored and reviewed by the Committee on a
quarterly basis.

Credit risk

The Fund is primarily exposed to credit risk through its daily treasury management
activities and through its forward currency contracts, which address the currency risk on
overseas bonds. Credit risk on cash deposits and short-term loans arises from deposits
with banks, financial institutions and UK government and local authorities. Credit risk on
forward currency contracts arises from contracts with large banks.

There is also a credit risk in respect of income due at the year end from the Fund’s direct
property tenants. As at 31 March 2024, the Fund was owed rent and service charges
totalling £0.260m (31 March 2023, the Fund was owed rent totalling £0.667m). Whilst the
Fund’s discretionary direct property manager is actively managing the collection of this
rent, the aftermath of the Covid-19 pandemic, together with inflationary pressures and
challenging economic conditions, has had a significant impact on the trading and cash
flows of some of the Fund’s tenants. The Fund has provided a credit loss allowance of
£0.049m (31 March 2023, £0.296m) against these rents and service charges in Note 15,
Current Assets, calculated based on a tier risk rating system, using information provided
by both the in-house investment management team and the discretionary direct property
manager.

Rental and
Service
Charge General] Total Loss
Income Losz| Allowance
Debt| Allowance| 31 Mar 2024
Em £m| Em
Property Rental and Service Charge Income 0.260 0.049| 0.049|
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A reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of the potential credit losses on the
Fund'’s financial assets for the year ended 31 March 2024 is provided as follows:

Change In
average
Value at| default risk|  Value at
31 Mar 2023 rate| 31 Mar 2023
£m £m £m
Credit Loss Allowance 0.296 (0.24T) 0049

Treasury activities — The Fund places security of capital and liquidity ahead of
investment return. Credit risk on treasury activities is minimised through the Fund’s annual
Treasury Management Strategy, which requires that deposits are not made with financial
institutions unless they meet identified minimum credit criteria, in accordance with the
Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services and are approved counterparties
on this basis. Investments with local authorities, the Government’'s Debt Management
Office, UK Treasury Bills and Certificates of Deposit are also permissible. The Fund has
agreed maximum loan durations and joint limits for each counterparty.

The limits for financial institutions are based on the above credit assessment and are
approved each year. The financial institutions’ credit ratings and supplementary
information are monitored throughout the year to ensure compliance with the policy.

The Fund’s Treasury Management Strategy for 2023-24 was approved by the Pensions
and Investments Committee on 8 March 2023.

The Fund’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its treasury/cash deposit
investments and operating cash in banks, building societies, money market funds and UK
local authorities of £162.071m (2023, £125.694m) cannot be assessed generally, as the
risk of any institution failing to make interest payments or repay the principal sum will be
specific to each individual institution. Recent experience has shown that it is rare,
generally, for such entities to be unable to meet their commitments; the approach to risk
assessment taken by the Fund makes this remote.

A risk of non-recovery applies to all of the Fund’s deposits, but there was no evidence at
31 March 2024 that this was likely to occur. No breaches of the Fund’s counterparty
criteria occurred during the reporting period. At 31 March 2024, the Fund had £14.994m
(2023, £31.777m) in its operational account with Lloyds Bank.

Forward currency contracts — Credit risk from forward currency contracts is minimised
by limiting the extent of these contracts to managing the US Dollar and Euro currency risk
on sovereign fixed income holdings and the Fund’s Infrastructure, Multi-Asset Credit and
Indirect Property investment assets, the value of which comprise 5.9% (2023, 6.1%) of
investment assets at the year end, and by selecting large banks as the counterparties.
The two forward currency contracts at the year-end are with Bank of New York Mellon.
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The maximum credit risk exposure on forward currency contracts is the full amount of the
foreign currency which the Fund pays when settlement occurs, should the counterparty
fail to pay the amount which it has committed to pay the Fund. At the year end, there were
two currency hedging contracts, with less than six months to expiry, with a gross contract
value of £383.516m (2023, two contracts, with less than six months to expiry, with a gross
contract value of £360.439m). The Fund does not expect any losses from non-
performance by any of its counterparties in relation to these contracts. The investment
asset in Note 12 associated with these forward currency contracts, which is the difference
between the Sterling value the Fund has contracted to receive on expiry of the contracts
and is what would theoretically have been receivable based on the exchange rate at the
year end, is £0.009m (31 March 2023, £0.988m investment asset).

Other financial assets — Bonds mainly include investments in UK and US Government
securities and certain corporate bond funds. The Fund does not expect any losses from
non-performance by any of its counterparties in relation to these financial assets.

Market prices generally incorporate credit assessments into valuations and risk of loss is
implicitly provided for in the carrying value of the financial assets as they are marked to
market. The market value of financial assets represents the Fund’s exposure to credit risk
in relation to those assets.

The selection of high-quality counterparties, brokers and financial institutions minimises
credit risk that may occur during settlement of transactions.

Liquidity risk

The Fund continues to be cash flow positive, with combined contributions and investment
income exceeding benefit payments. There is, therefore, no present requirement to
realise assets in order to meet liabilities to pay benefits, as these are more than covered
by contributions and investment income, and there is net cash available for investment.
The Fund does, however, sell investments from time to time as part of normal investment
management activities.

The majority of the Fund’s investments are readily marketable and may be easily realised,
if required. Emphasis is placed on treasury deposits of up to six months’ duration to
ensure that longer term investment strategy is not compromised by lack of liquidity. Listed
equities may also be liquidated at short notice, normally two working days. Holdings of
investments which may be less easy to realise are limited. In 2022-23 and 2023-24,
Pensions and Investments Committee guidelines limited investments in Property to 12%,
Multi Asset Credit to 8%, Infrastructure to 13% and Private Equity to 6%. On 1 April 2024
these limits were increased as follows: Property to 12.5% (increasing to 13.0% on 1 April
2025), Multi Asset Credit to 8.5% (increasing to 9.0% on 1 April 2025), Infrastructure to
14.5% (increasing to 16.0% on 1 April 2025) and Private Equity to 8.0%.

Sufficient funds are retained on instant access accounts to ensure that payment of benefits
and the settlement of investment transactions can be made without the need to borrow.
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The Fund manages its liquidity position using a comprehensive cash flow management
system, as required by the CIPFA Code of Practice.

Maturity analysis for liabilities at the year-end:

e There were no financial liabilities within the portfolio at the year-end other than those
that arose from the trading of investments. Such liabilities fall due within 12 months
of the year end.

e There were no derivative financial liabilities held at the year-end in respect of the
currency hedging contracts referred to above (2023, nil).

Market risk

The Fund is exposed to market risk because it is inherent in the investments the Fund
makes. It can result from changes in such measures as interest and exchange rates and
changes in prices due to factors other than these. This risk cannot be eliminated but it
can be reduced. The sensitivity analysis for each of these risks are in the subsequent
sections below.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposure
to within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk. Excessive volatility
in market risk is managed through diversification. Risk reduction arises from the different
investments not being perfectly correlated.

The Fund has applied diversification at various levels; that is, diversification between
countries, asset classes, sectors and individual securities. Diversification reduces both
the upside and downside potential and allows for more consistent performance under a
wide range of economic conditions.

Risk of exposure to specific markets is limited by adhering to defined ranges within the
asset allocation guidelines, which are monitored and reviewed by the Committee on a
quarterly basis.

Interest rate risk — This risk primarily impacts on the valuation of the Fund’s bond
holdings, in particular the Fund’s sovereign bond, non-Government investment grade
bonds and diversified multi-asset credit portfolios. Interest rate sensitivity can be
estimated by multiplying an assumed change in the prevailing market interest rate by the
portfolio benchmark duration. The table below shows the estimated impact of a +100
basis points (£100 bps) in the prevailing market interest rate for these assets.
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Change In

Value at| Benchmark| pravailing Effect Effact
31 Mar 2024 duration rmirket A0lbps +100bps
Em Years| inferest rate Em E£rn

Asset typs
Conventonal gilts J24 6879 853 #100bps T2 (27.712)
Inda-linked bonds 343800 1547 £100bps 53.155 (53.155)
Mon-Govemmaen! imvesimant grade bands 185 B51 Tr.15 +100bps 26 158 (26, 158)
Shor dated irvesiment grade bands 51016 20T & DO 1.413 {1.413)
Dwvirsdhod multi-assed credil funds ?_EEI 452 1.049 =1IIII:II:-::-:. 2815 {2 E:\.?‘!
Total change in asset values 1,344,798 111253 (111.253)

The position at 31 March 2023 was:
Change in

Value at| Benchmark| prevailing Effect Effect
31 Mar 2023 duration market -100bps +100bps
£m Years| interest rate £m £m

Asset type
Conventional gilts 282.771 9.23 +100bps 26.100 (26.100)
Index-linked bonds 291.383 16.99 +100bps 49.506 (49.506)
Non-Government investment grade bonds| 337.078 6.67 +100bps 22.483 (22.483)
Short dated investment grade bonds 47.589 2.67 +100bps 1.270 (1.270)
Diversified multi-asset credit funds 231.352 1.00 +100bps 2.314 (2.314)
Total change in asset values 1,190.173 101.673 (101.673)

A 100 basis points increase in the prevailing market interest rate would reduce the
aggregate value of the identified assets by an estimated £111.253m (2023, £101.673m),
whereas a 100 basis points reduction in the prevailing market interest rate would increase
the aggregate value of the identified assets by a comparable amount. It should also be
noted that both non-Government investment grade bonds and diversified multi-asset
credit funds are also sensitive to changes in the interest rate spread, which is the interest
rate received relative to sovereign bonds, which can either increase (reducing asset
values) or reduce (increasing asset values).

The duration in respect of the Fund’'s private debt assets, together with cash, is not

significant.
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The Fund has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. Interest rates and
the durations of the bond portfolios are monitored during the year, by the Fund'’s in-house
and external managers. Within the annual Treasury Management Strategy, maximum
limits are set for fixed and variable interest rate exposure. During periods of falling interest
rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate investments may
be taken for longer periods to secure better long-term returns, subject to liquidity
requirements.

Other price risk — Other price risk originates from factors specific to the individual
instrument or to its issuer, or from factors affecting all instruments in the market.

The Fund manages price risk by holding fixed interest bonds, index-linked stocks and
property and by holding a diversified equity portfolio spread geographically, across market
sectors and across investments. Contracts specify the level of risk to be taken by the
external Fund managers investing in overseas equities. These external managers are
monitored by in-house managers.

A Fund specific benchmark has been drawn up, which is designed to meet the Fund’s
performance requirements for the level of risk agreed by the Committee. Economic
background, asset allocation, recent transactions, investment strategy and performance
are monitored by the Committee on a quarterly basis.

The impact of current global economic conditions on investment values is considered in
Note 5.

The table below quantifies the level of price risk that the Fund’'s investment assets and
liabilities at 31 March 2024 are potentially exposed to. Potential price changes are
determined based on the observed historical volatility of asset class returns, for example,
‘riskier’ assets such as equities display greater potential volatility than bonds. The
potential volatilities are consistent with a one standard deviation movement in the change
in value of the assets over the last three years. The volatility shown for total investment
assets and liabilities in both tables below incorporates the impact of correlation across
asset classes, which dampens volatility, therefore the value on increase/decrease figures
of the asset classes will not sum to the total assets figure.
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Value at Value Value
31 Mar 2024 Changeon increase |on decrease
Em % £m £m
Underlying asset type

Government bonds - Short Term 115.992 2.0 118.312 113672
Government bonds - Medium Term 125.265 5.8 132.530 118.000
Government bonds - Long Term 83,632 1.2 B9 B54 T1.610

Govermnmmen! index-linked bonds -
Short Term 58,868 4.1 61.282 56,454

Government index-linked bonds -
Medium Term 102.028 7.1 109,272 94,784

Government index-linked bonds -
Lomng Tarm 182.704 B4 188.051 16T 357
Corporate bonds 417.552 7.0 446.T81 388,323
LIK equities T58.042 16.0 879329 636,755
Cverseas equities 223274 16.7] 2612066 1864482
Emerging market equities 2891175 230 358,145 224205
Private equities 325456 3.2 426,908 2230914
Infrastructure 652,350 138 741.070 563.630
Multi assel credit 465,204 71 499 401 433187
Cash 147.077 0.3 147.518 146 636
Other invesiment balances ¥&.116 0.0 36116 3116
Properties (non-financial instruments) 445,009 15.6 215586 376432
Total investment assets and liabilities | 6,446,534 10.5 7,123.752] 5,769.916

The position at 31 March 2023 was:
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Value at Value Value
31 Mar 2023 Change|on increase |on decrease
£m % £m £m

Underlying asset type
UK Government bonds 240.065 10.24 264.648 215.482
UK index-linked bonds 236.494 13.18 267.664 205.324
Corporate bonds 385.352 9.41 421.614 349.090
Overseas index-linked bonds 54.889 11.13 60.998 48.780
Overseas bonds 43.694 4.37 45.603 41.785
UK equities 901.820 12.74 1,016.712 786.928
Overseas equities 2,115.346 12.64] 2,382.726 1,847.966
Private equity 291.908 7.35 313.363 270.453
Infrastructure 641.383 3.31 662.613 620.153
Multi asset credit 421.996 3.67 437.483 406.509
Cash 93.917 0.56 94.443 93.391
Other investment balances 4434 0.00 4434 4434
Properties (non-financial instruments) 466.692 6.20 495.627 437.757
Total investment assets and liabilities 5,897.990 7.67] 6,350.366| 5,445.614

Currency risk — The Fund is exposed to currency risk through its unhedged overseas
currency denominated investment assets. Except for overseas sovereign bonds,
infrastructure, multi-asset credit and indirect property investments, the Fund’s exposure
to overseas currency risk is not hedged. If Sterling weakens, this currency exposure will
make a positive contribution to the Fund’s performance in Sterling terms.

The table below quantifies the level of currency risk that the Fund’s overseas currency
denominated investment assets at 31 March 2024 are potentially exposed to. For the
categories of assets where there are investments denominated in overseas currencies,
the potential aggregate currency exposure within the Fund at 31 March 2024 is determined
using a currency “basket” based on that asset category’s currency mix at that date. The
weight of each currency multiplied by the change in its exchange rate relative to Sterling
is summed to create the aggregate currency change of the basket. As currency risk on
the hedged assets is managed using forward currency contracts, the currency risk on
these assets is nil, and this is shown as 0.0% below. The outcomes are then applied to
all overseas currency denominated assets.
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I Value at Value Value
| 31 Mar 2024 Change| on increase | on decrease
' Em % Em Em

Underlying asset type
Onerseas index-linked bonds T6.813 0. 764913 T6.813
Cwerseas bonds 20,883 0.0 20883 205683
Owerseas equities 2238274 9.3 2,446 433 2,030,115
Cwerseas private equilies 105 471 a8 118,104 89 838
Owerseas infrastructure 2264149 00 226.410 226.419
Cverseas mulll asset credil B9 743 0.0 69743 GO 743
Owvarsaas properhes (funds) 45043 0.0 45043 45043
Overseas investment assets | 2,786.846 T8 3,004,639 2,569.051

The position at 31 March 2023 was:

Value at Value Value
31 Mar 2023 Change|on increase |on decrease
£m % £m £m

Underlying asset type
Overseas index-linked bonds 54.889 0.00 54.889 54.889
Overseas bonds 43.694 0.00 43.694 43.694
Overseas equities 2,115.346 7.28 2,269.343 1,961.349
Overseas private equities 107.600 7.32 115.476 99.724
Overseas infrastructure 189.097 0.00 189.097 189.097
Overseas multi asset credit 86.854 0.00 86.854 86.854
Overseas cash 1.436 8.86 1.563 1.309
Overseas properties (funds) 51.479 0.00 51.479 51.479
Overseas investment assets 2,650.395 6.02| 2,809.949] 2,490.841

20.

Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits

Below is an extract from the Report of the Actuary, showing the actuarial present value of
the Fund’s promised retirement benefits, required by the Code. If an actuarial valuation
has not been prepared at the date of the financial statements, IAS 26 requires the most
recent valuation to be used as a base and the date of the valuation disclosed. The
valuation is carried out using assumptions in line with IAS 19 and not the Fund’s funding

assumptions.
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“The promised retirement benefits at 31 March 2024 have been projected using a roll
forward approximation from the latest formal funding valuation as at 31 March 2022. The
approximation involved in the roll forward model means that the split of benefits between
the three classes of member may not be reliable. However, | am satisfied that the total
figure is a reasonable estimate of the actuarial present value of benefit promises.

The figures below include both vested and non-vested benefits, although the latter is
assumed to have a negligible value. Further, | have not made any allowance for unfunded
benefits.

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024

£m £m

Active membars 2.358.000 2 508.000
Deferred members 1,005.000 992,000
Pensioners 2,445 000 23584000
Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits 5,808,000 3,884,000

It should be noted the above figures are appropriate for the Administering Authority only
for the preparation of the Pension Fund accounts. They should not be used for any other
purpose (i.e. comparing against liability measures on a funding basis or a cessation basis).

Assumptions

The assumptions used are those adopted for the Administering Authority’s IAS 19 report
and are different as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023. | estimate that the impact of
the change in financial assumptions to 31 March 2024 is to decrease the actuarial present
value by £323m. | estimate that the impact of the change in demographic assumptions is
to decrease the actuarial present value by £39m.

Financial assumptions

31 Mar 2023 31 Mar 2024
Year ended (% p.a,) o ki
Pansion increase Rate (CP1) 295 275
Salary Increase Rale 3895 373
Discount Rate 4.75 4.85
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Demographic assumptions

The longevity assumptions have changed since the previous IAS 26 disclosure for the
Fund. Life expectancy is based on the Fund’s VitaCurves with improvements in line with
the CMI 2022 model, with a 25% weighting of 2022 data, 0% weighting of 2021 (and 2020)
data, standard smoothing (Sk7), initial adjustment of 0.25% and a long-term rate of
improvement of 1.50% p.a. Based on these assumptions, the average future life
expectancies at age 65 are summarised below:

Males Females
Currant Pensioners 20.8 years 248 years
Fufure Pensioners® 21.6 years 25.3 years

*Future pensioners are assumed to be aged 45 at the latest funding valuation of the Fund.

All other demographic assumptions are unchanged from last year and are as per the latest
funding valuation of the Fund.

Sensitivity Analysis

CIPFA guidance requires the disclosure of the sensitivity of the results to the methods and
assumptions used. The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure
the obligations are set out below:

Approximate

increase to
promised Approximate
retirement monetary
benefits amount
Change in assumption at 31 March 2024 % £m
0.1% p.a. decrease in the Discount Rate 2% 107
1 year increase in member life expectancy 1% 235
0.1% p.a. increase in the Salary Increase Rate 0% 6
0.1% p.a. increase in the Pension Increase Rate (CPI) 2% 109

Richard Warden FFA
11 April 2024
For and on behalf of Hymans Robertson LLP

The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits in the Report from the Actuary
above is £5,884.000m at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023, £5,808.000m), compared to the
net assets available for benefits at that date of £6,464.170m (31 March 2023,
£5,930.668m).
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21. Participating Employers

The participating employers with active members in the Fund are Derbyshire County
Council (which is also the Administering Authority), Derby City Council (Unitary Authority),
District Councils (which are Scheduled Bodies) and further Scheduled Bodies and
Admission Bodies.

Contributions and benefits, by participating employer type, in respect of the year, are as
follows:

2022-23 2023-24
Benefits Contribution Benefits Contribution
Em Em Em £m
Dertyshire Counly Council 891.040 75 GEG 102156 &02931
Scheduled Bodies a7 062 121.502 112.820 139.993
Admission Bodies 7308 5 580 B8.37h 6523
185.410 202.T68 224.351 226,807

22. Subsequent Events
There were no significant events between the net assets statement date and the approval

of these financial statements which would require disclosure or adjustment of the
statements.
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AUDITOR’S OPINION — PENSION FUND ACCOUNTS

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Derbyshire County Council

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion on the financial statements of Derbyshire Pension Fund

We have audited the financial statements of Derbyshire Pension Fund (‘the Pension
Fund’) for the year ended 31 March 2024, which comprise the Fund Account, the Net
Assets Statement, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policy information. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24.

In our opinion the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the Pension Fund during the
year ended 31 March 2024, and the amount and disposition of the Pension Fund’s
assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2024; and

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities section of our report. We are independent of the Council,
as administering authority for the Pension Fund, in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Director of Finance’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, and taking into account the requirements of the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2023-24, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Pension Fund's ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Director of Finance with respect to going
concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.
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Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Statement of Accounts,
other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Director of
Finance is responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies
or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a
material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Director of Finance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Director of Finance’s Responsibilities, the
Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which
includes the Pension Fund'’s financial statements, in accordance with proper practice s as
set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom 2023-24, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The
Director of Finance is also responsible for such internal control as the Director of Finance
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Director of Finance is required to comply with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2023-24 and prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis, unless the Council is informed of the intention for
dissolution of the Pension Fund without transfer of services or function to another entity.
The Director of Finance is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is
appropriate for the Pension Fund to prepare its accounts on the going concern basis and
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Pension Fund’s
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
is detailed below.
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Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations.
We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material
misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. Based on our understanding of
the Pension Fund, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and
regulations related to the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016, and we considered
the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial
statements.

To help us identify instances of non-compliance with these laws and regulations, and in
identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement in respect to non-compliance,
our procedures included, but were not limited to:

¢ inquiring with management and the Audit Committee, as to whether the Pension
Fund is in compliance with laws and regulations, and discussing their policies and
procedures regarding compliance with laws and regulations;

e communicating identified laws and regulations throughout our engagement team
and remaining alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout our audit; and

¢ considering the risk of acts by the Fund which were contrary to applicable laws and
regulations, including fraud.

We evaluated the Director of Finance’s incentives and opportunities for fraudulent
manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls) and
determined that the principal risks were related to posting manual journal entries to
manipulate financial performance, management bias through judgements and
assumptions in significant accounting estimates, and significant one-off or unusual
transactions.

Our audit procedures in relation to fraud included but were not limited to:

e making enquiries of management and the Audit Committee on whether they had
knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud;

e gaining an understanding of the internal controls established to mitigate risks related
to fraud;

¢ discussing amongst the engagement team the risks of fraud; and

¢ addressing the risks of fraud through management override of controls by testing
journal entries, significant accounting estimates and significant one-off or unusual
transactions.

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the primary
responsibility for the prevention and detection of irregularities including fraud rests with
management and the Audit Committee. As with any audit, there remained a risk of non-
detection of irregularities, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal controls.
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We are also required to conclude on whether the Director of Finance’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.
We performed our work in accordance with Practice Note 10: Audit of financial statement
and regularity of public sector bodies in the United Kingdom, and Supplementary
Guidance Note 01, issued by the National Audit Office in February 2023.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the members of Derbyshire County Council, as a body and
as administering authority for the Derbyshire Pension Fund, in accordance with part 5 of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and as set out in paragraph 44 of the
Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector
Audit Appointments Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state
to the members of the Council those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the members of the Council, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

AR
% X r ArY

Alastair Newall, Key Audit Partner
For and on behalf of Forvis Mazars LLP

One St Peter’s Square,
Manchester
M2 3DE

28 February 2025
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AA rated corporate bonds

Financial indicator of very good quality, low risk debt securities. These are assigned by
credit rating agencies such as Moody's, Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings to have
letter designations (such as AAA, B, CC).

Account

A group of expenditure items or balances with similar qualities will be summated into
an ‘account’ balance such as an individual reserve account, or revenue expenditure
account.

Accounting Policies

The Councils document outlining how it will account for all of its operations.
Accounting Principles

Commonly accepted set of concepts or assumptions that have to be followed when
producing financial statements.

Accounting Standard

Statutory guidelines which explain how to treat financial activities in the financial
statements. See International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Accrual

The accruals concept requires that the cost or benefit of a transaction is shown in the
period to which the goods or services are received or provided, rather than when the
cash is paid or received.

Accruals Concept

Requires operations of the Council to be reported in the financial statements at the
point which they took place, rather than when the cash was paid or received.
Accumulating Absences

Types of leave which employees are entitled to each year; which if untaken in one
financial year will be added to the entitlement for the following year.

Acquired / Acquisition

Operations or assets which have become the responsibility of the Council, such as
through purchase, a Government reorganisation, donation or merger.

Actuarial

The estimation technique applied when estimating the liabilities to be recognised for
defined benefit pension schemes in the financial statements of an organisation.
Actuaries

An actuary is a professional who deals with the financial impact of risk and uncertainty.
Actuaries provide assessments of financial systems and balances.

Amortisation

The term used to describe the charge made for the cost of using intangible fixed
assets. The charge for the year will represent the amount of economic benefits
consumed for example wear and tear.

Amortised Cost — Financial Instruments

The valuation of a financial asset or liability based on repayments of principal, interest
accrued at a constant rate and the difference between the initial amount recognised
and the maturity amount. For financial assets this is adjusted by any loss allowance.
Amortised Cost — Other Non-Current Assets

The cost of intangible assets reduced by the amount of amortisation charged to date.
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Annual Leave

Yearly entitiement of paid time off for Council staff.

Asset Register

Listing of all property (for example land, buildings, furniture, infrastructure, software)
owned by the Council. The register holds all financial information relating to the asset.
Assets

Right or other access to future economic benefits.

Assets Held For Sale

Non-Current Assets which meet the relevant criteria to be classified as held for sale.
Assets Under Construction

Assets which are in the process of being constructed and are not yet operational.
Associates

An entity (including partnerships) which is not a subsidiary or joint venture, where the
Council has significant influence.

Authorised For Issue

The date which the financial statements have been certified by External Audit and
signed the relevant Officers and Members of the Council.

Balance Sheet

Shows all balances including reserves, long-term debt, fixed and net current assets,
together with summarised information on the fixed assets held.

Balance Sheet Date

The date at which the Council reports its financial statements. For Derbyshire County
Council, this date is the 31 March.

Bias

Influence or direction.

Billing Authorities

Councils who are responsible for issuing Council Tax Invoices and collection of income
from local residents. The relevant share of that income is then transferred to the
Council.

Borrowing Requirement

The amount required to be loaned from Money Markets or other financial institutions or
Councils in order to support capital expenditure.

Business Rates

Local property taxation issued to businesses, similar to Council Tax on residential
properties. Also known as National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR).

Cabinet

Sub-committee of elected Councillors representing the functions and portfolios of the
Council.

Capital

Assets which have a long term value (more than one year) to the Council such as
Buildings.

Capital Adjustment Account

Capital reserve largely comprising of resource applied to capital financing and is not
available to the Council to support new investment.
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Capital Appreciation

Increase in the worth of assets over time due to changes in market conditions or
enhancements to the asset.

Capital Costs

Reflects the element of annual payment for PFl or Leased assets which is in relation to
the reduction in the long term debt associated with the asset.

Capital Expenditure

Expenditure on the acquisition of, or enhancement to fixed assets. This cannot be
merely to maintain the value of an existing asset.

Capital Financing Requirement

The Capital Financing Requirement measures the amount of capital spending that has
not yet been financed by capital receipts, capital grants or contributions from revenue
income. It is a measure of the underlying need to borrow for a capital purpose.
Capital Grant

Grant which is intended to fund capital expenditure.

Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve

Balance of capital grants received which is available to finance future capital
expenditure.

Capital Receipts

Income received from the sale or utilisation of property, such as sale proceeds or
rental income on finance leases.

Capital Reserves

Reserve balances held for capital purposes.

Carrying Value

The amount at which an asset is recognised after deducting any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Cash Flow Statement

This consolidated statement summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from
transactions with third parties for revenue and capital purposes.

Cash Flows

Monies received or paid either as cash or bank transactions. Cash inflow denotes
money received, cash outflow denotes money paid.

Chartered Institute of Public Finance And Accountancy (CIPFA)

The main authority on accountancy and financial management for the public services
in the UK.
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CIPFA Code

A publication produced by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
(CIPFA) that provides comprehensive guidance on the content of a Council’s
Statement of Accounts

Collection Fund

The fund maintained by authorities who have responsibility to bill Council Tax and
Non-Domestic Rate payers (billing authorities).

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Revenue reserve to represent the difference between the income received by a local
authority in Council Tax and the amount attributable to them.

Collection Fund Statements

The statutory financial statements produced as part of the Statement of Accounts by
authorities who have responsibility to bill Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rate payers
(billing authorities).

Community Assets

Assets which are held for the benefit of the community where there is no determinable
useful life.

Comparative Year

The previous year to that which is being reported.

Component Accounting

The concept that individual parts of an asset (such as land, building, roof, sheds)
should be treated differently in the financial statements dependent on the expected
useful life or value of those individual parts. The concept expects that some parts of an
asset require repair or replacement sooner than others.

Comprehensive Income And Expenditure Statement

Financial Statement detailing the revenue operations of the Council. This represents
the private sector equivalent of a Profit and Loss Statement.

Condition

A requirement which must be met for an asset or liability to be recognised by the
Council. For example, a donation which can only be spent within a specific service
area such as museums or to support children.

Contingent Assets And Liabilities

A possible asset or obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contract Asset

The Council’s right to receive consideration in exchange for goods or services that it
has transferred to a service recipient where that right is conditional on something other
than the passage of time (such as the Council’s future performance).

Contract Liability

The Council’s obligation to deliver goods or services to a service recipient for which it
has already received consideration.

Contributions

Income received by the council which is not a grant, donation, fine, or in direct
exchange for goods or services.
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Core Service Areas

The services provided by the Council externally, such as education, highway
maintenance and adult social care.

Corporate And Democratic Core

Costs associated with maintaining a democratic representation and management
within the Council. For example Members Allowances and administrative costs
associated with supporting elected Members.

Council

The Council comprises all of the democratically elected Councillors who represent the
various electoral divisions.

Council Tax

Council Tax is a local taxation that is levied on dwellings within the local Council area,
and funds all Council services.

Credit

A credit represents income to a revenue account.

Credit Loss

The difference between contractual amounts due to the Council and the amounts it
expects to receive.

Creditor

Represents the amount that the Council owes other parties.

Current Service Cost

The current service cost is the increase in the value of the pension schemes future
pension liabilities arising from the employees on-going membership of the pension
scheme.

Current Value

IFRS13 introduces the concept of current value and defines it as the measurements
that reflect the economic environment prevailing for a service or function the asset is
supporting at the reporting date. Current value can be fair value, existing use value,
existing use value — Social Housing and depreciable replacement cost.

Current Year Entry

A transaction which has occurred in the financial year being reported.
Curtailments

Materially reducing the expected years of future services of current employees or
eliminating for a significant number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for
some or all of their future services.

Debit

A debit represents expenditure against a revenue account.

Debt Outstanding

The remaining principal balance owed on a loans or investments.

Debtors

Represents the amounts owed to the Council.
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Equity Instrument

A contract which evidences a residual interest in the assets of another entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Examples include shares and derivatives that give the
Council the right to receive a fixed number of shares for a fixed amount of cash (or
another financial asset) in an exchange which is expected to be favourable to the
Council.

Defined Benefit Scheme

Also known as a Final Salary Scheme. Pension scheme arrangement where the
benefits payable to the members are determined by the scheme rules. In most cases
there is a compulsory members’ contribution but over and above this all costs of
meeting the quoted benefits are the responsibility of the employer.

Defined Contribution Scheme

Also known as a Money Purchase Scheme. Pension scheme arrangement where the
employer’s liability is restricted to the amount that they contribute. Benefits payable to
the members depend on the performance of the invested contributions of the members
and the employer, the level of contributions invested, the charges deducted by the
product provider and the annuity rate at retirement.

De-Minimis

Minimum level required. For example expenditure below the capital de-minimis is
below the minimum level required to be treated as a capital expenditure item.
Department For Education

Central Government Department, responsible for education and children’s services in
England.

Depreciable Replacement Cost (DRC)

DRC is a method of valuation that provides the current cost of replacing an asset with
its Modern Equivalent Asset less deductions for all physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation.

Depreciation

The term used to describe the charge made for the cost of using tangible fixed assets.
The charge for the year will represent the amount of economic benefits consumed by,
for example, wear and tear.

Derecognition

The process whereby a component is replaced to avoid double counting when no
future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or upon
disposal.

Discount

An allowance received through the early repayment of debt.

Discounted

Reflecting the equivalent value today of a payment or income made or due in the past
or future.

Discounted Cash Flow

A method of analysing future cash flows, by removing the impact time has on the value
of money, and producing an equivalent current value (present value).
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Discretionary Benefits

Benefits given to employees which are not statutorily obliged.

Disposal

Operations or assets which have left the responsibility of the Council, such as through
sale, a Government reorganisation, donation or merger.

Donated Assets

Assets which have been acquired at below market cost.

Dowry

One off payment made as donation, contribution or pre-payment of an obligation.
Earmarked Reserves

Reserve balances which have been set aside for future spending in a specific area.
Economic Life

The number of years the Council is expected to receive economic benefits to deliver
services.

Effective Rate

The interest rate embedded within a contract or lease, allowing for regular annual
payments and the time value of money.

Employee

A person who holds an office within the Council, but does not include a person
who is an elected Councillor.

Employee Benefits

Monetary or other awards to employees of the Council in exchange for services
provided. For example, pay, holidays, and pensions.

Employee Costs

The costs directly associated with employees, including but not exhaustively salaries
and wages, National Insurance contributions and pension’s costs.

Employer Contributions

The payments made to an employee’s pension scheme by the Council.
Enhancement Expenditure

Expenditure which increases the value of an asset.

Entity

Something with a legal status such as the Council, a company, or an individual.
Events After The Balance Sheet Date

An event which occurs between 31 March and the date that the accounts are signed
which would alter the conclusion reached by any reader of the accounts.
Exceptional ltems

Material items that result from the ordinary activities of the Council, but to a value so
significantly abnormal that is not expected to recur at that level.

Existing Use Value (EUV)

The value of an asset based on what it is currently being used for. For example, two
identical buildings in construction and design may have different values where one is
used as a school and another is used as offices.
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Exit Packages

The payment made to an employee upon leaving the Council.

Expenditure

Payments made of goods or services.

Fair Value

The income that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)

Measurement of a financial asset at fair value where any gain or loss on revaluation is
recognised in other comprehensive income and expenditure and taken to the Financial
Instrument Revaluation Reserve.

Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Measurement of a financial asset at fair value where any gain or loss on revaluation is
recognised as a credit or charge to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services within the
CIES.

Finance Income

Interest receipts.

Finance Lease

A lease that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of a fixed
asset to the lessee.

Financial Assets

A type of financial instrument which gives the Council the right to receive future
economic benefits.

Financial Instruments

An umbrella term to describe all financial services and trading with which the Council
may operate, including loans, borrowings, bank accounts and debtors.

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

Revenue reserve which records the timing differences between the rate at which gains
and losses are recognised and the rate at which debits and credits are required to be
made against Council tax.

Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve

This reserve contains the cumulative gains and losses relating to the valuation of
financial assets held at fair value through other comprehensive income. When the
underlying financial assets are de-recognised any gains or losses held in this reserve
are credited or expensed to the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services.

Financial Liabilities

A type of financial instrument that confers an obligation on the Council to transfer
economic benefits under its control.

Financial Statements

Published document, consisting of the Balance Sheet, Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, Movement in Reserves Statement, Cash Flow Statement and
Notes to the Accounts.

Financial Year

The current year being reported upon running from 1 April to 31 March.

221



GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Five Year Financial Plan

The Councils Medium Term Financial Plan, setting out the financial projection for the
Council over the coming 5 years.

Fixed Assets

See Non-Current Assets.

Flexi-Time

Time owed to employees who have worked above the contracted hours.

Gain

Where income exceeds expenditure.

General Provisions

Money set aside in the Balance Sheet where its future use is not known.

General Reserve

The reserve held by the County Council for general purposes, i.e. against which there
are no specific commitments.

General Revenue Government Grants

Grant income received from Central Government (or Government Department) which is
not restricted in its use.

Going Concern

The going concern accounting concept assumes that the organisation will not
significantly curtail the scale of its operation in the foreseeable future.

Goods Or Services

Supplies required by the Council to perform its operations. Examples of goods; paper,
bricks or light bulbs, and services; electricity, petrol or agency staff.

Grants

Payment towards the cost of local authority services. These are either for particular
purposes or services (specific grants) or in aid of local services generally (formula grant).
Group Accounts

Where a Council has a controlling interest in another organisation, group accounts have
to be produced. These accounts report the financial position of all of the group entities.
Hire Purchase

A contract for the provision of an asset which becomes the property of the lessee at the
end of the contract period.

Historic Cost

The cash paid in obtaining an asset in its current form. Inclusive of purchase price and
enhancement expenditure.

HM Revenue & Customs

Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs is a non-ministerial department of the UK
Government responsible for the collection of taxes, the payment of some forms of state
support, and the administration of other regulatory regimes including the national
minimum wage.
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HM Treasury

Her Majesty's Treasury, sometimes referred to as the Exchequer, or more informally the
Treasury, is the United Kingdom government department responsible for developing and
executing the British government's public finance policy and economic policy.

IFRIC

International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee.

Immateriality

Immateriality is an expression of the relative insignificance or unimportance of a
particular matter in the context of the financial statements as a whole.

Impairment

Impairment is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Inception

The point in time which something began such as a project, contract or lease.

Income

Cash flows into the Council.

Income From Service Recipients

Consideration a party, that has contracted with the Council, has given in exchange for
goods or services that are the output of the Council’s normal operating activites. Such a
contract may be in writing, orally or in accordance with customary business practices.
Income In Advance

Income received before the point at which an obligation to receive it has occurred.
Infrastructure

A network and grouping of inalienable components, expenditure on which is only
recoverable by continued use of the asset created i.e. there is no prospect of sale or
alternative use. The inalienable components include carriageways, footways, cycle
tracks, structures, street furniture, street lighting, traffic management systems and land.
Intangible Asset

Non-current assets which do not have physical form such as software.

Interest Accrued

Accrued interest is the interest on a bond or loan that has accumulated since the
principal investment or since the previous coupon payment if there has been one
already.

Interest Payable

The amount of interest due for payment within a financial year.

Interest Rate

The rate at which interest is calculated on a loan or investment.

Interest Receivable

The amount of interest due for receipt within a financial year.
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International Accounting Standards (IAS)

Regulations outlining the method of accounting for activities, IAS’s are currently being

replaced with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS’s) issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

Regulations outlining the method of accounting for activities, issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS)

Public Sector regulations outlining the method of accounting for activities.

Inventories

Goods purchased in advance of their use which are held in store.

Investment Property

Assets held solely for the purposes of rental generation or for increasing the value pre-

sale (capital appreciation) or both.

Joint Venture

An organisation which the Council has partial control and ownership, but decisions

require the consent of all participants.

Lease

Financial contract for the continuing use of an asset.

Lease Interest

The interest rate inherent within a lease allowing for regular rental payments and an

adjustment for the time value of money.

Lease Payments

Regular payment made in exchange for the use of an asset.

Leases

A method of funding expenditure by payment over a defined period of time.

Lessee

The person or organisation that is using or occupying an asset under lease (tenant).

Lessor

The person or organisation that owns an asset under lease (landlord).

Liabilities

An obligation to transfer economic benefits. Current liabilities are payable within one
ear.

)Iioans And Receivables

Financial assets which are not quoted in an active market and have either a fixed or

determinable payment.

Loan Modification

A change to the terms of an existing loan. Changes may include a reduction in the

interest rate, an extension of the loan term, or a reduction in the principal balance.

Loan Modification Gain/Loss

An amount arising from adjusting the carrying value of a loan to reflect the cash flows

under the renegotiated terms of the loan, but accruing interest at the rate specified in

the original loan terms.
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Long Term Debtor

Income due in more than 365 days of the balance sheet date.

Long Term Liability

Payment due in more than 365 days of the balance sheet date.

Loss

Where expenditure exceeds income.

Loss Allowance

A reduction to the value of financial assets for the expected credit losses relating to
those assets.

Materiality / Material

Materiality is an expression of the relative significance or importance of a particular
matter in the context of the financial statements as a whole.

Maternity Leave

Statutory time off due to pregnant women and new mothers.

Members

Elected Councillors responsible for the democratic leadership of the Council.

Members Allowances

Allowances paid to members in association with their roles and responsibilities.
Minimum Lease Payments

The minimum which will be paid or received over the life of a lease agreement.
Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP)

A prudent amount of revenue set aside to contribute towards capital expenditure which
has been financed by borrowing or credit arrangements.

Misstatement

An error whereby something was included in the accounts wrongly.

Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA)

The MEA should give the same service and performance as the existing asset, but
should use modern materials and technology.

Movement In Reserves Statement (MiRS)

The statement detailing the movement in the reserves of the Council.

Net Cost Of Services

The direct cost of delivering the Councils services after allowing for specific income
received by those services.

Net Operating Expenditure

The cost of operational items which are not direct services, such as disposing of the
Councils assets, after allowing for specific income received.

Net Realisable Value

The estimated selling price of an asset in the ordinary course of operations less any
completion costs and costs to make the sale, exchange or distribution.

Non Distributed Costs

The value of revenue operating expenditure that is not able to be apportioned to one of
the authorities core service areas.

Non-Accumulating Absences

Types of leave an employee may take in a financial year, which if are not taken do not
get added to the following year’s entitlement. For example Sick Leave.
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Non-Current Assets

Assets that yield benefits to the Council for a period of more than one year, examples
include land, buildings and vehicles.

Non-Vesting

An obligation which cannot be settled by a monetary payment.

Notes To The Accounts

A set of supplementary comments, tables and information which further explains the
main Financial Statements.

Obligation

The requirement to transfer economic benefits.

Operating Lease

A lease where an asset is used only for a small proportion of its economic life.
Operational

The normal activities of the Council.

Past Service Cost

Past service cost is the change in the present value of defined benefit obligations caused
by employee service in prior periods.

Payment In Advance

A payment made which is before the point of any obligation.

Pension Liabilities

The cost, calculated by an Actuary, of providing the current members of a pension
scheme with retirement benefits as set out in the pension scheme rules.

Pensions Costs

The benefits paid by the Council which are accrued during the period of employment
and paid to ex-employees after retirement.

PFI

See Private Finance Initiative.

PFI Credits

The financial support provided to Local Authorities to part fund PFI capital projects.
Pooled Investment Funds Adjustment Account

This reserve contains the cumulative gains and losses related to pooled investment
funds measured at FVPL as required by the statutory override effective for financial
years 2018-19 to 2022-23.

Premium

A payment made in association with the early repayment of debt.

Pre-Payments

See payment in advance.

Present Value

See Discounted.

Previous Year Adjustments

These are material adjustments relating to prior year accounts that are reported in
subsequent years and arise from changes in accounting policies or from the correction
of fundamental errors.
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Principal

The amount of repayment to a lender which relates to the reduction in the loan, rather
than the interest paid on the loan.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)

A Government initiative that enables, through the provision of financial support,
Authorities to carry out capital projects through partnership with the private sector.
Projected Unit Method

This is a common actuarial funding method to value pension scheme liabilities.
Property, Plant And Equipment Assets (PPE)

Assets with a long Term value and physical substance such as buildings, land, IT
equipment or vehicles.

Provisions

Potential costs that the Council may incur in the future because of something that
happened in the past, which are likely or certain to be incurred and a reliable estimate
can be made to the costs.

Prudent

A cautious approach to present the Financial Statements without significant risk of failure
to achieve the assets presented.

Quoted Market Prices

A method of determining the fair value of financial assets via prices quoted on an active
market.

Recognition

The process upon which assets are deemed to belong to the Council ether by purchase,
construction or other form of acquisition.

Receivable

The Council’s unconditional right to receive consideration in exchange for goods or
services that it has transferred to a service recipient.

Residual

The remaining value in an asset at the end of a contract or lease.

Retirement Benefits

Remuneration package received by employees after their retirement from the Council.
Retrospectively

Changes made to previous years accounts to alter the treatment which has previously
been reported.

Revaluation Gain

The increase to the fair value of an asset following a valuation.

Revaluation Reserve

This reserve contains revaluation gains on assets recognised since 1 April 2007 only,
the date of its formal implementation.

Revenue

The cost associated with providing Council services.

Revenue Expenditure

Expenditure which is not capital.
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Revenue Expenditure Funded From Capital Under Statute (REFCUS)

This is expenditure that is classified as capital although it does not result in the creation
of a fixed asset.

Revenue Grant

Grant which is not capital.

Right-of-Use Asset

An asset representing the Council’s right to use an underlying asset, such as a vehicle
or building, for a period of time.

Risk

The chance of an asset not coming to fruition or a liability being greater than anticipated.
Royal Institute Or Chartered Surveyors (RICS)

An international organisation who represent everything professional and ethical in land,
property and construction.

Salaries And Wages

Payments made to employees in exchange for service worked at the Council.

Service Concession Arrangements

Arrangements which involve the supply and maintenance of assets and service delivery.
Service Costs

Reflects the element of annual payment for PFI or Leased assets which is in relation to
services provided within the contract.

Service Expenditure Reporting Code of Practice (SERCOP)

CIPFA guidelines on reporting revenue expenditure.

Service Level Agreements

Contract of service.

Short Term

Less than 365 days from the balance sheet date.

Short Term Benefits

Employee benefits earned and consumed during employment.

Significant

A measure of materiality where the value is deemed to be almost all of the total value in
question.

Soft Loans

Low interest rate loans.

Spot Yields

A calculation of the projected return on bonds if held to maturity.

Staff

See employee.

Statute

Set out in legislation.

Straight Line Basis

The method of calculation of depreciation to allocate an equal amount of depreciation
each year over an asset’s useful life.

Support Services

Indirect costs of providing Council services including HR, Finance, Legal and Property
Maintenance.
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Surplus

Arises when income exceeds expenditure or when expenditure is less than available
budget.

Surplus Assets

Assets which are no longer in operation.

Tangible

Physical, can be touched.

Tenant

The person or organisation that is occupying an asset under lease.
Termination Benefits

Employee benefits paid upon termination of employment such as redundancy.
The Code

CIPFA guidelines on accounting within Local Government.

Transactions

Individual items of income or expenditure.

Treasury Management

Utilisation of cash flows through investments and loans.

Unidentified Income

Income received by the Council where the reason for the income is unknown.
Unusable

Balances which are not available to support future spending.

Usable

Balances which are available to support future spending.

Useful Life

The period with which an asset is expected to be useful to the Council in its current state.
Value Added Tax

National taxation charged on goods and services.

Vesting

Obligation due which can be paid in cash.

Work In Progress

The fair value of incomplete contracts for goods and services which are to be charged
to external customers.
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CONTACT INFORMATION

If you require any further assistance

E-mail :
contact.centre@derbyshire.gov.uk

Phone & :
01629 533190
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Introduction and the Purpose of the Governance Framework
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Scope of Responsibility

EELE ATV TE R

P mumw ! ey

Source: International Framework: Good Governance in the
Public Sector (CIPFA)

The Council has a duty under the Local Government Act
1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised
and is responsible for ensuring that its business is
conducted in accordance with the law and relevant
standards, that public money is safeguarded, properly
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and
effectively.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is
responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of its affairs and facilitating the effective
exercise of its functions, including arrangements for the
management of risk. The Council has developed an
approach to corporate governance to ensure that it is
consistent with the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering
Good Governance in Local Government and demonstrates
its commitment to corporate governance as “good corporate
governance underpins credibility and confidence in our
public services”.

This Statement explains how the Council demonstrates
compliance with the Framework whilst meeting the
requirements of Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015 in relation to the publication of an Annual
Governance Statement.
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Derbyshire County Council’s Governance Framework and Structure

The governance framework comprises the systems,
processes, and values by which the Council is directed
and controlled and the activities through which it
accounts to, engages with, and leads the community. It
enables the Authority to monitor the achievement of its
strategic objectives and to consider whether those
objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-
effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that
framework and is designed to manage risk to a
reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based
on an ongoing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s
policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood
of those risks being realised and the impact should they
be realised, and to manage them effectively, efficiently
and economically. The governance framework has
been in place at the County Council for the year ended
31 March 2024 and up to the date of the Statement of
Accounts being certified by the Director of Finance.
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Council

Appointments & Conditions of Service Committee

+64 Elected Members who are democratically accountable to residents of *Approves corporate employment policies
their electoral division _ _ +Determines terms and conditions of service

*Members follow a Code of Conduct to ensure high standards in the way «Specific role in the appointment and disciplinary procedure for certain
they undertake their duties senior officers

*Meetings are generally open for the public to attend except where
exempt or confidential matters are being discussed

*Decides the policy framework and sets the budget each year and major
plans

Improvement and Scrutiny Committees

: *Five Committees which support the work of the Cabinet and the Council
Cabinet as a whole
«Allow citizens to have a greater say in Council matters by holding
inquiries in public into matters of local concern

+Consists of the Leader of the Council and eight Cabinet Members -Lead to reports and recommendations which advise the Cabinet and the
*Responsible for guiding the Council in the formulation of its corporate Council as a whole on its policies, budget and service delivery, and other
plan of objectives and key priorities public bodies
*Has executive responsibility for the implementation of the Council’s key *Monitor the decisions of the Cabinet
goals and objectives +They can ‘call-in’ a decision which has been made by the Executive but

not yet implemented

Governance, Ethics and Standards Committee Audit Committee

«Promotes and maintains high standards +Independently contributes to the Council's process of ensuring internal

* Assists Members in observing the Code of Conduct sl systems are ma.intained o .
- Advises the Council on matters relating to the Code *Responsible for approving and monitoring progress of the annual Audit

) . Plan
-Recg Ives regular reports on corporate. cqmplamts »Considers matters referred to the Committee by the Council’s external
» Advises on amendments to the Constitution auditor

* Approves the Annual Statement of Accounts and the Annual
Governance Statement
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The Annual Governance Statement 2023-24

Departmental Representatives attend the Governance Group and progress has been made to address the areas for
improvement identified in the 2022-23 action plan. Where items have not been completed the Group seeks to assure itself that
there is a plan to do so.

The Group has reviewed its terms of reference and has defined its role in ensuring good governance across the council, the
Executive Director of Corporate Services and Transformation has continued to chair the meetings throughout 2023-24.

During the year the Local Code of Corporate Governance has been reviewed and approved by Audit Committee and lessons
learnt from other public bodies and public interest reports have been considered. In addition, the council’s constitution con tinues
to be kept under review and is updated, as and when required, to strengthen the robustness and integrity of the governance
framework.

The main changes in 2023-24 include:
e Code of Conduct for Officers reviewed, and approval of Council given to remove from the Constitution.
e An updated Code of Conduct for Members.
¢ Amended list of Budget and Policy Framework policies and strategies.
¢ Minor amendments to the Petition Scheme.
e Minor amendments to the terms of reference of Audit Committee to include 2 independent co-opted members.
e Members Allowances Scheme for 2024/25 approved.

A review of the Scheme of Delegation also commenced during 2023-24. In addition, the Improvement and Scrutiny Procedure
Rules, were reviewed considering the statutory guidance and guidance issued by the Centre of Governance and Public
Scrutiny; however, following an update to the statutory guidance, a further review will be carried out prior to consideration of
amendments by Governance Ethics and Standards Committee and full Council.

The Council works with the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) to respond promptly and effectively to
recommendations identifying areas for improvement. The Annual Review Letter of the Local Government & Social Care
Ombudsman 2022-23, which was reported to Cabinet on 19 October 2023 and Governance Ethics and Standards Committee
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on 26 October 2023, confirmed the Council complied with all the recommended remedies giving a compliance rate of 100%.
Of the 97 complaints made, 20 were upheld but, there were no findings of maladministration. In 2023-24 there were 107
complaints made to the LGSCO, The LGSCO issued 80 decisions relating to complaints in 2023-24, of these 45 were upheld
but, there were no findings of maladministration. To date the Council has already complied with all the recommended
remedies or actions are in progress.

The internal audit annual opinion is a crucial element of the governance and assurance framework within the public sector. It
represents the conclusion reached by the Chief Audit Executive (CAE) regarding the adequacy and effectiveness of the
organisation’s risk management, control, and governance processes for the reporting period. This opinion is essential for
providing assurance to senior management and other stakeholders about the organisation’s control environment and its
capacity to achieve its objectives. For 2023-24 the opinion is one of limited assurance which is reflective of the requirement
to improve due to the significant risks being faced by the organisation to achieve its objectives.

The council continues to monitor the views of employees through the employee survey and is developing wellbeing and
engagement strategies to support our employees. However, as was noted in this statement last year, there remains
pressures in terms of staffing levels and recruitment to certain jobs and roles. To a large extent this is a function of a national
shortage of skilled workforce supply which is proving to be a challenge for some services and functions. The consequence of
this workforce pressure will increase the strain on front line services and the council’s fin ancial position.

The Statement of Accounts for 2022-23 were signed in May 2024, as explained in last year's Annual Governance Statement
the delay was caused by a variety of complex technical factors.

The Council continues to face a challenging economic environment. The impact events such as the pandemic and the Russian
invasion of Ukraine have led to disruption in global supply chains and inflationary pressures not seen for over twenty years.
Whilst current forecasts are for inflation to ease over the course of the next year, the impact on the council’s finances ove r the
past two years has been severe. Inflationary pressures and workforce shortages have pushed up the cost of services we
provide. In addition to these cost pressures there has been a material increase in the demand for some council services,
particularly those related to children’s care. Should these pressures not abate and costs for service provision stabilise the
council will face a significant financial challenge in the short to medium term. The medium-term Financial Strategy will be
refreshed during the coming year to coincide with production of the new Council plan, but to achieve financial stability the
council must move away from reliance upon the of reserves to supplement its funding for day-to-day spending.
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During 2023-24 the Council was unable to deliver a number of savings proposals. In the immediate short term, over the course
of the 2024-25 financial year, the Council must deliver savings and efficiency measures of £40m. The budget preparation was
undertaken through extensive engagement with all departments, and ongoing review and scrutiny of draft budget pressure bids
and potential savings proposals by the Managing Director, Director of Finance & ICT and Lead Members. Improvements were
made to the budget setting process in 2023/24 with budget savings and efficiency proposals being reported to Improvement
and Scrutiny Committee, Resources for comment prior to consideration by Cabinet, increasing transparency and enabling
budget savings to be reviewed comprehensively before budget decision-making processes commenced.

In addition, governance processes over the delivery of the agreed measures have been improved with the introduction of the
Programme Management Office to monitor and report on progress against the targets set. However, there remains significant
risks to the council’s finances and, as a consequence, delivery of services if the level of savings is not achieved and the council
does not operate within its approved budget.

A further new measure to improve assurance for delivery of budget and budget savings was implemented with Executive
Directors within the council all being required to agree budget responsibility memos which make clear their accountability for
delivering services within their approved budgets.

Embedded within the Digital Strategy, Cloud Technical Infrastructure Strategy, and Digital Services Structure Strategy (ICT
Strategy, Target Operating Model and Implementation Plan) are a series of essential deliverables aimed at fortifying our
organisational framework. These encompass comprehensive reviews of internal processes to ensure optimal efficiency, a
steadfast commitment to adhering to architectural principles for enhanced system robustness, proactive measures towards
reducing technical debt to streamline operations, and a pivotal shift towards cloud adoption / integration. The strategic intention
to migrate to cloud-based infrastructure will not only modernise our Digital landscape but also significantly bolster our cyber
security resilience, positioning us advantageously in safeguarding against emerging threats and vulnerabilities.

The Corporate Peer Challenge follow-up visit in October 2021 reviewed the progress the Council had made against the
recommendations identified by the original report in 2018 where it was considered that the Council’s approach to governance
was sound. This follow-up review identified a range of areas where the Council’s approach is positive, many of which are
fundamental to good governance including leadership, priorities and performance management, partnerships and financial
management and decision making. Although generally positive, the review made three recommendations to ensure that the
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Council maintains its momentum and continues to improve. Whilst the Council considered that it was already making progress
in these areas, it outlined and agreed the next steps to address the recommendations. Key actions identified to support
recommendations were included in the refresh of the Council Plan which is monitored on a quarterly basis and an annual
update on progress is also produced, with the next report to be reviewed by Corporate Management Team in July 2024.

The Council created 3 joint ventures with other organisations during 2020 to help deliver property services. In May 2020, PSP
(Derbyshire) Limited was created to review, develop, and renew our property and land assets, subsequently changing its name
to Develop Renew. In September 2020, Concertus Derbyshire Limited was created to provide design services for capital
projects that the council delivers. At the same time Vertas Derbyshire Limited was created to provide caretaking and cleaning
services to schools and the council’s other buildings. In November 2020, Vertas also took over responsibility for the council’s
grounds maintenance service. The DCC Trading Committee has been established to ensure oversight of the JVs performance.

The Council continues to collaborate with neighbouring local authorities and partners in health and the police, to ensure we are
best placed for local delivery of the Government’s levelling up strategy. In November 2022 a devolution deal was signed by the
four upper tier councils of Derbyshire County Council, Nottinghamshire County Council, Derby City Council and Nottingham
City Council. Pursuant to this agreement, the East Midlands Combined County Authority was created in February 2024 and
met for the first time in March 2024. The County continues to work with EMCCA through its formation and establishment.

Following the release of CIPFA’s revised Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police in October
2022, the Council’s Audit Committee have undertaken a self-assessment exercise in good practice and has formally evaluated
its own impact and effectiveness. These results identified a number of opportunities for potential development, including
enhanced training on the roles of the Committee, introduction of independent members and an additional annual report to
Council detailing the work completed and the Committee’s performance. All development opportunities have now been formally
reported and will be explored by both officers and committee members throughout 2024-25.

The Annual Governance Statement for 2023-24 follows a similar format to those published in previous years, aligned with the
CIPFA/Solace Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework.

240



ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Effectiveness of the Council’s Governance Arrangements

As part of this process, an assessment has been made of the council’s performance against each of the seven core principles
using the following criteria:-

Definition

The governance framework is effective and fit for purpose, although some minor weaknesses and
improvements may have been identified.

Whilst the governance arrangements are generally effective, there are gaps within the framework which need
to be addressed. Should these issued remain unaddressed, there is an increased risk that the Council may be
exposed to reputational risk.

Significant weaknesses have been identified in the governance arrangements which expose the Council to
reputational risk.

The governance arrangements are considered to be deficient as weaknesses have been identified in a number
of key areas rendering the overall framework ineffective and leaving the Council open to a high risk of
error/abuse and significant reputational risk/damage.

Arising from this assessment of governance arrangements an Action Plan has been developed and is attached. Detailed
actions and dates for completion will be determined to address each area for improvement which will be reported to the Audit
Committee who will, in turn, monitor progress.

The Annual Governance Statement summarises the findings of the review of the Council’s existing governance arrangements.

The review examined the Council’s position against the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government which defines the seven core principles, each supported by sub-principles which underpin the governance
framework of the Council.
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Core Principles
of the Framework

Overall
Assessment

Principle A

Behaving with
integrity,
demonstrating
strong
commitment to
ethical values
and respecting
the rule of law

Review

What is working well and areas for improvement

Areas for Impr

The Constitution sets out the roles of Cabinet, full
Council, Committees, Executive Directors and Statutory
Officers, alongside details of their decision-making
powers;

Codes of Conducts are in place for Members and
officers. The Code of Conduct for Employees has been
refreshed and updated and communicated in October
2023 to all colleagues. The Members’ Code of Conduct
was reviewed in 2023 by a working group set up by the
Governance, Ethics and Standards Committee and a
revised version approved by Council on 27 March 2024.
A process for dealing with Members code of conduct
complaints is embedded;

There is an electronic process for officers to make
declarations of gifts and hospitality, this data is then
reported on a quarterly basis to departmental
management teams. Continued officer awareness of the
gifts and hospitality process is provided by departmental
reps to ensure the online process is effectively
embedded;

Quarterly reminders are sent to Members by the
Monitoring Officer to keep their register of interests up
to date and report offers of gifts and hospitality;

The Authority operates an Equality and Diversity Policy
2022-25, Whistleblowing Policy and Complaints
Procedures.

The Monitoring Officer is responsible for ensuring the
lawfulness of decisions taken by Council, Cabinet,
Committees and officers;

The organisational engagement cycle encourages open
and honest feedback from employees on a range of
issues with an annual employee engagement survey in
place.

A process and timetable is in place for production of
reports to ensure they are not presented to decision

The Whistleblowing Policy was updated 2021-22
and is due to be reviewed in 2024. Further work is
also required to complete and promote a
Whistleblowing Referral Form and continue to
ensure that the policy is communicated widely,
understood and embedded;

Employees and Members to be provided with
formal ethical awareness training to embed high
ethical standards, an understanding of ethical risks
and ability to make decisions with integrity and
confidence;

The corporate complaints procedure requires
reviewing

The Anti-Money Laundering Policy is reviewed on
an annual basis, and has been published on “our
Derbyshire” but further internal communication and
training needs to be developed;

Training for the amended Financial Regulations
and Standing Orders needs to be rolled out across
the Council;

Improved process for production of reports is
required to ensure they are not presented to
decision makers without being appropriately
considered for legal and financial implications.
Policies and procedures relating to conflicts of
interest require review
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What is working well and areas for improvement

Core Principles Overall

of the Framework | Assessment Areas for Impr

makers without being appropriately considered for legal
and financial implications

» Financial Management Arrangements conform to the
Financial Management Code;

» The Governance, Ethics and Standards Committee
monitors and reviews the operation of the Constitution
and has recommended a number of amendments
during the year that have been agreed by Council;

» Role profiles have been agreed for Members;

» Clear channels of communication are in place for all
sections of the community and stakeholders, including
digital and social media, internal communications,
publications and campaigns;

» The Council’'s Corporate Governance Group is chaired
by the Executive Director of Corporate Services &
Transformation and attended by representatives from
each Department, Audit Services and the Section 151
and Monitoring Officers, as well as deputies for the
statutory roles;

» The Council reviews how it best protects its vulnerable
residents and seeks to take on board learning from all
relevant reviews whether they are Derbyshire focussed
or not;

» An online learning introduction to equality, diversity and
inclusion was introduced in March 2023 for all current
employees to complete and this is now part of the
induction programme for all new starters.

Principle B > The Assistant Director of Finance (Audit) produces an » Work is underway to review and further develop the
Annual Report which is considered by Audit Committee, Council’s approach to resident voice. As part of

. highlights both significant areas of good practice and the organisation’s Integrated Strategic Planning
Ensuring those where improvements can be made. This Report Cycle a consultation strategic framework, toolkit
openness and includes the annual internal audit opinion which timetable of proposed corporate consultation
comprehensive f::cclzﬂiifsnftrg?n C;\\/:éﬁl' 3;1323;?; ﬁgg ?if;ictlveness of activity for 2024- 25 aligned with strategic drivers
stakeholder management and control for activity is being developed;
engagement
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Core Principles
of the Framework

Overall
Assessment

What is working well and areas for improvement

Areas for Impr

> The Council engages with the citizens of Derbyshire

and consults stakeholders as part of the decision-
making process where appropriate. Revised reporting
has assisted in consistently ensuring openness and
consideration of stakeholder consultation. Citizens,
trade unions and business ratepayers are all engaged
when setting the budget. This consultation sits within
the wider context of the annual Your Council, Your
Voice Survey which measures resident satisfaction with
Council services as well as identifying residents’
priorities;

The Council has reinstated its Parish and Town Council
Liaison Forum with six monthly meetings in place.
These have been highly successful with increased
attendance, greater involvement of Council Services
and opportunities to undertake networking across the
sector;

The Council undertakes a wider range of partnership
and stakeholder activity to support the development of
key programmes of work which enhance services,
improve systems and increase investment into the
county, examples of this include the development of the
Devolution Deal for the East Midlands which has
resulted in the region securing £38 million of funding
each year for 30 years;

An annual Employee engagement cycle is in place with
annual employee survey and feedback on outcomes
and progress against the organisation action plan;
Decision making protocols are in place which include
the use of Equality Impact Assessments;

A Communications Strategy is in place;

The Council’s “Enterprising Council” Strategy and
approach seeks to ensure services meet needs of
users, utilising the best delivery vehicle in each
circumstance;

It is proposed that a redesign of the Partnership
Protocol and Toolkit isundertaken. The approach
will commence with a review of existing
partnerships which will provide the baseline for the
wider redesign of tools and create a clearer picture
of current arrangements and a mechanism for on-
going corporate oversight. ;

Improve how the organisation interacts and delivers
services with partners. This includes risks of
particular partnerships on the County Council;

A new streamlined process for Officer decisions to
be published through Mod.gov. requires roll out and
embedding;

Improved engagement in the production and use of
the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment:
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What is working well and areas for im

The Council has an online Committee Management
System (mod.gov) to improve access to councillors,
decision making and democracy;

The Forward Plan of forthcoming key decisions to be
considered by Cabinet and Cabinet members is
embedded, published online and reported to CMT and
Cabinet;

The template report contains a specific paragraph
heading to ensure consultation feedback, including
comments from Improvement and Scrutiny Committee
where they have carried out pre-decision scrutiny, is
clear and transparent.

rovement

The Council Plan 2022—2025 outlines the Authority’s
strategy and vision, defining key priorities, values and
intended outcomes;

The Council Plan outlines the Council’s strategy and
vision;

Departmental and Service Plans are developed which
are consistent with the overarching Council Plan and
incorporate a range of performance measures;
Progress against a range of targets is monitored.
Performance against financial and performance targets
is formally monitored on a quarterly basis within the
Performance Monitoring and Budget Monitoring /
Forecast Outturn Report;

The Authority has in place an effective risk management
framework which is consistent with the Corporate Risk
Management Strategy 2021-25. A Strategic Risk
Register is subject to regular review;

Capital investment is structured and in line with the
Investment Strategy;

The Asset Management Strategy provides the vision
and strategy for the alignment of assets with Council
goals and objectives;

Reporting templates prompt consideration of a longer-
term view in the decision-making process, with more

> Further colleague training and support is required

to ensure all associated risks have been fully
explored and reflected within decision making
proposals. Introduction of the PMO will bring
consistent business case management and
monitoring of benefits realisation. The use of
detailed reporting templates has also facilitated a
consistent approach to the consideration of
potential implications.

The Customer Charter requires review and
increased awareness raising with colleagues and
the public, aligned to the organisation’s wider
complaints procedures and development of the
customer experience strategy.
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Core Principles

of the Framework | Assessment

Overall

Principle D

Determining the
interventions
necessary to
optimise the
achievement of
the intended
outcomes

Review

What is working well and areas for improvement

Areas for Im

emphasis placed on measuring and monitoring
outcomes as opposed to outputs. The templates also
ensure that the decision maker is advised on the wider
implications of the decision, including Health and
Safety, Environmental Sustainability, Property and
Asset Management, Risk Management and
Safeguarding;

A social value approach has been developed to assist in
ensuring that the economic, environmental and social
benefits are embedded, realised and captured
consistently for Derbyshire when procuring services.
The Sustainable Procurement Policy was approved by
Cabinet in June 2022;

A Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan are in place
with specific and measurable targets.

Financial and Procurement Strategies are in place;

The Council has Improvement and Scrutiny Committees
in place;

The People Strategy has been approved and
implemented to ensure a consistent, council-wide
approach for future investment in its workforce;

The Council updates its Five-Year Financial Plan as
part of the annual budget setting process, alongside a
review of its reserves position;

The Council undertakes Equality Impact Assessments
to support decision making. Work is underway to
develop an electronic portal to ensure these are collated
and opportunities for sharing best practice exploited;
Briefings between officers and Cabinet members are
embedded to ensure information needs to support
decision making are met;

The People Strategy has been deployed with
departmental people plans in place, and HR deliverable
plans focused on key workforce priorities for action.

» The Council’s new Digital Strategy, which describes the

council’s future approach to Digital, and the Cloud
Technical Infrastructure Strategy, which defines the
technical infrastructure necessary to deliver the Digital
Strategy were completed and agreed by the council in
the financial year The Digital Services Structure
Strategy (ICT Strategy, Target Operating Model and
Implementation Plan) has been completed since the end
of the financial year and agreed by the council. A Digital
Transformation Programme is now being planned, to
implement the changes described in the three
strategies.

The Council upgraded its Enterprise Resource Planning
(ERP) system, SAP to S4, which in turn has mitigated
technical infrastructure risk.

Following risk mitigation work on its technical
infrastructure as the strategies were compiled (above),
the Council received a PSN Connection Compliance
Certification from the Cabinet Office on 4 Mar 2024, for
the first time since Jan 2021. The Council is working to
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What is working well and areas for improvement

Areas for Impr

develop a more proactive approach to the use of
collective intelligence to guide decision making, rather
than data. This is expected to be achieved through the
development of cloud, SAP S4/HANA, other software,
roles and use of intelligence during 2024;

Where departments have unachieved savings,
alternative initiatives need to be developed to ensure
the Council continues to achieve a balanced budget;
Improvements to be made to align budget and Council
plan development;

The Executive/Scrutiny Protocol has been agreed in
principle but requires formal approval;

Improvement needed in the oversight of joint venture
companies to ensure the risks to the Council are
managed and the Council’s interests are protected.

Core Principles Overall
of the Framework | Assessment
Principle E Review

Developing the
entity’s capacity,
including the
capability of its
leadership and
the individuals
within it

»> Members and officers work together to deliver a

common purpose with clearly defined functions and
roles;

> The arrangements for Member training and

development are in place, with steps being taken to
determine the future approach to the Member
Development Working Group;

» Induction policies, procedures and programmes are in

place to support newly elected Members and employees;

» Employee development is supported through the

provision of generic and specific learning interventions,
including initiatives on DLO and supporting the
maintenance of professional standards and qualification
training. Improved awareness and utilisation of key
talent pipelines, including apprenticeships, have been
deployed, alongside the successful development and
deployment of a graduate development scheme.

»> The approach to engaging, informing and developing

leaders has been deployed with the Shaping the Future

Work is required to fully embed the new PDR process
and ensure all employees are provided with this
opportunity. Development of a technological solution is
needed to monitor completion rates and support the
wider roll out of the PDR process across the
Organisation however the process is deployed to all
colleagues;

Recruitment and retention issues remains prevalent
across the organisation, with work progressing to outline
options available to the organisation aligned to total
reward;

Whilst departmental people plans are in place aligned to
the People Strategy, the organisation would benefit from
a strategic workforce plan to support future talent
provision and workforce changes;

Detailed officer guidance on executive decision making
and non-executive decision making is in place and
published on mod.gov, however it has not been widely
promoted. Further work is required to ensure it is
embedded,
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Core Principles
of the Framework

Overall
Assessment

What is working well and areas for improvement

Areas for Impr

forum regularly held and the leadership forum recently
re-launched;

> Meetings attended by senior management from the

individual departments held on a weekly basis.

Shaping the Future Forums are attended by EDs,
Directors and Assistant Directors on a quarterly basis
and a Leadership Forums take place twice a year for all
Grade 14 leaders and above.

Executive directors and statutory officers attend weekly
Corporate Management Team (CMT) meetings to bring
the Council together as a whole. Attendees are party to
the development of policy from an early stage. Cabinet
meetings are held in conjunction with CMT on a monthly
basis

» The Inspiring Leaders development programme has

now launched phase 1 to circa 1200 leaders, with plans
progressing to develop phase 2. Mandatory
development programme for all line managers and
leaders at G12+, which aims to develop the leadership
behaviours needed to lead change and inspire our
people and teams to high performance. The programme
takes 5 months to complete and will be delivered
through a top-down approach over 3 years;

» The Council has approved a revised employee

performance management policy and is implementing
the Performance and Development Review (PDR)
across leadership cohorts, replacing the former MyPlan
approach. Talent reviews have been held to consider
the performance and potential of all leaders undertaking
roles at grade 14 and above;

»> Employees are able to access training in new

technology and IT systems to ensure effective use of
systems;

» Member training and development programmes require
improvement. A previous self-assessment exercise
highlighted areas of weakness in relation to training,
support and engagement.

> A ‘governance’ training programme for officers covering
Local Government Governance Basics; Decision
Making basics; Report writing/Producing Effective
reports, The Constitution, Understanding the Code of
Conduct for Members and Member/Officer Relations,
Political awareness, Contracts and Procurement; Anti-
Fraud and Corruption and Whistleblowing is being
developed to improve knowledge.

» The Scheme of delegation in the Constitution is
currently being reviewed and will be published in 2025.
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What is working well and areas for improvement

Core Principles
of the Framework

Overall
Assessment

Areas for Impr

» The Constitution contains a clear statement of the roles
and responsibilities of the Leader and Head of Paid
Service;

» The Member and Officer Relationships Protocol in the
Constitution sets out the different roles of Members and
Officers.

Principle F

Managing risks
and performance
through robust
internal control
and strong public
financial
management

Review

» The Audit Committee operates in accordance with
prescribed terms of reference. The Committee receives,
approves and monitors the Audit Plans for internal and
external audit;

» The Audit Committee monitors the effectiveness of the
Authority’s risk management arrangements. Executive
directors attend the Committee to discuss key risk within
their department;

» The effectiveness of the governance framework
including the system of internal control is reviewed
annually;

> Audit Services review the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal controls;

> The Strategic Risk Register is subject to regular review;

» Horizon scanning activity is undertaken to identify new
and emerging risks;

» The Council has been proactive in its approach to the
data protection, information governance and dealing
with data breaches which are continually monitored by
the officer Groups;

> Embedded Financial Regulations and Standing Orders,
Procurement policies and practices which are subject to
periodic review by officers and the Audit Committee;

» The Council has a Medium-Term Financial Plan and
Budget Monitoring policies in place, endorsed by the
LGA’s Corporate Peer Review;

» The Improvement and Scrutiny Committees scrutinise
decisions made, or actions taken in connection with the
discharge of any of the Council’s functions;

» Cyber security threats require ongoing monitoring and
development of appropriate responses. The need for a
Cyber Security working group requires reviewed in light
if the ICT Strategy, currently under development;

» There have been delays in revaluing property for
insurance purposes;

» A Data Management Strategy has not yet been been
introduced. This will developed during 2024-25;

» The follow-up report to the Corporate Peer Review
recommended “Reviewing the financial plan to recognise
the new financial environment as the Council emerges
from the pandemic®. The financial plan will be reviewed
as part of budget setting 2025-26;

> Develop the process for lessons learnt from internal
incidents and external Public Interest Reports;

» A small number of departmental financial assurance
packs have not been submitted in accordance with
agreed timescales;

» Financial reporting needs to be improved to detail the
cost of services linking to activities and the performance
of services;

> Improve and strengthen the Council’s Business
Continuity Planning Arrangements.

Further embedding of Risk management Strategy
required alongside further embedding and increased
understanding of risk management at an operational
level

> Reinforce the importance of Information Governance
across the Council
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Core Principles
of the Framework

Overall
Assessment

What is working well and areas for improvement

Areas for Impr

» The standards of behaviour and conduct are detailed in
the Member and Officer Relationships Protocol and
Code of Conduct;

» Quarterly corporate performance and financial
management reports are produced and presented to
Cabinet. This supplements performance management
arrangements operating within individual Departments;

» The Audit Charter formalises procedures including the
independence of Internal Audit and unrestricted access
to all Members, officers and documentation as
appropriate;

» The value for money opinions from the ISA260
highlights strong financial management;

» The Council has a designated Data Protection Officer,
who provides an annual report to CMT.

> Assurance is required over the quality of performance

monitoring below divisional level

Principle G

Implementing
good practices in
transparency,
reporting and
audit to deliver
effective
accountability

Review

» The Constitution defines how the Council operates and
the decision-making processes to ensure the Council is
efficient, transparent and accountable to local people;

» Audit Committee Members have completed a review of
their own effectiveness;

» The Audit Plan determines how Audit resources will be
focused, allowing formation of an annual internal
opinion on the Council’s framework of governance, risk
management and control;

» The Council’s Audit function is subject to an external
quality assessment;

> Assurance mapping has identified opportunities to
leverage assurance on the control environment from
third parties and regulatory bodies, permitting Internal
Audit resources to be targeted on areas which add most
value;

» Council, Departmental and Service Plans set out
objectives and include performance targets;

» Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings are open to
the public, unless exempt or confidential information is

Continue to improve robust systems for property
valuations building on the enhancements completed
during recent years;

An action plan is being developed to support and
develop the Audit Committee’s effectiveness;

Embed the process to produce the AGS in a timely
manner;

Understanding and compliance with terms and
conditions associated with grant funding, failure to
adhere may result in the partial or full recovery of
funding.

Continue to action the recommendations of LGA
Corporate Peer Review follow-up;

Continue to develop systems and protocols to support
and monitor partnership working. The initial focus has
been to review the Partnership Protocol and approach
as overall context for the work plan and future actions,
including the creation of a comprehensive picture of all
current partnership arrangements;
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Core Principles
of the Framework

Overall
Assessment

What is working well and areas for improvement

Areas for Im

being considered, and minutes are published on the
website to aid transparency;

Financial Statements are produced and published on a
consistent and timely basis;

Departmental Financial Schemes of Delegation
supplement the Council’s Financial Regulations and
Standing Orders relating to Contracts;

The Assistant Director of Finance (Audit) produces their
Annual Report which is considered by Audit Committee
and highlights both significant areas of good practice
and those where improvements can be made;

The Council routinely publishes data and meets
requirements of Local Government Transparency Code;
A Forward Plan of ‘key decisions’ is now embedded that
looks to the future for a period longer than the statutory
requirement;

Resource has been made for an Internal Audit Service;
and regular progress reports on audit findings are
received by Audit Committee to provide assurance on
the risk management, governance and internal control
arrangements of the Council;

The Monitoring Officer reports the Annual Review Letter
of the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
to Governance Ethics and Standards Committee and
Cabinet on an annual basis.

Continue to improve the governance arrangements with
partnering organisations

Continue to improve the governance arrangements
across companies and organisations where the Council
operates.

Improvements in officer training required for Financial
Regulations, Schemes of Delegation and associated
policies given the high number of new employees joining
the Council without local government experience. E-
learning module to be rolled out following ongoing
update of policies;

A system to track the implementation of Audit
recommendations was introduced in 2023-24. The
system now needs to be embedded across the Council
with all Departments engaging in the process.

The Councils Financial Regulations and Schedule of
financial delegation should be reviewed and updated
The Councils Financial Regulations and Schedule of
financial delegation should be reviewed and updated
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The Annual Governance Statement & Opinion

We have been advised on the implications of the results of the review of the effectiveness of the governance framework by the
Audit Committee and it is our opinion that the Council’'s corporate governance framework is generally fit for purpose and can
be considered to be adequate. However, it is recognised that there are areas which could be improved, and the Council has
a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address those opportunities for improvement highlighted above to further
enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for improvements which were
identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

Councillor Barry Lewis Emma Alexander
Leader of the Council Managing Director
Date July 2024 Date July 204

For Derbyshire County Council
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Action Plan - Areas for Improvement

publicised.

communication and training

Principle A Area for Improvement Agreed Action Responsible Officer Conl;gltc:tlon
Work required to develop a
Whistleblowing Referral
Form and continue to Appr.°"e the referral_form,
ensure Whistleblowin publish on the website and
L wing ensure the policy is Director of Legal &
Policy is communicated . : . Dec 24
widely, understood and approprlgtely Democratic Services
embecided This is to be communicated across the
completed after review of organisation
Whistleblowing Policy.
Employees and Members to
be provided with formal
. s . ethical awareness trainin
Behaving with integrity, |, o \heq high ethical ° . .
demonstrating strong standards. an To be scheduled, learning Director of People & Mar 25
commitment to ethical understan,ding of ethical request to be completed. Organisational Change
values and respecting the risks and ability to make
rule of law decisions with integrity and
confidence.
The Anti-Fraud and Anti-
Corruption Strategy, and | 1 A i Fraud and Anti-
Fraud Response Plan were X . .
: Corruption Strategy, and Assistant Director of
updated in 2022/23. . X Dec 24
However. increased Fraud Res:ponse Plan were Finance (Audit)
o ) approved in February 2024
promotion is required to
improve officer awareness..
The Anti-Money Laundering Develop internal
Policy is not widely P Director of Finance Sep 24
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Further training on the

Refresher training
focussing on scenarios and

Director of Legal &

Member Code of Conduct practical examples to be Democratic Services Jul 24
delivered.
Wider training for all Develop a training
employees in respect of programme to ensure all . .
. . : employees understand Director of Finance Sep 24
Financial Regulations and Fi ol R )
Standing Orders manc_:lal egulations and
) Standing Orders
Democratic Services to
Improve process for return reports to report
production of reports to author where not
ensure they are pqt appropriately pons@ered Director of Legal &
presented to decision for legal and financial ; ;
. X I Democratic Ongoing
makers without being implications. Services/Directors
appropriately considered for | Directors to ensure reports
legal and financial are not dealt with outside of
implications. approved process/system
The corporate comolaints Undertake review of Director of People &
P -ompiair corporate complaints Organisational Change Dec 24
procedure requires review
procedure
Policies and procedures Approve and implement an Dlreg;onrqg:‘:;et%al &
relating to conflicts of Officers’ Declaration of Dec 24

interest require review

Interests Policy

Services/Directors
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Principle B Area for Improvement Agreed Action Responsible Officer Conl:i)gltitlon
Work is underway to review
and further develop the
Councils approach to .
resident vori)ge This Develop a strategic
. L framework document and
includes plans to improve . .
" timetable of proposed Director of People and
the Council’s current . L o Sep 24
approach and develop a consultatlon act|V|ty for Organisational Change
new consultation 2024- 25 aligned with
engagement and, strategic drivers
involvement strategy by
March 2024.
Review of the Derbyshire
Partnership Toolkit and
development of systems
and protocols to support
and monitor partnership .
working. Improvement also Rede3|gn_of the Assistant Director
N Partnership Protocol and ) Mar 25
required in how the Toolkit Strategy and Policy
organisation interacts and
delivers services with
partners. This includes risks
of particular partnerships on
the Council.
Ensuring openness and A new streamlined process Roll out process to coincide
comprehensive for Officer decisions to be with F:Jblication of the Director of Legal &
stakeholder engagement | published through Mod.gov. P oo h o g ga Mar 25
requires further rewfjeI scheme o emocratic Services
development. elegation
The calendar of dates for ri?r:rz]ao’[:n:r;ti?riggsble at Director of Legal &
drafting reports, seeking g g Sep 24

advice and publication is

Departmental Team
meetings.
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not always followed and
needs further promotion.

The new approach to JSNA

Improved engagement in has been widely shared

the production and use of across the Council. The Director of Public Mar 25
the Joint Strategic Needs updated interim JSNA will Health

Assessment be available in a

Powerpoint from April 2024
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Completion

Principle C Area for Improvement Agreed Action Responsible Officer Date

Further officer training and
support is required in
relation to the use of Deliver officer training and
detailed reporting templates | support to ensure

to ensure all associated appropriate detail is Director of Finance Sep 24
risks have been fully included in reports and
explored and reflected decisions.

within decision making
proposals.

Defining outcomes in
terms of sustainable
economic, social and
environmental benefits

The Customer Charter
requires review and
increased awareness
raising with colleagues and
the public, aligned to the Review the Customer
organisation’s wider Charter

complaints procedures and
development of the
customer experience
strategy

Director of People &
Organisational Change Mar 25
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Principle D

Area for Improvement

Agreed Action

Responsible Officer

Completion
Date

The Council’s new Digital
Strategy, which describes
the council’s future
approach to Digital, and the
Cloud Technical
Infrastructure Strategy,
which defines the technical
infrastructure necessary to
deliver the Digital Strategy
were completed and agreed
by the council in 2023/24.

The Digital Services
Structure Strategy (ICT
Strategy, Target Operating
Model and Implementation
Plan) has been completed
since the end of 2023/24
and agreed by the council.
A Digital Transformation
Programme is now being
planned, to implement the
changes described in the
three strategies.

Implement Strategies

Director of Digital

Ongoing

The Council could develop
a more proactive approach
to the use of collective
intelligence to guide
decision making, rather
than data.

This is expected to be
achieved through the
development of cloud, SAP
S4/HANA, other software,
roles and use of
intelligence.

Director of Finance /
Director Digital

Ongoing

258




ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Determining the
interventions necessary
to optimise the
achievement of the
intended outcomes

Where departments have
unachieved savings,
alternative initiatives need
to be developed to ensure
the Council continues to
achieve a balanced budget;

Monitor through savings
programme board and
escalate where appropriate

Director of Finance

Ongoing
throughout 24/25

Improvements to be made

Council plan and budget
setting process were
aligned as part of budget

Ongoing through

to align budget and Council | 2024/25. Further work Director of Finance budget setting
plan development. required to ensure MTFS for 25/26
and Council plan fully
aligned
The Executive/Scrutiny
Protocol has been agreed Protocol drafted, awaiting Director of Legal & A
. o . : . ug 24
in principle but requires approval Democratic Services
formal approval.
Improve the oversight of
joint venture companies to
ensure the risks to the Implement new Director of Property Apr 24

Council are managed and
the Council’s interests are
protected.

Governance structure

259




ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Principle E

Area for Improvement

Agreed Action

Responsible Officer

Completion
Date

Developing the entity’s
capacity, including the
capability of its
leadership and the
individuals within it

Recruitment and retention
issues remain prevalent
across the organisation,
with work progressing to
outline options available to
the organisation aligned to
total reward.

To be included in strategic
planning process for April
2026 target implementation

Director of People &
Organisational Change

Apr 26

Whilst departmental people
plans are in place aligned to
the People Strategy, the
organisation would benefit
from a strategic workforce
plan to support future talent
provision and workforce
changes.

Ongoing

Director of People &
Organisational Change

Apr 25

Detailed officer guidance on
executive decision making
and non-executive decision
making is in place and
published on mod.gov,
however it has not been
widely promoted. Further
work is required to ensure it
is embedded.

Promote guidance at
Departmental Team
meetings

Director of Legal &
Democratic Services

Sep 24

Member training and
development programmes
require improvement. A
recent self-assessment
exercise highlighted areas
of weakness in relation to
training, support and
engagement.

Develop briefing note to
take to the Chair of
Member development
working Group aligned to
the new induction process
in May 25.

Director of People &
Organisational Change

Dec 24
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The Scheme of delegation | Continue to progress the
in the Constitution requires | review of the officer
review. scheme of delegation.

Director of Legal &

Democratic Services Mar 25
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Principle F

Managing risks and
performance through
robust internal control
and strong public
financial management

Area for Improvement Agreed Action Responsible Officer Conl:i)gltitlon
Cyber security threats will Ongoing monitoring of

require ongoing monitoring | threats by Cyber Security

and development of Group established.

appropriate responses.

The need for a Cyber Director of Digital Ongoing
Security working group

requires review in light if the

ICT Strategy, currently in

implementation.

There have been delays in | Ongoing work to deliver Assistant Director of

revaluing property for valuations in line with Finance (Audit) Jun 24
insurance purposes insurance requirements

A Data Management Data management working

Strategy has not yet been group established and will Director of Digital Mar 25
introduced. work to producing strategy

The follow-up report to the

Corporate Peer Review

recommended “Reviewing

the financial plan to Review MTFS to align with Director of Finance Dec 24
recognise the new financial | new Council plan

environment as the Council

emerges from the

pandemic’.

Develop the process for Create “library” of known

lessons learnt from internal | incidents and share Director of Finance Ongoing

incidents and external
Public Interest Reports

recommended best
practice
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Further embedding of Risk
Management Strategy
required, alongside further
embedding and increased
understanding of risk
management at an
operational level.
Frequency and quality of

Arrange training to build

review of departmental risk | risk assessment and Director of Finance Dec 24
registers has been management knowledge
highlighted as an area
requiring improvement.
Mitigation actions are not
currently allocated to
specific managers and do
not have defined timescales
for action.
Improve and strengthen the | Review BCG Terms of
Council’s Business Reference, Priority Director of People and Mar 25
Continuity Planning Services and Corporate BC | Organisational Change
Arrangements. Plan
Departmental assurance
packs to be submitted in Packs to be reviewed and Di . .
. ; irector of Finance Ongoing
accordance with agreed completed by services
timescales.
Improve financial reporting, Improve financial
linking to service activity : Director of Finance Dec 24
and performance processes and link to PMO
Reinforce the importance of | Improve information
Information Governance governance awareness Director of Finance Dec 24
across the Council across the Council
Review performance MZ'ZEEO?Q&fsgﬁs:n?::ior) Assistant Director Mar 25

monitoring arrangements

management framework to

Strategy and Policy
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promote a high performing
culture, including:

- Review and development of
new performance
management framework
(PMF) and outcomes
framework aligned to the new
council plan

- Review of Apex (corporate
performance management
system) and procurement of
corporate solution that meets
requirements of integrated
management of performance,
risk and project management
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Principle G Area for Improvement Agreed Action Responsible Officer Conl:l)gltitlon
Impl ti d ti . .

i:z:rze:r;r;igo:e z:::‘ ces Regular liaison with

and audri’t to dt\elllivefeffecfive Continue to improve robust | Finance and audit

accountability systems for property colleagues, early Director of Corporate Ongoing —

valuations building on the
enhancements completed
during recent years.

agreement of revaluation
schedules on an annual
basis. Clear timetable for
delivery of valuations.

Property

annual process

Implement the action plan
to develop and support the

Appoint two independent

Assistant Director of

Audit Committee’s members of the committee Finance (Audit) Dec 24
effectiveness.
Revised timetable,
Embed the process to including progress reviews
produce the AGS in a timely | has recently been Director of Finance Ongoing
manner. approved by the
Governance Group.
Promote the detailed officer
guidance on executive and
Strengthen the non-executive decision
understanding of the legal | making (referred to above),
basis for treating reports as | Which sets out the legal
exempt or confidential and | framework. Director of Legal & Dec 24

introduce processes to
ensure as much information
is provided openly and
transparently.

Introduce a robust process to
challenge reasons for
exemption and promote
openness and transparency

Democratic Services
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Understanding and Work . . Director of Finance Dec 24
compliance with terms and ork ongoing to improve
" ; . central grants register and

conditions associated with associated procedures
grant funding, fallure to Awareness of grant funding
adhere may result in the requirements to be
partial or full recovery of rgmoted
funding. P '
?e?:gtr::;:]cc)i:t(i:gr?g (t)rfule_GA Prepare final report on Director of People &

. progress for Cabinet in July . P Sep 24
Corporate Peer Review 5024 Organisational Change
follow-up; )
A system to track the
implementation of Audit
recommendations was
introduced in 2023-24. The . o .

Ongoing monitoring of Nominated
system now needs to be completion of the tracker departmental leads Mar 25
embedded across the
Council with all
Departments engaging in
the process
The Councils Financial Review and update
Regulatlc_)ns and S(_:hedule Financial Regulations and . :
of financial delegation > : Director of Finance Jun 24
. schedule of financial
should be reviewed and .
delegation

updated

An update of the progress towards implementing the actions agreed in the Annual Governance Statement was presented to
the Council’'s Audit Committee on 28 January 2025, at Agenda Iltem 5.
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